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Town of Reading
16 Lowell Street

Reading, MA 01867-2685

FAX: (781) 942-9070 TOWN MANAGER
Website: www.ci.reading.raa.us (781) 942-9043

Dear Residents:

Once again, I’m pleased to present to you the Annual Report for the Town of Reading for calendar year

1997. In addition to this “long report," a summary Annual Report was sent out to all the residents of the

community through the “Reading Notes” in February 1998. We are proud of the “Reading Notes’

publication as a means of improving communications between the residents of their community and their

Town government. The Reading Municipal Light Department has prepared a separate Annual Report

which is available from their office at 230 Ash Street in Reading.

There is an old Pennsylvania Dutch saying: “The hurrier I go the behinder I get.” For those of us who
work for you in your Town government, this seems an appropriate saying. As successful as the

community has been in finally addressing some of the infrastructure needs of the Town, the more it

appears that there is to do. In 1997, major progress was made on the siting and design of a new Police

Station to replace the current station which is over 60 years old. Additionally, we continue to make major

progress in updating and upgrading our schools. However, as much progress as we make in these

areas, more needs to be done. An enrollment surplus in the public schools creates the need for an

additional elementary school space, an issue that we thought we had completely addressed five years

ago. This is probably a measure of our success as a community. The better we get the more people

want to move into Reading, and the higher the demand for services.

Reading continues to remain fiscally strong. We began fiscal year 1998 with $2.2 million in cash

reserves, our highest ever. However, our needs for additional funds during the year have reduced that

amount by $1.5 million and the Town will be hard pressed to regenerate cash reserves of $1.3 million for

the next fiscal year. While this is not a major problem, it is a negative trend and one that we want to try to

reverse.

One thing that needs to be said over and over again is that the major strength in this Town is the

residents of the Town, and especially the time and energy they give to their Town government. More
than ever, the quality and quantity of volunteer services in all areas of government, recreation, and

community services is what makes Reading a unique place to live.

As always, we hope you read this report and that this

the .community in which you live. We continue as a

the'very best services in this community at the lowest

Sihce/ely,

Peter I. Hechenbleikner

Town Manager

will improve your understanding and appreciation of

local government to remain committed to providing

possible cost.
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FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT

Accounting

The Accounting Department is responsible for ensuring that all financial transactions of

the Town are in compliance with legal requirements, and are properly recorded on a timely basis.

Additionally, the Accounting Department maintains all financial records of the Town in order to

develop all of the financial reports and schedules that are required to provide meaningful and

accurate information for decision making.

Assessment

Assessment of property is the first step in the process of tax revenue collection for the

Town of Reading. The Assessment Division's function is to provide for the fair and equitable

assessment of all taxable real and personal property. The Assessors trend the values each year so

that the official revaluations done every three years won't have such dramatic changes. The

Assessors must annually determine the tax levy and obtain State approval of the tax rate so that

the bills can be issued in a timely manner.

The tax rate for Fiscal 1998 was set at $16.13 per thousand, a decrease of $0 49 per

thousand over the Fiscal 1997 rate of $16.62 per thousand. The total assessed value of all of the

8000+ properties in the Town of Reading for Fiscal 1998 is $1,712,876,300. The tax rate went

down because the total valuations rose so much. The breakdown of property by types and

percentages is as follows:

Residential $1,564,709,600 91.35 %
Commercial 118,272,900 6.91 %
Industrial 16,472,400 .96 %
Personal 13.421.400 .78 %
TOTAL $1,712,876,300 100 . 00%

Since the Town's residential property is over 90% of the value, the Board of Assessors

again recommended and the Board of Selectmen concurred that it is wise to keep the tax rate the

same for all classes of property. Shifting of the tax burden to commercial properties would be a

large burden to the businesses, with little tax relief for individual property owners. At the

classification hearing, the Board of Selectmen also decided not to shift the tax burden within the

residential class to non-residential owners, or to adopt a small commercial property exemption.

Collection of Taxes

The Town Collection function reports success for the third year in reducing the total of

delinquent, liened and deferred real estate taxes. The total outstanding property taxes in the three

categories was $907,000 at the end of Fiscal Year 1997, one third of which are deferred taxes

and will be collected upon the sale of the property.
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Finance and Accounting Department

Lien Certificate activity increased in Fiscal 1997, with a total of 1035 certificates

processed which netted $26,140 to the general fund. Brisk sales of real estate and favorable

interest rates for refinancing were responsible for the requests for certificates.

Excise tax collections of $1,892,245 brought considerable revenue to the Town. The

marking system ai the State Registry of Motor Vehicles whereby the Registry does not renew

licenses and registrations for delinquent excise tax payers is a very effective tool in excise

collections.

Technology

The Technology Division serves all Town Departments including those at Town Hall,

School, Library, Fire and Police. The Town's main computer system, a VAX 1 1-750, was

purchased in 1982 and replaced in 1993 with a 3100-80 MICROVAX. Software for the Town's

operations is written in the ADMINS language which is a fourth generation C-based language.

PC based applications were changed from Amipro to Microsoft Word in Fiscal 1997. The Town
will be transitioning from Lotus to Excel in the coming year.

Local Area Networks (LAN’s) were installed in the Library and the Town Hall in Fiscal

1997. The Town is working on a plan to link the Town Hall, Library and Police and Fire

Stations in a Wide Area Network (WAN) in Fiscal 1998. The Town’s e-mail address for those

who would like tc access it is: http://www.ci.reading.ma.us .

The Town received a $35,000 Municipal Incentive Grant through the Massachusetts

Department of Housing & Community Development. The grant is being used to develop a broad

range plan for developing and implementing a Geographic Information System (GIS), and to

develop a base map which would become the basis for the GIS system.

Personnel

The Finance Department administers personnel for the Town under the direction of the

Town Manager, and for the School Department under the direction of the Superintendent of

Schools. Retiree and Light Department personnel issues are also handled by this Division. The

Division was staffed by a Personnel Administrator for the first time in Fiscal 1997. A monthly

employees’ newsletter edited by the Personnel Administrator keeps employees up to date on

their benefits.

Employee benefits administered through the Division consist of health insurance,

deferred compensation, cafeteria benefits, disability insurance, sick leave bank, workers'

compensation. Employee Assistance Program and personal leave. Workers' Compensation and

Health Insurance are handled through a premium-based program at MIIA, the Massachusetts

Inter-Local Insurance Association. Blue Cross/ Blue Shield products offered to Town employees

experienced a 3.7 % decrease on March 1, 1997 and will increase by 5.0 % on March 1, 1998.
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Finance and Accounting Department

Treasurer

Interest earnings rates for money markets averaged 4.0 % for the 1997 fiscal year, with

the majority of the cash being invested at 5.48 %. Long term investments averaged 5.58

percent. Total interest earnings on the general fund were $1,054,450. No deposits of more than

10 % of the Town’s uncollateralized cash were held in a single financial institution and only

$1,122,440 of the Town’s $13,292,423 general fund cash at year’s end was uncollateralized.

The Town Treasurer borrowed permanently a total of $5,930,000 in August of 1997. The

general obligation bonds sold in June with an interest rate of 4.8775 %. Moody's and Standard

and Poor's continued to rate the Town's bonds AA. The AA's reflect the strong financial

management in the Town and the Light Department, the Town's strong property values and its

favorable location. The bond sale was for the Parker Middle School ($5,478,000); land for the

Police Station ($280,000); and school boiler replacement ($172,000). State reimbursement for

Parker is slated to begin in FY 1999, one year earlier than anticipated. Temporary borrowing for

Parker Middle School and other school projects in the amount of $10,550,000 was at rates

ranging from 3.75 % to 4.25%.

The Town's Trust Fund Commissioners continued to expand the Reading Response

Program which provides skilled health care services, respite care, medical transportation, and

Lifeline emergency call systems to Reading citizens who meet specific health and income

guidelines. A total of $258,731 was dispersed from the Hospital Trust Funds in FY 1997 to aid

Reading's citizens.

Disbursements from the Library Trust Funds amounted to $10,010 in FY 1997 for items

voted by the Library Trustees for Library purposes. Scholarships and awards to students from

the income of Scholarship Trusts were in the amount of $2,830. New cemetery bequests were

$33,200 in FY 1997 with $91,878 transferred to the Town for cemetery upkeep, and $131,459

earned in investment income for the cemetery funds.

The Trust Fund Commissioners, by law, may invest trust funds in stocks and bonds as

well as money market funds. Through the Commissioners' expertise and good judgment, the

total portfolio earned $381,017 or an average of approximately 7 % on a cash basis.

School Business Management

The Town Accountant and the Finance Director have served the School Department in

the role of business managers. The Town Accountant serves a role in budgeting, record keeping,

and as a source of financial information. The Finance Director served as an assistant in

personnel, payroll, school enrollment, capital and technology issues.
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REPORT OF THE TOWN COLLECTOR
12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 1997

1997 REAL ESTATE

Committed Dec. 15,1 996

Refunds

Interest & Costs Collected

Abatements

Paid to Treasurer

Subsequent Tax Title

Deferred Taxes

Uncollected June 30, 1997

$26,722,506.68

67,814.85

31,710.33

$26,822,031.86

$ 148,497.57

26,258,920.37

48,686.60

129,577.67

236,349,65

$ 26,822,031.86

1996 REAL ESTATE

Balance July 1, 1996 $ 292,342.61

Refunds 6,455.97

Interest and Costs Collected 60,079.09

Abatements

Paid to Treasurer

$ 358,877.67

$ 17,125.01

341,752.66

$ 358,877.67

1997 PERSONAL PROPERTY

Committed June 30, 1996 $ 207,931.65

Refunds 246.37

Interest and Costs Collected 245.00

Abatements $ 24.93

Paid to Treasurer 204,8 14.12

Uncollected June 30, 1996 3, 583. 97

$ 208,423.02 $ 208,423.02
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Report of Town Collector

1997 MOTOR VEHICLE EXCISE

Committed February 1997 $ 1,728,693.50

Refunds 12,027.63

Interest and Costs Collected 8,450.44

Abatements

Paid to Treasurer

Uncollected June 30, 1997

$ 1,749,171.57

$ 65,768.43

1,625,971.59

57,431,55

$ 1,749,171.57

WATER CHARGES

Balance July 1, 1996 $ 191,911.18

Committed 1996 2,164,376.25

Refunds 928.89

Abatements

Paid to Treasurer

Discount for Timely Payments

Added to 1996 Taxes

Uncollected June 30, 1996

$ 2,357,216.32

$ 2,086.43

1,902,576.86

173,058.68

88,046.60

191,447,75

$ 2,357,216.32

SEWER CHARGES

Balance July 1, 1996 $ 320,351.70

Committed 1996 2,759,260.83

Refunds 1,446.56

Abatements

Paid to Treasurer

Discounts for Timely Payments

Added to 1996 Taxes

Uncollected June 30, 1997

$ 3,081,059.09

$ 2,767.37

2,452,489.28

222,282.80

160,177.85

243,341,79

$ 3,081,059.09
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Report of Town Collector

PERMITS
Permits Issued:

Building $ 202,177.40

Electric 31,384.00

Plumbing 16,847.00

Gas 5,415.00

Certificates of Inspection 800.00

Paid to Treasurer

$ 256,623.40

$ 256.623.40

$ 256,623.40

ADDITIONAL WATER CHARGES
(SPMs-SPCs-Sprinklers)

Balance July 1, 1996 $ 6,137.78

Committed 1996 63,830.01

Refunds 3,262.30

Paid to Treasurer $ 59,120.86

Added to 1997 Taxes 2,052.53

Uncollected June 30, 1997 2.056.70

$ 73,230.09 $ 73,230.09

UNAPPORTIONED BETTERMENTS

Balance July 1, 1997 $ 933.03

Committed 1997 9,282.84

Refunds 1,968.17

Paid to Treasurer $ 10,017.41

Abatements 2.166.63

$ 12,184.04 $ 12,184.04

CERTIFICATES OF MUNICIPAL LIEN

Certificates and Releases $ 26,140.00

Paid to Treasurer $ 26,140.00

Elizabeth W. Klepeis

Town Collector
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TOWN OF READING

REAL ESTATE ABATEMENTS

FOR PERIOD 01 - JAN-97 TO 31-DEC-97

170 2 NICHOLS JAMES C PLEASANT ST 1,199.93 31 -DEC-97

1995 ABATEMENTS: 1 AMOUNT: 1,199.93

326 6 EBRECHT WILLIAM F SANBORN LN 2,107.13 21 -MAY-97

776 2 NICHOLS JAMES C PLEASANT ST 1,307.12 31 -DEC-97

1996 ABATEMENTS: 2 AMOUNT: 3,414.25

34 2 AUCELLA THOMAS A CROSBY RD 91.41 25-MAR-97

67 7 BERGERON PATRICIA FOREST ST 520.21 18- FEB-97

74 4 BISHOP ELEANOR C LOWELL ST 329.08 18- FEB-97

115 5 BRUZZESE VINCENT ETAL FOREST ST 1,655.35 08-APR-97

115 4 BRUZZESE VINCENT ETAL FOREST STREET 591.67 08-APR-97

148 2 CARLIN WARREN L COLLINS AVE 4,079.72 11 -AUG-97

239 3 CURRERI STEPHEN J BAY STATE RD 103.04 06-MAR-97

254 1 DARGENIO ROBERT W CHAPEL HILL DR 5,033.72 11 -AUG-97

264 2 DEFINIS STEVEN COLLINS AVE 211.07 16-APR-97

265 6 DELANEY JAMES R OAK RIDGE RD 44.87 12-MAR-97

269 5 DEMARCH I JOHN A WILLOW ST 588.35 05- FEB-97

321 4 DUNN ARNOLD M WASHINGTON ST 116.34 08-APR-97

322 1 DUNN JAMES W GOULD ST 664.80 16-APR-97

330 6 EBRECHT WILLIAM F SANBORN LN 694.72 16- JAN-97

354 5 FEENEY AGNES P SWEETSER AVE 63.16 12-MAR -97

388 2 FUCCO CAROL A CARNATION CIR 187.81 16-APR-97

443 5 GRIMM CAROL S ESTATE LN 127.97 25-MAR-97

448 7 GUI DA STEVEN J SUMMER AVE 177.83 16-APR-97

487 6 HIGGINS FRANCIS SUMMER AVE 1,961.99 17- JAN-97

507 3 HOYT JOAN E MIDDLESEX AVE 2,464.76 02-APR-97

512 3 HULING SHIRLEY A BOND ST 292.51 12-MAR -97

538 1 JOHNSON DAVID P TRUST ANSON LN 463.70 18- FEB-97

539 1 JOHNSON EDWARD N SYLVAN RD 1,462.56 25 -MAR -97

542 7 JOHNSTON HOWARD E HIGH ST 162.88 12-MAR -97

548 6 KAJANDER ROBERT SCOTT CENTER AVE 101.38 08-APR-97

576 6 KIRKENDALL NANCY J FAIRCHILD DR 1,389.43 05- FEB-97

593 1 LAKE ANN E MAIN ST 387.25 06-MAR-97

595 5 LANDRY JOHN L PARKER ST 99.72 08-APR-97

611 2 LEBED JAY A EMERSON ST 189.47 18- FEB-97

648 2 MACDONALD EDWARD F PEARL ST 3,449.82 11 -AUG-97

648 7 MACDONALD GRACE L PINEVALE AVE 2,437.66 11 -AUG-97

684 2 MATRULLO STEVEN M PLYMOUTH RD 58.17 08-APR-97

720 3 MELKONIAN RALPH K ESTATE LN 99.72 05- FEB-97

737 4 MINOTTI ANN (LIFE EST MAIN ST 290.85 08-APR-97

740 4 MOOA ANTONIO WOBURN ST 473.67 12-FEB-97

773 5 NEARY JOAN P SOUTH ST 56.51 12-MAR -97

775 6 NELSON PHYLLIS A GOVERNORS DR 365.64 08-APR-97

782 1 NICHOLS JAMES C PLEASANT ST 1,326.28 31 -DEC-97

787 4 NOEL H ANDREW JOHN ST CT 784.46 08-APR-97

800 5 OBRIEN GEORGE H SALEM ST 84.76 05- FEB-97

806 5 OKEEFE JOHN S HOPKINS ST 134.62 16-APR-97

833 2 PELOSI AGOSTINO A DANA RD 99.72 06-MAR-97

845 7 PETROSINO SILVIA ROMA LN 530.18 12-MAR-97

856 5 POOLE DOUGLAS E MEADOW BROOK LN 96.40 08-APR-97

883 5 READING BEAR HILL LIM HOPKINS ST 66.14 23- JUL-97

882 7 READING BEAR HILL LIM HOPKINS ST 1.04 23- JUL-97

928 4 RUSSELL ALFRED S BELMONT ST 486.97 29- JAN-97
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TOWN OF READING

REAL ESTATE ABATEMENTS

FOR PERIOD 01 -JAN-97 TO 31 -DEC-97

928 4 RUSSELL ALFRED S BELMONT ST 330.74 01 -DEC-97

616 6 RYDER FLORENCE J TRACK RD 141.27 12-MAR-97

950 2 SCHMIDT LYNDA WALL ASHLEY PL 127.97 25-MAR-97

1,018 4 SUGHRUE CLARA M GROVE ST 696.68 16- JAN-97

1,032 2 SWEEZEY GEORGE H MAIN ST 161.21 05-FEB-97

1,055 1 TILDEN MIRIAM MT VERNON ST 573.39 16- JAN-97

1,076 6 VACCARO PHILIP N LATHAM LN 206.09 16-APR-97

1,076 5 VACCARO PHILIP N MAIN ST 197.78 25 -MAR -97

1,080 4 VARNEY PARRIS P VARNEY CIR 136.28 18-FEB-97

1,091 1 WAKEFIELD DEVELOPMENT STRAWBERRY HILL LN 3,468.59 16- JAN-97

1,092 3 WALKER J WARREN OAK RIDGE RD 28.25 12 -MAR -97

1,107 7 WELFORD DONALD L GAVIN CIR 103.04 12-FEB-97

1,130 7 WISEMAN PEARL F CHARLES ST 2,670.34 11 -AUG-97

1997 ABATEMENTS: 60 AMOUNT: 43,941.01
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KPMG Peat Marwick llp

99 High Street

Boston. MA 02110-2371

Telephone 617 988 1000

1897-1997

Telefax 617 988 0800

Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Selectmen

Town of Reading, Massachusetts:

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Town of Reading, Massachusetts, as

of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These
general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Town's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our
audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Electric Enterprise Fund, which statements

reflect total assets and revenues consisting of 80% and 91%, respectively, of the related proprietary

fund types. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been
furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the

Electric Enterprise Fund, is based solely upon the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material

misstatement. The financial statements of the Electric Enterprise Fund were not audited in accordance

with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

The Town has not maintained records of the cost of its general fixed assets and, therefore, a general

fixed assets account group is not presented in the accompanying general purpose financial statements

as required by generally accepted accounting principles.

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the report of the other auditors, except that the omission of a

general fixed assets group of accounts results in an incomplete presentation, as discussed in the third

paragraph, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material

respects, the financial position of the Town of Reading, Massachusetts, at June 30, 1997, and the

results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary and nonexpendable trust funds for the

applicable years then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, except for

the Electric Enterprise Fund, which is in conformity with the basis of accounting described in note 2.

As discussed in Note 6 to the general purpose financial statements, the Town changed its method of

accounting for retirement costs to adopt the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statements No. 25 and 27.

14 .



KPMG Peat Marwick lip

The Board of Selectmen

Town of Reading, Massachusetts

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards
,
we have also issued a report dated September 26,

1997, on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its

compliance with certain laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements

taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund statements listed in the accompanying table of

contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general

purpose financial statements of the Town of Reading, Massachusetts. Such information has been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements

and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole.

The historical pension information on pages 27 and 28 is not a required part of the general purpose

financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting

Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures to this information, which consisted

principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the

supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

LLP

September 26, 1997
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances (Deficits) - All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

Year ended June 30, 1 997

Fiduciary

Governmental fund Types Fund Types

Special Capital Expendable Totals

General Revenue Projects Trust (Memorandum
Fund Funds Funds Funds Only)

$ $ $ $ $

Revenues:

Property taxes 26,515,353 - - - 26,515,353
Excise taxes 1,892,245 - - - 1,892,245
Penalties and interest on taxes 186,701 - - - 186,701
Payments in lieu of taxes 279,482 - - - 279,482
Charges for services 792,706 1,327,329 - - 2,120,035
Licenses and permits 36,516 - - - 36,516
Intergovernmental 7,146,908 998,789 302,142 - 8,447,839
Special assessments 8,752 - - - 8,752
Fines 132,008 - - -

1 32,008
Investment income 798,949 126,968 - 887,015 1,812,932
Contributions and bequests - - - 293,21 1 293,21 1

Other 2,468 260,255 - 19,593 282,316

Total revenues 37,792,088 2,713,341 302,142 1,199,819 42,007,390

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 1,956,543 - - - 1,956,543
Public safety 5,174,1 1 1 383,018 - - 5,557,129
Education 19,928,449 1,573,077 - 2,830 21,504,356
Public works and facilities 3,410,400 23,785 - - 3,434,185
Human services 279,795 72,838 - 258,965 61 1,598

Culture and recreation 663,272 262,781 - 15,760 941,813
Employee benefits 4,854,452 - - 785,525 5,639,977
Intergovernmental 685,929 - - - 685,929

Capital outlay - - 7,145,441 - 7,145,441
Debt service 1,801,368 - - - 1,801,368

Total expenditures 38,754,319 2,315,499 7,145,441 1,063,080 49,278,339

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (962,231) 397,842 (6,843,299) 136,739 (7,270,949)

Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds from general obligation bonds - - 6,702,000 - 6,702,000
Operating transfers in (out) (note 1 1

)

1,658,605 (50,295) 1 1 6,000 (149,275) 1,575,035

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,658,605 (50,295) 6,818,000 (149,275) 8,277,035

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses 696,374 347,547 (25,299) (12,536) 1,006,086

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year 3,834,562 2,61 1,280 (13,030,605) 13,316,375 6,731,612

$ $ $ $ $

Fund balances (deficits), end of year 4,530,936 2,958,827 (13,055,904) 13,303,839 7,737,698

See accompanying notes to general purpose financial statements.
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis

General Fund

Year ended June 30, 1997

Variance -

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:

$ $ $

Property taxes 26,202,608 26,066,939 (135,669)
Excise taxes 1,600,000 1,882,245 282,245
Penalties and interest on taxes 1 70,000 186,70! 16,701
Payments in lieu of taxes 320,000 279,482 (40,518)
Charges for services 650,000 792,706 142,706
Licenses and permits 40,000 36,516 (3,484)
Intergovernmental 7,009, 1 1

6

7, 1 46,908 137,792
Special assessments 10,000 8,752 (1,248)
Fines 1 20,000 132,008 12,008
Investment income 700,000 1,054,450 354,450
Other - 2,468 2,468

Total revenues 36,821,724 37,589,175 767,451

Expenditures:

General government 2,409,919 2,326,219 83,700
Public safety 5,247,766 5,179,844 67,922
Education 19,995,289 19,970,606 24,683
Public works and facilities 3,541,1 13 3,499,927 41,186
Human services 300,886 290,470 10,416
Culture and recreation 663,941 663,935 6

Employee benefits 4,945,656 4,854,452 91,204
Intergovernmental 672,526 685,929 (13,403)

Debt service 1,818,363 1,801,368 16,995

Total expenditures 39,595,459 39,272,750 322,709

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers from (to):

(2,773,735) (1,683,575) 1,090,160

Special revenue funds 50,295 50,295 -

Capital projects funds (1 16,000) (1 16,000) -

Enterprise funds 1,485,260 1,485,260 -

Trust funds 240,780 239,050 (1,730)

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,660,335 1,658,605 (1,730)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources over $ $ $

expenditures and other financing uses (1,11 3,400) (24.970) 1,088,430

See accompanying notes to general purpose financial statements.
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity -

All Proprietary Fund Types and Similar Trust Funds

Year ended ]une 30, 1997

(except for the Electric Enterprise Fund, which is for year ended December 31,1 996)

Employee

Water and Sewer Electric Retirement Nonexpendable Totals

Enterprise Enterprise Trust Trust (Memorandum
Funds Fund Fund Funds Only)

$ $ $ $ $

Operating revenues:

Charges for services 5,075,299 54,235,521 - - 59,310,820
Special assessments 1,953 - - - 1,953
Investment income - - 7,314,378 90,520 7,404,898
Contributions - employer 2,629,686 2,629,686
Contributions - employee 1,075,874 1,075,874
Other - - 514,603 33,700 548,303

Total operating revenues 5,077,252 54,235,521 1 1,534,541 124,220 70,971,534

Operating expenses:

Personal services 739,655 - 27,626 - 767,281
Fringe benefits 1 70,628 - - - 170,628
Energy purchases 179,522 - - - 179,522
Intergovernmental 2,448,802 - - - 2,448,802
Depreciation 557,102 2,498,726 - - 3,055,828
Benefit payments - - 3,421,932 - 3,421,932
Refunds - -

1 19,197 -
1 19,197

Other 929,791 - 4,024 - 933,815
Electric operations - personal services

and other - 47,749,450 - - 47,749,450

Total operating expenses 5,025,500 50,248,176 3,572,779 _ 58,846,455

Operating income 51,752 3,987,345 7,961,762 124,220 12,125,079

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Operating grant 22,916 - - - 22,916
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment - 19,174 * - 19,174
Investment income 31,883 924,817 - - 956,700
Interest expense (9,104) (344,517) - - (353,621)

Net nonoperating revenues 45,695 599,474 _ _ 645,169

Income before operating transfers 97,447 4,586,819 7,961,762 124,220 12,770,248

Operating transfers in (out) (note 1 1

)

- (1,485,260) - (89,775) (1,575,035)

Net income 97,447 3,101,559 7,961,762 34,445 1 1,195,213

Fund equity, beginning of year 13,343,404 37,417,134 27,106,799 1,31 1,760 79,179,097
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principles (note 6) - - 3,812,413 - 3,812,413
Contributions from customers - 141,902 - - 141,902

$ $ $ $ $

Fund equity, end of year 13,440,851 40,660,595 38,880,974 1,346,205 94,328,625

See accompanying notes to general purpose financial statements.
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Combined Statement of Cash Flows -

All Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Funds

Year ended ]une 30, 1 997
(except for the Electric Enterprise Fund, which is for year ended December 31,1 996)

Water and Sewer Electric

Fiduciary

Fund Types

Nonexpendable Totals

Enterprise Enterprise Trust (Memorandum
Funds Fund Funds Only)

$ $ $ $

Cash flows from operating activities:

Operating income 51,752 3,987,345 124,220 4,163,317
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 557,102 2,498,726 - 3,055,828
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts

receivable (net) and other assets (210,437) 575,078 364,641
Decrease in prepaid expenses - 7,129 - 7,129
(Increase) decrease in inventory 6,703 (72,892) - (66,189)
(Decrease) in warrants and accounts

payable (13,775) (213,690) - (227,465)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 0,064) 1 78,000 - 176,936
(Decrease) in deposits - (24,087) - (24,087)
Increase in other accrued liabilities - 77,687 - 77,687
(Decrease) in deferred revenues (67,563) (1,122,712) - (1,190,275)

Reclassification of investment earnings - - (90,520) (90,520)

Net cash provided by operating activities 322,718 5,890,584 33,700 6,247,002

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Operating grants received 22,916 - - 22,916
Interest paid on deposits - (43,494) - (43,494)

Operating transfers to other funds - (1,485,260) (89,775) (1,575,035)

Net cash provided (used) by

noncapital financing activities 22,916 (1,528,754) (89,775) (1,595,613)

Cash flows from capital and related

financing activities:

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (793,614) (3,702,024) - (4,495,638)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant

and equipment - 19,174 - 19,174

Payment of anticipation notes proceeds - (3,090,000) - (3,090,000)

Proceeds from sale of bonds - 2,978,000 2,978,000

Principal payments - bonds (66,375) (502,000) - (568,375)

Interest paid (9,672) (276,528) - (286,200)

Payment of debt service costs - (17,788) - (17,788)

Contributions from customers - 141,902 - 141,902

Net cash (used) for capital and

related financing activities (869,661) (4,449,264) (5,318,925)

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to general purpose financial statements.
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Combined Statement of Cash Flows -

All Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Funds

Year ended June 30, 1 997
(except for the Electric Enterprise Fund, which is for year ended December 31,1 996)

Fiduciary

Proprietary. Fund Types FundJypes

Water and Sewer Electric Nonexpendable Totals

Enterprise Enterprise Trust (Memorandum
Funds Fuad Funds Only)

Cash flows from investing activities:

$ $ $ $

Interest on investments 31,883 924,817 90,520 1,047,220

Net cash provided by investing activities 31,883 924,817 90,520 1,047,220

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments (492,144) 837,383 34,445 379,684
Cash and investments, beginning of year 2,741,012 18,731,432 1,31 1,160 22,783,604

$ $ $ $

Cash and investments, end of year 2,248,868 19,568,815 1,345,605 23,163,288

See accompanying notes to general purpose financial statements.
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TOWN OF READING, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements

June 30, 1997

Note 1 . Reporting Entity

The Town of Reading is governed by an elected five-member Board of Selectmen. Generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP") requires that the accompanying general purpose financial statements
present the Town of Reading (the primary government) and its component units. Component units are

included in the Town's reporting entity if their operational and financial relationships with the Town are

significant. Pursuant to this criteria, the Town of Reading Retirement System (the "System") has been
identified as a component unit. The System was established under the authority of Chapter 32 of the

Massachusetts General Laws, as amended, and is an independent contributory retirement system available

to employees of the Town. The powers of the System are vested in the Retirement Board. The System has

been blended into the Town's Fiduciary Funds for reporting purposes.

The Town has entered into several joint ventures with other municipalities to pool resources and share

the costs, risks, and rewards of providing goods or services to venture participants directly, or for the

benefit of the general public or specified service recipients. The following is a list of the Town's joint

ventures, their purpose, the address where the joint venture financial statements are available, and the

fiscal 1997 assessment.

Fiscal 1997
Joint Ventures Purpose Address Assessment

Massachusetts Water Resources

Authority (MWRA)
To provide sewer

service

1 00 First Avenue
Boston, MA 02 1 29

$

2,448,802

Massachusetts Bay Transportation

Authority (MBTA)
To provide public

transportation

1 0 Park Plaza

Boston, MA 02116
606,682

Northeast Metropolitan Regional

Vocational School District

To provide vocational

education

1 00 Hemlock Road

Wakefield, MA01880
92,358

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

The financial condition and results of operations of the Town's funds are presented as of and for the

year ended June 30, 1 997, except for the Town's Electric Enterprise Fund which is presented as of and for

the year ended December 31, 1996. The accounting policies of the Town conform with generally

accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"), except that the Town does not maintain, and therefore does

not report, a general fixed assets account group. Such a departure from GAAP is permissible under the

Massachusetts Uniform Municipal Accounting System.

The financial statements of the Electric Enterprise Fund are prepared on the basis of accounting

prescribed by the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities (DPU) which requires that certain items be

charged or credited directly to retained earnings. Generally accepted accounting principles would require

the same items to be charged or credited to operating income. Accordingly, the financial statements of the
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Electric Enterprise Fund are not intended to present financial position and results of operations in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

(b) Fund Accounting

Transactions are recorded in the funds and account group described below. The operations of each

fund are accounted for with a set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity,

revenues, and expenditures and other financing sources and uses. Transactions between funds within a fund

type have been eliminated. The funds and account group are organized into four categories as follows:

Governmental Fund Types

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. The

acquisition, use and balances of expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for

through governmental funds. The measurement focus is on determination of changes in financial position,

rather than on net income. The governmental fund types are as follows:

General Fund - This fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all

financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources

(other than expendable trusts or capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified

purposes.

Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the

acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and

trust funds). Such resources are derived principally from proceeds of general obligation bonds and from

federal and state grants.

Proprietary Fund Types

These funds are used to account for activities that are similar to those often found in the private sector.

The measurement focus is upon determination of net income and capital maintenance.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity (Trust Funds) or as an agent

(Agency Funds) for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds. Trust

funds include expendable trust funds, nonexpendable trust funds and pension trust funds.

Account Group

The general long-term obligations account group is used to establish control and accountability for all

long-term obligations of the Town, except those accounted for in proprietary funds.

(c) Basis of Accounting

Governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds are accounted for on the modified

accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded in the accounting period when susceptible to accrual

(i.e., both measurable and available). Available means expected to be collectible within the current period

or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. In applying this principle, the

Town accrues as revenue the amount of taxes due to the Town prior to year-end and collected within 60
days after the end of its fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred except for

interest on general long-term obligations, which is recorded when due and the noncurrent portion of
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accrued sick leave which is recorded in the general long-term obligations account group.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, capital outlay and principal payments on long-term debt

are recorded as expenditures when purchased or when due, respectively.

The Town has elected to apply to its proprietary funds, nonexpendable trust funds, and pension trust

funds accounting standards applicable to the private sector issued on or before November 20, 1989,
unless those standards conflict with or contradict pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting

Standards Board.

(d) Pooled Cash

The Town pools cash resources of its governmental type funds, Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds and

agency funds to facilitate the management of cash. Each fund presents its pro rata share of the combined

cash account as cash and investments in the accompanying general purpose financial statements.

(e) Investment Valuation

Valuation of the investments of the pension trust fund are carried at fair value. Investments of the

deferred compensation plan (note 13) are carried at market. All other investments are stated at cost or

amortized cost which approximates market.

(f) Accrued Sick and Vacation

Employee vacation leave is vested annually but may not be carried forward to succeeding fiscal years.

Generally, sick leave may accumulate indefinitely, of which a maximum of 100 days may be paid upon

termination at 50% of the current rate of pay for those not exempted. The Town's policy is to recognize

vacation costs at the time payments are made. The Town records accumulated unused vested sick pay as a

liability in the general long-term obligations account group and the proprietary fund types. The amount

recorded is the maximum amount to be paid at termination at 50% of the current rate of pay.

(g) Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue is recognized for receivables which are not available to finance current operations.

(h) Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which contracts and other commitments for expenditure of funds are

recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the governmental fund

types as a significant aspect of budgetary control.

Encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balances in the accompanying combined balance

sheet because they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. Encumbrances are combined with

expenditures for budgetary comparison purposes (see note 4).

(i) Retained Earnings

In accordance with Chapter 44, Section 53F1/2 of the Massachusetts General Laws, the Town

accounts for its Water and Sewer Funds as enterprise funds. The reserved portion of the Water and Sewer

Funds represents the amount of fund equity which is not available for appropriation in accordance with

statutory requirements.
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(j) Fund Balance

The Town has allocated fund balances of its governmental and trust funds as follows:

Reserved by State Statute - Represents the amount of fund balance which is not available for

appropriation in accordance with statutory requirements.

Reserved for Encumbrances - Represents the amount of unexpended appropriations carried forward to

fiscal year 1 998 for projects which have not been completed, open purchase orders and for contracts

which have not been performed.

Reserved for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - Represents the amount of fund balance authorized to

fund fiscal year 1998 appropriations.

Reserved for Endowments - Represents the amount of Trust Fund fund balance which is legally

restricted to endowment purposes.

Reserved for Employees' Retirement Benefits - Represents the amount of funds accumulated in the

Contributory Retirement System.

Unreserved Fund Balances (Undesignated) - Represents the amount of funds available for

appropriation at Town Meeting or for expenditure in accordance with legal restrictions for certain

special revenue and trust funds.

(k) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment of the proprietary funds are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed

on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets for Water and Sewer funds as follows:

Depreciation expense on municipal contributed property, plant and equipment is shown as a reduction

of municipal contributed capital ($280,823 in 1997) of the Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds whereas

depreciation expense on purchased property, plant and equipment is shown as a reduction of retained

earnings. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment of the Light Department is computed based on

statutory rates which may be adjusted upon receiving approval from the Department of Public Utilities.

(l) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market in proprietary funds. Inventory

of governmental funds is not material and the purchase method of accounting is used in such funds.

(m) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the Financial statements of the Electric Enterprise Fund to

conform with the Town’s presentation.

Plant and buildings

Water and sewer lines

Equipment and fixtures

10-50 years

20 - 50 years

5 - 20 years

(Continued)
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(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

(o) Total (Memorandum Only) Columns

Total (memorandum only) columns on the general purpose financial statements are presented to

aggregate financial data of the fund types and account group. No consolidating or eliminating entries were
made in arriving at the totals; thus, they do not present consolidated information in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles.

Note 3. Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of the prior January 1 and are due in

quarterly installments on August 1st, November 1st, February 1st and May 1st. By law, all taxable

property in the Commonwealth must be assessed at approximately 1 00% of fair cash value. Taxes due and

unpaid after the respective due dates are subject to interest and penalties. The Town has an ultimate right

to foreclose on property for which taxes have not been paid. Property taxes levied are recorded as

receivables in the fiscal year billed. As of June 30, 1997, the Town has billed its first quarterly installment

of the fiscal year 1998 real estate tax bills. The gross amount of the billing is shown as subsequent year's

levy and deferred revenue in the accompanying combined balance sheet. Property tax revenues are

recorded in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting described in note 2.

A statewide tax limitation statute known as "Proposition 2-1/2" limits the property tax levy to an

amount equal to 2-1/2% of the value of all taxable property in the Town. A secondary limitation is that

no levy in a fiscal year may exceed the preceding year's allowable tax levy by more than 2-1/2%, plus

taxes levied on certain property newly added to the tax rolls. Certain Proposition 2-1/2 taxing limitations

can be overridden by a Town-wide referendum vote.

Note 4. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

The Town must establish its property tax rate each year so that the resulting property tax levy will

comply with the limits required by Proposition 2-1/2 and also constitute that amount which will equal the

sum of (a) the aggregate of all annual appropriations for expenditures, state and county assessments,

provision for property tax abatements and exemptions, and transfers, plus (b) provision for the prior fiscal

year's deficits, if any, less (c) the aggregate of all non-property tax revenues and transfers projected to be

received by the Town, including available surplus funds.

Under the Town's charter, the budgets for ail departments and operations of the Town, except that of

public schools, are prepared under the direction of the Town Manager. The School Department budget is

prepared under the direction of the School Committee. The Finance Committee then presents its

recommendations on the budget at Town Meeting. Original and supplemental appropriations are acted

upon by Town Meeting vote.
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The Town's General Fund budget is prepared on a basis other than generally accepted accounting

principles (GAAP). The "actual" results column of the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures -

Budgetary Basis is presented on a "budget basis" to provide a meaningful comparison with the budget. The
major differences between the budget and GAAP bases are that:

(a) Budgeted revenues are recorded when current year levy cash is received, as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

(b) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as opposed to a reservation

of fund balance (GAAP).

(c) Claims are recorded as expenditures when paid (budget), as opposed to a liability when settled

(GAAP).

The following reconciliation summarizes the differences between budget and GAAP basis accounting

principles for the year ended June 30, 1 997:

Deficiency of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures - $

budgetary basis (24,970)

Adjustments:

Revenues to modified accrual basis (net) 202,9 1 3

Prior year encumbrances expended in fiscal year 1 997 (2 1 6,293)

Current year encumbrances included as expenditures for budget

presentation 734,724

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and $

other financing uses - GAAP basis 696.374

Note 5. Cash and Investments

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available to

the Town. Deposits (including demand deposits, term deposits and certificates of deposit) in any one

financial institution may not exceed certain levels without collateralization by the financial institutions

involved. Investments can also be made in securities issued by or unconditionally guaranteed by the US
government or agencies that have a maturity of less than one year from the date of purchase, repurchase

agreements guaranteed by the US government or agencies that have a maturity of less than one year from

the date of purchase, repurchase agreements guaranteed by such securities with maturity dates of no more

than 90 days from the date of purchase and units in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust

("MMDT") and the Pension Reserves Investment Trust ("PRIT"). In addition, the Town's trust funds have

additional investment powers, most notably the ability to invest in common stocks, corporate bonds and

other specified investments.

Cash

The following summary presents the amount of Town deposits which are fully insured or collateralized

with securities held by the Town or its agent in the Town's name (Category 1), those deposits which are

collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the

Town's name (Category 2), and those deposits which are not collateralized (Category 3). All deposits are

categorized as category 1 or category 3 on June 30, 1 997. The carrying amount of the Electric Enterprise

(Continued)
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Fund in the accompanying general purpose financial statements is as of December 31, 1996, which is

$3,736,267 more than the carrying amount at June 30, 1 997.

Bank deposits

Petty cash

Total cash

Category #1 Category #3
Total Bank

Balance

Carrying

Amount

3,462,262
$ $

1,910,390
$

5,372,652 4,716,946

2,640 - 2.640 2.640

3.464.902
$ $

1.910.390
$

5.375.292 4.719.586

Investments

The Town categorizes investments according to the level of risk assumed by the Town. Category 1

includes investments that are insured, registered or held by the Town's agent in the Town's name.

Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the counterparty's trust department or

agent in the Town's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the

counterparty, its trust department or its agent, but not in the Town's name. Investments in MMDT, PRIT

and pooled funds are not categorized. All other investments are categorized as category 1. The Town's

investments are carried at cost or amortized cost. Pooled funds (deferred compensation) are carried at

market value. PRIT funds (retirement system assets) are carried at fair value.

Not
Category #1 Categorized

Carrying

Amount
Fair

Value

$ $ $ $

Common and preferred

stock 301,546 - 301,546 309,600

Corporate bonds and

notes 3,665,175 - 3,665,175 3,751,260

US Government

obligations 5,612,842 - 5,612,842 5,523,088

US Government agency

obligations 22,414,689 - 22,414,689 22,851,583

MMDT - 6,733,003 6,733,003 6,733,003

PRIT fund - 38,838,452 38,838,452 38,838,452

Pooled funds 3.490.937 3.490.937 3.490.937

$ $ $ $

Totals

The composition of the Town's bank recorded deposits and investments fluctuates depending primarily

on the timing of real estate tax receipts, proceeds from borrowings, collection of state and federal receipts,

capital outlays throughout the year and operating requirements of the Light Department.

As previously noted, the Town holds shares in pooled investment funds. These funds hold investments

in derivative securities. As such the Town's investment in such funds may be exposed to a risk of loss

associated with these derivative investments. In accordance with GASB Technical Bulletin 94-1 the Town

(Continued)
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is required to disclose in the notes to the financial statements that it holds investments in derivative

securities and whether the risk of loss associated with such investments is material. The Town does not

believe that any risk of material loss associated with derivative investments in pooled investment funds

exists.

Note 6. Pension Plan

In 1997 the Town of Reading adopted the requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards

Board's, Statement No. 25 and No. 27 which resulted in the elimination of accrued retirement costs of

$14,904,400 in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at July 1, 1996, an adjustment to

beginning net assets of $3,812,413 to reflect the change in valuation of investments to fair value, and a

change in content of the Required Supplementary information on pages 27 and 28 and in the disclosures

which are as follows:

(a) Plan Description

The Town contributes to the Town of Reading Retirement System (the "System"), a cost sharing,

multi-employer, public employee retirement system that acts as the investment and administrative agent for

the Town and the Reading Housing Authority. The System provides retirement, disability, and death

benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The System is a member of the Massachusetts Contributory

System and is governed by Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws, as amended.

With the exception of teachers, the System covers all permanent, full-time employees. Public school

teachers are covered by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System, to which the

Town does not contribute.

(b) Membership

Membership in the System consisted of the following at June 30, 1 997, the date of the latest actuarial

valuation:

Active participants:

Vested employees 220

Nonvested employees 1 55

375

Retired participants:

Pensioners 256

Beneficiaries 43

299

Totals 674

Total number of participating employers

(c) Contribution

Plan members are required to contribute to the System, depending on their employment date. Active

members must contribute between 5% and 1 1% of their regular gross compensation depending on the

date upon which their membership began. Participating employers are required to pay into the System

their share of the remaining system-wide actuarially determined contribution and plan administration costs,

which are apportioned among the employers based on the actuarial valuation. The Commonwealth of

(Continued)
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Massachusetts reimburses the System for a portion of benefit payments for cost-of-living increases. The
Town's contributions to the System for the years ending ]une 30, 1997, 1996 and 1995 were
$2,622,656, $2,616,420 and $2,420,102, respectively, which equaled its required contribution for

each year.

(d) Legally Required Reserve Accounts

The balances in the System's legally required reserves (on the statutory basis of accounting) at June 30,
1 997 are as follows:

Description

$

Amount Purpose

Annuity Savings Fund 1 1,375,584 Active members' contribution balance

Annuity Reserve Fund 3,555,714 Retired members' contribution account

Military Service Credit 8,1 19 Members' contribution account while on

military leave

Expense Fund 5,147 Balance of amount for administrative

expenses

Pension Reserve Fund 22,652,998 Amount accumulated to fund future

retirement benefits

Pension Fund

$

1.283.412

38.880.974

Remaining net assets

All reserve accounts are funded at levels required by state statute.

(e) Investment Concentration

The System is a participating system in the Pension Reserves Investment Trust Fund ("PRIT"). PRIT is

an investment portfolio for the assets of member state and local retirement systems. Substantially all the

assets of the System are invested in PRIT. It consists of two investment funds, the Capital Fund and the

Cash Fund. The Capital Fund serves as the long-term asset portfolio and includes stocks, bonds,

international investments, real estate and other alternative investments. The Cash Fund consists of

short-term investments which are used to meet the liquidity requirements of participating systems.
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Note 7. Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of the Town's outstanding bonds at June 30, 1 997(electric bonds at

December 31,1996):

Beginning

Balance

$

Description

Interest

Rates Additions Reductions

$ $

Bonds:

Ending

Balance

$

General purpose, serial

maturities through 200

1

4.79% to 6.43% 3,248,587 _ 812,875 2,435,712

Electric, serial maturities

through 2003 4.79% to 5.72% 3,275,000 2,978,000 502,000 5,751,000

Schools, serial maturities

through 2003 4.79% to 6.37% 354,250 6,702,000 108,750 6,947,500

Sewer, serial maturities

through 1998 4.80% to 6.37% 67,925 _ 24,750 43,175

Water, serial maturities

through 1 998 4.80% to 6.37% 1 14,238 41,625 72.613

$ $ $

1.490.000
$

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation bonds payable outstanding as of June 30,

1997, including interest, are as follows (electric bonds at June 30, 1997, reflects a principal payment of

$ 1 70,000 on February 1 5, 1 997):

Year ending June 30,

Principal

$ $

Interest Total

$

1998 2, 1 30,000 737,656 2,867,656

1999 2,125,000 629,647 2,754,647

2000 1,750,000 530,647 2,280,647

2001 1,755,000 441,658 2,196,658

Thereafter 7.320.000 2.158.578 9.478.578

$

15.080.000
$

4.498.186
$

19.578.186

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts has approved school construction assistance to the Town. The

assistance program which is administered by the School Building Assistance Bureau (SBAB) provides

resources for future debt service of general obligation school bonds outstanding. These resources are

subject to annual appropriation by the State legislature and the Town's compliance with certain reporting

requirements. During 1997, the Town received $376,557 of such assistance.

The Town is subject to a dual level general debt limit; the normal debt limit and the double debt limit.

Such limits are equal to 5% and 10%, respectively, of the valuation of taxable property in the Town as last

equalized by the Commonwealth's Department of Revenue. Debt may be authorized up to the normal

debt limit without state approval. Authorizations under the double debt limit, however, require the
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approval of the Commonwealth's Emergency Finance Board. Additionally, there are many categories of
general obligation debt which are exempt from the debt limit but are subject to other limitations.

The authorized and unissued debt at June 30, 1 997, is as follows:

$

Parker Middle School renovation 1 3,928,000

Eaton School renovation 350,000

Birch Meadow School renovation 600,000

High School renovation 1,850,000

School computers 500,000

Replace school boilers 1 72,000

Wood End Cemetery 200,000

Land acquisition 340,000

Recreational facilities 267,000

Police station design 50,000

Sewer construction 1 15.000

$

18.372.000

As of June 30, 1997, the Town may issue approximately $90,516,110 of additional general

obligation debt under the normal debt limit. The Town has approximately $1 1,81 1,000 of debt exempt

from the debt limit.

The Town pays assessments which include debt service payments to other local governmental units

providing services within the Town's boundaries (commonly referred to as overlapping debt). The

following summary sets forth the long-term debt of each entity at June 30, 1997, the estimated share of

such debt being serviced by the Town and the total of its share of estimated indirect debt.

Long-term

Debt Town's

Town's

Estimated

Outstanding Estimated Indirect

(Unaudited) Share Debt

MBTA
$

3,043,815,000 0.450%
$

13,697,168

MWRA 3,230,199,000 1 .076% 34,756,941

Northeast Metropolitan Regional

Vocational School District 495.000 1.277% 6.321

$ $

48,469,430
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Note 8. Temporary Borrowings

Under state law and by authorization of the Board of Selectmen, the Town is authorized to borrow on a

temporary basis to fund the following:

Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax

anticipation notes (RANs or TANs).

Capital project costs incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing through issuance of bond

anticipation notes (BANs).

Federal and state aided capital projects and other program expenditures prior to receiving

reimbursement through issuance of Federal and state aid anticipation notes (FANs and SANs).

Temporary loans are general obligations of the Town and carry maturity dates which are limited by

statute. Interest expenditures for Town temporary borrowings were $543,084 and are accounted for in

the General Fund. Interest expenditures for the Electric Enterprise Fund temporary borrowings were

$115,180. At June 30, 1997, $4,250,000 of 3.90%, $3,500,000 of 4. 1 0%, $5, 750,000 of

4.25%, $867,000 of 4.00% BANS and $100,000 of 4.07% SANS maturing in fiscal 1998 were

outstanding.

Note 9. Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company

The Town of Reading acting through its Light Department is a Participant in certain Projects of the

Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company (MMWEC).

MMWEC is a public corporation and a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts

created as a means to develop a bulk power supply for its Members and other utilities. MMWEC is

authorized to construct, own or purchase ownership interests in and to issue revenue bonds to finance

electric facilities (Projects). MMWEC has acquired ownership interests in electric facilities operated by

other utilities and also owns and operates its own electric facilities. MMWEC sells all of the capability of

each of its Projects to its Members and other utilities (Project Participants) under Power Sales Agreements

(PSAs). Among other things, the PSAs require each Project Participant to pay its pro rata share of

MMWEC's costs related to the Project, which costs include debt service on bonds issued by MMWEC to

finance the Project, plus 10% of MMWEC's debt service to be paid into a Reserve and Contingency Fund.

In addition, should any Project Participant fail to make any payment, other Project Participants may be

required to increase (step-up) and correspondingly their Participant's share of the Project Capability to an

additional amount not to exceed 25% of their original Participant's share of the Project Capability . Project

Participants have covenanted to fix, revise, and collect rates at least sufficient to meet their obligations

under the PSAs.

MMWEC also contracts to purchase power from third parties which is resold to Members and other

utilities under agreements known as Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs).

The payments required to be made to MMWEC under the PSAs and the PPAs are payable solely from

electric system revenues. Under the PSAs, each Participant is unconditionally obligated to make payments

due to MMWEC whether or not the Project (s) is completed or operating and notwithstanding the

suspension or interruption of the output of the Project (s).

(Continued)
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MMWEC operates the Stony Brook Intermediate Project and Stony Brook Peaking Project fossel-fueled

power plants. MMWEC has a 22.7 MW interest in the Wyman #4 plant, operated by Central Maine
Power Company.

MMWEC's 1 1 .6% ownership interest in the Seabrook Station nuclear generating unit, which has been
in operation since June 1990, represents a substantial portion of its plant investment and financing

program. In addition, MMWEC has a 4.8% ownership interest in the Millstone Unit 3 nuclear unit.

Millstone Unit 3 was taken out of service on March 31, 1996 and will remain shut down pending a

comprehensive Nuclear Regulatory Commission review and approval of a start-up plan.

The MMWEC Seabrook and Millstone Project Participants, per the PSAs, are liable for their

proportionate share of the cost of a nuclear incident at those nuclear power plants as outlined in the

Price-Andersen Act. The Project Participants are also liable for the decommissioning expenses being funded

through monthly Project billings.

In 1996 the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities issued an electric industry restructuring plan

with model rules and a legislative proposal. The Massachusetts Legislature created a special committee on

electric industry restructuring which is charged with promulgating proposed legislation. MMWEC and the

municipal light departments are not specifically subject to the DPU proposed rules. However, it is

management's belief that industry restructuring and customer choice is inevitable and MMWEC and the

Participants should address the consequences.

MMWEC is involved in various legal actions. In the opinion of management, the outcome of such

litigation or claims will not have a material effect on the financial position of the company.

As of June 30, 1997, total capital expenditures amounted to $1,473,014,000, of which

$104,544,000 represents the amount associated with the Department's Project Capability. MMWEC's
debt outstanding for the Projects included Power Supply System Revenue bonds totaling $1,264,375,000,

of which $86,136,000 is associated with the Department's share of Project Capability. As of June 30,

1 997, MMWEC's total future debt service requirement on outstanding Bonds issued for Projects under

construction is $2,080,780,000, of which $1 31,730,000 will be billed to the Department.

Reading Light Department has entered into PPAs and PSAs with MMWEC. Under these agreements,

the Department is required to make capacity or debt service payments to MMWEC. The aggregate amount

of such required payments, exclusive of Reserve and Contingency Fund billings, on bonds outstanding and

significant power purchase contracts through MMWEC at June 30, 1997, is shown below.

Year ending June 30, $

Thereafter

1998

1999

2000
2001

2002

8.245.000

8.313.000

8.365.000

8.379.000

8.381.000

90,045,000

$

(Continued)
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In addition, the Department is required to pay its share of the operation and maintenance costs of the

units in which it participates. The Department's total O&tM costs including debt service under the

agreements were $15,451,000 and $14,723,000 for the years ended June 30, 1997 and 1996,
respectively.

Note 10. Capital Projects Funds Deficits

Capital projects have been funded by the issuance of bond anticipation notes. Deficit fund balances

arise because the bond anticipation notes are presented as a liability of the fund receiving the proceeds.

The Town intends to reduce these deficits by subsequent appropriations and will eliminate the remaining

deficits by the issuance of long-term debt. The detail of these deficits on June 30, 1997 is as follows:

Highway projects fund

Cemetery development fund

Park facilities fund

Parker School fund

School technology fund

$

1,096

1 15,879

101,320

12,347,159

490,450

Note 11. Operating Transfers

Operating transfers constitute the transfer of resources from the fund that receives the resources to the

fund that utilizes them. The following table summarizes operating transfers for the year ended June 30,

1997.

General

Special

Revenue

Capital

Projects

Electric

Enterprise

Expendable

Trusts

Nonexpendable

Trusts

$ $ $ $ $ $

Purpose of operating transfer:

Cemetery sale of lots 22,000 (22,000) - - - .

Wetland protection act 3,295 (3,295) - - - -

Roadway improvements 25,000 (25,000) - - - -

Electric earnings distribution 1,485,260 - - (1,485,260) - -

Retirement of BAN (11 6,000) -
1 16,000 - - -

Cemetery perpetual care 91,878 - - - (91,878) -

Workers' compensation trust 147,172 - - - (147,172) -

Investment income - - - - 89,775 (89,775)

$

( 50.295 1 1 16.000

(Continued)
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Note 1 2. Property, Plant and Equipment

A summary of property, plant and equipment by major category is as follows:

Water and

Sewer Funds

dune 30.1997)
Electric Fund

(December 31,1 996)

$ $

1,009,475Land and land improvements

Plant and buildings

Lines

Equipment and fixtures

254,632

5,105,918

9,1 15,431

2,180,199

16,656,180

(7,173,599)

41,520,038

54,135,001

(24,082,383)

1 1,605,488

Less accumulated depreciation

$ $

Note 1 3. Deferred Compensation Plan

The Town offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal

Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all permanent Town employees, permits them to defer

a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until

termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the Plan, all property and rights purchased with those

amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available

to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Town (without being restricted

to the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the claims of the Town's general creditors.

Participants' rights under the Plan are equal to those of general creditors of the Town in an amount equal

to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant.

Note 1 4. Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to employee health insurance claims, workers'

compensation, unemployment and general liability, property and casualty. The liability for threatened or

pending claims or lawsuits against the Town with respect to such risk is not material to the financial

statements.

The Town is a member of the Massachusetts Interlocal Insurance Association, Inc. Health Benefits Trust

(Health Benefits Trust) currently operating as a common risk management program for employee health

claims for participating communities. The Health Benefits Trust assesses premiums which are shared by the

Town and its employees. The Health Benefits Trust is self-sustaining through member premiums and

reinsures through commercial companies for stop loss insurance.

(Continued)
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The Town is a member of the Massachusetts Interlocal Insurance Association Workers' Compensation
Group, Inc. (Workers' Compensation Group) currently operating as a common risk management program

for workers' compensation for participating communities. The Workers' Compensation Group program is

fully insured for which the Town pays premiums.

The Town is self-insured for unemployment benefits. Payments for claims totaling $50,856 were

made during the year ended June 30, 1 997.

Buildings are fully insured against fire, theft and natural disaster to the extent of losses exceeding

$25,000 per incident. The Town is insured for vehicle damage and loss and also other general liability

with various deductibles per type of claim. During the year, expenditures for claims and judgments,

excluding health, workers' compensation and unemployment benefits were $1,190 and were recorded in

the general fund.

Chapter 258 of the Massachusetts General Laws limits general liability to $100,000 per claim in all

matters except actions relating to federal / civil rights, eminent domain and breach of contract.

Note 1 5. Segment Information - Water and Sewer Funds

Financial segment information as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, is presented below:

Water Sewer Total

Operating revenues

$

2,188,671

$

2,888,581

$

5,077,252

Depreciation expense 360,697 196,405 557,102

Operating income (loss) 168,809 (1 17,057) 51,752

Net income (loss) 200,436 (102,989) 97,447

Property, plant and equipment additions 766,442 27,172 793,614

Net working capital 2,023,201 2,092,452 4,1 15,653

Total assets 6,994,602 6,809,387 13,803,989

Bonds payable 72,613 43,175 1 15,788

Total equity 6,728,921 6,71 1,930 13,440,851

Note 16. Postemployment Health Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 6, the Town provides postemployment health care

benefits, in accordance with State statutes and within the limits provided in Town policy, to employees

who retire from the Town. The following limit pertains: Retiring employees who did not have health

insurance through the Town when retiring may not obtain it except that within ten years of retirement,

they may opt to join the Town's group plan on March 1st of the even numbered years only. Currently

421 retirees, Medicare eligible spouses and surviving spouses meet those eligibility requirements. The

percentage paid by the Town fluctuates based on collective bargaining agreements. As of June 30, 1997,

the Town pays 70% of the premiums for medical and hospitalization insurance incurred by pre-Medicare

(Continued)
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retirees and their dependents. The Town also pays 70% of the premiums for a Medicare supplement for

each retiree eligible for Medicare and 70% of the insurance premiums for said retiree's dependents. The
Town's share of the total cost for the year ended June 30, 1 997, was approximately $785,000.

Note 1 7. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

The Town's landfill was closed in 1982. State and federal laws and regulations require the Town to

place a final cover on its landfill site by fiscal year 1 999. Those laws and regulations also require the Town
to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after the landfill cover is

installed. The Town estimates the landfill closure and postdosure care costs to be approximately

$6,000,000 which is included in the general long-term obligations account group in the accompanying

balance sheet. This estimate is based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in

fiscal 1997. The potential exists for changes to the estimates due to inflation or deflation, technology or

applicable laws and regulations.

Note 1 8. Subsequent Event

On August 1 5, 1997 the Town sold $5,930,000 of general obligation bonds, at interest rates ranging

4.250% to 5.625% with serial maturities through 2017. The bonds were issued to refinance certain

bond anticipation notes which were scheduled to mature in fiscal 1998.
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Reading Contributory Retirement System

Required Supplementary information

Schedule of Funding Progress

(in thousands)

Actuarial

Valuation

Date

Actuarial

Value of

Assets

(a)

Actuarial

Accrued

Liability

(b)

Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funding

Ratio

(a / b)

Covered

Payroll

(c)

UAAL as a

Percentage of

Covered Payroll

((b-a) / c)

30-Jun-92

$

17,138

$

43,494
$

26,356

%
39.4

$

1 1,982

%
220.0

30-]un-93 18,728 44,549 25,821 42.0 1 1,883 217.3

30-]un-94 22,066 46,152 24,086 47.8 12,596 191.2

30-jun-95 23,672 51,015 27,343 46.4 12,996 210.4

30-Jun-96 27,107 53,296 26,189 50.9 1 3,074 200.3

30-]un-97 34,309 55,906 21,597 61.4 13,635 158.4

Notes to Schedule

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date: 30-Jun-97

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal actuarial cost method

Amortization method: 40 year amortization schedule with 3 1 years

remaining and payments increasing at 1 .5% per year

Asset valuation method: Cost

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return

Projected salary increases

Cost-of-living adjustment

8 .00%
6 .00%
None (funded by Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
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Reading Contributory Retirement System

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Contributions from Employers

Year

Ended

lune 30

Annual

Required

Contribution

1992
$

2,376,625

1993 2,312,970

1994 2,439,640

1995 2,435,500

1996 2,632,592

1997 2,629,686

Percentage

Contributed

%
100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 1 997

Sale of

School Real Estate Other

Funds Fund Fuads Totals

Assets

$ $ $ $

Cash and investments 313,756 2,300,245 391,773 3,005,774
Due from state 4,736 - - 4,736
Accrued interest - 38,264 - 38,264

$ $ $ $

Total assets 318,492 2,338,509 391,773 3,048,774

Liabilities and Fund balances

$ $ $ $

Liabilities:

Warrants and accounts payable 47,257 - 20,200 67,457
Accrued payroll payable 22,490 - - 22,490

Total liabilities 69,747 . 20,200 89,947

Fund balances:

Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent year's

expenditures - 558,727 31,940 590,667
Undesignated 248,745 1,779,782 339,633 2,368,160

Total fund balances 248,745 2,338,509 371,573 2,958,827

$ $ $ $

Total liabilities and fund balances 318,492 2,338,509 391,773 3,048,774
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 1 997

Revenues:

School

Funds

$

Sale of

Real Estate

Fund

$

Other

Funds

$

Totals

$

Charges for services 785,072 - 542,257 1,327,329
Intergovernmental 810,854 - 187,935 998,739
Investment income - 126,968 - 126,968
Other 3,200 149,645 107,410 260,255

Total revenues 1,599,126 276,613 837,602 2,713,341

Expenditures:

Public safety - - 383,018 383,018
Education 1,573,077 - - 1,573,077
Public works and facilities - - 23,785 23,785
Human services - - 72,838 72,838
Culture and recreation - - 262,781 262,781

Total expenditures 1,573,077 _ 742,422 2,315,499

Excess of revenues over

expenditures 26,049 276,613 95,180 397,842

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers out - - (50,295) (50,295)

Excess of revenues over

expenditures and other financing

uses 26,049 276,613 44,885 347,547

Fund balances, beginning of year 222,696
$

2,061,896

$

326,688

$

2,61 1,280

$

Fund balances, end of year 248,745 2,338,509 371,573 2,958,827
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, I 997

Water Sewer

Fund Fund Totals

Assets

$ $ $

Cash and investments

Receivables (net of allowances for

1,292,247 956,621 2,248,868

uncollectibles):

Deferred charges 1,017 2,275 3,292
Tax liens 31,218 39,389 70,607
User charges 798,000 1,141,000 1,939,000
Special assessments - 5,745 5,745

Inventory

Property, plant and equipment (net of

53,896 • 53,896

accumulated depreciation) 4,818,224 4,664,357 9,482,581

$ $ $

Total assets 6,994,602 6,809,387 13,803,989

Liabilities andFuncLEquity

$ $ $

Liabilities:

Warrants and accounts payable 120,358 4,822 125,180
Compensated absences 39,891 1,704 41,595
Deferred revenue 32,235 47,409 79,644
Accrued interest on bonds payable 584 347 931

Bonds payable 72,613 43,175 1 15,788

Total liabilities 265,681 97,457 363,138

Fund equity:

Contributed capital 452,016 2,906,087 3,358,103

Retained earnings:

Reserved 5,994,026 3,294,519 9,288,545
Unreserved 282,879 51 1,324 794,203

Total fund equity 6,728,921 6,71 1,930 13,440,851

$ $ $

Total liabilities and fund equity 6,994,602 6,809,387 13,803,989
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity

Year ended ]une 30, 1997

Water

Fund

$

Sewer

Fund

$

Totals

$

Operating revenues:

Charges for services 2,188,328 2,886,971 5,075,299
Special assessments 343 1,610 1,953

Total operating revenues 2,188,671 2,888,581 5,077,252

Operating expenses:

Personal services 578,546 161,109 739,655
Fringe benefits 142,724 27,904 1 70,628
Energy purchases 158,022 21,500 179,522
Intergovernmental - 2,448,802 2,448,802
Depreciation 360,697 196,405 557,102
Other 779,873 149,918 929,791

Total operating expenses 2,019,862 3,005,638 5,025,500

Operating income (loss) 168,809 (1 17,057) 51,752

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Operating grant 22,916 - 22,916

Investment income 14,420 17,463 31,883

Interest expense (5,709) (3,395) (9,104)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 31,627 14,068 45,695

Net income (loss) 200,436 (102,989) 97,447

Fund equity, beginning of year 6,528,485

$

6,814,919

$

13,343,404

$

Fund equity, end of year 6,728,921 6,71 1,930 13,440,851
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended )une 30, 1997

Cash flows from operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Water

Fund

$

168,809

Sewer

Fund

$

(1 17,057)

locals

$

51,752
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

(loss) to net cash provided (used) by

operating activities:

Depreciation 360,697 196,405 557,102
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) in accounts receivable (net) (79,523) (130,914) (210,437)
Decrease in inventory 6,703 - 6,703
Increase (decrease) in warrants and

accounts payable 30,470 (44,245) (13,775)
Increase (decrease) in compensated

absences payable (1,566) 502 (1,064)

(Decrease) in deferred revenues (13,477) (54,086) (67,563)

Net cash provided (used) by operating

activities 472,1 13 (149,395) 322,718

Cash flows from noncapital financing activity:

Operating grant received 22,916 22,916

Cash flows from capital and related

financing activities:

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (766,442) (27,172) (793,614)
Principal payments - bonds (41,625) (24,750) (66,375)
Interest paid on bonds (6,065) (3,607) (9,672)

Net cash used for capital and related

financing activities (814,132) (55,529) (869,661)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest on investments 14,420 17,463 31,883

Net decrease in cash and investments (304,683) (187,461) (492,144)
Cash and investments, beginning of year 1,596,930 1,144,082 2,741,012

Cash and investments, end of year

$

1.292,247
$

956,621
$

2.248,868
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Fiduciary Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 1 997

Assets

Cash and investments

Investments with fiscal agents,

at market

Receivables:

Education loans

Accrued interest

Employee

Retirement

Trust

Fund

$

38,881,082

Nonexpendable

Trust

Funds

$

1,345,605

600

Expendable

Trust

Funds

$

12,977,213

366,903

Agency

Funds

$

108,586

3,490,937

Totals

$

53,312,486

3,490,937

600
366,903

$ $ $ $ $

Total assets 38,881,082 1,346,205 13,344,1 16 3,599,523 57,170,926

UaJ2iliii^ntL£mid3^mLes

$ $ $ $ $

Liabilities:

Warrants and accounts payable 108 - 40,277 1 1,736 52,121
Other liabilities - - - 96,850 96,850
Deferred compensation - - - 3,490,937 3,490,937

Total liabilities 108 . 40,277 3,599,523 3,639,908

Fund balances:

Reserved for endowments 1,346,205 1,346,205

Reserved for employees'

pension benefits 38,880,974 - - - 38,880,974
Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent

year's expenditures - - 94,885 - 94,885
Undesignated - - 13,208,954 - 13,208,954

Total fund balances 38,880,974 1,346,205 13,303,839 „ 53,531,018

$ $ $ $ $

Total liabilities and fund balances 38,881,082 1,346,205 13,344,1 16 3,599,523 57,170,926
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Town of Reading, Massachusetts

Expendable Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended ]une 30, 1997

Revenues:

Investment income

Contributions and bequests

Reinsurance recoveries

Municipal

Light

Pension

Fund

$

587,546
290,580

Workers'

Compensation

Fund

$

8,871

19,593

Other

Expendable

Trust

Funds

$

290,598
2,631

Totals

$

887,015
293,21 1

19,593

Total revenues 878,126 28,464 293,229 1,199,819

Expenditures:

Education - - 2,830 2,830
Human services - - 258,965 258,965
Culture and recreation - - 15,760 15,760
Employee benefits 658,535 126,990 - 785,525

Total expenditures 658,535 126,990 277,555 1,063,080

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures 219,591 (98,526) 15,674 136,739

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers out - (147,172) (2,103) (149,275)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over expenditures and other

financing uses 219,591 (245,698) 13,571 (12,536)

Fund balances, beginning of year 8,713,1 1

1

341,921 4,261,343 13,316,375

Fund balances, end of year

$

8,932,702 96,223
$

4,274,914
$

13,303,839
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DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

The Department of Community Development serves the Community Planning and

Development Commission, the Conservation Commission, the Zoning Board of Appeals, the

Sign Review Board, the Historical Commission and the Land Bank Committee. The Department

is excellently served by its clerical staff, Carolyn Walsh and Nancy Graham.

Inspections Division

The Building Inspector, Glen Redmond, issued 774 permits, made 1310 inspections, and

obtained $135,862 in revenues in 1997. The Plumbing and Gas Inspector, Edward Cirigliano,

issued 334 plumbing permits with revenues of $14,506, issued 214 gas permits with revenues of

$6,315 and conducted 857 inspections. The Wiring Inspector, John Holland, issued 540 wiring

permits, conducted 846 inspections and obtained revenues of $24,327. The Zoning Enforcement

Officer, Matthew Hakala, issued 103 zoning violation notices, of which thirteen resulted in fines

being levied. The total revenues of the Inspections Division in 1997 was $181,010.

Community Planning and Development Commission

The Community Planning and Development Commission held 26 public hearings in 26

public meetings during 1997. It heard and decided on four Site Plan Review cases (100 Main

Street, 323 Main Street, 20-24 Gould Street, and the Atlantic Supermarket on Haven Street) and

began review on three additional proposals (607 Main Street, Main and South Streets at Jacob

Way and Main and Knollwood Streets). The Commission also reviewed three Definitive

Subdivisions (Sunset Rock Lane (12 lots), Marion Road (7 lots) and Cory Lane (4 lots -

approved as settlement of litigation); two Preliminary Subdivisions (Sunset Rock Lane and

Pleasant Road - both denied) and three PRD-G proposals (Howard Street, Franklin Street and

Harold Avenue - none of which proceeded in 1997). The Commission also reviewed 24

Approval-Not-Required subdivision plans, handled 14 subdivision bond requests and conducted

two major subdivision enforcement cases. The Planning Division received $16,086 in revenues

in 1997. Commissioners participated in the Open Space and Recreation Planning Task Force,

the Longwood Farm Task Force, the Reading Business Park Advisory Committee and the

Downtown Steering Committee.

In pursuit of Master Plan objectives, the Commission proposed several Zoning By-Law
amendments which were adopted by Town Meeting: amendments to the Sign By-Laws, PRD-G
density requirements. Lot Shape and Wetlands Overlay Districts. The Commission supported

the successful designation of Walnut Street as a Scenic Road. Also, in accordance with Master

Plan objectives, the Commission adopted comprehensive new Subdivision Rules and

Regulations, including streamlined applications procedures, off-site mitigation provisions,

application fees, professional consulting, updated public street and utility standards and tree

preservation requirements. The Town Planner and Director of Community Development,

Jonathan Edwards, was successful in obtaining a $500,000 Business Development Grant for

Downtown parking and commercial building improvements. Progress was made in other

Downtown improvement efforts: the Streetscape Design Program was begun, with development

and refining of an approved concept plan; Town and private-sector moneys have funded a

Downtown Economic Development consultant; and an Architectural Intern, Stephen Davis,

developed building facade guidelines.
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The closure and prospective redevelopment of the former landfill as the Reading

Business Park have made strides as the Town has been working with its consultant, Camp
Dresser and McKee, to conduct the required environmental and economic analysis leading to

closure and capping designs to accommodate commercial post-closure use of the site, and has

issued a Request for Proposals for the sale and development of the site.

Michael Flammia replaced Susan DeMatteo as Commission Chair, and our newest

member Richard Schubert (who replaced Bryan Irwin) became Commission Secretary. Richard

Howard and Jonathan Barnes continue to serve as Members. The Commission appreciates the

competent service of the Town Planner and Town Engineer Joseph Delaney.

Zoning Board Of Appeals

During 1997, the Zoning Board of Appeals heard and decided on 31 petitions for

variances, special permits or appeals from a decision of the Building Inspector. Eight petitions

were granted, four were denied, ten were withdrawn, eight were resolved as findings under

Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A, and 1 was continued to 1998. Stephen Tucker

succeeded John Coote as Chairman; Ardith Wieworka also serves as a full Member. Laura

Gregory, John Jarema and Christopher Vaccaro are Associate Members. Glen Redmond

provides professional services to the Board, and Carolyn Walsh serves the Board as its

Recording Secretary.

Sign Review Board

During 1997, the Sign Review Board held 10 meetings and considered 21 applications for

Certificates of Appropriateness for business signs in the Downtown and in residential areas.

With design guidance from the Architectural Intern and the Town Planner, the Board has

finalized design standards and guidelines for commercial signs, relative to such features as

materials, colors, placement and graphics. James Treacy continued as Chair, and other members

are Geraldine Varney, Leslie McGonagle, Wayne MacLeod and Robert Mclsaac. Matthew

Hakala provides professional services to the Board.

Land Bank Committee
The Land Bank Committee has continued to add pertinent information to the record files.

This included copies of maps, deeds and detailed items collected from many sources. Also, it

has furnished information on request to various Town Boards and Committees as well as to

Town Counsel on request from them. Members are Benjamin Nichols, Chair; George Perry,

Vice-Chair and Edward Smethurst, Secretary.

Historical Commission

The Historical Commission has seen their workload increase dramatically in 1997. The

Commission started on the huge task of organizing and cataloging the material in the repository

and worked with the Downtown revitalization project. As the pressure increased on the scarce

land resources in Town, the Demolition Review Bylaw became an active area. This year saw the

Pearl Street School receive a Preservation Award by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts at a

ceremony at the State House.
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The Commission is also proud to see thoughtful and sympathetic renovations for both the

old farmhouse at the Leaning Elm Farm and the store fronts on Main Street. The RHC presented

Certificates of Commendations to Katie's Hallmark, Case Drug, Simms Jewelers and Town Pizza

for their efforts. It sets a fine precedent for the Downtown.

We continued to work on saving the circa 1751 structure at 32 John Street with a Patriots’

Day reenactment of the ride by Herrick calling the Reading Minutemen to arms. We wish to

thank all who made it a success. We also prepared documentation for the listing on the National

Register for 32 John Street. Two additional structures fell under the Demolition Review Bylaw
this past year, 607 Main Street and 288 Grove Street. The Commission voted both as Preferably

Preferred Historic Structures and imposed delays to explore alternatives to demolition. After

much work at exploring alternatives, the delay was released on 607 Main, the oldest surviving

commercial structure in Reading, as no alternative proved feasible. We are continuing to work
with the Meadow Brook Golf Club to save the circa 1710 National Register farmhouse at 288

Grove Street.

This year, the Commission received two grants. An additional grant from the Celebration

Trust to continue our project to preserve many early photos from glass plate negatives which

depict structures, people and events of Reading, and a grant to computerize and update the

Historical and Architectural Inventory of Reading. All of these will be of great use as a research

tool for the Town.

The Historical Commission has continued to be an advocate for the historical perspective

including the Celebration Trust, the Downtown Steering Committee, the Police Station Building

Committee and the Bandstand Committee. We worked with the residents of Walnut Street to

designate it a scenic road and with the First Church of Christ, Scientist on their grant application

to the Massachusetts Historical Commission. In May, for preservation week, we held a

workshop for homeowners, giving them resources to learn and work with their historical

property that was attended by over 45 people. The Historical Commission is very active and

continues to meet about twice a month to deal with historical issues for the Town of Reading.

Conservation Commission

The Conservation Commission was established in 1960 under Chapter 40, Section 8C, for

the promotion and the development of the natural resources and for the protection of watershed

resources, and in 1972 assumed regulatory control over the Wetlands Protection Act. In 1996,

the State issued a Storm Water Management Policy and the Riverfront Protection Act which

have also been added to the Commission’s responsibilities. Regulations issued and training was

conducted in 1997. An 8-part Conservation Fundamentals Course was instituted and five

members participated in various segments.

Regulatory Activities :

1997 was an active year with 37 RDA and NOI filings. There were 49 determinations and

orders (including enforcement orders and amendments) and 14 certificates of compliance issued,

68 public hearings or meetings held, 56 administrator sign-offs, sign-off on 299 building permits

and 155 staff inspections performed. The Commission completed over 100 group site visits.

Total fees collected were $7,841.64 under the local Bylaw and $1,865 under the State law.
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Two new appeals were filed and one resolved. A 1996 appeal is still pending. Several

projects agreed to place Conservation Restrictions on unbuilt portions of their developments.

Two Enforcement Orders were converted to criminal complaints and after court appearances

were resolved. Other Enforcement Orders were avoided with voluntary cleanup. Restoration was

begun on the Route 93 gas spill. The wetlands restoration plantings at the Water Treatment

facility failed and replanting was done.

Natural Resources Activity:

The Town received a Self-Help Grant from the State for $62,000 towards the acquisition

of the Sledge Woods Conservation area and deeds passed on the 9.2 acre parcel. A 1.2 acre

parcel at the rear of 110 Van Norden Road was donated by Martha Moore and Bruce

MacKenzie. Deed completion for the donation from Murray Hills adjacent to the Wood End

Cemetery is pending. Deeds were exchanged for the land swap with the Reading Rifle &
Revolver Club. Conservation participated in the resumption of Community Day with walks in

conservation areas and an information table. Educational articles were published in Reading

Notes. Conservation participated on the Open Space Advisory Committee, the Water Supply

Protection Task Force and the Longwood Poultry Farm Study Committee. Betty Cronin and

Moreen Foley provided services under the Senior Work Program. Thanks go to scouts working

on their Eagle projects and valuable work done by Kevin Downey, Erik Hagstrom, Jim Tucker,

Steve Biller and Steve Carpenter.

Nancy Eaton, Chair and Stephen Chapman, Vice Chair, were re-elected. Other Members

are David Danis, Mark Gillis, Harold Hulse, John Kilborn and Clifton Proctor. Leo Kenney was

appointed as a Consultant to the Commission. Volunteers or Associates are needed in both the

Regulatory and Natural Resources of the Commission’s jurisdiction.

Graphics:

Sledge Woods:
The Conservation Commission obtained funding authorization from Town Meeting and

from the Commonwealth to purchase a nine-acre parcel for Open Space known as the Sledge

Woods Conservation Area at the end of Pasture Road. This is the first purchase of land for

open space since the 1 970’s. This property contains upland and wetland areas and the headwaters

of the Aberjona River as well as an outstanding vernal pool.

Downtown:
In conjunction with the Downtown improvement efforts being spearheaded by the

Downtown Steering Committee, much new investment has taken place in our Downtown:

The Town of Reading, with financial contributions from the Reading Rotary Club,

constructed Rotary Square last Spring in front of the Depot.

Private investment has increased:

The Reading Co-operative Bank completed a major renovation and expansion of its

headquarters building on Haven Street.
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Brooks Pharmacy finished renovations of the old RMLD Building on Haven Street.

The Atlantic Supermarket undertook a major renovation and expansion of its

Downtown supermarket, one of the extremely few major expansions of a Downtown
supermarket anywhere in New England since World War II.

Several merchants in the Square, Katie’s Hallmark, Simms Jewelers and Town Pizza,

along with their landlord, rehabilitated the facade and installed strikingly attractive signs on their

building.

The Town obtained a $500,000 grant from the State to enable the rehabilitation of the

commercial building facing the Common at 21-37 Hamden Street, and to construct a new public

parking lot in this block.

Page from Downtown Facade Design Guidelines:

During the summer of 1997, the Town had the benefit of the design expertise of an

Architectural Intern, Stephen Davis. One of his accomplishments was the analysis of the facade

improvement potential of several Downtown buildings, and the drafting of a practical set of

Downtown Facade Design Guidelines.

Metropolitan Area Planning Council

Reading is among the 101 member communities of the Metropolitan Area Planning

Council and is represented by Mr. William F. Crowley, with Town Planner Jonathan Edwards as

the Alternate. MAPC has continued to act on a variety of matters in the interests of Reading and

its other members: Regional Transportation Plan, Transportation Enhancement programs. Air

Quality Management programs, Economic Development grant programs, demographic and

statistical analysis, and through the North Suburban Planning Council (NSPC) on specific

transportation and development issues of direct concern to Reading. The MAPC's advice has

been quite helpful in our Downtown improvement efforts. Mr. Edwards also serves as the NSPC
representative on the MetroPlan Executive Committee

The Metropolitan Area Planning Council (MAPC) is the regional planning agency

representing 101 cities and towns in the Metropolitan Boston Area. Created by an act of the

Legislature in 1963, it serves as a forum for State and local officials and provides technical

planning assistance and service delivery to its member communities. MAPC works with cities

and towns through eight sub-regional organizations whose members are appointed by chief

elected officials and planning boards. The Council provides the subregions with financial,

planning and administrative support, and offers technical aid on selected special projects.

MAPC is a designated Economic Development District of the Federal Economic Development

Administration, and as one of the 14 members of the Metropolitan Planning Organization

(MPO), has oversight responsibility for the region’s federally funded transportation program.

MAPC completed another successful year of working with its communities, state

agencies, various non-profit groups, universities, businesses, special interest coalitions. State and

Federal Legislators and other regional planning agencies. The agency held at least 15 regularly

scheduled meetings each month, eight of which were in the different subregions.
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These meetings plus special workshops, seminars, focus groups and conferences linked together

the hundreds of issues and individuals who are part of the Boston Area’s and the nation’s

planning scene. It was this network that provided the energy, vision and focus for MAPC’s
activities in the region.

After years of concern about the role of local governments in State transportation

planning and funding decisions, 1997 saw a landmark achievement in the formation of a new
Boston Area MPO. The reorganization was the outcome of federally supported mediation, with

MAPC serving as a key negotiator for a stronger state/local partnership. MPO voting members

now include seven cities and towns, along with seven state and regional agencies including

MAPC. The municipal and regional members of the MPO are responsible for programming

about $40 million per year in local road and bridge projects, about one-third of the total funds

available for the Metropolitan region. MAPC works with communities to develop a list of local

projects to be programmed for funding.

In September, the first Transportation Improvement Program was adopted by the new
MPO. The TIP also included $10 million for “Enhancement projects,” and $3 million for

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) projects.

As a regional planning agency, MAPC’s role is in both the Enhancement and TDM
programs and is to solicit proposals and prescreen them for funding availability.

As always, the agency also participated in a variety of transportation related projects.

One of the major efforts this year involved working on the Transportation Summit Meeting

which was held in Springfield. This effort was organized to support the reauthorization of

ISTEA and help assure that federal transportation funding for New England is not diminished.

MAPC completed a three-year Pavement Management System project that involved the

inspection of all federal-aid eligible roadways throughout the entire MAPC region. A report on

the over 3,000 miles of road that were inspected was submitted to the Massachusetts Highway

Department.

A new project that was organized last year was the Metropolitan Greenspace Initiative.

Over 65 environmental and historic preservation organizations have indicated their interest in

participating in this effort that MAPC is currently staffing. As part of this project, the agency

has produced a map that illustrates the development growth in the greater Boston Area from

1970 to 1991. The accompanying data documents the results of urban sprawl that has occurred

showing a 15% growth in land development with only a 5% growth in population. MAPC staff

has also been working with graduate students at the Harvard Graduate School of Design on a

report outlining the potential for open space protection as the region continues to grow. During

the past year, the agency increased its association with the Boston Harbor Islands National

Recreation Area planning project with the expectation that the agency will become one of the

groups officially involved in the establishment of this new federal/state facility.

MAPC produced a number of publications during 1997. This past year, the agency

published its first yearly calendar with each month displaying maps containing different

demographic data of interest to communities in the region and their residents. The Data Center

also published a report. Top Employers , which listed by community the number of employees

per establishment in the region. Other recent projects include a Title 5 compliance computer

software application for Ashland and Hopkinton, economic forecasting for several agencies.
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school enrollment forecasts for several communities, and updates to the community profile

series. The Data Center, working with Harvard University and the University of Massachusetts,

Boston, also completed a collaborative project known as The Massachusetts Electronic Atlas.

This atlas provides access via the Internet to information on the 35 1 cities and towns in the state

All the information can be downloaded.

The GIS Lab completed numerous projects for both individual communities and for the

region as a whole. Staff worked with Watertown on developing a tree inventory for the

community. They also completed a wireless communication siting study for one of the

subregions, an open space update for another, and a comprehensive regional zoning report for yet

another. GIS staff conducted a number of workshops on parcel data automation and acted as an

information resource for municipalities interested in beginning or expanding their GIS programs.

In addition to playing a major role on a number of regional boards and commissions, the

staff also applied for and received grants to investigate shared services in one of the subregions

and also to help communities deal with the issue of utility deregulation. MAPC continued to

participate with the South Weymouth Naval Air Station reuse planning project.

One MAPC staff member was contracted to work part time for the Town of Rockland on

planning issues related to the base closure and reuse.

In 1997, the agency also completed a project that focuses on opportunities for bolstering

the shoreline seafood processing and distribution industries in the Commonwealth, including an

analysis of the importance of the industry to affected coastal communities in Massachusetts.

MAPC updated its Overall Economic Development Program for 1997, analyzing the

regional economy and economic development needs, and revising the list of projects eligible for

federal funds through the Economic Development Administration (EDA). The agency

administered a Community Adjustment Planning Grant provided by the U S. Department of

Housing and Urban Development to examine community responses to defense industry

downsizing and evaluate defense dependencies of small and mid-sized municipalities. The

project included several focus groups and a regional forum. A final report on strategies to adjust

and diversity local economies in response to reduced defense spending will be completed in early

1998.
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BOARD OF SELECTMEN
In January of 1997, Camille Anthony announced her intentions to run for re-election in

March. She was re-elected to her second three year term.

Personnel and Volunteers:

In 1997, the Board of Selectmen passed a policy on defense of actions brought against

public employees. Training sessions were also held on the conflict of interest law.

In regards to Boards, Committees and Commissions, the Selectmen created a Millennium

Committee to help plan for the upcoming millennium celebration and modified the Police Station

Building Committee to better serve the needs of the design and construction process for the new

Police Station.

The Board accepted resignations from the following volunteers: Priscilla Richardson

(Arts Council), Donna Callahan (Arts Council), Chris Twichell (Arts Council), Ardith Wieworka

(Board of Appeals), Brendon Hoyt, Jr. (Cable TV Advisory Committee), Michael Janvrin

(Constable), Bryan J. Irwin (Community Planning and Development Commission), Naaz N.

Page (Council on Aging), Stephen J. Blewitt (Finance Committee), Thomas J. Green, Jr.

(Finance Committee), Lawrence Scola (Hazardous Waste Advisory Committee), Edward W.

Palmer (Historical Commission), John F. McCauley III (Historical Commission), Gladys

Montgomery Jones (Historical Commission), Jessie Mraz (Recreation Committee), Carol A.

Nelson (Solid Waste Advisory Committee), Michelle S. Maloney (Substance Abuse Advisory

Council), Susan Pustorino (Substance Abuse Advisory Council), Cheryl A. Schaitel (Substance

Abuse Advisory Council), John B. Pacino (Regional School District Representative) passed

away during 1997.

Environmental Issues:

The water supply status continued to be an issue during the year, and the outside watering

restrictions remained at a State 2 water emergency.

Community:
Many issues were brought before the Board of Selectmen in 1997. The Selectmen

approved the Downtown Streetscape Program; voted to eliminated Sunday hours at the Compost

Center at the request of the neighborhood residents; voted to approve rubbish collection for

condominiums effective July 1, 1998 and voted against having a bandstand placed on the

Common or on the Town Hall property.

Real Estate:

One of the biggest issues in 1997 was the siting of the new Police Station. After much

deliberation, Town Meeting approved the purchase of 13 Union Street to be added to an adjacent

Town owned parking lot for the site of the new Police Station.

In July of 1997, the Board voted to accept the donation of approximately 1.2 acres of land

at 1 10 Van Norden Road for conservation purposes.
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Real Estate (Continued)

Working on the closure and sale of the Reading Business Park (former landfill) was a top

priority during 1997. In December of 1997, a request for proposals was issued to interested

developers, with responses due in February of 1998.

TOWN CLERK
Elections:

In comparison to 1996, 1997 was a quiet year for elections with only the Local Election

being held on March 25, 1997. Of the 14,584 registered voters, 9.28% or 1,354 voters turned out

to cast their vote.

Board of Registrars:

William L. Hancock, Gloria Hulse, Town Clerk Cheryl A. Johnson and Martha E.

Walters certified over 500 new registered voters for 1997.

Census:

The Annual Town Census was conducted in January, entirely by mail, with a total of

7863 forms mailed to residences.

The local census assists Town Clerks in putting together the Street List (resident book)

and the Jury List. Major functions served by an annual local census are:

Information collected for municipal purposes

School needs

Growth and planning needs

Resident identification for police and fire

Collection of dog information

Information for the Jury Commissioners

Determining inactive voter status for voter purge as required by the National

Voter Registration Act.

Town Meeting:

After 10 years as Moderator, Paul C. Dustin, turned over the gavel to newly elected

Moderator Alan E. Foulds.

The Annual Town Meeting was held in April, completing its business in six sessions.

The annual Budget for Fiscal Year 1998 was voted in the amount of $46,830,609. There was

much discussion about the location of a new Police Station. Town Meeting voted to authorize

the sale of the Reading Landfill.

Town Meeting added the Designated Parking Spaces and Curb Ramps for Disabled

Veterans or Handicapped Persons to the General By-laws.

A Special Town Meeting was held May 8 and 12, 1997 for the acquisition of 13 Union

Street as the location of the new Police Station.

The Subsequent Town Meeting was completed in two sessions voting on 17 Articles.

The first session to meet on November 10, 1997 at the newly renovated Parker Middle School.

The second session met on November 13, 1997 at the Reading Memorial High School.
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Town Meeting: (Continued)

Amendments were made to the FY ‘98 Municipal Budget. $200,000 was appropriated

for the purpose of financing water pollution abatement facility projects. Town Meeting voted to

amend Lot Shape in the Zoning By-laws.

Vital Statistics and Licensing:

During the calendar year 1997, the following Vital Statistics were recorded in the Town
Clerk's Office:

Births - 314 Marriages - 112 Deaths - 172

Also issued were 1691 dog licenses, 152 business certificates, 29 renewals for

underground storage tanks and 61 cemetery deeds.

A total of 403 Fish and Wildlife licenses were issued during the year for a total of

$10,575.70. Of this total, the Town retained $531.20. The Massachusetts Town Clerks'

Association was very diligent in their efforts to increase the Town's service fees to $1.50 from

.50 for each license sold effective January 1, 1997.

Total receipts collected in the Clerk's Office for the calendar year 1997 amounted to

$36,529.

TOWN COUNSEL REPORT
1997 was a busy and exciting year for Town Counsel. During 1997, H Theodore Cohen

moved his law practice to the firm of Keegan, Werlin & Pabian, LLP, a mid-size firm consisting

of eighteen attorneys with extensive experience in several practice areas of interest to the Town
of Reading which is able to provide the Town with expertise in municipal law,

govemmental/legislative relations, environmental and land use law, real estate and public

utilities law, telecommunications and energy law, and litigation and dispute resolutions. As has

been the case in recent years, real estate, litigation and land use issues dominated the demand for

legal services in the Town during 1997.

With regard to litigation: The Town successfully defended the suit brought by Focaccia,

Inc. challenging the Board of Selectmen’s policy against bringing alcohol into restaurants, which

policy has been upheld and the lawsuit dismissed; the Town brought a lawsuit against Video

Expo, Inc. to enjoin it from operating an adult book and video store in a district not zoned for

such use; the Town has intervened in a proceeding brought by P & S Convenient Store

challenging the Massachusetts State Lottery Commission’s action in revoking/denying it a Keno

license; the Town has defended numerous cases arising out of the grant or denial of Orders of

Conditions by the Conservation Commission, the grant or denial of special permits and variances

by the Board of Appeals, and the approval or denial of plans under the Subdivision Control Law
by the Community Planning and Development Commission; and the Town has represented the

Contributory Retirement Board and the Board of Assessors in numerous administrative

proceedings before the State Contributory Retirement Appeal Board and the Appellate Tax

Board, respectively.
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TOWN COUNSEL REPORT (Continued)

The real estate and land use matters principally involved: The completion of a land swap

with the Reading Rifle & Revolver Club; the acquisition of vacant land off of Pasture Road, off

of Van Norden Road and off of MacMillan Way, and the acquisition of land on Union Street for

a new Police Station; and the taking of public ways for Anson Lane, Ashley Place, Autumn
Lane, Azalea Circle and Family Circle.

In addition, new subdivision control regulations were drafted and promulgated by the

Community Planning and Development Commission and many zoning questions and

enforcement proceedings were pursued on behalf of the Building Inspector.

School Department issues primarily related to questions concerning public records, the

open meeting and conflict of interest laws, personnel and special needs students.

1997 was H Theodore Cohen’s 25
th

year of providing uninterrupted legal services to the

Town of Reading. This year, he was joined by Cheryl A. Blaine, Nancy Kaplan and Matthew E.

Mitchell in providing legal services to every Officer, Board, Department, Commission and

Committee in the Town.

For Town Counsel, it was a very rewarding anniversary year.
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The Reading Housing Authority is pleased to report to the resident of Reading several

major accomplishments that the Authority has achieved over the past year. In collaboration with

the Reading Housing Partnership and the Town of Reading, the Authority assisted ten new

homeowners in the purchase of their condominium unit at Summit Village under the first-time

home buyer’s program. Each “affordable” unit has a Deed Rider which will keep the unit

“affordable.” The Deed Rider requires the owner of an “affordable unit” to offer the unit at a

20% reduction from the current fair market value to income-qualified and eligible families. This

will insure access to “affordable” housing in Reading for first-time home buyers in the future.

Three units in this development are owned and managed by the Authority.

The Reading Housing Authority was very pleased to receive the 1997 Outstanding

Achievement Award from the National Association of Housing and Redevelopment Officials,

Massachusetts Chapter for the Summit Village project. Thomas Connelly, Executive Director of

the Chapter, congratulated the Authority for their success, commitment and continuing efforts to

find new and innovative housing approaches for low and moderate income families in the Town
of Reading.

Many Town residents may not be aware of the new 60 year age limit for eligibility for

State 667 (elderly/handicapped) one bedroom units at Frank D. Tanner Drive. The income limit

for one person $23,296; two persons is $26,624 per year. Reading residents are given a

preference. Anyone interested in this program may call the office at 944-6755 with questions or

to obtain an application for admission.

The house at 74 Bancroft Avenue has new tenants. EMARC, the former tenant,

purchased a home on Hopkins Street. The Department of Mental Retardation now operates a 4

person program in this home. The neighborhood was very gracious and welcomed the new
tenants. A recent Open House was held for neighbors, officials and families of the new residents

to tour the freshly refurbished home.

The Authority is currently operating a 25 unit Family Self-Sufficiency Program under the

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 Existing and Voucher

Program. The Authority employs a social worker who helps families develop a plan that moves

them towards greater independence. As families incomes increase, a percentage of the increase

in rent due to earned income is set aside in an escrow account which the family can get after they

complete their own plan and gain full employment and at least 12 months independence from

assistance.

There are many obstacles along the way and several local organizations have helped by

donating “Welcome to Work” baskets for heads of households returning to the workforce; have

made financial contributions to a revolving loan fund which provides small loans at low interest

rates for unexpected emergencies; donations of women’s and men’s clothing appropriate for the

workplace have also been given by various clubs and organizations. The main objective of this

program is to move families from government programs to full-time employment.
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There have been three families that have been able to help finance a first-time home purchase

with money from their escrow accounts.

The Authority is responsible for 112 units of housing in seven different locations. During

the next year, the Authority plans to expand their office and maintenance facilities to better serve

their clients. An application for modernization for new energy-efficient windows for Tanner

Drive is pending before the State. With the cooperation and support of our elected Legislators,

we hope to be able to bring this effort to completion.

As the government decreases its funding for housing subsidies, many families will be

faced with the crisis in maintaining their w’rrent housing situation. As the real estate market

strengthens in Reading and surrounding communities, the cost of rents increase. This market

pressure affects the cost of rentals and the availability of rental units for low and moderate

income families. The Authority is very interested in working with owners of 2-bedroom, 3-

bedroom and 4-bedroom units in helping to access availability of affordable rentals.

The Authority looks forward to another challenging year filled with great opportunities

and exciting possibilities.

Respectfully submitted,

READING HOUSING AUTHORITY
Rev. Robert K. Sweet, Jr. - Chairman

Donald Allen - Vice Chairman and State Appointee

Jean H. Galvin - Treasurer

Mary Connors - Assistant Treasurer

Timothy Kelley - Member
Margaret K. Plansky - Secretary and Executive Director
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The mission of the Division of Elder and Human Services provides services, activities

and educational opportunities for Reading residents age 60 and over, and also works with the

adult children or friends of elders who have questions about gerontological concerns. Assistance

is given to families and individuals under the age of 60.

The Social Work program addresses the critical needs and concerns. Assistance covers

crisis intervention, case management, housing questions, intergenerational disputes, self neglect,

loneliness, nursing home placement, eligibility screening for State and Federal services,

information and referral, resource development, and coordination with area medical and social

service agencies. Assisting relatives and friends of elders is an important aspect of this program.

The Social Worker made 3190 contacts with 1365 clients. The Social Worker and a volunteer

nurse practitioner lead a bi-monthly support group for caregivers of people with Alzheimer's

Disease or related dementia.

The van transportation program provides an important service for senior citizens that no

longer drive their own car, never did drive, or cannot afford "public" conveyances.

Transportation is offered for medical appointments, local shopping and Elder Services sponsored

activities. The van made 4,700 one way trips transporting 833 people.

The Administrator made 798 contacts to assist younger members of our community with

questions about housing, financial difficulties, family situations and employment.

The Shopping Assistance Program aided 44 homebound persons who lack the ability to

do their own shopping. The client provides the shopping list and the money to purchase groceries

and medicines. The Shopping Coordinator made 1,443 contacts with clients and volunteers.

Twenty-four volunteers made 917 client contacts this past year.

The daily nutrition program is provided through cooperation with Mystic Valley Elder

Services, Inc. (MVES). MVES also provides assistance with homemakers, home health aides,

legal services, protective services, information and referral and respite care.

A Meal Site Manager whose salary is paid by MVES supervises the noontime nutrition

program. Meals totaling 5,367 were served to 525 people. Eleven volunteers helped with the

program. Socialization is an important component of the nutrition program.

The Meals on Wheels Coordinator oversees 46 volunteer drivers who deliver a hot meal

to a client's home at noontime. Eighty-two new clients brought the total to 176 participants in the

home delivered meal program. This is the highest number of participants to date. Elder Services

staff, medical personnel, MVES case managers, and/or concerned family members or neighbors

refer clients. Meal delivery includes evening meals, frozen meals for the weekend and twelve

clinical diets. The clinical diets include heart, no concentrated sweets, diabetic, low or high fiber,

low lactose, renal, pureed or special diets.

The Coordinator of Volunteers organizes volunteers who perform community services for

our older population. The annual Volunteer Reception for 200 volunteers recognizes the

contributions made by Reading citizens for Reading citizens. The fourth Town-wide Day of

Caring was held to raise awareness of the needs of our older neighbors. Intergenerational

projects continue to be an important teaching tool for cooperation among the generations.

Students did yard work, snow shoveling and developed pen pal contacts with many Reading

residents.
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Coordination of Scouting and Campfire groups yields approximately 60 children each month

who make cards, tray favors and baked goods for the enjoyment of many people. Seniors went to

the schools to discuss careers and events from their youth.

Volunteers are an integral part of Elder Service programming. Volunteers assist with

income tax, Meals on Wheels delivery, medical escorts, class instructors, office volunteers,

gardeners, program leaders, meal site, bingo, recreation opportunities, greetings cards, shopping

volunteers, Summerfest Strawberry Festival, Medicare/medigap insurance billing assistance, Fix-

It, Knitters, Center receptionists, telephone reassurance and committees.

Educational classes, programs and support groups are held at the Center. The oil painting

and watercolor classes are held at Tannerville. Teachers are paid directly by the students. Classes

continuing from last year include "Motion to Music" exercise program, family history, bridge,

PACE. People with Arthritis Can Exercise, ceramics and oil painting. Continuing programs

include chess, billiards, Monday/Tuesday at the Movies, bingo, the satellite Reading Public

Library collection in the Book Nook, "Buttons & Hems," Fix-It Shop, the wooden block project.

Whist with a Twist for people with low vision and quilting. Thursday Forum discussion group

covers varied topics of interest. A new class was a six part RAD course (Rape Aggression

Defense) for older women designed by the Police Department in conjunction with Elder

Services.

Five support groups continue from last year: Alzheimer's Disease Caregivers' Support

Group, "Scuttlebutt" Veterans Support Group and "Free and Sober" AA for Seniors, Low Vision

Education and Support Group and Arthritis Education and Support Group. Support groups are an

important avenue for involving people within the life of the Center. SPICE, Seniors, Police In

Cooperative Efforts, continues to bring safety awareness to Reading residents. A nutrition

support group “Good Food ~ Good Results” was formed.

Channel 3 is broadcasting the Motion to Music exercise class three days a week. The

National Association of Retired Federal Employees holds its monthly meetings at the Center.

Silver-Haired Legislature elections in Reading selected Sally Hoyt as Representative and Walter

Redding as Senator.

The Division is committed to providing information enabling citizens to make decisions

regarding their well being and quality of life. Programs included crime prevention, RAD,
travelogue, Medicaid and long term care insurance, property tax exemptions and the property tax

work program, consumer assistance, health issues. Health Care Proxy workshops. SHINE
(Serving the Health Information Needs of Elders) assists people with Medicare and related

health insurance questions and trained volunteers are available each week. Staff participated in

the Health Fair organized by the Health Division. A Homestead Act Workshop was attended by

82 people who asked questions of Registrar of Deeds Eugene Brune.

The Senior Citizen Property Tax assists qualified residents with their property tax bills by

working in Municipal And School Departments. The workers "do those short time projects that

regular staff never has time to complete because of other priorities". Several completed projects

have given workers the opportunity to learn more about community government. Examples of

projects include the creation of computer data input systems for the Conservation Division,

assistance with mass mailings, monitoring of Imagination Station during the Summer, overseeing
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the compost area during the week, and projects in the Town Clerk's Office. Participants offer

very favorable comments about this program.

Many individuals and organizations have generously supported the Elder Services'

agenda by providing money, gifts and in-kind services. Individuals and organizations have given

hospital equipment, postage stamps for the "sunshine card" program, flowers, plants, books,

clothing, food, knitting supplies, games, magazines, gift certificates, materials for the wooden

block project, food baskets, plated dinners and gifts.

This Division coordinates the Adopt-A-Family holiday programs. The number of donors

historically has been about 100 since the program began in 1994. This year, 257 donors

participated with many of the 257 being a contact name representing clubs, organizations,

employees and school children who were participating in a group effort. Thanksgiving and

Christmas food baskets were enjoyed by 122 adults and 124 children. Christmas gifts were given

to the 124 children and 42 senior citizens.

The Elder Services Revolving Fund covers emergency situations for which people age

60+ do not have financial resources. The Shopping Revolving Fund pays travel reimbursement to

the Shopping Coordinator. The Human Services Revolving Fund is for people under age 60 who
do not have financial resources for emergency situations.

The Shopping Assistance Revolving Fund received $778.85. Expenditures for travel

reimbursement totaled $348.04. The Executive Office of Elder Affairs’ Formula Grant pays the

Coordinator’s salary.

The Elder Services Revolving Fund received $3,575.56 that included the following:

Nat’l Assoc. Retired Fed. Employees 200.00

Young Women's League 225.00

Common Purpose 100.00

128 Ford, Volvo, Saab 1,225.00

Anonymous 1,230.56

AARP 150.00

Business Long Distance 200.00

Memorials 245.00

Additional revenues generated: Van Rider Donations $289.00. Expenditures from

the Elder Services Revolving Fund totaling $2,575.38 were distributed as follows:

Medical/Equipment: $72.50; House Repair: $1,464.00; Holiday Food Baskets: $934.63;

Heating Oil: $104.25.

The Human Services Revolving fund received $4061.00 that included the following:

Junior Women’s Club $ 500.00

Reading Clergy Association 3,000.00

Reading Co-operative Bank 100.00

Anonymous 461.00

Expenditures from the Human Services Revolving Fund totaling $723.25 were distributed as

follows: Medical: $148.97; Utilities: $174.28; Rent: $200; Home Maintenance: $200.
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The Coordinator of Volunteers position was in flux most of the year. Tami Bernat held

the position from May through July. Sue Reardon started half time beginning in September and

transitioned to “full time” by the end of the year. Beth Moore and David Brigham were

welcomed as new members to the Council on Aging. The Elder Services Administrator position

was changed to Elder and Human Services Administrator effective in May.

HEALTH DIVISION

The Board of Health in its mission is dedicated to improving the health and well being of

Reading citizens as well as to protect the environment from pollution and damage. The Division,

under the direction of the Board, develops new programs and services to respond to health issues

as they arise. The accomplishments of these programs are done in collaboration with the State

and Town agencies.

During 1997, the Division and the Board experienced a year of staff stability. All staff

positions were filled. The Health Administrator completed her first year, the Public Health

Nurse increased hours from nine to eighteen per week, the inspectional services increased from

twelve hours to nineteen per week, and the successful acquisition of a Sealer Of Weights And
Measures Scanner Grant to increase staff time with the goal of improving accuracy of grocery

scanners. The Tobacco Control Director received an increase in hours by writing a successful

State Tobacco Grant. Her hours are now at 28/week. The Board of Health remained stable with

Chairperson James Nugent and members Cynthia Richards and Jean Garafoli.

The Health Division Programs over the past calendar year have involved and supported

substance abuse prevention through training our teachers, peer leadership and athletes for a

healthy lifestyle which are student organizations, Adopt-A-Student Program for elementary

school students who need a special older student to care about them and help them adjust to

school. The Health Division has presented for the 6
th

year a “Captain’s Leadership Workshop.”

Parents and Athletes were invited to a speaker’s night on chemical misuse. 800 attended a

successful informational program.

The Town-wide Drug Free Week has had as its mission to offer a clear consistent

message to stay drug free to the community “Healthy People for a Healthy Community”. The

focus of the week is family fun without the use of tobacco, alcohol or other drugs. During Drug

Free Week, the Health Division presents a Health Fair with 50 exhibitors. These exhibitors offer

information, health screening, demonstrations and referrals. More than 1500 citizens came to the

Health Fair. It was a great event. Mid-week, the Substance Abuse Prevention Advisory Council

held our first community talent show. There were 1 1 acts showcasing all ages and all types of

creativity. High School students offered refreshments at intermission and well over 600 filled

the audience. The final night was a free family skate at the Burbank Arena. These programs are

planned and presented through the Health Division, Substance Abuse Advisory Council and the

Tobacco Control Program. The number in 1997 that were effected by this particular

programming was approximately 2500. The philosophy of the Substance Abuse Prevention

Program is developed through the 16 member Council that is appointed by Selectmen.
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The programming is financed through the Town budget and the Safe and Drug Free

Community and Schools Grant ($17,788).

The Council worked closely with the school Wellness Program and the Police

Department’s D A R E. Program to deliver a clear and consistent message to the community.

Continuing with the prevention education, the department presents voluntary workshops

on sexuality for both young girls and boys Grades 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 at the Reading Public Library

In 1997, the Public Health Nurse became responsible for the pre-adolescent workshops. 360

students and 80 parents participated.

Reading continues to be the lead fiscal Town receiving a grant for $51,868 in the

coalition of the Reading/Stoneham Tobacco Control Program. The program for both commun-
ities dealt with smoking cessation program for adults and adolescents, youth access regulation

and compliance checks to educational program for all age groups within both towns. Many of

the educational programs were presented in cooperation with the schools, Recreation and Police

Departments. Reading remains a smoke-free community. Stoneham continues to work toward

this goal, progressing closer each year.

The Public Health Nurse’s responsibility is to follow-up on communicable diseases. This

had been a very busy year with 101 follow-ups. There were 125 Mantoux Testing (TB screening)

completed. The annual flu, tetanus and pneumonia clinic were held at the end of October -- 1589

vaccines were given. This includes clinics as well as homebound visits. The Health

Administrator and PHN administered the first Hepatitis B on site clinics to 600 students, Grade 6

through 12. The Massachusetts Department of Public Health Program offered free immunization

to sixth grade students and the Reading Health Division offered the program for 7th - 12th grade

students at a cost of $9 per immunization; a total cost of $27 for the 3 shot series. 33 adults

(Town employees) were immunized as well. To complement the work of the PHN, blood

pressure clinics for the elders are provided by VNA Middlesex East and Winchester Visiting

Nurse and Health Care.

The Health Administrator worked on a collaborative grant with the schools. The Health

Division wrote on “Harassment and the Athletic Adolescent Attitudes Toward Sexual

Harassment”. The program was student written, produced and acted in 30-second clips for cable

to increase student awareness. Another grants for health prevention is to deal with nutrition and

the toddler. This project will be completed in FY ‘99.

The Health Inspector has completed her state training in Serv-Safe. The Health Inspector

with the Health Administrator presented a workshop for restaurant owners, twenty-two attended.

There were 576 inspections completed as a response to routine or complaint issues. Food

inspections continue to be within the State requirement at 2-3x per year a total of (319). The

Inspector, Joan Vitale hired March 31, was also sworn in as our Animal Control Inspector.

Twenty-four animal inspections were completed.

Radon testing kits remain on sale for Reading residents through the Health Division and

at the Library for convenience.

Title V Septic Betterment Grant of $200,000 was awarded to the Health Division. A
computer, printer and program software has been purchased. The project will involve over 500

septic/cesspools in Reading. A survey has been sent to all these homeowners with a 60% return.

The project will allow a low interest loan to homeowners for Town sewer connections or septic

replacement where appropriate.
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Contractual Services: The largest contractual service is mosquito control. The Town is part of the

20 member Eastern Middlesex Mosquito Control Project which provides mosquito wetland

surveillance, larval and adult mosquito control, ditch maintenance and public education. The
project participates as a component of the State's Vector Control Plan to prevent EEE. Above
average precipitation levels over the year reversed the cycle of low mosquito activity to a higher

level. The risk ofEEE remains low.

Non-toxic BTi was applied to 301 acres of wetlands via helicopter 1.5 acres of wetlands

was sprayed with portable sprayers in high densities, stagnant water. Adult spraying of 3,954

acres was done by truck at night for high populations of nuisance mosquitoes.

Eastern Middlesex Outpatient Center (this agency offers mental health, mental

retardation and substance abuse care for children, adolescents, adults and families) who have

limited financial resources. In FY ’97, this amounted to 1620 hours of clinical care for 94

individuals, 11% outpatient. The agency offered $41,247 of free care. EMARC served 12

clients . The regional program offers training for the individuals to work at local businesses.

The Health Services Administrator participates in quarterly board meetings to assure Reading

gets the appropriate care.

Dead animal pickup continues with this year total pick up at 159 animals from public

ways. The Health Division continues to offer regional rabies immunization programs with the

Town of Stoneham. 1 74 dogs and cats were immunized.

The Sealer of Weights and Measures has checked and sealed 195 gasoline pumps and

scales.

Revenues for FY 1997 Programs & Licenses $30,729

Grants $95,656

RECREATION DIVISION

The mission of the Reading Recreation Division is to provide the community with year

round recreational activities. Recreation programs should be broad based to meet the

recreational needs of all segments of the population. The Recreation Division must continually

update and modify its programming to meet the current needs of the community. As the

communities participation and awareness of local recreational programs increase, so does their

expectations of Recreation Division programs. The Recreation Division must be ready to

anticipate and adapt to these growing expectations.

The Reading Recreation Division offers a variety of programs to residents of all ages. A
direct programming emphasis has been placed on Reading Middle School and elementary school

aged youth. The Recreation Revolving fund continues to fund all programs for 1997. The

Recreation Committee, with nine members and two associate members, provide guidance and

support to the Recreation Division. Ginger Butler, Recreation Principal Clerk, continues to be an

integral part of the Reading Recreation program.
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Programming:

Summer
The summer of '97 was another success for Reading Recreation. The Summer Camp

program provided fun-filled activities for 537 Reading youth. The regular camp was

complemented by a successful junior camp program. This year, campers enjoyed weekly field

days, and each camper received a Reading Recreation T-shirt. Reading Recreation added a new

Junior Counselor in the training program for youth in Grades 7 and 8. This new program helped

increase enrollment and provided a local camp opportunity for middle school aged youth.

Reading Recreation continues to improve its Summer Camps for 1998. In 1998, Summer Camp
will be moving from the Coolidge Middle School to the Birch Meadow Elementary School.

Reading Recreation will also be adding a tennis component to the camp program. The

Recreation Division has recommended an increase in its camp fee to balance the increase in

estimated 1998 expenses.

The Grant Municipal Pool provided another action filled Summer for the 177 youth that

participated in the Swim Program. This program is extremely popular year to year because of its

qualified staff. The expanded lessons times continued to be very popular with the parents,

participants and swim instructors. In 1997, Recreation decreased the number of time slots for

swimming classes, hoping to fill the classes to their capacity. In 1998, Reading Recreation will

be adding a weekday water tot program which will hopefully complement its already successful

weekend program. Reading Recreation will also be dropping the community water safety

program. The Open Swim Program continued to run with its expanded hours during the week

and weekend. With an extremely hot 1997 Summer, the open swim hours produced excellent

fiscal results. In 1998, Recreation plans to decrease the pool fees.

Various clinics sponsored by Reading Recreation ran throughout the Summer: field

hockey, high school and middle school soccer, tiny-tot soccer, baseball, basketball for girls and

boys, challenger baseball and tennis, youth and adult tennis lessons, track and field, super sports

camp, volleyball and softball. Reading Recreation also offered weekly track meets and a middle

school pick-up basketball league during the month of July. Both these programs were an

overwhelming hit to residents of all ages. It is our hope that in 1998 these clinics and more will

be offered to the community. Reading Recreation is planning on increasing its Summer offerings

by expanding the ages and weeks of existing programs.

"Theater in the Green" for children of all ages on Wednesday afternoons and "A Touch of

Class” concerts for the community on Sunday evenings were again offered. Funding was

secured through local business sponsorship and donations collected at the concerts. Recreation

hopes to increase the sponsorships for 1998. Reading Recreation will continue to try to offer a

wider variety of performances to help the concerts stay fresh and exciting. The "Touch of Class"

concert series has been increased from six concerts to seven concerts. Reading Recreation

offered the public a “Free” evening at the movies. This event was enjoyed by a number of

residents.

Graduating middle school youth enjoyed the “Fourth Annual Coming Together Dance" at

the end of the Summer. The dance was held at the Reading Memorial High School and provided

an orientation for the incoming freshman. The dance was attended by over 50 current high

school freshmen. This tradition will no longer continue in 1998.
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The Friends of Reading Recreation continued its Tennis Tournament tradition. The

successful tournament was enjoyed by dozens of participants.

Reading Recreation sponsored a “Celebrity Softball Fundraiser” with former Boston

Bruin players to help raise funds for the Recreation Revolving Fund. The event was extremely

successful and raised almost $7,000 for the Recreation Division.

Fall

Some of the programs offered to residents in the Fall of 1997 included a mix of new and

old programs. Again, Reading Recreation continues to try to meet the needs of all those in the

community. Fall programs included: roller hockey, a series of middle school early release trips,

recreational basketball, travel basketball, gymnastics, youth wrestling, challenger soccer, special

skates, indoor tennis, junior and adult golf lessons, junior golf leagues, cross country meets and

indoor track meets, cartoon league basketball, gymnastics, elementary school ski program,

middle school ski program, youth basketball tournaments and various science workshops.

Reading Recreation also offered a variety of family trips and activities including gingerbread

decorating, holiday shopping and overnight trips to a number of exciting vacation spots.

Basketball continues to be the program of choice for the Fall and Winter. Over 500

Reading youth participated in the thirteen weeks of the Sunday program which offers a

combination of skill introduction and game play. Reading Recreation also is the sponsor of 9

travel basketball teams that play up to a 22 game season. Both the Travel and Sunday Basketball

program were revised in 1997 and will continue to be revised in 1998. The Reading Recreation

Committee would like to eventually have its travel basketball program privatized.

Reading Recreation continues to be the sponsor of the Reading Odyssey of the Mind

Program. Working with the School Department and parent groups, Reading Recreation has

expanded its traditional athletic programming to include one the most successful enrichment

programs in the country. Students in Grades K-12 are invited to participate with a team of their

peers in solving long-term and short-term problems. For the 1997-1998 season, Reading

Recreation is proud to sponsor 7 teams in the program. Recreation hopes this program will

continue to expand in the 1998-1999 season.

Winter/Spring

Some of the programs in the works for the Winter/Spring of 1998 include: early release

programs, open recreation, indoor golf, science workshops, indoor track meets, bowling, tot

vacation soccer, baseball clinics, indoor tennis, challenger basketball, super sports, a fun run road

race, guitar lessons and the fourth Annual Town-wide Egg Hunt. Reading Recreation also co-

sponsors adult art programs in cooperation with Creative Arts. Reading Recreation also

coordinates a number of adult and family trips through Colette Tours.

Recreation sponsors professional lecturer Bob Bigellow to speak with parents and

coaches on adult behavior in youth sports.
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Spinning Wheels

Recreation continues to work with Spinning Wheels and its Director Drew Bililies in

recreation programming for children with special needs. Recreation and Spinning Wheels will

be coordinating with the Parent Advisory Council 766 on increased programming for children

with special needs.

Brochure

Reading Recreation continues to mail out its seasonal brochures full of recreational

programs. Help from senior volunteers increases effectiveness and efficiency of the process. The

Recreation brochures are mailed to Reading Residents in accordance to the latest census.

Recreation has received a tremendous amount of feedback on this new idea. The brochures are

said to be very convenient and easy to follow. Brochures are now an expected part of families

Town recreational services.

Administration

Capital Improvements completed in 1997 included Birch Meadow Tennis Court Field,

Killam School Field, Parker Middle School Field, Hunt Memorial Park, Sturgis Park Basketball

and Tennis Courts and the Barrows School Basketball and Tennis Courts. Irrigation Systems

were also installed at Birch Meadow Tennis Court Field, Parker Middle School, Washington

Park and Pearl Street School Field. Recreation and the Department of Public Works have plans

to continue reconditioning the remaining Town of Reading recreational facilities in 1998.

Reading Recreation also is continuously looking for available land for the development

of new recreational facilities.

The newly developed Longwood Place soccer field, old Pearl Street School field, will be

ready for use in the Spring of 1998.

Reading Recreation has implemented a playground renovation program that will renovate

a minimum of one playground a year. Reading Recreation, with the help of a $5,000 donation

from Dunkin’ Donuts, reconditioned the playground at Washington Park in the Fall of 1998.

The Recreation Committee has established a new program fee policy, hoping to bring the

Recreation Division closer to a total break-even point. This fee program will allow Recreation to

become increasingly self-sufficient.

The Reading Recreation Committee continues to monitor the permitting policy of the

Imagination Station Playground. Imagination Station facility permits will help the Recreation

Division control facility use.

The Reading Recreation Division and the Recreation Committee continue to develop

policies that will increase the effectiveness and efficiency of each Reading Recreation program.

Reading Recreation has been glad to offer the public over 100 recreational programs

throughout the year. Reading Recreation hopes to meet the communities changing recreational

needs, providing them with a combination of safe, fun and educational programs.
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VETERAN’S SERVICES

Paul A. Farrell is the Veteran’s Agent for the Town working an average of 14.5 hours per

week. Veteran’s Services is governed by Chapter 115 of the General Laws. Veterans and

his/her immediate family who are in need that qualify are eligible for benefits. Initial paper work

is processed locally, final approval of benefits come from the Commissioner of Veteran’s

Services in Boston, Massachusetts.

Additional Veteran’s Administration expenditures for FY ‘97 for a Reading Veteran

population of approximately 2005 was $1,438,286. These benefits were paid directly to

recipients and/or their dependents by the Veteran’s Administration not through the Town budget.

$9667.50 was expended through the Town budget, 75% of which is reimbursed by the State.

There were 145 active cases in 1997 with 86 current pending cases.

The total appropriation as voted at Town Meeting was $10,000 for FY 1997 — leaving a

balance of $332.50 as of June 30, 1997. On July 1, 1997, the appropriation was $7000, a balance

of $4776 remains for FY ‘98.
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ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
April 14, 1997

Note : The following reports of action taken on Articles in the Warrants for the Town Meetings

are from the official records and indicate actions which bind the Town. The reader is

referred to the official reports in the office of the Town Clerk.

Paul C. Dustin presented the gavel to the newly elected Moderator, Alan E. Foulds. George V.

Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, presented a lifetime award to Paul C. Dustin for his

service in local government.

The new Town Meeting Members were given the Oath of Office by the Moderator, Alan E.

Foulds.

Moderator Alan E. Foulds made the following announcements:

1. When speaking, please use the microphone and state your name and precinct. This

will enable not only those in attendance to hear you but those watching on cable as

well.

2. All proposed amendments, except for minute procedural and grammatical errors, must be

submitted to the Town Clerk in writing. All reports must also be submitted to the Town
Clerk.

3. According to our By-Laws, non-Town Meeting Members may speak but only after all

Members that want to speak have done so. If you are a non-Town Meeting Member and

you know beforehand that you may want to take part in the debate, it would be wise to

inform the Chair in advance.

This does not preclude those with information pertinent to the debate from speaking, as

Town Meeting has the right to be fully informed before all votes. The Chair will decide

those issues as they arise.

Only those sitting in front of the checkers will be considered as voting members.

4. Moving the Question: This motion is a legitimate tool for ending debate. Since it takes a

2/3 vote, debate can only be closed when an overwhelming majority feels that enough has

been said, safeguarding the minority.

Two comments:

The Chair will recognize this motion if it is the only purpose for which the Member has

risen. In other words, a person taking part in the debate cannot make the motion at the

end of his or her comments.
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Please keep in mind that on important issues, there may be times when non-Town
Meeting Members might want to speak but are waiting for all Members to finish, as

prescribed in the By-Laws. Passage of this motion precludes them from doing so.

Although this body can do what it wishes with this issue, the Chair will inform the

meeting if it is known that someone from the back had planned to speak.

5. Last year, an instructional motion was passed requesting that this opening session take

place at the newly renovated Auditorium at the Parker Middle School. The Chair has

been informed that this did not happen because the Auditorium's readiness could not be

assured.

6. One Historical Note:

Lynn Village became Reading in 1644, an event that we commemorated just a few years

ago. It was not, however, until December 6, 1647 that we held our first Annual Town
Meeting. Although the Annual Meeting has migrated from December into the Spring, it

has been held every year since then. Tonight, we all become a part of history as we
convene Reading's 350th Annual Town Meeting. As far as we can tell, this makes us the

25th oldest continuous democracy in the world.

ARTICLE 2 - George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, presented the following

State of the Town Report:

I am deeply honored to once again have the privilege of addressing Town Meeting as

Chairman of the Selectmen on the State of the Town. I'm pleased to welcome the new
Moderator, Alan Foulds, and wish him all the success and wisdom of his predecessors.

As we convene on the cusp of another New England Winter, blessed by the fact that this

one was moderate as New England Winters are measured, I feel that I can also report that the

state of the Town is good. By any measure, Reading continues to be a good hometown, a good,

safe, caring, friendly place to live and raise a family. This comfortable hometown environment

is not only our heritage but also our legacy and, from all indications, this atmosphere will not

deteriorate but will certainly as death and taxes change and hopefully improve.

Fiscal Issues :

Years of experience in Town government, including Town Meeting, have given me the

understanding that the Town's fiscal status is always considered in the most conservative of

terms (a euphemism for gloomy), and we are sure to hear about the need for continued

conservatism or face potential projections of future deficits, a position with which few of us

would disagree but that should not prevent us from seeing our situation in anything but the most

positive of terms. We cannot adopt an unbalanced budget and, therefore, the second fiscal path

the Town has followed over recent history should continue to serve us well in the future if we
continue to steer that course. Fortunately, Reading and the other 338 communities in

Massachusetts have convinced State Government to return to adhering to appropriate lottery

distribution formulas and for the 2nd year of a three year program, we have seen the return of
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that money to the cities and towns move back toward the levels the original lottery legislation

intended.

We have developed a process for developing the municipal budget using a Budget

Council wherein the major policy bodies participate in a kind of partnering process to build a

budget in a fair equitable manner. The FY 1998 budget was developed using this process for the

second year now. It is working well and the participants have discussed formalizing the process

with an agreement. We aie well along a continuing multi-year capital spending process which is

based on prudent planning, and has allowed us to begin the reversal of years of infrastructure

decay. This program has yielded new schools, improved recreation facilities, renewed roadways

and planning for other municipal and school facilities. None of this activity has proceeded

sufficiently to offset deficiencies especially in the area of roads, but it is being done within

available resources.

We have also laid the groundwork for a maintenance program to protect the investment in

our renewed capital facilities. All of this effort on the fiscal front has enabled us to secure the

lowest bond rating in the history of Reading government. These fiscal successes do not mean

unlimited resources or complete renewal of facilities, but do provide the knowledge that we can

provide the services citizens want with the quality they deserve.

Water:

For our community, water has always been an important issue. We have always relied on

our own water system which has become increasingly fragile in an environmental sense. The

infamous Route 93 gasoline spill of September, 1992 has required us to operate with

conservation measures to protect our wellfields for 5 years. These prudent measures have slowly

been relaxed or refined each Spring as we have learned more about the exact status of the impact

of this incident in our water system. We have consistently been able to assure our citizens of the

safety of our drinking supply because of these measures but, hopefully, final resolution is on the

horizon and we will be able to lift all restrictions soon. We are also communicating with the

State to get them to adopt containment strategies for the highway facilities to prevent future

incidents.

Our water is currently being tested by an outside consultant to address a taste issue

unrelated to but possibly a consequence of the gas spill. While we can continue to assure that the

water is safe, we will soon - possibly as soon as this week and if so will update Town Meeting

before we adjourn - be able to understand the taste issue and develop a remedy.

Development:

On the development front, we are working on a number of projects. As Chairman, I

revived the Business Park Task Force concept with the appointment of a new committee chaired

by Selectman Ensminger to develop a proactive plan for development of the former landfill.

The Selectmen have made this the Town's highest priority and this Town Meeting will be

asked to fund that effort.
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The Downtown turnaround, driven by a grass roots coalition of citizens and business

people in partnership with Town Government, is moving toward a vision of a renewed New
England village and the results are becoming evident. New and remodeled buildings, reuse of

former municipal buildings, new and more aesthetic signing and reduction of vacant retail space

are all further signs of the success of this effort and much more is yet to come. Once again, this

is an area Town Meeting can become a factor in the success of this program.

Community Day :

Thanks to the tireless effort of Selectman Camille Anthony and her small but dedicated

legion of volunteers, 1997 will once again see the celebration of Community Day.

Police Station:

The development of an improved Police Station is both a public safety issue and a

development issue, and has consumed an enormous amount of energy, and will likely consume a

lot of this Town Meeting as we are asked to consider plans to achieve an improved Police

facility. Few would question the need for this facility. The Board has developed a plan for the

project which will serve the needs of the Department for the foreseeable future and will

contribute to the economic vitality of the Downtown. The completion of this project is a major

goal of the Board of Selectmen for FY 1998, and the project needs approval to continue a strong

public safety program.

FY 1998 Goals :

In July, the Board of Selectmen began a process of developing goals. The intention of

this process was to develop a work plan and foundation on which to build the FY 1998 budget. I

have already mentioned the landfill development and the Police Station as two of the top ten

major goals adopted by the Board, and we have made significant progress in those areas already.

The other major goals are: Downtown revitalization, public safety staffing, water issues,

continued Municipal/School cooperation, tax rate stabilization, solid waste issues, parks

improvement and recreation staffing.

As I mentioned, significant progress has already been achieved on some of these goals.

We will be reviewing a budget which includes funding for others and the goals we have set that

can't be achieved will be evaluated for other solutions or future consideration.

Town Meeting's deliberation and approval is critical to the process of implementing these

goals. Whatever the outcome of this Town Meeting, we will go forward with the realization that

there are no insurmountable issues but that whatever challenges we face as a community, we

need but to confront them through friendly discourse with respect for each other in working

toward the common good.
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This urging to emphasize the positive is not offered with an intent to ignore the problems

posed by society in 1997. We must deal with those issues and we are but the intent here is to

help us focus on the positive aspects of life in Reading, and realize the benefits we enjoy and the

hope we have for the future of a community working together.

Thank you and God bless.

ARTICLE 2 - Dennis Richards, Associate Superintendent of Schools, and Beth Klepeis,

Treasurer, presented the following Berger Award:

Arnold Berger was a beloved philanthropist in the Town of Reading. He was an usher

and then rose to management at the movie theater on South Main Street near the present VFW.
He worked for General Cinema and was paid in stock which multiplied in value over the years.

It was his good fortune in the stock market which allowed him to give so generously to his

favorite causes, among them the School Department. In 1985, he decided to donate 200 shares

of stock to create an Exemplary Teacher Award(s) for Reading teachers. The actual motion at

Town Meeting was as follows:

ADJOURNED SPECIAL TOWN MEETING
October 3, 1985

Article 8: Elizabeth W. Klepeis moved that the Town vote to accept 200 shares

of General Cinema Corporation stock as a gift from Dorothy and Arnold Berger

to create a Trust Fund, the income from which will be used annually for

Exemplary Teacher Award(s). This motion as amended was voted in the

affirmative.

Larry Drew, Town Clerk, signed the copy of the motion as a true copy.

Arnold Berger liked to have the Town sell his stock. He had anticipated that the 200

shares of stock would bring about $7,000. By the time Town Meeting had acted, the stock had

lost a little value, leaving the fund with a principle balance of $6,856.

ARTICLE 2 - James E. Biller, Precinct 6, recognized the accomplishments of the Coolidge

Middle School Science Olympiad Team. The team is a premier science competitor in the

country. They placed 5th in the overall competition last year and 1st in Massachusetts.

Fred Van Magness requested to make a point on the Berger Award and its change of format from

a teacher award to a school award.
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ARTICLE 2 - Russell T. Graham, Chairman of the School Building Committee, presented the

following Report of Progress:

Mr. Moderator:

Our report this evening is basically in two parts. One, a brief update on the Parker

project and, secondly, a report relative to the three Articles on the elementary schools and on the

High School.

As you may remember, and as the Moderator has noted, we are supposed to be at the

Parker Middle School this evening surrounded by enhanced ambiance and, far more importantly,

seated on cushioned seats. Unfortunately, the only part of the project behind schedule is the

Auditorium. We do look forward to convening in that location in the Fall, and we hope you will

find it worth the wait. We are, I am told, about three weeks or so away from a completed

Auditorium.

We are happy to report that the project overall is proceeding smoothly, and we have

every anticipation that it will be finished before schedule and below budget. The occupation of

the building under Phase 1 was accomplished successfully, and the ongoing construction of

Phase 2 is being done with a minimal impact on the operations of the building and the education

of the students therein. With a little time left, the Parker project will give to Reading a

wonderful building, pleasing to the eye, pleasant to the occupants and capable of providing a

superior education to its student body and, as we have said, on time and below budget .

Special thanks has to go to the School administration, and particularly to Dr. Delaney, for

it is his and their involvement, experience and educational expertise that has made the difference.

Your School Building Committee would be remiss in not extending its thanks in recognizing the

contributions of Rich Radville, one of our members and liaison to the project from the School

Building Committee; the hours of time and degree of devotion to this project go far beyond the

call of duty. He represents the finest standards of volunteer service to the community.

The second part of our report relates to the Articles on school buildings. On behalf of the

Committee, we must note that these are School Committee Articles not submitted by the School

Building Committee, although four members of our Committee served on the Task Force formed

by the Superintendent.

Two of these Articles are specific to the Joshua Eaton School and the Birch Meadow
School, and go to completing the needs of these two buildings. A logical question is why we
must spend more money on two buildings which have already been addressed by the School

Building Committee and on which significant sums have been spent. It might be helpful in that

regard to give a little history of the projects.

When it became apparent that enrollment at the elementary level was expanding at a rate

not able to be adequately satisfied by the physical space available, a committee was formed to

put together a plan to meet those needs. They did so and they did it well. That plan contained

within it much of what you will be asked to approve under the elementary school Articles at this

Town Meeting.

The timing of that presentation to Town Meeting could not have been worse. The long

touted mass economic miracle had turned into an economic downfall that had significant

negative impact on local communities including, most assuredly, the Town of Reading.
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State aid to cities and towns was decreased to catastrophic levels, and some within State

government publicly doubted the ability of the committee to even do that.

Our own Town budget reflected the downturn and the ability, never mind the will, of

Town Meeting to fund significant building projects dependent upon State reimbursement was

virtually non-existent. Town Meeting turned down the projects and, as one of its primary

reasons, gave the belief that the State could not keep its reimbursement obligations to cities and

towns. A concerned group then took the issue to the voters as a debt exclusion override. Not

surprising in such economic times, the voters rejected the override. The problem, however, had

not gone away, and Town Meeting realizing this to be a Town problem took the issue on. From

the ashes of all this came your School Building Committee -- who could ask for a more

auspicious beginning.

As a result of the debate and decision, the School Building Committee determined that

The critical problem, the priority concern was enrollment and the need to provide space for the

increase. The Committee also recognized that not much faith was, at that juncture in time, being

given to the State's ability to reimburse.

The challenge thus was to bring to Town Meeting a plan which at minimal addressed the

space to provide for increased enrollment at a cost which was able to be sustained by Reading,

even if the State were not to reimburse Reading for 66% of the cost. Let me assure you, it was a

challenge. Town Meeting approved the resulting plan. The two elementary buildings completed

reflect the addressing of the critical problem within the financial constraints imposed.

Let me here reassure all that despite the understandable concerns of the time, the

Commonwealth kept its commitment to school buildings and, in every case, reimbursed to the

cities and towns all it had agreed to.

The two School Committee Articles within this Town Meeting attempt to address those

areas of concern put to one side under the stress and political realities of another time. The

School Building Committee unanimously supports both of these Articles as reflecting

improvements that ought and need to be done at both schools.

In the Fall Town Meeting, in our recommendation to not proceed with renovations to the

Reading Memorial High School, we also warned Town Meeting that some safety and most

mechanical problems outlined in the architect's report would not go away, and the age and

condition of same would require the attention of Town Meeting. Article 13 of this Town
Meeting reflects that reality. The School Building Committee unanimously supports that Article.

At the same time, we recognize the dilemma of having to infuse money into a building which has

far more needs than these, and urge actions which would potentially provide the fiscal means to

address the total High School problem be moved as expeditiously as possible. The Selectmen,

relative to the landfill, have some Articles which could do so and we urge your support of these

as well.

In summary, we, in typical Reading fashion, move forward sometimes slowly, always

conservatively but ultimately successfully in solving the space problems of our school.

With the Town's patience and with your support, the problems will be resolved for this

Town has not in the past and will not now waiver in its commitment to providing a superior

education to the children of Reading, all ofwhom we in Town Meeting must never forget are our

children.

Thank you Mr. Moderator.
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ARTICLE 2 - Kay E. Clark, Precinct 1, presented the following Report of Progress from the

Solid Waste Advisory Committee:

Last year, our Committee made a presentation to you on the advantages of a Pay-As-

You-Throw trash collection system for Reading. Our intention was to inform the Town on Pay-

As-You-Throw and to start the process of public input to our plans. Through letters, calls and

meetings, we did receive input from the Town. These comments and questions made it clear that

we need to discuss many of the reducing, reusing and recycling issues with the Town before our

Committee can focus on one particular program such as Pay-As-You-Throw.

During the late Summer and Fall, the Committee collected information on recycling in

Reading. You may have seen us at the election at Fall Town Meeting, or at a table at the

Atlantic. I'd like to thank everyone who participated in our survey for your help. Mostly,

recyclers answered our survey, 95%. The recyclers cited conservation of resources and concern

about the environment as primary reasons to recycle. Those who did not recycle were residents

who had no access to curbside recycling.

The Committee used the information from the survey and from public input to plan a

Reduce, Reuse and Recycle campaign with the goal of reducing solid waste and increasing

recycling in Reading. We've presented the outline of this campaign to the Selectboard, and have

received their support.

As a start, we developed the following goals for Reading to meet by the year 2000:

100% participation

25% curbside weight

50% diversion rate (by weight)

Currently, Reading's figures are at 76% participation rate (measured by the DPW by

counting recycling bins over a four week period), and 12% curbside weight (from the DPW's

weight statistics) and 21% diversion rate (our report card measure).

Over the next three years, we plan to help Reading reach these goals through education

programs, incentive programs (that's where Pay-As-You-Throw fits in), and by developing

appropriate solutions to recycling problems. A short list of some of the projects in progress for

the next few months include: Activities for Earth Week and Community Day, a State sponsored

program on earthworm composting presented to the Killam School kindergartners, and

establishing a drop-off site for recyclables for the use of apartment and condo residents.

As a reminder, if anyone wishes to "dig deeper" into a solid waste or recycling subject, a

box containing current literature is maintained in the local History Room of the public Library.

Also, our regular meetings are held the second Wednesday of every month at 7:30 p.m. at Town

Hall. We are always glad to have visitors contribute to our proceedings.

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

moved to lay Article 2 on the table.

ARTICLE 3 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was moved that Article 3 be

tabled.

81 .



Town Meeting Reports

ARTICLE 4 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it was voted to amend

the FY 1997-FY 2006 Capital Improvements Program dated April 14, 1997 as provided for in

Section 7-7 of the Reading Home Rule Charter and as previously amended, as follows:

(See Chart)

ARTICLE 5 - On motion by Camille W. Anthony, Vice Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it

was moved that the Town indefinitely postponed the subject matter of Article 5.

ARTICLE 6 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it was voted to adopt

the FY 1998-FY 2007 Capital Improvements Program dated April 14, 1997 as provided for in

Section 7-7 of the Reading Home Rule Charter.

On motion by Janet Baronian, Precinct 8, to amend PW-S-03 by deleting funding until FY 1999.

Amendment did not carry.

Original motion as presented carried.

(See Chart)

ARTICLE 7 - On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

voted to authorize the Board of Selectmen to sell, or exchange, or dispose of, upon such terms

and conditions as they may determine, the following items of Town tangible property.

1982 Catch Basin Cleaner Truck Hot Top Spreader

1984 Dump Truck 1969 Sidewalk Roller

1987 Pick-up Truck 1983 Pick-up Truck

2 Snowplows 3 Police Cruisers

1984 Ford Crown Victoria (fire) +/- 10 Printers

+/- 30 Computer Monitors Mita Photocopier

3 Upright Pianos +/- 50 Student Desks

2 Sets of Wall Lockers 10 Lab Stools

2 Steel Playground Slides Floor Scrubber

+/- 100 Student Chairs 5 Push Type Mowers
2 Cafeteria Tables Small Office Desk

4 Five Drawer File Cabinets 2 Floor Buffers

Toshiba Copier +/- 5 Typewriters

Wooden Cabinets Angle Gear Cutter

3 Lathes Work Benches

Milling Machine Grinder

Bending Brake Bar Folder

Bench Grinder 1985 Ford Sedan

1990 Dodge Van-Senior Van
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ARTICLE 6

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

YEARLY TOTALS:

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

A ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

8 BETTERMENT

CO CAPITAL/DEBT EXCL. OVRD.

C SALE OF CEMETERY LOTS

D DEBT TO BE AUTHORIZED

E ENTERPRISE APPROP.

ED ENTERPRISE DEBT

G GRANT OUTSIDE FUNDING

S SALE OF REAL ESTATE

TOWN OF READING MASSACHUSETTS

TEN YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FISCAL YEARS 1998 THROUGH 2007

FY98 FY99 FYOO FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 TOTAL

17561.7 12970.3 3042.7 12313.6 6989.0 2160.7 1497.9 1870.8 31488.7 1375.6 91271.0

1147.4 967.8 831.1 748.6 492.0 801.7 701.3 889.5 713.2 556.3 7848.9

83.5 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 168.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 259.5

1500.0 1500.0

6183.0 2100.0 672.0 5450.0 172.0 172.0 30000.0 44749.0

988.8 891 .5 931.6 840.0 338.0 385.0 208.6 298.3 324.5 308.3 5514.6

7000.0 9240.0 16240.0

2159.0 7510.0 1279.0 812.0 812.0 801.0 420.0 510.0 450.0 510.0 15159.0

17561.7 12970.3 3042.7 12313.6 6989.0 2160.7 1497.9 1870.8 31488.7 1375.6 91271.0



ARTICLE 6

'ROJECT

JD-C-03

:0-C-03

•UBTOTAL

:0-P-02

:D-P-02

'.UBTOTAL

-N- -02

N- -02

N- -02

SUBTOTAL

IS - E - 0

1

SUBTOTAL

. 8 - -01

.B- -02

B- -03

'.UBTOTAL

'S-F-07

’S-F-08

'S-F-10

’S-F-11

’S-F-13

>S-F-15

’S-F-17

>S-F-18

UBTOTAL

’S-P-02

>S-P-03

’S-P-06

'S-P-07

SUBTOTAL

'W-B-02

5U-B-04

^U-B-05

TOWN OF READING MASSACHUSETTS

TEN YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FISCAL YEARS 1998 THROUGH 2007

DESCRIPTION FY98 FY99 FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 TOTAL

OPEN SP, 1REC ACQU-A 40.0 A 40.0 A 40.0 A 40.0 A 40.0 A 200.0
OPEN SP, 1REC ACOU-G 60.0 G 60.0 G 60.0 G 60.0 G 60.0 G 300.0

CONSERVATION 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 500.0

E MAIN ST PARKING-A 10.0 A 10.0

E MAIN ST PARKING-G 300.0 G 300.0

PLANNING 310.0 310.0

REPL DATA PROC EQ-A 28.0 A 50.0 A 64.0 A 50.0 A 50.0 A 50.0 A 50.0 A 50.0 A 50.0 A 50.0 A 492.0

REPL DATA PROC EQ-S 3.5 E 25.0 E 8.0 E 36.5

REPL DATA PROC EQ-W 3.5 E 25.0 E 8.0 E 36.5

FINANCE 35.0 100.0 80.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 565.0

REPL VAN ELDER SERV 52.4 A 60.8 A 113.2

HUMAN SERV. 52.4 60.8 113.2

LIBRARY COMPUTERS 25.5 A 18.9 A 49.2 A 6.0 A 6.3 A 21.0 A 5.0 A 131.9

LIBRARY CIRCULATION

LIBRARY FURNISHINGS 21.2 A 6.3 A 5.1 A 5.1 A 5.1 A 5.1 A 47.9

LIBRARY 46.7 25.2 54.3 6.0 5.1 6.3 26.1 10.1 179.8

REPLACE PUMPER 250.0 D 250.0

REPLACE AMBULANCE 102.5 A 116.0 A 218.5

REPLACE CHIEF'S VEH 26.0 A 30.0 A 56.0

REPLACE RESCUE TOOL 25.0 A 25.0

REPL BREATHING APPA 64.0 A 64.0

PURCH SKID PUMP OCO A 8.0

REPLACE FIRE HOSE 9.4 A 9.4

REHAB ENGINE 3 16.0 A 16.0

FIRE 115.0 16.0 102.5 250.0 17.4 30.0 116.0 646.9

REPLACE RADIO EQUIP

MOBILE DATA TERM

PURCH PORT RADIOS

PURCH REPEATER

35.0

7.3

12.5

A

A

A

6.1 A 6.1 A

5.0 A 5.0 A 5.0

25.0

A

A

5.0 A 5.0 A 5.0 A 5.0 A 35.0

60.0

19.5

12.5

POLICE 54.8 6.1 6.1 5.0 5.0 30.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 127.0

RECON LIB PRKG LOT 55.0 A 55.0

EQU MAI NT EXPANSION 40.0 A 500.0 D 540.0

FUEL TANK REMOVAL -D 25.0 A 25.0 A 50.0

90



ARTICLE 6

TOWN OF READING MASSACHUSETTS

TEN YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FISCAL YEARS 1998 THROUGH 2007

PROJECT DESCRIPTION FY98 FY99 FYOO FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 TOTAL

PW-B-07 MEZZANINE AT DPU GA 10.0 A 10.0

PU-B-08 ROOF REPAIRS 32.5 A 9.6 A 30.0 A 72.1

PU-B-11 TOWN FACILITY MAINT 35.0 A 55.0 A 80.0 A 35.0 A 32.0 A 55.0 A 15.0 A 50.0 A 17.0 A 30.0 A 404.0

PW-B-12 REPAIR/REPL. WINDOW 20.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 25.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 125.0

PW-B-12 WATERPROOF MASNRY T 65.0 A 65.0

PW-B-13 AIR SYS IMPROVE FIR 39.0 A 39.0

PU-B-13 AIR SYS IMPROVE TOW 83.0 A 83.0

SUBTOTAL BUILDINGS 264.5 214.6 115.0 560.0 42.0 65.0 25.0 90.0 27.0 40.0 1443.1

PW-C-07 LAUREL HILL RD REPA 10.0 A 10.0

SUBTOTAL CEMETERY 10.0 10.0

PW-E-01 REPLACE BACKHOE/LOA 29.0 A 96.6 A 121.0 A 135.0 A 135.0 A 95.0 A 611.6

PW-E-04 REPLACE DUMP TRUCKS 38.0 A 41.0 A 134.0 A 68.0 A 68.0 A 70.0 A 70.0 A 70.0 A 70.0 A 629.0

PW-E-05 REPLACE PICKUP TRUC 36.0 A 23.6 A 55.0 A 78.2 A 192.8

PW-E-07 REPLACE SIDEWALK PL 60.0 A 60.0 A 120.0

PW-E-09 VEHICLE HOT TOP SPR 30.0 A 30.0

PW-E-10 REPLACE SNOW PLOWS 12.0 A 25.0 A 13.0 A 13.0 A 15.0 A 15.0 A 15.0 A 32.0 A 140.0

PW-E-11 REPLACE MOWER 35.0 A 61.0 A 30.0 A 126.0

PW-E-12 REPLACE COMPRESSOR 15.0 A 5.0 A 12.0 A 32.0

PW-E-13 REPLACE 85 TRAILER 8.0 A 8.0

PW-E-15 REPLACE CATCH BASIN 85.0 A 85.0

PW-E-16 REPLACE SANDERS 14.0 A 14.0

PW-E-18 REPLACE SNOW BLOWER 218.8 A 218.8

PW-E-19 REPLACE BUCKET TRUC 90.0 A 90.0

PW-E-20 REPLACE CHIPPER 25.0 A 25.0

PW-E-21 REPLACE ROLLER 13.0 A 13.5 A 35.0 A 61.5

PW-E-23 REPLACE RACK/SPRAYE 70.0 A 70.0

PW-E-24 REPLACE SWEEPER 135.0 A 135.0

PW-E-25 FLEXIBLE ACCOUNT 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 10.0 A 100.0

SUBTOTAL - EQUIPMENT 319.0 269.8 268.6 164.5 164.0 386.6 323.0 320.0 293.2 180.0 2688.7

PW-F-01 SHADE TREE NURSERY 5.1 A 5.3 A 5.6 A 5.6 A 6.2 A 27.8

SUBTOTAL FORESTRY 5.1 5.3 5.6 5.6 6.2 27.8

PW-L-01 LANDFILL CLOSURE 1600.0 D 1600.0

PW-L-01 LANDFILL CLOSURE 13.0 A 4000.0 G 4013.0

PW-L-02 WASTE MATERIAL PROC 100.0 A 100.0 A 200.0

SUBTOTAL SOLID WASTE 13.0 5700.0 100.0 5813.0

PW-P-03 FIELD/COURT/PLAYGRO 12.0 A 12.0 A 12.0 A 12.0 A 5.0 A 7.0 A 7.0 A 7.0 A 7.0 A 81.0

PW-P-05 INDOOR SWIM FACILIT 500.0 D. 500.0

PW-P-05 INDOOR SWIM FACILIT 1500.0 CO 1500.0

PW-P-06 PITMAN BICYCLE PATH 250.0 G 250.0



ARTICLE 6

ROJECT

TOWN OF READING MASSACHUSETTS

TEN YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FISCAL YEARS 1998 THROUGH 2007

DESCRIPTION FY98 FY99 FYOO FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07

W-P-07 TENNIS CT STORAGE S 12.0 A

UBTOTAL PARKS 12.0 2262.0 24.0 12.0

U-R-01 RESURFACE BANCROFT 20.0 G 40.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE BRIARUOOO 25.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE FOREST

U-R-01 RESURFACE FOREST GL 20.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE GARDNER 10.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE GREEN ST 25.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE HARTSHORN 40.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE HAVEN STR 30.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE HIGHLAND 24.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE IDE ST 10.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE JOHN ST 30.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE OAKLAND R 15.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE PLEASANT 25.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE RUSTIC LA 35.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE UASHINGTO 20.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE UILLOU ST 48.0 G

U-R-01 RESURFACE WILSON ST

U-R-02 RECON ASH ST 84.0 G

U-R-02 RECON BEAR HILL RD

U-R-02 RECON BERKELEY ST 155.0 G

U-R-02 RECON CHAPIN AVE

U-R-02 RECON EATON ST 204.0 G

U-R-02 RECON GOULD ST

U-R-02 RECON GREEN (ASH-MN

U-R-02 RECON HOWARD ST

U-R-02 RECON KING ST

U-R-02 RECON PENNSYLVANIA

W-R-02 RECON SHORT/MILL ST 190.0 G

U-R-02 RECON SUMMER MN-UES 175.0 G 225.0 G 100.0 G 280.0 G

U-R-02 RECON UNDESIGNATED

U-R-03 GEN DRAINAGE IMPROV 15.0 A 15.0 A 15.0 A 15.0 A

W-R-03 IMPROVE DRAINAGE AB

U-R-03 SAUGUS RIVER BASIN 733.0 D

U-R-04 STREET ACCEPTANCES 1.0 B 1.0 B 1.0 B 1.0 B

U-R-05 SIDEUALK+CURB CONST 50.0 A 60.0 A 70.0 A 80.0 A

U-R-09 AERIAL TOPOGRAPHIC 50.0 A

U-R-12 WEST ST CORRIDOR IM 1410.0 G

U-R-13 TRAFFIC SIG. OPT. S 29.4 A

W-R-15 DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMEN 1500.0 G 800.0 G 300.0 G

U-R-17 RECONSTRUCT WALKERS 1250.0 G

UBTOTAL ROAD/STREET 2737.4 3276.0 1365.0 848.0

12.0

5.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 2343.0

60.0

25.0

100.0

G 100.0

20.0

10.0

25.0

40.0

30.0

24.0

10.0

30.0

15.0

25.0

35.0

20.0

48.0

25.0 A 25.0

84.0

145.0 G 145.0

155.0

96.0 G 96.0

204.0

67.0 G 67.0

20.0 G 20.0

100.0 G 260.0 G 360.0

96.0 G 96.0

160.0

G 160.0

190.0

225.0 G 1005.0

450.0

G 450.0 G 450.0 G 1350.0

15.0 A 15.0 A 15.0 A 15.0 A 15.0 A 15.0 A 150.0

733.0

1.0

B 1.0 B 168.0 B 1.0 B 1.0 B 1.0 8 177.0

80.0 A 80.0 A 80.0 A 90.0 A 100.0 A 110.0 A 800.0

50.0

1410.0

29.4

300.0 G 300.0 G 3200.0

1250.0

829.0 837.0 683.0 556.0 566.0 576.0 12273.4

•D-B-01 RMHS IMMEDIATE REPA 1850.0 D 1850.0

.D-B-08 BOILER/BURNER REPLA 172.0 D 172.0 D 172.0 D 516.0

.D-B-09 OIL TANK REMOVAL 40.0 A 40.0 A 40.0 A 60.0 A 180.0

>0-8-12 RENOVATE COOLIDGE M 3000.0 D 3000.0

JD-B- 14 NEW OR RENOV RMHS 40.0 A 30000. D 30040.0
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ARTICLE 6

TOWN OF READING MASSACHUSETTS

TEN YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FISCAL YEARS 1998 THROUGH 2007

PROJECT DESCRIPTION FY98 FY99 FYOO FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 TOTAL

SD-B-15 RENOV KILLAM, BARRO 5200.0 D 5200.0

SD-B-16 UPDATE BIRCH MEADOW 600.0 D 600.0

SUBTOTAL SCHOOLS BUILD 5490.0 40.0 212.0 5200.0 172.0 40.0 232.0 30000. 41386.0

SO-E-OI CLASSROOM TECHNOLOG 100.0 A 100.0 A 100.0 A 100.0 A 100.0 A 100.0 A 100.0 A 100.0 A 100.0 A 100.0 A 1000.0

50-E-03 VEHICLE REPLACEMENT 20.0 A 20.0 A 20.0 A 20.0 A 80.0

SUBTOTAL SCHOOLS EQUIP 100.0 120.0 100.0 120.0 100.0 100.0 120.0 120.0 100.0 100.0 1080.0

>W-S-01 INFLOW AND INFILTRA 115.0 E 155.4 E 270.4

>W-S-02 SEWER MAIN HIGH ST 47.6 E 47.6

>U-S-02 SEWER MAIN REPL-PLE 31.0 E 31.0
5W-S-02 SEWER MAIN SWEETSER 16.1 E 16.1

’W-S-03 SEWER MAIN - MILL&S 82.5 B 82.5

>W-S-03 SEWER MAIN MILL&SHO 192.8 E 192.8

’W-S-04 VEHICLE REPLACEMENT 65.0 E 65.0 E 65.0 E 195.0

>W-S-06 SEWER LIFT STATIONS 30.0 E 30.0 E 30.0 E 90.0

SUBTOTAL SEWER 390.3 171.5 173.6 65.0 30.0 65.0 30.0 925.4

5W-W-02 CARBON FOR FILTERS 193.2 E 193.2

PU-W-02 FLUORIDE ANALYZER R 6.0 E 6.0
3W-W-02 HIGH SERVICE PUMP 15.1 E 15.1

JW-W-02 LAB AUTOCLAVE REPLA 8.6 E 8.6

PW-W-02 LAB INCUBATOR REPLA 7.0 E 7.0

OW-W-02 LAB SPECTROPHOTOMET 7.0 E 7.0

PW-W-02 WATER TRTMT . PLANT 75.0 E 9240.0 ED 9315.0

OW-W-03 VEHICLE REPLACEMENT 29.0 E 65.0 E 26.0 E 64.0 E 26.0 E 26.0 E 33.3 E 85.0 E 26.6 E 380.9

PW-W-05 REVAY WELL PUMP & E 12.0 E 12.0

t>W-W-05 WELL EXPLOR. AND DE 129.0 E 129.0

PW-W-05 WELL POWER SUPPLY R 18.0 E 18.0

°W-W-07 STORAGE TANK REPAIR 300.0 E 435.0 E 8.3 E 8.5 E 8.7 E 9.1 E 9.5 E 9.7 E 788.8

PW-W-08 WATER MAIN - CAUSEW 32.0 E 32.0

PW-W-08 WATER MAIN - KING.P 5.0 E 5.0

PW-W-08 WATER MAIN - MAIN/A 245.0 E 245.0

PW-W-08 WATER MAIN - WAKE FI 40.0 E 40.0 E 80.0

PW-W-08 WATER MAIN - WALKER 164.9 E 164.9

PW-W-08 WATER MAIN - WAVERL 8.4 E 8.4

PW-W-08 WATER MAIN LINING 200.0 E 200.0 E 200.0 E 200.0 E 200.0 E 200.0 E 200.0 E 200.0 E 1600.0

PW-W-08 WATER SUPPLY PROTEC 153.0 E 95.0 E 124.6 E 249.1 E 81.2 E 119.9 E 822.8

SUBTOTAL WATER 674.0 670.0 742.0 10015. 338.0 355.0 208.6 233.3 294.5 308.3 13838.7

LD- -02 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 7000.0 ED

SUBTOTAL LIGHT DEPT 7000.0

7000.0

7000.0
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ARTICLE 8 - On motion by Camille W. Anthony, Vice Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it

was voted to amend one or more of the votes taken under Article 17 of the Warrant of the

Annual Town Meeting of April 8, 1996, as amended under Article 5 of the Warrant of the

Special Town Meeting of September 9, 1996 as amended under Article 6 of the Warrant of

Special Town Meeting of November 12, 1996, relating to the Fiscal Year 1997 Municipal

Budget as follows, and that the sum of $25,000 be appropriated from the donation by OSCO for

Line K46, and that the sum of $410,590 be appropriated from Certified Free Cash to provide for

the remaining general fund net change.

ARTICLE 9 - On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

moved that the subject matter of Article 9 be tabled until the beginning of the Annual Town
Meeting session of April 28, 1997.

ARTICLE 10 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it was moved that the

subject matter of Article 10 be tabled until the beginning of the Annual Town Meeting session of

April 28, 1997.

ARTICLE 11 - On motion by Susan C. Cavicchi, Precinct 5, it was voted that the Town raise

by borrowing under Chapter 44, Section 7 (3A) of the General Laws, Chapter 645 of the Acts of

1948 as amended, or any other enabling authority the sum of $350,000 for the purpose of

remodeling, reconstructing, and making extraordinary repairs to the Joshua Eaton School on

Summer Avenue, including the costs of original furnishings and equipment, engineering and

architectural fees, inspection fees, relocation costs, contingencies, and related expenses

incidental thereto and necessary in connection therewith, said sum to be expended by and under

the direction of the School Committee; and to vote to authorized the School Committee to file

applications for a grant or grants to be used to defray all or any part of the cost of said

renovations and related matters, and to vote to authorize the School Committee to enter into all

contracts and agreements as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this vote.

2/3 vote required

138 voted in the affirmative

4 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 12 - On motion by Susan C. Cavicchi, Precinct 5, it was voted that the Town raise by

borrowing under Chapter 44, Section 7 (3A) under the General Laws, Chapter 645 of the Acts of

1948 as amended, or any other enabling authority the sum of $600,000 for the purpose of

remodeling, reconstructing and making extraordinary repairs to the Birch Meadow School on

Arthur B. Lord Drive, including the costs of original furnishings and equipment, engineering and

architectural fees, inspection fees, relocation costs, contingencies, and related expenses

incidental thereto and necessary in connection therewith, said sum to be expended by and under

the direction of the School Committee; and to vote to authorize the School Committee to file

applications for a grant or grants to be used to defray all or any part of the cost of said

renovations and related matters, and to vote to authorize the School Committee to enter into all

contracts and agreements as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this vote.
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On motion by Stephen M. Conner, Precinct 4, to move the question:

2/3 vote required

104 voted in the affirmative

22 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried.

2/3 vote required

134 voted in the affirmative

1 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 13 - On motion by Susan C. Cavicchi, Precinct 5, it was voted that the Town raise

by borrowing under Chapter 44, Section 7 (3 A) under the General Laws, Chapter 645 of the Acts

of 1948 as amended, or any other enabling authority the sum of $1,850,000 for the purpose of

remodeling, reconstructing, and making extraordinary repairs to the Reading Memorial High

School on Oakland Road, including the costs of original furnishings and equipment, engineering

and architectural fees, inspection fees, relocation costs, contingencies, and related expenses

incidental thereto and necessary in connection therewith, said sum to be expended by and under

the direction of the School Committee; and to vote to authorize the School Committee to file

applications for a grant or grants to be used to defray all or any part of the cost of said

renovations and related matters, and to vote to authorize the School Committee to enter into all

contracts and agreements as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this vote.

2/3 vote required

1 10 voted in the affirmative

15 voted in the negative

On motion by Michael F. Slezak, Precinct 6, it was voted that this Annual Town Meeting stand

adjourned to meet at 7:30 p.m. at the Reading Memorial High School, Thursday, April 17, 1997.

ADJOURNED ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
April 17, 1997

The Moderator, Alan E. Foulds, discussed the several Articles concerning the building of

a new Police Station. Three deal with independent proposals.

Article 14 calls for the building at the current site.

Article 16 calls for the one near the High School.

Article 17 calls for one at Union Street.

Four other Articles deal with technical matters concerning the siting. Each plan has its

proponents and you will hear from all of them. In order for Town Meeting to be fully informed

before any vote is taken, the Chair will allow the following scenario to take place:
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Article 14 will be moved and seconded.

The movers of Article 14 will be allowed to make a presentation.

Before any further discussion takes place, the proponents of Article 16 will

be allowed to make a presentation, followed by a presentation on Article 17.

We will then open debate on Article 14 but debate will be allowed on all three

proposals.

We will then vote on Article 14, followed by any discussions and votes that are

appropriate.

Town Counsel, Ted Cohen, explained the ramifications of each vote.

Ifwe reach Article 22 (the Budget), there will be a motion to table it.

It has been the custom to avoid Town Meetings during the vacation week when

we have Patriots Day as well as Passover. If there is no objection after tonight's

meeting, there will be a motion to adjourn until Monday, April 28.

ARTICLE 14 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the

Town authorize the Board of Selectmen to acquire all or any part of the following described

parcel of land in fee or rights of easement therein by eminent domain under the provisions of

Chapter 79 of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or to acquire said

parcel of land or any part thereof in fee or rights of easement therein by gift, purchase, or

otherwise, for general municipal purposes including the construction of a police station and uses

accessory thereto and public parking; and that the Town will raise by borrowing under Chapter

44, Section 7 (3) or any other enabling authority the sum of One Hundred Seventy-five dollars

($175,000) and appropriate said sum to be expended under the direction of the Board of

Selectmen for the acquisition of said parcel of land, and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to

enter into all contract and agreements necessary to carry out the purposes of this article, and to

file applications for a grant or grants to be used to defray all or any parts of said land acquisition,

and to do all other acts and things necessary and proper for carrying out the purposes of this vote.

Description: The land commonly known as 16 Parker Street shown on Board of Assessors'

Revised January 1, 1977 Map 65 as Lot 08 consisting of 7, 145 square feet of land, more or less,

and being the land described at the Middlesex South District Registry of Deeds in Book 13836,

Page 604, currently believed to be owned by David J. and Constance M. Russell.

William T. Bogaert, Precinct 3, presented the following report in support of Article 17:

Anyone who has seriously considered the issue and toured the existing Police Station

must recognize that the current Police Station facility does a disservice to the Town of Reading

and its Police Department.
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TOWN NEEDS A STATION NOW/THERE ARE NO PERFECT SITES:

Clearly, the Town of Reading needs a larger, more efficient and updated facility to serve

the Town not only for the present but for the next fifty years. How that is to be accomplished

and where the Police Station is to be located has been examined and considered by Town
officials and citizens for well over two years. The reality of the situation is that there are not

very many places where the Police Station that the Town needs can be built. I can assure you, as

someone who has been actively involved in the process since early 1995, that the reason no

additional sites have been uncovered is not from a lack of effort or imagination on those who
have thought about the issue. All possible sites for the location of the Police Station have been

whinnied down to the sites represented by the Articles presented this evening. None of the sites

presented are perfect. There are advantages and disadvantages to each site.

This Town Meeting should not delay in choosing one of these sites on the hope that a

more perfect site will be discovered tomorrow. This is particularly true since delay is costly.

When the construction of the Police Station was added to the long term capital plan of the Town,

the projected cost of the construction of the new Police Station was roughly $3,500,000.00.

Today, the estimates are approximately $500,000.00 higher. The cost of the construction will

only go up. The Town and the Police Department have waited long enough to have the Police

Station facility that we desperately need. We can and should make the decision tonight on that

fact the proponents of Articles 14, 16 and 17 wholeheartedly agree that a new Police Station is

necessary.

ISSUE IS NOT IF BUT WHERE:

Where is that Station to be built? In reaching this decision. Town Meeting must have as

its overriding objective which of the proposed sites will allow the most efficient, cost-effective

site for the Station for the Town's public safety needs, not only next year but 10, 20 or 30 years

from now. By that, I mean which of the proposed sites provides the space for the construction of

a facility which will allow the Police to do the many jobs that they are asked to do by this

community in an efficient, cost-effective and professional manner. That should be the overriding

concern for this committee. Why is this the criteria? Because as the Finance Committee has

reported, the cost differential amongst the sites is negligible, and the Police Department and the

Board of Selectmen agree that the Police Station program will have negligible impact on any

neighborhood.

If Town Meeting recognizes that a new Police Station is needed to adequately serve the

public, and agrees that there is no significant cost difference between the possible sites for the

Police Station, the primary criteria that Town Meeting should consider in making this decision is

which of the proposed sites best suits the operational efficiency of the Reading Police

Department. In this regard, the three sites presented are not created equal.

CRITERIA FOR THE PROJECT SET BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN:

The Board of Selectmen have noted that "the major need is adequate space to house the

functions, adequate parking for the staff and the public using the building, and vehicular access

to the main thoroughfares in Town." (Page 258 of the green pages of the report of the Warrant.)
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The criteria which the Selectmen have set for the site of such a Police facility are also found on

that same page. The criteria established by the Selectmen were as follows:

Affordable within the constraints of the present budget;

Must contain a minimum of 30,000 square feet;

Publicly owned or purchasable in a friendly agreement;

Be available in the time frame of this budget cycle;

Meet the program needs;

Have a minimal adverse on property taxes;

Have no environmental or other impediments.

It is important to note that the Selectmen in setting these criteria properly focused on the

needs of the Town and the purposes to be served by the Police Station.

PROBLEMS WITH SITES PROPOSED BY ARTICLE 14 :

The site is too small -- When first asked about the option of purchasing the property to

the rear of the Station in November of 1995, Mr. Ferro stated that the site was "too small."

Mr. Ferro was right then and he is right now -- The site proposed by Article 14 fails to

meet the criteria that the Board of Selectmen set for the Station. The Board of Selectmen’s

criteria required a minimum of 30,000 square feet for the Police Station. The site proposed by

Article 14 falls far short of the 30,000 square foot requirement even without consideration of the

space occupied by the Senior Center located in the Old Fire House. The Pleasant Street site is

too small.

COSTS OF THE RENOVATION ARE UNCERTAIN:

Notwithstanding that the cost of all sites is comparable there is greater certainty in the

budgeting process for the construction of a new site. As we have already seen at this Town
Meeting, the rehabilitation of older buildings within the Town often encounter unexpected and

expensive surprises which require reconstruction adjustments of the budget and/or scaling back

of the design program in order to make the project stay within budget.

THERE WILL BE UNNECESSARY SIGNIFICANT SHORT-TERM DISRUPTION
OF THE POLICE STATION AND THE SENIOR CENTER:

The proposed expansion of the existing Police Station is also the worse for the short-term

and long-term operation of the Police Department. Short term safety of the Town may be

adversely affected during the anticipated eighteen month construction period as the Police

attempt to serve the Town while operating in the middle of a construction site. It was anticipated

by Mr. Ferro that the rehabilitation of the existing Police Station would leave the Police

Department without cells for approximately six months and within the Selectmen's

recommendation there is a provision for the rental of temporary cells.
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While the cost of the temporary cells is disclosed in the Selectmen's Report, their location

is not. It is unlikely that there will be space on the existing site during construction for the

temporary cell blocks, the construction vehicles, the Police vehicles, much less the personal

vehicles of the Police Department personnel and the construction personnel, and those

individuals having the courage to attempt to use the Senior Center in the midst of the

construction.

There vydU be disruption of Police operations during the eighteen month construction

period. Even the Police Chief is unable to estimate what additional costs are going to be

incurred. You can be assured that there will be additional operational costs. These would be

avoided if a new station was built on another site.

It is for this reason that the Board of Selectmen at their public meeting held on the siting

of the Police Station in December of 1996 stated of all sites then being considered for the

Station, the site they now propose is the worst of all sites being considered in terms of

operational disruption of the Reading Police Department during construction. The assessment by

the Board of Selectmen in December of 1996 is still true today. The construction of a new
Police Station allows the Police to continue to provide service to the Town from the present site

without the impediments of construction.

WORST OPERATIONAL DESIGN:

The Selectmen also ranked the expansion suggested by Article 14 down Parker Street as

the worst site, the best operational design for a Police Station and this, of course, is as true today

as it was in December. The rehabilitation of the existing structure requires that the Police Station

function fit the existing building and site configuration.

New construction, assuming adequate size, is the exact opposite. The building is

designed to fit the needed Police functions. Construction of a new Police Station on the existing

site forces the new Station to adjust to the limitations and confines of the existing building.

It cannot be disputed that the construction of a new Station would allow for the most

efficient operational design, allow the construction to utilize the most energy and cost-efficient

construction materials and techniques. The needs of the Police Station should determine the

building design and not the reverse.

THE ARTICLE FAILS TO MEANINGFULLY ADDRESS THE
PROBLEMS OF PARKING AND CONGESTION:

The construction of a larger Police Station on the site proposed in the Selectmen's Article

condemns that portion of the Town Center, and the adjacent neighborhood to congestion and

inadequate parking for the businesses, residences and services located there.

The neighborhood was pleased to welcome the Senior Center which is a marvelous

public building serving many important civic purposes. However, the Center has a significant

drawback which is obvious to anyone who has been there - there is no place to park. Seniors

visiting the Center are forced to park on both sides of Parker and Pleasant Street in order to use

the Center, reducing those streets to one lane travel, increasing congestion and jeopardizing

pedestrian and vehicular safety.
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The expansion of the Police Station proposed by the Selectmen insures that not only will

the Senior Center never have adequate adjacent parking for the people who use that building, but

does nothing to alleviate the parking problems faced in that area.

NEIGHBORHOOD VIEWS:

Finally, I would be remiss as a Precinct 3 Town Meeting Member if I did not inform

Town Meeting that the neighbors to the existing Police Station overwhelmingly oppose Article

14. The Pleasant Street, Haven Street, Parker Street neighborhood is one of the oldest

neighborhoods in Town. As a result, the properties are small, 4,000+ to 10,000+ square feet and

the houses are close together. The people in the neighborhood believe that it will fundamentally

change the character of the neighborhood to take and demolish one of our neighbor's homes and

replace it with brick and concrete.

NEIGHBORHOOD VIEW IS NOT NIMBY:

However, neighborhood opposition to the expansion of the Station should not be

misinterpreted by Town Meeting to be a "not in my backyard" response. In fact. Article 17

which proposes the Union/Middle Street parking lot and adjacent property as an alternative site,

is only one block away from the current Police Station. Many of the same neighboring residents

have joined me in support of the Union Street site which is still located in our neighborhood one

block away from the existing Station but which significantly does not require that a

neighborhood home be taken and turned into an office building and/or parking lot.

CURRENT STATUS OF UNION STREET

HISTORY

In 1996, the Police Station Building Committee, faced with uncertainty about the

ownership of the land and the reluctance of the School Committee to release the land on Oakland

Road, and informed of the Selectmen's desire that the Police Station stay Downtown, looked at

alternative sites and ultimately proposed in early 1996 that the Town consider a conversion of

the municipal parking lot at the intersection of Union and Middle Streets together with one or

possibly two adjacent privately held parcels be used for the construction of a new Police Station.

The Police Station Building Committee presented the plan to the architect designed to

prepare the building program - Max Ferro of the Preservation Partnership. Mr. Ferro stated in

his letter to Lt. Silva as Chairman of the Reading Police Station Building Committee of May 9,

1996 that he found the Union and Middle Street scheme "totally praiseworthy and innovative

which seems to have all that the Town would need, an all new, very efficient building which

might be able to satisfy us with less space than initially considered."

In addition, the architect retained by the Town for the Police Station project found, in his

own words, some truly compelling advantages in the Union Street site. These included the fact

that the rehabilitation option of the existing Police Station would leave the Police Department for

about six months without cells and disrupted through nine months of construction, whereas the
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construction of the new Station on Union Street would eliminate all disruption and give the

Town a new Police Station ready to move in on the appointed day.

Another factor cited by Mr. Ferro was that the site would be flat posing none of the

problems inherent in the very steep grade behind the existing Police Station. Mr. Ferro,

therefore, recommended that the Town pursue acquisition of the lots necessary to construct the

Station at Union and Middle Streets.

Subsequently, the Town entered into negotiations with the Board of Realtors for their lot.

Appraisals were conducted by both sides. The Realtors' appraisal listed the value of the building

at $250,000, and stated a willingness to sell the property for the appraised value plus a relocation

expense of approximately $30,000. The Town's appraisal of the property was $170,000 and the

Town counter-offered at $200,000. There were no further negotiations between the Town and

the Board of Realtors regarding the straight purchase of the Realtors' property. The Town and

the Realtors did attempt to negotiate a swap of the existing Police Station, or a portion thereof,

for the Realtors land; however, those negotiations proved unfruitful, and the Selectmen turned

their attention back to expansion of the existing Police Station on the Parker Street site.

UNION STREET ALTERNATIVE ARTICLE 17:

Because I and others believed that the proposed site was inadequate for the Station, and

because I and others believed that the possibility of a sale existed with the Board of Realtors,

albeit at a price higher than what the Selectmen were willing to recommend, we drafted Article

17 which would instruct the Board of Selectmen to negotiate in good faith for the acquisition of

the Board of Realtors' property. At the time our petition was prepared, the Union Street site

appeared to be the only feasible site for the construction of the Police Station. Two significant

events have occurred since then.

First, we have learned from Town Counsel during the week before Town Meeting that

the Oakland Road property is in fact owned by the Town and not the School Committee. At the

time the Union Street Article was prepared, it was the petitioner's understanding that Oakland

Road was not available as a site because it was in the School Department's possession.

The second significant factor is that the Realtors, through their counsel and through the

President of their Board, has unanimously stated that they are not interested in selling their

property.

I am sorry to report that the only way the Union Street lot could be acquired for the

Police Station is through hostile eminent domain taking. While I recognize that there is a value

to having municipal buildings in the center of the Town to enhance the sense of the Town's

community, ultimately the Town is best served, in my opinion, by having a building which best

serves its intended function.

I urge all Town Members, after hearing discussion of all possible sites, to support the best

site available to Town Meeting for the location of the Police Station that this Town desperately

needs.
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William F. Lavoie, Police Station Building Committee, presented the following report:

Good evening Ladies and Gentlemen.

I will be your spokesperson for the Police Station Building Committee this evening.

The current Police Station was built in 1930 with a total of 5,000 square feet of floor

space and housed 14 sworn Officers and served a population of 9,000 people. Eighteen years

ago, 3,000 square feet was added making it a total of 8,000 square feet and to date we have 40

sworn Officers, 10 Dispatchers, and 3 civilians for a total of 53 people serving a population of

22,500. The Architect hired by the Town says we need 19,200 square feet to effectively and

efficiently serve the public. We come up short some 1 1,200 square feet. There are health issues,

safety issues and an overall lack of adequate storage and fail to meet the Americans with

Disabilities Act standards.

The Committee was created just over two years ago, and over that time we have reviewed

seven different sites. For many different reasons, one site after another dropped from

consideration. Last year, we gave the Selectmen an Annual Report listing in order of preference

the few remaining sites. Even though Oakland Road met all of our criteria, it was not available.

Our recommendation was the Union Street parking lot.

At our last meeting on April 15, 1997, new information arose and we voted 6-1-1 to

recommend the Oakland Road site. This is the same recommendation we made to Town
Meeting a year and a half ago. In addition to meeting our criteria, we feel that Oakland Road

will provide for future expansion, create the least amount of disruption of the 24 hour day-to-day

Police operations, and will have the best chance to remain on budget. The Committee's major

concern is that the cost and stability of the site does not compromise the integrity of the building.

Debbie Hartman-McCulley, Executive Director of the Reading Chamber of Commerce,

presented the following report:

Reading Chamber of Commerce met on February 7, 12 and March 12, 1997.

The Police Station relocation was discussed and membership voted 22-1 "for" remaining

neutral on a site preference. One voter was opposed.

The only issue Reading Chamber of Commerce has is to retain 29+ public parking spaces

for the Downtown businesses and renovation enhancement.

The Selectmen assured the Chamber that no matter which Downtown site was selected,

the Town would provide at least 29 public parking spaces for local business shoppers.

Frederick Van Magness, Precinct 8, presented the following report:

Two Key Actions

Select Site... cannot delay decision

Make best decision possible

Project Cost.. .Renovation vs. New Construction

Police Operations. ..minimize disruptions

Provide best benefit to community
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Renovation VERY costly. ..hard to estimate

Look @ Reading data

Joshua Eaton

1 5% Overruns

Birch Meadow
Parker too costly to renovate

Alternate architects quote renovation more costly than new construction

Unknowns. ..what you can't see can cause project execution issues. ..drive

additional funding

Parker Street vs. Union Street Swap

Extra Cost Comparisons

Parker Street

- Buy Site $175K
Union Street Swan
- Cash Payment $3OK

- Demolish 15K - Temp. Space 25K
- Police Moves 20K - Demo. Annex 15K
- Rent Cells 160K - Demo. Union 15K
- Police OT 15K - Remove Cells 15K
- Rent Space

TOTAL COSTS
25K

$4I0K TOTAL COSTS $100K

Why spend over $300,000 more for an inferior site???

Site Considerations

Parker St. Union St. Oakland Rd.

Lot Size sq. ft

Parking

Availability

Site Prep.

19700

Limited

Buy Site

Demolition

24100

Better

Buy Site

Demolition

60000 +/-

Unlimited

Own Site

Grade Only

Committee architect criteria...

Site must be at least 30,000 sq. ft. but 1 1/2-2 acres desirable for long term

expansion

Town owned would avoid cost inflation of acquisition

Police Operations

Parker Street

- Relocation, rentals, off-site prisoners, OT
- Could add $175,000 to $200,000 to cost with NO RETURN TO READING or

POLICE
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Union Street

- Disruptions non-existent

Oakland Road
- Disruptions non-existent

Site Priorities

Oakland Road is most desirable

- Always passed over because of ownership issue

- Now this is put to bed...Town owns site

Union Street is next best fit

- Avoids renovation issues

- But site not available

Parker Street is LEAST desirable ....

PLEASE, don't think it is the ONLY solution !!!

Benefits to Reading

Existing Station Re-use

- Demolish for Senior Center Parking ???

- Major flaw in Senior Center is NO PARKING
- Also add parking for Reading Center Business!!!

- Possible sale revenue

Minimizes adverse NIMBY issues

- Will always be in someone's area but Oakland Road is a lower residential

density area

Remember
Police is the last major Department to get updated

- Built NEW Fire... not renovated!!!

- Built NEW DPW. . . not renovated ! !

!

Why do some want to renovate on a sub-standard site with limited parking ...

And no future expansion options???

This decision will likely last 50 years... reason why we must make the BEST
decision.

We can decide TONIGHT !!!

Summary
Oakland Road is BEST FIT ! !

!

- Avoids construction uncertainty of renovation

- Site exceeds space criteria by architect

- Significant parking. ..good snow removal

- Land is available without purchase

- Why not put this money into a first class Station

- Space for expansion

- Doesn't Police Department deserve the "Best" ??
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Provides Optimum Value for our TAX Dollars

John H. Russell, Precinct 8, presented the following Report of Progress:

The Downtown Steering Committee sent a letter to the Board of Selectmen last

November expressing its feeling that the new Police Station should be located in the Downtown
area and, of the two Downtown locations being considered, it feels that the Union Street site

offers more opportunities for increased parking and controlled development. This view was

confirmed at the DSC meeting last evening.

Content of November 25, 1996 letter to Board of Selectmen read:

"At the most recent meeting of the Downtown Steering Committee, Peter Hechenbleikner

reported to attendees on the current status of the Police Station site selection and building

options. After some discussion, the Committee voted to take the following position with respect

to the Police Station:

1. The Downtown Steering Committee is in agreement with your decision to

keep the Police Station in the Downtown.

2. In keeping with the 1991 Master Plan, the Committee sees more opportunities

with relocating the Police Station on the proposed Union Street site."

In summary, the DSC recommends Article 17 is in favor of Article 14 (if Article 17 is

defeated), and is against Article 16.

James Murray, Senior Architect, discussed a number of issues.

On motion by Michael F. Slezak, Precinct 6, to move the question.

2/3 vote required

85 voted in the affirmative

66 voted in the negative

Motion to move the questions did not carry.

On motion by Jacqueline S. Chapman, Precinct 6, it was moved to table Article 14.

On motion by George A. Theophanis, Precinct 4, to adjourn Town Meeting to April 28, 1997.

Motion did not carry.

On motion by Margaret W. Russell, Precinct 8, it was voted to take Article 16 out of order.

ARTICLE 16 - On motion by William C. Brown, Precinct 8, it was voted that the following

described property be transferred from the care, custody, management and control of the School

Committee and/or the Board of Selectmen to the Board of Selectmen for use as a Police Station

and uses accessory thereto and parking:
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The land shown on Assessors Plat 123, Lots 16 to 32, 34, 48, 49, 62, 139 and those

portions of Cold Spring Road, Tower Road, Chestnut Street and Grandview Road

that fall within the bounds of said lots.

On motion by Michael F. Slezak, Precinct 6, to move the question.

2/3 vote required

101 voted in the affirmative

44 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried.

2/3 vote required

106 voted in the affirmative

38 voted in the negative

On motion by Daniel Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, to remove Article 3 from the table.

Motion carried.

ARTICLE 3 - On motion by Daniel Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it was voted to instruct the

Board of Selectmen to call a Special Town Meeting within the Annual Town Meeting to present

Articles to resolve the Police Station siting issue, including Articles to support the acquisition by

eminent domain of the Eastern Middlesex property.

2/3 vote required

140 voted in the affirmative

9 voted in the negative

On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that this Annual Town
Meeting stand adjourned to meet at 7:30 p.m. at the Reading Memorial High School, Monday,

April 28, 1997.

ADJOURNED ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
April 28, 1997

There has been a declaration of intent for a motion for reconsideration of Article 16. It is

the understanding of the Chair that this was done only to give this body the option of returning to

it if all other options fail. It will be the policy of this Moderator to ask the mover of

reconsideration for confirmation of a vote on the prevailing side. Due to the fact that the mover

of reconsideration of Article 16 was not on the prevailing side, reconsideration will not be

considered.
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ARTICLE 3 - On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was
moved to place Article 3 on the table.

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it moved to remove
Article 2 from the table.

ARTICLE 2 - Donald S. Leighton presented the following CPDC Report of Progress:

Downtown Streetscape Project

Information Presentation

I. Introduction:

Donald S. Leighton, Vice President, Gates, Leighton & Associates, Inc.

Gates, Leighton & Associates, Inc. - Landscape Architect and Lead Designer

responsible for project.

BETA Engineering - Providing Traffic and Civil Engineering services.

GLA has provided streetscape services in Wellesley, North Attleborough, and

Brookline

GLA is currently working in both Ipswich and Uxbridge with BETA to develop

plans for pedestrian and bike connection including bridges.

Description of Reading Streetscape Project:

Working closely with Jonathan Edwards, GLA and BETA are concentrating our efforts

in the triangular shape area bordered by Woburn Street to the north and west. Main

Street to the east, and Washington Street and High Street to the south.

This area includes the Haven Street commercial area, the lower Main Street commercial

area, and the commercial area of Main Street surrounding the common.

Also part of the project is the Town Common, the municipal lot behind CVS, and the

municipal lot behind the Atlantic Supermarket.

Items of study include: Improvements to traffic circulation, including better connections

between the Main Street and Haven Street commercial areas; improved pedestrian safety

and circulation; develop a character for the Downtown area by using street trees, benches,

trash receptacles and other amenitie, all while not reducing the number of parking spaces.

With these improvements, we hope to enhance the Downtown area, revitalize existing

businesses and attract new businesses.

Signage within the Downtown area will also be studied to determine the best and most

efficient way to give the information required without cluttering the area with signs.

This effort will be coordinated with the economic facilitator.

HI. Project Status:

This first phase of work concentrated on gathering information.

This information consisted of traffic volumes and turning movements.

Reviewing existing traffic information from the town.
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Reviewing existing projects within the project area.

Reviewing existing information regarding the history of Reading and the Downtown are

including reviewing Atwood End and other old photos.

Familiarizing ourselves with the Downtown area, and photographically documenting the

Downtown.

Prepared plans and sketches to go with grant application package, put together by Jonathan

Edwards, to seek funding for municipal parking lot improvements including the Town Hall

parking lot.

Preparation of plans and renderings for the all day "Third Step" meeting.

Attend "Third Step" meeting to illicit comments and response from the public.

Based on comments, revise designs and develop new designs.

Working with the Steering Committee, we are currently starting to narrow the range options

for making improvements to the Downtown area.

As part of this effort, we have met with numerous Downtown business owners and other

groups and organizations. They include: Staff Parking and Transportation Task Force,

Arnold Ruben of the Atlantic Supermarket, the Tamboneys, the Bandstand Committee and

the Postmaster.

We will be meeting with Alan Bissitte of Johnson Hardware, representatives from Mass.

Bank, Sid Hobson, the Historic Commission and the Community Planning and Development

Commission.

IV. Continuation of Project:

Continued to work with the Steering Committee to refine design ideas and narrow

solutions down to one general solution with a few options to specific areas.

Prepare for a "Fourth Step" meeting where this solution is presented as well as

discussions of amenities will take place.

This "Fourth Step" meeting may be in conjunction with the economic facilitator.

Present solution with range of options specific sites to Board of Selectmen for their

approval.

Prepare preliminary design plans for review by Mass Highway.

Determine different funding sources and seek moneys for different aspects of the

proposed project. Bring preliminary drawings to the final design stage.

V . In Closing

We are at the stage where input from as many people as possible is very important.

We invite everyone to attend the Steering Committee meeting where discussions of

options will take place.

The next meetings are: April 30^ at 7:30, May 7^ at 7:30, May 21 st at 7:30.

ARTICLE 9 - On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, to move
that the Town vote to approve an amendment to the Administrative Code pursuant to Section 6-1

of the Reading Home Rule Charter.

(See proposed Organizational Chart.)
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On motion by Gerald L. MacDonald, Precinct 3, it was voted to move the question

2/3 vote required

1 16 voted in the affirmative

33 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried.

The motion under Article 9 was voted in the negative.

ARTICLE 10 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the

Town authorize the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Reading to convey all or any part of the

following described property, with the buildings thereon, commonly known as the Town of

Reading landfill and that the minimum amount of eighty percent (80%) of MAI appraised value

be paid for such conveyance; to authorize the Board of Selectmen to convey all or any part of

said property for such amount or a larger amount, and upon such other terms and conditions as

the Board of Selectmen shall consider proper and to deliver a deed or deeds therefor to said

purchaser or purchasers; and to appropriate from certified free cash to the Board of Selectmen

the sum of one hundred seventy-three thousand dollars ($173,000) to carry out the purposes of

this vote;

The land shown on Town of Reading Board of Assessors' January 1, 1985, Plat 57, as Lots

20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25 and 26 and the land shown on Town of Reading Board of Assessors'

January 1, 1989, Plat 68 as Lots 7 and 8, being bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the easterly sideline of Walkers Brook Drive, said point

located 324. 10 feet northwesterly of the Reading-Wakefield town line;

Thence, N 54°- 13-48" W, a distance of 877.17 feet, to a point of curvature;

Thence in a northwesterly direction by a curved line to the right, having a radius

of 991.21 feet, a distance of 269.48 feet to a point said point;

Thence, N 60°-13'-42" E, a distance of 87.86 feet, to a point;

Thence, N 74°-16'-32" E, a distance of 263.67 feet, to a point;

Thence, N 88°-20'-02" E, a distance of 205.25 feet, to a point;

Thence, N 88°-08'-00" E, a distance of 422.80 feet, to a point;

Thence, N 01°-52'-10" W, a distance of 316.19 feet, to a point;

Thence, N 07°-06'-32" W, a distance of 144.82 feet, to a point;

Thence, N 37°-04'-19" E, a distance of 280. 10 feet, to a point;

Thence, S 76°-28'-32" E, a distance of 383. 19 feet, to a point;

Thence, N 49°-07'-10" E, a distance of 80.00 feet, to a point;

Thence, S 43°-22'-18" E, a distance of 675.30 feet, to a point;

Thence, S 35°-03'-00" W, a distance of 789.00 feet, to a point;

Thence, N 54°-57'-00" W, a distance of 60.00 feet, to a point;

Thence, S 35°-03'-00" W, a distance of 21 1.53 feet, to a point;

Thence, S 63°-09'-33" W, a distance of 182.93 feet, to a point;

Thence, N 54°-13'-52" W, a distance of 175.84 feet, to a point;

Thence, S 35°-28'-40" W, a distance of 25 1.76 feet, to a point;

Thence, S 35°-34'-30" W, a distance of 22.50 feet, to a point said point being

the point beginning of this description.
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Transfer of property will be subject to any necessary easements for Town utilities, and

this authorization to transfer will expire unless the conveyance has taken place by June 30, 1999,

unless extended by Town Meeting.

2/3 vote required

149 voted in the affirmative

0 voted in the negative

ARTICLES 15, 17, 18, 19 and 20 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Board of Selectmen, it

was moved to table ARTICLES 15, 17, 18, 19 and 20.

ARTICLE 21 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the

Town raise by borrowing, whether in anticipation of reimbursement from the State under

Chapter 44, Section 6, Massachusetts General Laws, or pursuant to any other enabling authority

and appropriate the sum of $437,834 for highway projects in accordance with Chapter 90,

Massachusetts General Laws.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted to table the subject matter of Article 22 (Budget) until Thursday, May 1, 1997.

ARTICLE 23 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the Town
of Reading accept the report of the Board of Selectmen upon the laying out as public ways of the

following described private ways under the provision of law authorizing the assessment of

betterments, such highways being laid out in accordance with plans duly approved by the Board

of Selectmen and filed in the office of the Town Clerk in accordance with the statutory

requirements, and that the Town authorize the Board of Selectmen to take such lands in fee or

rights of easement therein by eminent domain, under the provisions of Chapter 79 of the General

Laws, as amended, or acquire said lands in fee or rights of easement therein by purchase, gift or

otherwise and to assess betterments therefor and voted that the Town accept the public ways laid

out by the Board of Selectmen, and that the Town raise from the tax levy and appropriate the

sum of $2 for the acquisition of said lands or easements therein or for payment of any eminent

domain damages and for the construction of said ways:

Anson Lane

2/3 vote required

134 voted in the affirmative

1 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 23 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the Town

of Reading accept the report of the Board of Selectmen upon the laying out as public ways of the

following described private ways under the provision of law authorizing the assessment of

betterments, such highways being laid out in accordance with plans duly approved by the Board

of Selectmen and filed in the office of the Town Clerk in accordance with the statutory

requirements, and that the Town authorize the Board of Selectmen to take such lands in fee or

rights of easement therein by eminent domain, under the provisions of Chapter 79 of the General
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Laws, as amended, or acquire said lands in fee or rights of easement therein by purchase, gift or

otherwise and to assess betterments therefor and voted that the Town accept the public ways laid

out by the Board of Selectmen, and that the Town raise from the tax levy and appropriate the

sum of $5 for the acquisition of said lands or easements therein or for payment of any eminent

domain damages and for the construction of said ways:

Ashley Place

2/3 vote required

134 voted in the affirmative

1 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 23 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the Town
of Reading accept the report of the Board of Selectmen upon the laying out as public ways of the

following described private ways under the provision of law authorizing the assessment of

betterments, such highways being laid out in accordance with plans duly approved by the Board

of Selectmen and filed in the office of the Town Clerk in accordance with the statutory

requirements, and that the Town authorize the Board of Selectmen to take such lands in fee or

rights of easement therein by eminent domain, under the provisions of Chapter 79 of the General

Laws, as amended, or acquire said lands in fee or rights of easement therein by purchase, gift or

otherwise and to assess betterments therefor and voted that the Town accept the public ways laid

out by the Board of Selectmen, and that the Town raise from the tax levy and appropriate the

sum of $9 for the acquisition of said lands or easements therein or for payment of any eminent

domain damages and for the construction of said ways:

Autumn Lane

2/3 vote required

134 voted in the affirmative

1 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 23 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the Town
of Reading accept the report of the Board of Selectmen upon the laying out as public ways of the

following described private ways under the provision of law authorizing the assessment of

betterments, such highways being laid out in accordance with plans duly approved by the Board

of Selectmen and filed in the office of the Town Clerk in accordance with the statutory

requirements, and that the Town authorize the Board of Selectmen to take such lands in fee or

rights of easement therein by eminent domain, under the provisions of Chapter 79 of the General

Laws, as amended, or acquire said lands in fee or rights of easement therein by purchase, gift or

otherwise and to assess betterments therefor and voted that the Town accept the public ways laid

out by the Board of Selectmen, and that the Town raise from the tax levy and appropriate the

sum of $1 1 for the acquisition of said lands or easements therein or for payment of any eminent

domain damages and for the construction of said ways:

Azalea Circle

2/3 vote required

134 voted in the affirmative

1 voted in the negative
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ARTICLE 23 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the Town
of Reading accept the report of the Board of Selectmen upon the laying out as public ways of the

following described private ways under the provision of law authorizing the assessment of

betterments, such highways being laid out in accordance with plans duly approved by the Board

of Selectmen and filed in the office of the Town Clerk in accordance with the statutory

requirements, and that the Town authorize the Board of Selectmen to take such lands in fee or

rights of easement therein by eminent domain, under the provisions of Chapter 79 of the General

Laws, as amended, or acquire said lands in fee or rights of easement therein by purchase, gift or

otherwise and to assess betterments therefor and voted that the Town accept the public ways laid

out by the Board of Selectmen, and that the Town raise from the tax levy and appropriate the

sum of $3 for the acquisition of said lands or easements therein or for payment of any eminent

domain damages and for the construction of said ways:

Family Circle

2/3 vote required

134 voted in the affirmative

1 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 24 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the Town
authorize the Board of Selectmen to acquire all or any part of the following described parcel of

land in fee or rights of easement therein by eminent domain under the provisions of Chapter 79

of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or to acquire said parcel of land or

any part thereof in fee or rights of easement therein by gift, purchase, or otherwise, for additions

to the Town Forest; and to raise the sum of eighty-five dollars ($85) from certified free cash and

appropriate said sum to the Board of Selectmen to pay for appraisals of said parcels and to pay

for the acquisition of said parcels of land or rights of easement therein, or to be used for payment

of land damages or other costs and expenses of such acquisitions, and to authorize the Board of

Selectmen to enter into agreements with private parties or state and federal agencies for financial

and other assistance in connection with such acquisition, and to do all other acts and things

necessary and proper for carrying out the provision of this vote, or take any other action with

respect thereto:

The land located offLynn Village Way shown as Lot A on a plan of land entitled:

"Index Plan Fienemann Circle Reading, Mass." dated June 20, 1994 with Revisions

dated July 21, 1994 consisting of 100,731 square feet (2.31 acres) according to said

plan, currently believed to be owned by Presidential Development Corp.

2/3 vote required

129 voted in the affirmative

0 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 25 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the Town
authorize the Board of Selectmen to acquire all or any part of the following described parcel of

land in fee or rights of easement therein by eminent domain under the provisions of Chapter 79

of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or to acquire said parcel of land or
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any part thereof in fee or rights of easement therein by gift, purchase, or otherwise, for purposes

of creating an access and passageway from Indian Tree Lane to the Joshua Eaton School fields;

and to raise or appropriate from certified free cash the sum of one dollar ($1) to the Board of

Selectmen to pay for appraisals of said parcel and to pay for the acquisition of said parcel of land

or rights of easement therein, or to be used for payment of land damages or other costs and

expenses of such acquisition and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into agreements

with private parties or state and federal agencies for financial and other assistance in connection

with such acquisition, and to do all other acts and things necessary and proper for carrying out

the purposes of this vote:

The land located off of Oak Street and shown as Lot 105 on Board of Assessors'

Revised January 1, 1978 Plat 24 currently believed to be owned by Shannon

Rogan, Trustee of the Logan Realty Trust.

2/3 vote required

123 voted in the affirmative

0 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 26 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the Town
authorize the Board of Selectmen to acquire all or any part of the following described parcel of

land in fee or rights of easement therein by eminent domain under the provisions of Chapter 79

of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or to acquire said parcel of land or

any part thereof in fee or rights of easement therein by gift, purchase, or otherwise, for purposes

of creating an access and passageway from Indian Tree Lane to the Joshua Eaton School fields;

and to raise and appropriate from certified free cash the sum of one dollar ($1) to the Board of

Selectmen to pay for appraisals of said parcel and to pay for the acquisition of said parcel of land

or rights of easement therein, or to be used for payment of land damages or other costs and

expenses of such acquisition and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into agreements

with private parties or state and federal agencies for financial and other assistance in connection

with such acquisition, and to do all other acts and things necessary and proper for carrying out

the purposes of this vote:

The land located off of Indian Tree Lane and shown as Lot 94 on Board of Assessors'

Revised January 1, 1978 Plat 24 currently believed to be owned by Allison W. and

Janet B. Phinney of 44 Indian Tree Lane.

2/3 vote required

122 voted in the affirmative

0 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 27 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was moved that the subject

matter of Article 27 be indefinitely postponed.
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ARTICLE 28 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the Town
authorize the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Reading to convey and/or abandon certain

rights and easements in Reading, Middlesex County, MA located on land situated off of Walnut

Street which easements are shown on a plan entitled: Easement Through Private Property For

Drainage, Water And Sewerage Purposes Walnut Street Scale: 1 in. = 40 ft. Nov., 1967

registered with the Middlesex South Registry District of the Land Court as document No.

450960; and to determine that the minimum amount of one dollar ($1) be paid for such

conveyance and/or abandonment; and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to convey or abandon

all or any part of said rights and easements for such amount or a larger amount, and upon such

other terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen shall consider proper and to deliver a deed

or deeds therefor if necessary.

2/3 vote required

1 10 voted in the affirmative

0 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 29 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the

Town amend the motion made under Article 15 of the Warrant for the Subsequent Town
Meeting of November 12, 1996 which added a second Section 5.13 to the General Bylaws of the

Town relating to Emergency Vehicle Access and Fire Lanes and to amend such second Section

5.13 of the General Bylaws of the Town by renumbering such second Section 5.13 as Section

5. 14 by renumbering all subsections thereof as the corresponding subsections of Section 5.14 and

by substituting the phrase "Section 5.14" for the phrase "Section 5.13" each time the phrase

"Section 5.13" appears in said motion and General Bylaw.

On motion by Frances C. Sansalone, Precinct 1, it was voted that this Annual Town Meeting

stand adjourned to meet at 7:30 p.m. at the Reading Memorial High School, Thursday, May 1,

1997.

ADJOURNED ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
May 1, 1997

On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it was moved to take Article 2 from the

table.

ARTICLE 2 - Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, presented the following Report of

Progress on Eastern Middlesex Board of Realtors (EMBR) Negotiations.

The Board of Selectmen had appointed myself (Daniel A. Ensminger), the Town

Manager, and George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, to negotiate a potential

settlement with the EMBR for their property on Union Street. At the first meeting each side laid

out its position. EMBR disclosed that their Board of Directors had authorized that a letter of

opposition to eminent domain be sent to all Town Meeting members even before negotiations

began. The Board's negotiators pledged to hold additional negotiating sessions as needed.
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On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it was moved to place Article 2 on the

table.

On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was moved to take

Article 22 from the table.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

moved that the Town raise by borrowing, or from the tax levy, or transfer from available funds

and appropriate the sum of $46,817,009 for the operation of the Town and its Government for

Fiscal Year 1998 beginning July 1, 1997.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items A1 and A2 (Accounting Department):

$85,440 to be provided as follows:

Lines A1 and A2
Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items B1 through B9 (Community Development Department):

$221,065 to be provided as follows:

Line B1

$940 from Wetland Fees

The remainder of Line B1 and Line B2 through B10
Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items Cl through C12 (Finance Department):

$778,546 to be provided as follows:

Lines Cl through C12
Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

116 .



Town Meeting Reports

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was
moved that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for

Line Items D1 through D13 (General Services Department):

$569,536 to be provided as follows:

Lines D1 through D13

Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Mary Ellen O'Neill, Precinct 6, it was voted to amend Line D13
by adding $12,000 to cover the costs associated with printing and mailing Reading Notes.

Counted vote requested

74 voted in the affirmative

49 voted in the negative

Amendment passes.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items El through El 1 (Human Services Department):

$359,884 to be provided as follows:

Lines El through El 1

Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

moved that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for

Line Items FI and F2 (Library Department):

$648,377 to be provided as follows:

Lines FI and F2

Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by John E. Carpenter, Precinct 7, it was voted to amend Line FI by

adding $1,600 to bring the total up to $516,885.00.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items G1 through G8 (Public Safety Department):

$5,240,687 to be provided as follows:
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Lines G1 through G8
Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen M. Conner, Precinct 4, it was voted to move the question

on the amendments on Lines G1 and G5.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Michael F. Slezak, Precinct 6, to amend Line G5 by removing the

$41,009 for the New Assistant Chief

Motion failed.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Thomas J. Green, Jr., Precinct 6, to amend Line G1 by reducing it

by $21,775 to $2,410,501.00.

Motion failed.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items HI 1 through HI 9 (Department of Public Works):

$2,989,371 to be provided as follows:

Lines HI 1 through HI

5

Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

Line H16
$94,885 from Cemetery bequest with the remainder from Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-

Property Tax local receipts.

Line H17
$20,000 from Cemetery Sale of Lots with the remainder from Property Taxes, State Aid and

Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items J1 through J3 (School Department):

$21,727,256 to be provided as follows:

Lines J1 through J3

Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

On motion by Michael F. Slezak, Precinct 6, it was voted that this Annual Town Meeting stand

adjourned to meet at 7:30 p.m. at the Reading Memorial High School, Monday, May 5, 1997.
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ADJOURNED ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
May 5, 1997

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was
voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items K1 through K39 (Debt Service and Capital):

$3,541,039 to be provided as follows:

Line K1

$558,727 from Sale of Real Estate funds, $11,000 from Sale of Cemetery Lots, and the

remainder from Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

Lines K2 through K39
Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items LI through L7 (Employee Benefits):

$5,068,713 to be provided as follows:

Line LI

$140,000 from Certified Free Cash, with the remainder from Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-

Property Tax local receipts.

Line L4

$420,000 from Certified Free Cash, with the remainder from Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-

Property Tax local receipts.

Lines L2, L3. L5, L6 and L7

Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items Ml through M4 (Water Fund):

$2,219,461 to be provided as follows:

Lines Ml through M4
Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

119 .



Town Meeting Reports

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town approve and appropriate the proposed FY 1998 Budget as presented for Line

Items N1 through N4 (Sewer Fund):

$3,367,234 to be provided as follows:

Lines N1 through N4
Property Taxes, State Aid and Non-Property Tax local receipts.

ARTICLE 22 - On motion by Stephen J. Blewitt, Chairman of the Finance Committee, it was

voted that the Town appropriate for the FY 1998 budget, exclusive of State and County

Assessments and exclusive of previous years snow/ice, the sum of $46,830,609 presenting the

total of all previously made motions under Article 22 as amended:

Funds are to be provided as set forth in said previously made motions.

2/3 vote required

126 voted in the affirmative

0 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 30 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the

Town amend the General Bylaws of the Town by adding the following new Section 5. 15 relating

to Designated Parking Spaces and Curb Ramps for Disabled Veterans or Handicapped Persons:

"5.15 Designated Parking Spaces and Curb Ramps for Disabled Veterans or

Handicapped

Persons

5.15.1 Any person or body having lawful control of a public or private way or of

improved or enclosed property used as off-street parking areas for

businesses, shopping malls, theaters, auditoriums, sporting or recreational

facilities, cultural centers, residential dwellings, or for any other place

where the public has a right of access as invitees or licensees shall reserve

the number of parking spaces required by Section 5.15.2 in said off-street

parking areas for any vehicle owned and operated by a disabled veteran or

handicapped person whose vehicle bears the distinguishing license plate

authorized by Section 2 of Chapter 90 of the General Laws or for any

vehicle transporting a handicapped person and displaying the special

identification plate authorized by Section 2 of Chapter 90 of the General

Laws, or for any vehicle bearing the official identification of a

handicapped person issued by any other state or any Canadian Province.
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5.15.2 If the number of parking spaces in any area designated in Section 5.15 1

is more than fifteen (15) but not more than twenty-five (25), one (1)

parking space shall be provided; more than twenty-five (25) but not more
than forty (40), five percent (5%) of such spaces but not less than two (2)

shall be provided; more than forty (40) but not more than one hundred

(100), four percent (4%) of such spaces but not less than three (3) shall be

provided; more than one hundred (100) but not more than two hundred

(200), three percent (3%) of such spaces but not less than four (4) shall be

provided; more than two hundred (200) but not more than five hundred

(500), two percent (2%) of such spaces but not less than six (6) shall be

provided; more than five hundred (500) but not more than one thousand

(1,000), one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) of such spaces but not less

than ten (10) shall be provided; more than one thousand (1,000) but not

more than two thousand (2,000), one percent (1%) of such spaces but not

less than fifteen (15) shall be provided; more than two thousand (2,000)

but less than five thousand (5,000), three-fourths of one percent (3/4%) of

such spaces but not less than twenty (20) shall be provided; and more than

five thousand (5,000), one-half of one percent (1/2%) of such spaces but

not less than thirty (30) shall be provided.

5 15.3 Parking spaces designated as reserved under the provisions of Section

5.15.1 shall be:

1. Identified by the use of above grade signs with white lettering against

a blue background and shall bear the words "Handicapped Parking:

Special Plate Required. Unauthorized Vehicles May Be Removed At

Owner's Expense";

2. Located as near as possible to a building entrance or walkway and

adjacent to curb ramps or other unobstructed methods permitting

sidewalk access to a handicapped person; and

3. Twelve feet (12) wide or consist of two (2) eight-foot (8) wide areas

with four (4) feet of cross hatch between them.

5.15.4 The Board of Selectmen shall place and maintain signs relating to

reserved spaces for use by disabled veterans and handicapped persons

where applicable to public buildings, public ways and public parking

areas. The owner(s) of record of all other properties or private ways shall

place and maintain signs so identifying the reserved parking spaces in

accordance with Section 5.15.3.

5.15.5 No person shall park, or leave unattended, a motor vehicle that does not

Bear the distinguishing disabled veterans or handicapped license plates or

other identifications referenced in Section 5.15.1 in a space designated
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for use by disabled veterans or handicapped persons, or otherwise

obstruct or block curb ramps designated for use by handicapped persons

as a means of egress to a street or public way.

5.15.6 Any motor vehicle found violating the provisions of this Section 5.15

may be issued a parking violation by the Reading Police Department

and/or towed under the direction of the Reading Police Department, and

all towing and storage charges shall be as authorized by Section 120D of

Chapter 266 of the General Laws. In addition, any person found violating

the provisions of this Section 5.15 shall be punished by a fine of not less

than twenty-five ($25.00) dollars for the first offense and not less than

fifty ($50.00) dollars for the second and any subsequent offense, and

each day that such violation continues shall constitute a separate offense.

The provisions of this Section 5 .15 may be enforced by non-criminal

disposition in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.1 1 hereof and

Section 2 ID of Chapter 40 of the General Laws."

ARTICLE 30 - On motion by Gerald L. MacDonald, Precinct 3, to indefinitely postpone the

subject matter of Article 30.

Motion failed.

On motion by Harvey J. Dahl, Precinct 8, to move the question:

2/3 vote required

1 14 voted in the affirmative

24 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried.

Original motion carried.

ARTICLE 31 - On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

voted that the Town file a petition and/or approve the filing of a petition to the General Court for

a special act providing that the licenses may be granted in the Town of Reading for the sale of

wine and malt beverages by restaurants and function rooms having a seating capacity of less than

one hundred persons, said special act to go into effect after an affirmative vote at a Town
election following approval of the special act.

Counted vote is requested

109 voted in the affirmative

25 voted in the negative
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On motion by Thomas J. Stohlman, Jr., Precinct 5, it was voted to amend Article 3 1 by adding ",

said special act to go into effect after an affirmative vote at a Town Election following approval

of the special act."

Amendment carried.

On motion by Gerald L. MacDonald, Precinct 3, it was voted to move the question:

2/3 vote required

100 voted in the affirmative

24 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried.

Main motion with amendment carried.

ARTICLE 32 - On motion by Jonathan E. Barnes, Precinct 5, it was voted that the Town amend

Section 6.2. of the Reading Zoning By-Laws as follows:

1. Amend Paragraph 6.2.2.4.d. by inserting the phrase "as an "OPEN" flag as specified in

Paragraph 6. 2. 3. 2.1. below, or" after the phrase "(except" so that said Paragraph shall now
read:

"Banners (except as an "OPEN" flag as specified in Paragraph 6.2.3 .2.1. below, or a

temporary sign as specified in Paragraph 6.2.3 2.i below), pennants, off-premises signs,

portable signs, roof signs extending above the parapet or ridge line of a structure, or

strings of lights not permanently mounted to a rigid background, of any type, except as

provided in Subsection 6.2.2.5.e."

2. Amend Section 6. 2. 3. 2. "Signs in Business and Industrial Zoning Districts" by adding a new

Paragraph 6. 2. 3. 2. 1 which shall read as follows:

"1. Any establishment in a Business-A, Business-C, or Industrial Zoning District may

display not more than one flag, not to exceed 4 feet by 6 feet in dimensions, which

may state only the word "OPEN" in letters not to exceed 8 inches in height, together

with decorative graphics. Any establishment in a Business-B Zoning District may

display not more than one such flag in accordance with size, locational, and color and

other graphic standards established by the Sign Review Board."

2/3 vote required

1 19 voted in the affirmative

6 voted in the negative

On motion by William C. Brown, Precinct 8, to change the word "flag" each time it appears to

the word "banner."

Motion failed.
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On motion by Douglas R. Cowell, Precinct 7, to add the word "pole-mounted" before the word

"flag."

Motion failed.

On motion by Michael A. Bourque, Precinct 2, to move the question.

2/3 vote required

99 voted in the affirmative

21 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried.

Original motion carried.

ARTICLE 33 - On motion by Jonathan E. Barnes, Precinct 5, it was voted, as amended, that the

Town amend Section 6.2. of the Reading Zoning By-Laws as follows:

Delete Paragraph 6. 2. 3. 2 d. in its entirety and substitute therefor the following new paragraph:

"d. Window Signs: No sign may be attached to the outside surface of any window or

door. Temporary or permanent signs may without permit be attached to the inside of

the glass surface of a window (a single structurally supported sheet of glass or a sash)

or door, or placed within the premises closer than five feet from any window or door

and situated or designed so that the sign's graphic content is visible from the outside

through any window or door, provided that any such sign shall:

1.

Be uniformly located only in either the uppermost or the lowermost thirty

percent of the glass sheet or sash of the first-floor windows or doors; in

windows of upper floors, said thirty percent may be located in any portion

of a window;

2. Contain no letters larger than six inches in height;

3. Not be restricted with respect to graphic or message content, whether of a

permanent or temporary nature, nor be restricted with respect to materials,

provided that professional appearance and good order shall be maintained

at all times;

4. Have a sign area not to exceed six square feet if the sign is not illuminated;

5. In addition to the above, any illuminated sign (including any internally

illuminated sign and including any made of neon tubes) shall be

placed only in a window, and not in a door, and shall also:

(a) Have a sign area not to exceed four square feet;

b) Be placed no closer than ten feet from any other internally illuminated

window sign on the premises;

(c) Be placed only in a window which contains no other signs of any type; and

(d) Be illuminated only during hours of operation of the business or

establishment.
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Notwithstanding the above, window signs shall also be allowed in conformity

with the provisions of Paragraph 6.2.3 ,2.i. below."

2/3 vote required

1 10 voted in the affirmative

4 voted in the negative

On motion by Mark W. Jackson, Precinct 4, to change "six inches" to "eight inches" in Section 2.

Motion failed.

On motion by Thomas J. Stohlman, Jr., Precinct 5, Section 1, delete the words "either the

uppermost or the lowermost" and delete the words "of the first-floor windows or doors; in

windows of upper floors, said thirty percent may be located in any portion of a window;".

Section 1 now to read: "Be uniformly located only in thirty percent of the glass sheet or sash."

Motion carried.

Original motion with amendment by Thomas J. Stohlman. Jr., Precinct 5. carried.

ARTICLE 34 - On motion by Jonathan E. Barnes, Precinct 5, it was voted that the Town amend

Section 6.2. of the Reading Zoning By-Laws as follows:

1. Add the following new paragraph 6. 2. 3. 2. m., which shall read as follows:

"m. For commercial buildings containing more than one business requiring wall signage,

any wall sign provided for any such business must be in conformity with the

requirements of this Section 6.2. and in accordance with the following stipulations

concerning an overall signage plan for such building. The signage plan shall show not

more than one wall sign per business within the building; however, at the owner's

election not every business within the building need be provided with a wall sign within

the proposed assemblage. No wall sign shall be issued a sign permit for any building

for which a signage plan has been submitted or approved that is not included in or is

not in conformity with the applicable signage plan. The signage plan need not show

the specific message content for any individual sign contained therein, so as to provide

for change in business occupancy which may from time to time occur within the

building:

(1) In the Business-A, Business-C, and Industrial Zoning Districts, the building owner

may provide to the Building Inspector, or in the case of Site Plan Review may

submit for approval to the Community Planning and Development Commission,

a signage plan for the building showing the allocation within the maximum sign
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area as allowed according to Table 6.2.3. hereof among wall signs for businesses

within the building. This signage plan shall show the size, placement, materials,

framing, graphic and design standards for each such sign and the assemblage

thereof proposed within said allowable maximum sign area, together with

proposed lighting and methods of attachment of all such signs.

Upon application therefor by the building owner or the respective business owner,

the Building Inspector shall issue a sign permit for any individual sign to be

placed within the assemblage upon determination as to the conformity of such

individual sign to the signage plan; or

(2) In the Business-B Zoning District, the building owner may, according to the

provisions of Section 6.2.4. below, submit to the Sign Review Board for issuance

of a Certificate of Appropriateness, a signage plan for the building showing the

allocation within the maximum sign area as allowed according to Table 6.2.3.

hereof among wall signs for businesses within the building.

This signage plan shall show those characteristics as specified in Section 6.2.4.

for each such sign and the assemblage thereof proposed within said allowable

maximum sign area. The Building Inspector shall issue a sign permit for any

individual sign within the assemblage upon determination of the conformity of

such individual sign to the approved signage plan."

2. Amend Paragraph 6.2.3 2. 1 b. by adding the phrase "except in cases where the provisions of

Paragraph 6.2.3.2.m. are utilized," between the phrase "One wall or projecting sign per

business occupying the ground floor and front wall of the building," and the phrase "provided

that a lot may contain only wall or only projecting signs, and" so that said Paragraph shall

read:

"b. One wall or projecting sign per business occupying the ground floor and front

wall of the building, except in cases where the provisions of Paragraph 6.2.3.2.m.

are utilized, provided that a lot may contain only wall or only projecting signs, and"

3. Amend Paragraph 6. 2. 3. 2.2. a. by adding the phrase "except in cases where the provisions

of Paragraph 6.2.3.2.m. are utilized," between the phrases "building," and "and," so that said

Paragraph shall read:

"a. One wall or projecting sign per business occupying the ground floor and front

wall of the building, except in cases where the provisions of Paragraph

6.2.3.2.m. are utilized, and"

2/3 vote required

99 voted in the affirmative

1 1 voted in the negative
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ARTICLE 35 - On motion by Jonathan E. Barnes, Precinct 5, it was voted, as amended, that the

Town amend Section 4. 10. of the Reading Zoning By-Laws as follows:

1. Delete from Section 4. 10.4.3. "Intensity of Development" the following paragraph:

"Maximum number of dwelling units per net parcel area of land contained within the parcel

shall be as follows:

(1) PRD-G: Maximum basic development density for a PRD-G development shall

be based on the underlying zoning district in which the development is located

as follows:

- S-15: 2.50 units per acre,

- S-20: 1.25 units per acre,

- S-40: 1.00 units per acre

(2) PRD-M: 10 dwelling units per gross acre, with the additional limitation that no

PRD development may contain more than 100 residential units."

and substitute therefor the following wording:

"Maximum number of dwelling units contained within the parcel shall be determined

as follows:

(3)

PRD-G: Maximum basic development density for a PRD-G development shall be

be based on the underlying zoning district in which the development is located, as

as follows:

(a) The Developer shall first submit to the Reading Conservation Commission a

a Request for Determination of Applicability, if required by law, relative to

the parcel contemplated to be developed in accordance with this Section 4. 10.

in accordance with Chapter 131, Section 40 of the Massachusetts General

Laws and Section 5.7. of the Reading General Bylaws, and obtain from said

Conservation Commission an approved delineation of the bounds of any

wetlands resource area on the parcel and/or within the jurisdiction of the

Conservation Commission up to 200 feet from any portion of the parcel;

(b) The Developer shall then submit to the CPDC a schematic Subdivision Plan

which meets the requirements as specified for a Preliminary Subdivision Plan in

the Rules and Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land in Reading; this

plan shall accurately depict the bounds of wetland resource areas as approved as

stipulated above; upon written request of the Developer, the CPDC may waive

those portions of the Preliminary Subdivision Plan content requirements relative

to detailed utility engineering which in the estimation of the CPDC are not

necessary for the full determination as to the extent of the parcel's buildability in

conformity with said Rules and Regulations and the Reading Zoning By-Laws.

The number of building lots shown on such schematic Subdivision Plan proven

by the Developer, and accepted by vote of the CPDC at a Public Hearing to

consider such schematic Subdivision Plan, to conform with the requirements of
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Section 5.0. of the Reading Zoning By-Laws applicable to the underlying zoning

district in which the parcel is located, shall constitute the maximum basic

development density, in terms of number of dwelling units, which shall be

allowed for any PRD-G development on the parcel;

(c) Accompanying the submission to the CPDC of such schematic Subdivision Plan,

the Developer shall also submit a request to CPDC to review at said Public

Hearing a schematic PRD Plan which shall conform to the requirements relative

to a contents of a Preliminary PRD Plan as set forth in Section 4. 10.3.3.3. This

plan shall accurately depict the bounds of wetland resource areas as approved

as set forth above, together with the proposed number of dwelling units shown

on such schematic PRD Plan to be equal to or fewer than the maximum basic

development density as determined in subparagraph (b) above, plus any additional

dwelling units proposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 4. 10.4.3. 1.

relative to the provision of affordable or moderately-priced housing;

(d) Following the close of the Public Hearing at which both the schematic Sub-

division Plan and the schematic PRD Plan are reviewed, the CPDC shall consider

whether or not it will request that an Article be placed on the Warrant for a Town
Meeting to place a PRD-G Zoning Overlay District on the parcel as specified

in Section 4. 10.2.;

(e) Following favorable action by Town Meeting with respect to such Article, the

Developer may proceed with a Preliminary PRD Plan and a Final PRD Plan as set

forth in this Section 4. 10.

(2) PRD-M: 10 dwelling units per gross acre, with the additional limitation that no PRD
development may contain more than 100 residential units."

2. Delete paragraph 4. 10.2. l.h. "Net Parcel Area", and re-letter succeeding paragraphs as

appropriate.

2/3 vote required

95 voted in the affirmative

6 voted in the negative

On motion by William C. Brown, Precinct 8, to amend Article 35 by deleting (2) PRD-M
reference.

Motion failed.

On motion by Thomas J. Stohlman, Jr., Precinct 5, to amend Article 35 by deleting sections (d)

and (e).

Motion failed.
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On motion by Jeffrey W. Struble, Precinct 7, to delete the words "with respect to such Article" in

section (e).

Motion carried.

Motion with amendment by Jeffrey W. Struble carried.

ARTICLE 36 - On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

voted that the Town accept the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 138, Section

12B which prohibits nudity or partial nudity in certain premises licensed by the Town to sell

alcoholic beverages, or take any other action with respect thereto.

ARTICLE 37 - On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

voted pursuant to Section 2-6 of the Reading Home Rule Charter to declare the seats of any or all

of the following Town Meeting Members to be vacant and to remove any or all of the following

described persons from their position as Town Meeting Member for failure to take the oath of

office within thirty days following the notice of election or for failure to attend one-half or more

of the Town Meeting sessions during the previous year, or take any other action with respect

thereto:

Precinct 3 Nona J. Childress

Stephen M. Korth

Precinct 6 John G. Edson

Precinct 8 Carl J. Nelson

On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectman, it was voted that this

Adjourned Annual Town Meeting stand adjourned until after the Special Town Meeting

commencing May 8, 1997

SPECIAL TOWN MEETING
May 8, 1997

Moderator Alan E. Foulds makes the following announcements:

Tonight, we are in the Special Meeting which was called in response to an instructional

motion made during the Annual Meeting. The Chair has been informed that the first 3 Articles

will be tabled. Article 4 deals with the eminent domain taking of the Union Street lot. If there is

no objection, the President of the association that owns the land in question will be allowed to

address the Meeting. She and her attorney will also be available during the debate for questions.
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If we should finish the business of the Special Meeting tonight, we will adjourn, and then

immediately reconvene the Annual Meeting, which still has several Articles concerning the

siting of the Police Station, before it.

ARTICLE 1 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was moved that the subject

matter of Article 1 be tabled.

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was moved that the subject

matter of Article 2 be tabled.

ARTICLE 3 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was moved that the subject

matter of Article 3 be tabled.

ARTICLE 4 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was moved that the Town
vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to acquire all or any part of the following described

parcel of land in fee or rights of easement therein by eminent domain under the provisions of

Chapter 79 of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or to acquire said

parcel of land or any part thereof in fee or rights of easement therein by gift, purchase, land

swap, or otherwise, for general municipal purposes including the construction of a police station

and uses accessory thereto and public parking; and that the Town raise by borrowing under

Chapter 44, Section 7 (3) of the General Laws, or any other enabling authority, the sum of two

hundred twenty five thousand dollars ($225,000), and appropriate said sum to be expended under

the direction of the Board of Selectmen to pay for the acquisition of said parcel of land or rights

of easement therein, or to be used for payment of land damages or other costs and expenses of

such acquisition and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into agreements with private

parties or state and federal agencies for financial and other assistance in connection with such

acquisition, and to do all other acts and things necessary and proper for carrying out the purposes

of this vote:

The land commonly know as 13 Union Street shown on Board of Assessors' Revised

January 1, 1983 Map 76 as Lot 08 consisting of 8, 165 square feet of land, more or less,

and being the land described at the Middlesex South District Registry of Deeds in Book

12074, Page 492, currently believed to be owned by Eastern Middlesex Multiple Listing

Services, Inc.

On motion by William T. Bogaert, Precinct 3, it was voted to amend the language of Article 4 by

adding the phrase ", for not less than the equivalent of the sum of two hundred eighty thousand

dollars ($280,000)," after the words "or otherwise,".

Motion carried.

On motion by Frederick Van Magness, Precinct 8, it was voted to delete the word "land swap"

from Article 4.

Motion carried.
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On motion by Philip B Pacino, Precinct 4, it was voted to move the question of Article 4, as

amended.

2/3 vote required

120 voted in the affirmative

30 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried.

2/3 vote required on Article 4, as amended

101 voted in the affirmative

54 voted in the negative

Count questioned

2/3 vote required

102 voted in the affirmative

51 voted in the negative

Roll Count Vote requested

Precinct 1 Precinct 2

Harold G. Andrews (Absent) Virginia M. Adams Yes

James E. Barry No Michael A. Bourque Yes

Alan D. Beaulieu Yes Francis P. Burke No
Robert W. Belbin Yes Dolores S. Carroll Yes

Lawrence D. Chomsky Yes Marlene W. Cohen Yes

Kay E. Clark No Stephen L. Crook Yes

Susan Bryant Conley Yes Paul F. Feely, Jr. (Absent)

Herbert W. Converse No Edward F. Foley (Absent)

Nancy L. Eaton Yes Philip D. LeBlanc Yes

Doris M. Fantasia Yes Debbie H. McCulley Yes

William R. Grace No Steven E. McLaughlin No
Andrew K. Herlihy No Richard J. Moore Yes

Lorraine Horn Yes John E. Parsons III No
Beth Ann Matathia Yes Cheryl C. Power (Absent)

Lori L. Miller Yes Margaret V. Pratt (Absent)

Ellen Mounteer Yes Mary Jane Quinn Yes

Nancy W. Ortiz Yes Anthony L. Rickley (Absent)

Maurice C. Proctor, Jr. Yes Rita C. Robertson Yes

Thomas J. Ryan No Priscilla Ryan Yes

Frances C. Sansalone No Wendy J. Small Yes

Nancy H. Stager Yes David A. Tanner Yes

Neil J. Sullivan Yes Gail F. Wood Yes

James K. Taylor No John D. Wood No
Sheila Krekorian Tully No
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Precinct 3 Precinct 4

William T. Bogaert Yes Mary Anastos Yes

Lois K. Bond Yes Willard J. Burditt Yes

Douglas A. Bruce Yes Michele A. Carrick Yes

John L. Casey, Jr. No Stephen M. Conner (Absent)

William L. Childress (Absent) Jonathan Edwards Yes

Elizabeth G. Dew Yes Nancy M. Graham Yes

Robert C. Dantona (Absent) Russell T. Graham Yes

Agnes H. Donovan Yes Glen M. Hartzler Yes

Francis P. Driscoll No Sally M. Hoyt (Abstained)

Barbara C. Fagan (Absent) Mark W. Jackson No
Alice C. Grau No Susan B Kalmakis No
Bryan Hodgkins II (Absent) W. Bruce MacDonald No
Paul A. Johnson No Richard F. McDonald Yes

Gerald L. MacDonald Yes Thomas J. Meharg Yes

Catherine L. Martin Yes Philip B. Pacino Yes

Susanne Martin (Absent) Linda M. Molloy Yes

Ronald P. McCarron (Absent) William A. Redford Yes

William A. Pacunas Yes Leora E. Roberts Yes

Richard F. Smith, Jr. Yes Everett J. Roscoe, Jr. Yes

Lance Watson (Absent) Robert S. Salter (Absent)

Ronald L. Wood No Edward G. Smethurst Yes

Eugenia Zangas (Absent) George A. Theophanis Yes

Timothy R. Twomey Yes

Mary S. Ziegler Yes

Precinct 5 Precinct 6

Camille W. Anthony Yes James E. Biller Yes

Jonathan E. Barnes Yes Stephen J. Blewitt (Absent)

Brian A. Broad No Robert A. Brown Yes

Loretta E. Cavagnaro (Absent) Christopher R. Campbell Yes

Susan C. Cavicchi Yes Stephen A. Chapman Yes

Ruth L. Clay (Absent) Brook W. Chipman Yes

Patrick M. Fennelly Yes Jacqueline S. Chipman No
Robert L. Fuller No Stewart D. Chipman No
Brevard S. Garrison Yes Ralph A. Colorusso No
Kathleen Hahn No Ronald M. Daddario No
Eleanor K. Higgott Yes Kevin M. Douglas No
George C. Hines No James J. Fandel (Absent)

Catherine R. Kaminer Yes Thomas J. Green, Jr. Yes

Paul A. Kelley No Diana M. Kaine No
Lawrence E. Mabius Yes James A. Keigley Yes

Joseph P. Marshall Yes Robert R. Lynch No
David M. Meuse (Absent) Jacquelyn A. Mandell Yes
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Peter J. O'Shea Yes Mary Ellen O'Neill No
Thomas J. Stohlman, Jr. Yes Stephen P. Quigley Yes
William 0. Stroman (Absent) Diane N. Slezak (Absent)

Kathleen S. Vaccaro No Michael F. Slezak (Absent)

Ann Caulfield Ward No William H. Watt No
Matthew L. Wilson No Nathan C. White Yes

Precinct 7 Precinct 8

Peter A. Brown No Janet Baronian Yes
John E. Carpenter Yes William C. Brown No
Cathy E. Commito Yes Kendra JG Cooper No
Douglas R. Cowell Yes Matthew Cummings (Absent)

William F. Crowley Yes Harvey J. Dahl No
Carmen Dutile-Redfearn Yes John K. Downing No
Daniel A. Ensminger No Nancy Gadzuk Drexler (Absent)

John J. Greichen, Jr. No Carol S. Grimm Yes

Bruce W. Haas Yes Peter Grossman (Absent)

George V. Hines No Kim R. Honetschlager (Absent)

Rose E. Hines No Gloria R. Hulse No
William J. Hughes, Jr. Yes Joanne Hulse No
Mark H. Johnson Yes Stephen Joseph Ippolito No
Norman F. Kozlowski No Frederick F. Martin, Jr. Yes

William C. Leach Yes Robert I. Nordstrand Yes

John McGrath Yes George B. Perry II Yes

Matthew J. Nestor Yes Bernice H. Pierce Yes

Gary M. Nihan Yes John E. Rattigan, Jr. Yes

Richard A. Radville Yes John H. Russell (Absent)

Richard W. Schubert Yes Margaret W. Russell (Absent)

Jeffrey W. Struble Yes Robert L. Spadafora, Jr. Yes

Patrick S. Sudbay No Frederick VanMagness Yes

David M. Swyter (Absent) Frederick VanMagness, Jr. Yes

Kathy J. Whittaker Yes Charles A. Wayne Yes

2/3 vote required

103 voted in the affirmative

52 voted in the negative

Motion, as amended, did not carry,

ARTICLE 4 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Precinct 7, it was moved to reconsider

Article 4 at the next Special Town Meeting. Seconded.

On motion by Willard J. Burditt, Precinct 4, it was voted that this Special Town Meeting stand

adjourned to meet at 7:30 p.m. at the Reading Memorial High School, Monday, May 12, 1997.
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ADJOURNED SPECIAL TOWN MEETING
May 12, 1997

Announcements by Moderator Alan E. Foulds:

On Thursday, May 8, 1997, it was moved and seconded to reconsider the motion under

Article 4, as amended. Action on that motion was delayed until this evening, as the first item of

business. We will take up that motion at this time, but debate will be limited strictly to the

merits of reconsideration or new information on the main motion, not previously discussed.

ARTICLE 4 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Precinct 7, it was voted to reconsider Article

4.

2/3 vote required

140 voted in the affirmative

10 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 4 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Precinct 7, it was moved that the Town vote

to authorize the Board of Selectmen to acquire all or any part of the following described parcel

of land in fee or rights of easement therein by eminent domain under the provisions of Chapter

79 of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or to acquire said parcel of land

or any part thereof in fee or rights of easement therein by gift, purchase, or otherwise, for not less

than the sum of Two Hundred Eighty thousand dollars ($280,000) for general municipal

purposes including the construction of a police station and uses accessory thereto and public

parking; and that the Town raise by borrowing under Chapter 44, Section 7 (3) of the General

Laws, or any other enabling authority, the sum ofTwo Hundred Eighty thousand dollars

($280,000), and appropriate said sum to be expended under the direction of the Board of

Selectmen to pay for the acquisition of said parcel of land or rights of easement therein, or to be

used for payment of land damages or other costs and expenses of such acquisition and to

authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into agreements with private parties or state and

federal agencies for financial and other assistance in connection with such acquisition, and to do

all other acts and things necessary and proper for carrying out the purposes of this vote:

The land commonly know as 13 Union Street shown on Board of Assessors' Revised

January 1, 1983 Map 76 as Lot 08 consisting of 8,165 square feet of land, more or less,

and being the land described at the Middlesex South District Registry of Deeds in book

12074, Page 492, currently believed to be owned by Eastern Middlesex Multiple Listing

Services, Inc.

ARTICLE 4 - On motion by Thomas J. Ryan, Precinct 1, it was voted to amend Article 1 by

changing the phrase "for not less than the sum" to "for not more than the sum".

86 voted in the affirmative

62 voted in the negative

Motion as amended.
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2/3 vote required

129 voted in the affirmative

22 voted in the negative

Motion carried .

ARTICLE 5 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was voted to transfer the care,

custody, management and control of all or any part of the following described property, from the

Board of Selectmen for municipal parking purposes to the Board of Selectmen for general

municipal purposes including the construction of a police station and uses accessory thereto and

public parking:

The land commonly known as the Union Street parking lot shown on Board of

Assessors' Revised Jan. 1, 1983 Map 76 as Lot 10, consisting of 15,940 square

feet of land, more or less.

2/3 vote required

147 voted in the affirmative

2 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 6 - On motion by Camille W. Anthony, Precinct 5, it was voted to table the subject

matter of Article 6.

ARTICLE 7 - On motion by Virginia M. Adams, Precinct 2, it was voted to table the subject

matter of Article 7.

ARTICLE 8 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was voted to table the subject

matter of Article 8.

ARTICLE 9 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was voted to table the subject

matter of Article 9.

ARTICLE 10 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Precinct 4, it was voted to authorize the Board of

Selectmen to acquire all or any part of the following described parcel of land in fee or rights of

easement therein by eminent domain under the provisions of Chapter 79 of the General Laws of

the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or to acquire said parcel of land or any part thereof in fee

or rights of easement therein by gift, purchase, land swap, or otherwise, for general municipal

purposes including public parking and uses accessory thereto; and to authorize the Board of

Selectmen to enter into agreements with private parties or state and federal agencies for financial

and other assistance in connection with such acquisition, and to do all other acts and things

necessary and proper for carrying out the purposes of this vote:

A portion of the land commonly known as 21-37 Hamden Street shown on Board of

Assessors' Revised January 1, 1983 Map 76 as Lot 07 consisting of 13,408 square feet

of land, more or less, and being a portion of the land described at the Middlesex South

District Registry of Deeds in Book 19725, Page 469, currently believed to be owned
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by Harris G. Realty Trust, together with whatever passageway or easement rights said

current owner has over lands of others, including but not limited to passageway or

easement rights to Pleasant Street.

On motion by Robert S. Salter, Precinct 4, it was voted to move the question:

2/3 vote required

1 14 voted in the affirmative

30 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried.

2/3 vote required

143 voted in the affirmative

8 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 11 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Precinct 4, it was voted to authorize the Board of

Selectmen to acquire all or any part of the following described parcel of land in fee or rights of

easement therein by eminent domain under the provisions of Chapter 79 of the General Laws of

the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or to acquire said parcel of land or any part thereof in fee

or rights of easement therein by gift, purchase, land swap, or otherwise, for general municipal

purposes including public parking and uses accessory thereto; and to raise from certified free

cash and appropriate to the Board of Selectmen the sum of one dollar ($1) to pay for appraisals

of said parcel and to pay for the acquisition of said parcel of land or rights of easement therein,

or to be used for payment of land damages or other costs and expenses of such acquisition and to

authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into agreements with private parties or state and

federal agencies for financial and other assistance in connection with such acquisition, and to do

all other acts and things necessary and proper for carrying out the purposes of this vote:

A portion of the land commonly known as 47 Harnden Street shown on Board of

Assessors' Revised January 1, 1983 Map 76 as Lot 08A consisting of 816 square feet of

land, more or less, and being a portion of the land described at the Middlesex South

District Registry of Deeds in Book 12010, Page 403, currently believed to be owned by

Arthur C. Anton and Socrates C. Anton, Trustees of Anton's Realty Trust, together with

whatever passageway or easement rights said current owner has over lands of others,

including but not limited to passageway or easement rights to Pleasant Street.

2/3 vote required

146 voted in the affirmative

2 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 12 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Precinct 4, it was voted to table the subject matter

of Article 12.

On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the

Special Town Meeting stand adjourned sine die at 9:22 p.m.
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ADJOURNED ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
May 12, 1997

ARTICLE 15 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was voted to remove Article

15 from the table.

ARTICLE 15 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was voted that the Town
raise by borrowing under Chapter 44, Section 7 (21 and 22), or any other enabling authority the

sum of Fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) for the purpose of designing a new Police Station,

including the cost of architectural fees, engineering fees, and contingencies and related expenses

incidental thereto and necessary in connection therewith, said sum to be expended under the

direction of the Board of Selectmen; and that the Town vote to authorize the Selectmen to file

applications for a grant or grants to be used to defray all or any part of said design costs and

related matters, and voted that the Town authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into all

contracts and agreements as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this Article.

2/3 vote required

147 voted in the affirmative

0 voted in the negative

No business under Articles 17 and 18 .

ARTICLE 19 - On motion by William T. Bogaert, Precinct 3, it was moved to remove Article

19 from the table.

ARTICLE 19 - On motion by William T. Bogaert, Precinct 3, it was moved that the Town
appoint a Building Committee to advise and consult with Town Meeting and the Board of

Selectmen in a design and construction of a new Police Station until such time as the new station

is occupied.

ARTICLE 19 - On motion by William C. Brown, Precinct 8, it was moved to amend Article 19

by changing the words "Town appoint" to "Moderator appoint".

Motion carried .

ARTICLE 19 - On motion by Gail F. Wood, Precinct 2, it was moved to amend Article 19 by

adding "of 9 people" after the words "appoint a Building Committee".

Motion did not carry .

ARTICLE 19 - On substitute motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Board of Selectmen, it was

moved that Town Meeting establish a Police Station Advisory Committee. This Committee is

intended to replace and extend the role of the current Selectmen's Police Station Building

committee as an advisory group to both Town Meeting and the Board of Selectmen in matters

137 .



Town Meeting Reports

relating to the renovation or reconstruction of the Reading Police Station Said Committee,

appointed by the Moderator, shall have the following duties:

Work with the architect to refine the scope of need for the renovation or reconstruction

of the Police Station.

Review architects' proposals with regard to scope, cost, neighborhood impact, etc.

Continue to work with the architect and staff to review the progress of the building as it

proceeds from design, through construction, and into final occupancy.

The Committee will be made up of nine members as follows:

The Project Manager

One representative from the Reading Police Department

One member of the Board of Selectmen

One member of the FinCom or the Capital Improvements Advisory Subcommittee

One member of the Historical Commission

One person with expertise in architecture or building maintenance

One Town Meeting Member
One neighborhood resident

One resident of the community who lives outside the neighborhood

The Committee's term shall expire at the earlier date of the issuance of a final certificate

of occupancy for the building construction project, or a decision not to proceed with this project.

The Committee shall report at every annual and Subsequent Town Meeting and at least quarterly

to the Board of Selectmen.

2/3 vote required - not sure

71 voted in the affirmative

72 voted in the negative

Substitute Motion did not carry .

ARTICLE 19 - On motion by William T. Bogaert, Precinct 3, as amended by William C.

Brown, Precinct 8.

Motion, as amended, did not carry .

ARTICLE 19 - On motion by Gail F. Wood, Precinct 2, it was moved to reconsider Article 19.

No Business under Article 20.

ARTICLE 3 - On motion by Frederick Van Magness, Precinct 8, it was moved to take Article 3

from the table.

ARTICLE 3 - On motion by Frederick Van Magness, Precinct 8, it was moved that the

Moderator act as Chairman - Pro Tempore of the Rules Committee, which said committee was
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created as part of the Reading Home Rule Charter, section 2-12, and serve in that temporary-

capacity until a permanent Chairman has been elected. It shall be the responsibility of the

Chairman-Pro Tempore to call a meeting of the Rules Committee annually, prior to the Annual

Town Meeting, who first order of business shall be the election of a Chairman. The Bylaw
Committee shall also prepare the appropriate amendment to either the Bylaws or Home Rule

Charter to make the Moderator the permanent Chairman of this Committee and call for an annual

meeting of same before the Annual Town Meeting.

Instructional motion carried .

ARTICLE 3 - On motion by Frederick Van Magness, Precinct 8, it was moved that Town
Meeting instruct the Bylaw Committee to draft a Bylaw amendment prohibiting any elected or

appointed governmental board or committee in the Town of Reading from posting a meeting, or

conducting planning sessions, business, or other activities which could be considered public open

meetings, outside the borders of the Town of Reading. This Bylaw would not apply to litigation,

posted meetings of the RMLD held outside of Reading but within RMLD service territory, and

hearings and conferences at which board or committee members meet but do not conduct

business and where failure to post such a meeting would not violate the Massachusetts Open

Meeting Law. The Bylaw Committee shall present the drafted Bylaw to Town Meeting for its

approval at the 1997 Subsequent Town Meeting.

On motion by Alan D. Beaulieu, Precinct 1, it was voted to move the question:

2/3 vote required

1 18 voted in the affirmative

14 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried .

Instructional Motion carried .

ARTICLE 3 - On motion by Russell T. Graham, Precinct 4, it was moved that Town Meeting

support, in concept, that the proceeds from the sale of the landfill be dedicated, in whole or in

part, to the renovation of the present building, or construction of a new building to house the

Reading Memorial High School.

Instructional Motion carried .

ARTICLE 3 - On motion by George A. Theophanis, Precinct 4, it was moved that the Bylaw

Committee be instructed to place an Article in the Warrant of the November 1997 Town Meeting

amending Section 2.2.4 - Motion to Reconsider so that it is clear that the provisions of this

section supplant Roberts Rules with respect to Reconsideration including the right of any

member to move Reconsideration regardless of how that member voted on the motion being

reconsidered.

Instructional Motion did not carry .
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ARTICLE 19 - On motion by Gail F. Wood, Precinct 2, to reconsider Article 19.

2/3 vote required

53 voted in the affirmative

72 voted in the negative

Motion to reconsider did not pass .

On motion by George V. Hines, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was voted that the

Annual Town Meeting stand adjourned sine die at 10:45 p.m.

SUBSEQUENT TOWN MEETING
November 10, 1997

During the past months, there have been two people whose passing greatly affected the

community. There was a moment of silence for John Pacino and Elaine Donahue.

ARTICLE 1 - Philip B. Pacino, Chairman of the Reading Municipal Light Board, presented the

following annual State of the Light Department Report:

The Board reports that the Reading Municipal Light Department for the last year has

operated effectively. The power that the Department is delivering to its customers has been at a

reliable level. The cost paid by its customers has been below that paid by comparable customers

of the area's investor owned utilities and neighboring municipal entities.

As part of a commitment to keep the system at a level that should avoid outages, the

Board and the Department have started a preventive maintenance program. The purpose of the

program is for a crew from the Department to go through areas within the system in an effort to

review the physical condition of that area's infrastructure and make improvements to that

infrastructure. In a part of Lynnfield where the program was first tested, these improvements

included such items as tree trimming, replacing wires that had become part of trees and replacing

rotted cross arms. The program has been successful and in the coming year, the Board is looking

to add a second crew.

Unfortunately, this is not to say that outages will not still take place. However, when

outages do occur, the Department makes every effort to correct the problem as soon as possible.

As a further commitment to keep the system operating properly, the Board has authorized

the Department to begin preliminary designs for a new substation in North Reading. This

substation will be in addition to the Gaw Station on Causeway Street here in Reading. The

substation is needed because the present power demands of the system are near to the maximum
the Gaw substation can handle.

The Board in the last year has spent considerable time on the deregulation of the utility

industry and how it will affect the Reading Municipal Light Department and its customers. The

term deregulation is a misnomer. What really is happening to the utility industry is a

restructuring of the industry. The Board and the Department do not use the term deregulation

but instead use the term restructuring.
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The Board with myself as the facilitator has used a form of Total Quality Management to

discuss the issues and come to required decisions about restructuring. The process used by the

Board has been named "What are we to be?" It has identified that there needs to be four vision

statements under restructuring with the Department carrying out these visions. The four are a

customer vision, a Department vision, a Town of Reading as owner vision and a Board vision.

The Board is presently working on forming these visions at the present time.

On the overhead behind me is the new logo of the Reading Municipal Light Department.

The new logo signals the start of a new way the Department may be doing business under

restructuring.

Restructuring is upon us. The Massachusetts State Legislature has a bill pending before

it that restructures electric utilities in Massachusetts effective March 1, 1998. The legislation

would result in a 10% rate reduction, the securitization of stranded costs and unbundled rates.

The legislation would allow customer choice for power. Further, the U.S. Congress have several

bills before it that mandate customers' choice.

The Reading Municipal Light Department and all other municipal utilities in the

Commonwealth under the State legislation are exempt as long as the municipal utility only

operates in its existing service area. Thus, the RMLD is not subject to the rules of the

restructuring legislature unless it elects to supply power to any customers not presently in the

service area.

The Board, however, is watching the legislation closely since it believes that its

customers will expect to receive the same benefits as the investor owned utility customers. The

Board has discussed customer choice in its deliberations. The Board has decided that it will

continue to monitor all Federal and State legislation and work toward providing its customers

with the widest choice of power. This choice of power could encompass different options from

the Department itself in addition to possible choices of outside power suppliers.

As the future is visualized, the RMLD will stay in the business of maintaining the power

infrastructure to its customer. It is possible that customers in the service area could be free to

choose from outside providers the source of electrical power they wish to receive. The RMLD
will, however, continue to provide electrical power to these customers who desire to stay with us.

There are two other aspects of restructuring the Board is watching closely.

One is the opportunity for the RMLD to go into other compatible businesses that would

enhance the Department. These businesses range from billing for other utilities to appliance

services to Cable TV operations and beyond.

The other aspect is stranded costs. Stranded costs are costs of power contracts the RMLD
is committed to but which under restructuring the utility will not be able to bill to customers.

The RMLD's estimated stranded cost number at last estimate was around $250 million. Under

present legislation, this amount will be recovered from customers under the terms of

securitization. The Board is watching the legislation and taking all steps to be certain these

amounts can be recovered from customers or others. If they are not recovered, the debt could be

left to the Town of Reading to pay.

As part of possible restructuring, the Board with the Light Departments of Braintree and

Taunton plus the Connecticut Municipal Electric Energy Cooperative have joined together and

formed a collaborative called Energy New England. Energy New England is an entity to which
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power contracts have been transferred for the purpose of creating greater efficiencies and

economic savings by way of combined operations. These savings will be passed onto the

customers of the RMLD. At the same time, there will be reduction in the above referred to risk

on the Departments power contracts. Energy New England will also provide flexibility that

could allow the RMLD to compete for larger customers under a restructured environment.

The final item under this report is the return on investment payment the RMLD makes to

the Town of Reading. The Citizens' Advisory Board has recommended that the payment for the

year starting January 1, 1998 and for future years be capped at its present level until the North

Reading substation is completed. The Board is presently reviewing this request and trying to

determine the best way for this payment to be calculated.

The Board is concerned about the future of itself. The decisions it will be entrusted with

carry huge weight to the Department and the Town of Reading. The present members realize

any wrong decision could be costly. The Board will review as part of its Board vision how it

should be constructed and how it makes its decisions.

Even with all the risks of restructuring, it is an exciting time to be in the electric utility

business. The industry is on the cutting edge of change. The future holds opportunities. It is the

intent of the Board to take advantage of these opportunities and thus enhance the RMLD.
Thank you, Mr. Moderator

ARTICLE 1 - Russell T. Graham, Chairman of the School Building Committee, presented the

following School Building Committee Report:

The School Building Committee is delighted to welcome you to the new Parker Middle

School. Often, the results of the deliberations of Town Meeting are not easily seen in concrete

form. Tonight, we are surrounded by a very tangible demonstration of the good that can come

from your vote, and your thoughtful commitment to education.

The Parker project was on schedule, delivered in the timeframe proposed, and under

budget by $700,000. It is a project, and an end result in which the Town can take great pride.

We wish we could report to you this evening that with the completion of this project, and

the work already completed at the elementary level, our job was done, that the space problems

and enrollment crunch were all solved. Unfortunately, such is far from the case. Enrollment in

the schools continue to increase at all levels, and projections of future enrollment rather than

indicating a drop off or stabilization, instead forecast a continuing increase. These forecasts are

based on children already enrolled, and on current birth rates in Reading.

This increase in projected number of students comes somewhat from new construction of

large homes attractive mostly to families with children, but the increase comes even more so by

the heavy turnover of existing homes being sold by those whose families have left the nest to

families with school age or soon to be school age children. Neighborhoods are turning over at a

much quicker pace than previously anticipated and as any Reading realtor will tell you, selling

homes in Reading is not a problem. Finding enough homes to market is the problem. One of the

major reasons for our attractiveness is a good school system with a solid reputation for providing

a good education to its children. We have in some ways become the victims of our own success.

In conjunction with the study of the Coolidge Middle School, an enrollment projection of

the entire system was done by the New England School Development Council.
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The projection was done through school years 2007-2008 or ten years out. Again, the

projections were based on current birth rates and on present enrollment. As in any such study,

the further out one goes, the more problematic the data becomes and always the caveat must be

made that such data presumes that present economic and sociological conditions will

continue. ..assumptions not always borne out. Dan Ensminger, up until now our source of

enrollment projections, whose work has been remarkably accurate, has attended the meetings

presenting these projections and has analyzed the report. He, again with the captions indicated

as to length of projections and as to assumptions, concurs that they are valid projections.

The Overhead Reflects the Findings of the Study.

(Review Overhead Projections)

An example of our dilemma is illustrated by the last space problem addressed by Town
Meeting. With the building of this new facility, space needs at the middle school level were

designed to handle a middle school enrollment of 1040 students at both schools. These

projections support this figure basically for the next five years. Middle school enrollment now at

978 will increase next year to about the 1040 level, and remain there or very slightly below right

through 2002-2003 when it will rise to 1056, an increase capable of being handled within the

existing capacity. If the middle school population were then to stabilize or decrease, then all

would be fine. ..the projection, however, indicates significant increases up to an enrollment of

1 173 students in school years 2007-2008.

The projections, the assumptions, and the potential problems are all being addressed by

the School Building Committee contemplating as well current vs. future construction costs and

the likelihood of continued State reimbursement at the same formula and high dollar amount

presently in place. Recommendations on the middle school, specifically at Coolidge, will be the

next presentation to Town Meeting by the School Building Committee in the very near future.

The elementary problem and the projections as to elementary enrollment simulate the examples

given. A class size and enrollment committee has been established by the School Committee to

address issues at the elementary level. Their recommendations will be submitted to the School

Committee for consideration. The School Building Committee feels it prudent to await the

results of such deliberation before further addressing elementary space problems, but anticipates

the potential for future involvement.

The High School, as we all know, has more than sufficient space to meet any anticipated

enrollment, but as we also know it is lousy space incapable of meeting the high standards

expected of our school system. Be aware that the fundamental problems of the High School

have not gone away and await the Town's deliberation and decision. The School Committee has

requested funds to hire a consultant to address some basic education concerns they have relative

to the High School and from that, some decisions should come which would more clearly define

the path to be taken to answer the High School problem.

While our plate is full with seemingly insurmountable problems, let us take a moment to

look around at our present surroundings. This building stands as testament to the fact that we
can do what some termed impossible to do. With sufficient determination, commitment and

cooperation and, yes, with some degree of sacrifice Town Meeting will, as it always has, meet

the needs of the people it serves.

Thank you, Mr. Moderator
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ARTICLE 1 - James Keigley, Chairman of the Finance Committee, presented the following

annual Status Report:

It is the mission of the Finance Committee to advise Town Meeting on every Warrant

Article which has financial implications. It is also the mission of the Finance Committee to

report to Town Meeting as to the status of the Town's current year revenues and expenditures, as

well as projected revenues and expenditures. It is the mission of the Finance Committee to

report to Town Meeting any potential significant shortfall or overage in the current year budget

and to include information with implications for budgets of future years. I submit to you tonight

this report from the Finance Committee.

At this moment, as I deliver this report to you, the Town is in a good financial condition.

In April, Town Meeting voted a budget of $41,243,944. The revised budget which includes

State and County assessments of $667,103 came in at $41,911,047. Total projected revenue is

$41,933,283. Certified "Free Cash" stands at $2,240,445 of which a healthy amount of $394,371

is being requested at this Town Meeting.

Some of the major grants which have been awarded to the Town include

A Streetscape Design Grant of $230,000

A Blight Program Grant of $500,000

A Geographic Information Systems Grant of $35,000

In conjunction with five other towns, a $293,000 Bikeway Planning Grant has been

awarded. The Town has been granted $437,834 Chapter 90 funds for local street projects.

Federal and State funds will totally reconstruct the entire roadway of Route 129 in Reading. The

Town is presently exploring, researching and applying for other grant possibilities.

Major concerns of the Finance Committee included staffing and overtime needed by the

Police and Fire Departments. A consultant has been employed to study the Police staffing and

overtime. A report will be available at the beginning of the year. The Fire Department now has

an Assistant Fire Chief. Property for construction of a Police Station has been purchased and an

architect has been hired.

The FinCom has met with the Water and Sewer Advisory Committee. We have received

a report as to their Rate Stabilization Recommendations. The FinCom will continue to monitor

the water and sewer situation. The FinCom is concerned as to the status and future plans for the

Water Treatment Plant.

The Finance Committee will continue to monitor the progress in developing the landfill

site for commercial use. The FinCom will monitor the acquisition of any and all open space as

to its potential use and value to the Town.

The Finance Committee has researched the funding requirements for the Town's

Retirement Pension Plan. The Town's Retirement Board has brought to the attention of the

Finance Committee a new State law which requires that local retirement funds are the source of

any future Cost of Living Adjustments or COLAs for the Town of Reading retirees. Chapter 17

of the Acts of 1997 requires that Town Meeting adopt the provisions of Section 103 of Chapter

32 if the Town's retirees are to receive future COLAs. Thereafter, the local Retirement Board is

required to decide each year whether to grant a COLA.
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The new State legislation also changed the amount of retirement allowance upon which a

COLA would be based from the first $9,000 of pension to the first $12,000 of pension.

While Town Meeting won't be asked to debate Section 103 of Chapter 32 until a later

date, the Retirement Board has furnished the Finance Committee with the results of an actuarial

study. The study shows that such a COLA requirement, if paid yearly at 3%, would require an

extra funding requirement of approximately $600,000 yearly until the year 2028. It is then that

the retirement system expects to be fully funded. This would be very sober news if the Town
was required to raise an extra $600,000 to fund the retirement system in the Fiscal 1999 budget.

The good news is that the investments of the retirement fund have done exceptionally well in the

last two years. The investments earned an increase of 23.9% in 1997 and 1 1.06% in 1996. The

1997 figures reflect the State distribution to participating members of the PRIT fund, which is

the pooled investment fund for State and local retirement boards. Reading's retirement fund

received $450,000.

Factoring in these gains, the Reading Retirement Board has informed the Finance

Committee that it is seeking an increase of $126,685 over the Fiscal 1998 general fund

appropriation for Fiscal 1999. While this is a significant increase, it is not beyond consideration.

Reading's ability to fund the unfunded pension liability of its retirement system is a factor cited

by our bond rating agencies when they raised our rating in June of 1996. COLA will more than

likely be voted by Town Meeting at some point, and even if it weren't and we never paid our

retirees another dime ofCOLA, the system is only 65% funded.

The average public retirement fund around the country is funded at 92%. The Reading

Retirement fund is way behind in this area.

To be fiscally responsible, the Retirement Board feels that the Town needs to stick to a

funding schedule which provides for fairly small incremental increases each year. The

Retirement Board's proposal seeks to increase by no more than 2 1/2% each year to the year

2028, when the system would be fully funded. By doing this, the Town is mitigating the chances

of very large yearly increases in later years.

An amount of Seven Hundred and Seventy Nine Thousand, Seven Hundred and Thirty

Five Dollars ($779,735) in State SBAB funding came in one year early. In Fiscal 1998, we will

have to fund an additional approximately One Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000)

for the first interest payment. The Town will have an approximately Four Hundred and Fifty

Thousand Dollars ($450,000) increase in what is available for other capital expenses after the

borrowing costs. In the ten year period of the capital plan, we will have approximately $1.2

million more to spend on other capital savings due to taking advantage of lower interest rates and

bonding earlier than expected.

The Town's revenues are up. State aid has increased. Additional State Lottery money
returned to the Town in the month of September was Fifty Eight Thousand and Five Hundred

Dollars ($58,500). This prosperity has given the Town a chance to catch up on refurbishing the

infrastructure of the Town which was neglected during the lean years of the eighties. We only

hope it continues. However, the Finance Committee will be watching this closely to make sure

that this is done prudently.
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A recent reassessment of the entire Town of Reading has brought forth the total valuation

of the Town to be One Billion, Seven Hundred and Twelve Million, Eight Hundred and Seventy

Six Thousand and Two Hundred Dollars ($1,712,876,200). This increase in value has had the

effect of lowering the tax rate per thousand dollars of valuation from $ 1 6.62 to $16.13.

The FinCom is sensitive to the fact that the residential tax rate in Reading is the thirty eighth

highest among the 351 cities and towns in Massachusetts. The average residential tax bill in

Reading is Three Thousand and Two Hundred and Seventy Three Dollars ($3,273) annually.

Town Meeting Reports

The Finance Committee's mission will be to advise Town Meeting as to the most frugal

way to conduct the Town's business.

The Finance Committee is working diligently with the Budget Council to establish

budget guidelines for the FY '99 budget. The Finance Committee will continue to monitor the

budget process to bring forth a balanced budget which the Town can afford.

ARTICLE 1 - Dennis Richards, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, presented the following

1997 Arnold and Dorothy Berger Award for Exemplary Teaching:

Technology 2000: Innovation at Birch Meadow

I came before Town Meeting last Spring to explain a change in the way the Berger

Award would celebrate exemplary teaching.

This year, instead of identifying exemplary teachers, the Arnold and Dorothy Berger

Award for Exemplary Teaching will support innovative teaching at one of Reading's schools.

This year, the Berger Award will go to teachers at the Birch Meadow Elementary School.

Teachers at Birch Meadow have developed a proposal for exemplary teaching that is on

the cutting edge of technology usage for schools. They will implement the proposal this year,

and report to Town Meeting in the Spring on the results of their work.

Birch Meadow, like other schools in the district, has been fortunate to have Town
Meeting support for technology. While they recognize the need to strive toward mastering the

resources they now possess, Birch Meadow teachers are also mindful of the need to be looking

ahead for new ways of incorporating technology in the classroom. To this end, they will be

using the 1997 Berger Award funds to purchase equipment and software that will enable them to

pilot two innovative endeavors with technology.

First, they are interested in a software application titled Cu-See-Me, which allows

students to "Video Conference." While this technology is still somewhat innovative, schools all

over the world are using it to correspond via e-mail with the added advantage of actually being

able to see the students with whom they correspond. Birch Meadow teachers tell me that Cu-See-

Me is a natural follow up to the activities that occurred last year.

Two Birch Meadow classes engaged in international e-mail projects last year:

A first grade class participated via e-mail and "snail mail" in a Japanese Exchange and a

Fifth grade class partnered with a class in Hong Kong. With Cu-See-Me classes, this year they

will see their partners in the exchanges. Linda O'Leary at Birch Meadow will oversee the

implementation of this technology.
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Second, Birch Meadow will also pilot a project involving the internet and web pages. Birch

Meadow teachers are at the beginning stages of these projects, and they will use the Berger

Award funds to purchase an application such as Microsoft Front Page or Claris Home Page that

will enable students to create web pages. Teachers and students will create the web pages as a

vehicle for intra-school communications, and also for communication between school and home.

Town Meeting Reports between school and the Reading community and between Birch Meadow
and schools all over the world.

Web pages are also produced in the form of "Web Quests," which is a teacher or student

created resource that is placed on the internet. A Web Quest, Birch Meadow teachers tell me,

makes use of various topic-related web links for students to research and explore.

I hope that Arnold and Dorothy Berger would be proud of this proposal for exemplary

teaching that is being supported by their generous award.

I will return in the Spring with representatives from Birch Meadow to report to Town
Meeting on these exemplary Birch Meadow projects.

Thank you.

ARTICLE 1 - Daniel Ensminger, member of the Board of Selectmen, presented the following

Reading Business Park Marketing Status Report:

This is an update to Town Meeting Members on the sale of the Reading Business Park

site a.k.a. the former Reading landfill. This sale was authorized under Article 10 voted by the

Annual Town Meeting in April, 1997.

Here is a status report on the actions undertaken by the Town and its consultants since your

vote at Annual Town Meeting:

The Due Diligence Report ($50K), which is a thorough compendium of site characteristics

and development scenarios that provides "one stop shopping" for an interested developer, has

been completed and reviewed by the Task Force. It includes sections on Site Description and

History, a summary of applicable local bylaws, an assessment of utility infrastructure and

traffic issues, a review of wetlands and wildlife, a discussion of the review process under the

Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (MEPA), a summary of landfill cap construction,

schedule and cost, and a summary of geotechnical landfill closure and gas management cost

issues. (A copy of this report will be included in the bid package with the RFP.)

Conceptual Site Development Plans ($20K) have been prepared and included in the Due
Diligence Report. These include four conceptual layouts based on the potential development

of the site with a large office component.

Meetings ($15K) have been held with the State's Executive Office of Environmental Affairs

(EOEA) regarding the process for filing a Notice of Project Change (NPC) for the site. The

regulations implementing MEPA require the filing of a Notice of Project Change when
changes are made to a project that previously underwent MEPA review, or if MEPA review

was completed more than five years ago.
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The NPC represents a significant reduction in time and expense over the preparation of a

completely new Environmental Impact Report. Thanks to the diligent preparation of our

consultants and a convincing presentation before EOEA, the Secretary has ruled that the

Town can prepare a Notice of Project Change. Accordingly, the Town has filed an

Environmental Notification Form (ENF) with EOEA, and our consultants are currently

preparing the NPC document.

The Notice of Project Change ($58K) will provide a detailed analysis of the impacts of

Reading Business Park and compare it to the previously reviewed project, highlighting

changes and improvements in any impact categories described in the MEPA record, such as

landfill closure, traffic, air quality, wetlands, stormwater, water and sewer. The reduced size

and density of the Reading Business Park should be viewed favorably, since this decrease in

total site buildout vs. the Homart proposal should result in a corresponding decrease in

associated impacts. While the Rivers Protection Act could serve to limit development within

a 200 ft. resource area adjacent to Walkers Brook, our consultants are optimistic that the

general improvement of the Walkers Brook ecosystem provided by the landfill capping

process will qualify the site for a partial to complete exemption from the provisions of the

Rivers Protection Act.

RFP - The Town has prepared a first draft of the Request for Proposals for sale of the site.

The RFP has received comments from the Business Park Task Force and will next go to

Town Counsel, then the Selectmen for review. In response to our NPC, the State will soon

define the issues that a developer must address as part of the MEPA process. For example,

widening of the ramps leading from Route 95/128 to North Avenue is a likely condition -

these ramps are already due to be signalized by the developer of the Boston Technology site

in Wakefield. A list of these issues will accompany the RFP.

The Town is retaining a Financial Analyst ($15K) who will advise the Town, independent of

our landfill consultants, on financial matters connected with the site sale. Typically, a

financial analyst will review the RFP prior to submission, advise the Town on the viability of

tax incentives that may need to be offered to secure a buyer, and assist the Town in reviewing

the submitted proposals. At this time, the Town and its consultants remain convinced, based

on the intense interest already expressed concerning the site (over 20 inquiries to date) that a

real estate broker should NOT be needed to secure a quality developer for the landfill.

The Town will perform an appraisal of the property ($15K) at a point very near to the time of

the receipt of offers from interested parties, in order to maximize the accuracy of the

estimate.

In short, everything is progressing on schedule and budget. The near term schedule is as

follows:

On November 17, the Selectmen will host a public meeting in the Senior Center to review

development objectives with the public.
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On about December 1, the request for proposals for sale or lease of the site will be issued

The Central Register and appropriate print media will be targeted, and every previous party

who requested information will be contacted.

On about February 1, 1998, responses will be opened and reviewed. The Board may appoint

a review committee to assist it in reviewing proposals.

The Board hopes to select a designated developer and begin negotiating a Purchase and Sales

Agreement sometime in April, and a 60-day window for concluding negotiations.

Permitting should begin about mid-June and we expect to see ground broken about a year

later in the Summer of '99. This will coincide nicely with completion of the landfill capping

process.

ARTICLE 1 - Paul Dustin, Chairman of the Police Station Building Committee, presented the

following Report:

The Police Station Building Committee presents this as our first report to Town Meeting

and the Town itself via Cable TV, which describes our progress to date and the tasks that are

underway to provide the Town with a new Police Station.

Following this action taken at last Spring's Town Meeting with the change in location of

the Police Station now to be sited on Union Street, the Board of Selectmen appointed a new
Police Station Building Committee to advise them and the Town Manager in selecting the

architect and to monitor the progress of the project so as to achieve the new station in a cost

effective and timely manner.

The Committee consists of members of the previous site selection committee and new
appointees. As such, we represent the Police Department as the using operation, the adjoining

neighborhood, the Downtown revitalization effort and the Town as a whole. Let me start by

listing our members: Robert Cavagnaro, Officer James Cormier, Mike DeBrigard of the DPW,
Bryan Irwin, Bill Lavoie, Chief Marchand, Jack Russell, Eric-Jason Smith and myself, Paul

Dustin as Chairman. In addition, we have Bruce MacDonald representing the Selectmen, and

Joy Mohr as our Recording Secretary. Needless to say, our meetings are open and we welcome

any interested observers.

We have been meeting since July, and thus far have concentrated on interviewing

candidate architects and construction managers. We have completed that activity and have

submitted our recommendations for both of them. We now plan to move ahead into the

schematic and preliminary design phase culminating in a Special Town Meeting which is

planned to be called in late February 1998 for the purpose of approving the design and

authorizing the construction to proceed.

A summary of accomplishments and some additional explanations includes the following:

The Board of Selectmen has entered into a Purchase and Sales Agreement for the

property with the closing scheduled for late December. There is a provision for the

seller to stay in the premises and pay rent to the Town after that date, consistent with

the construction schedule, should they need to remain there for a period of time.
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The firm of Donham & Sweeney has been selected to design the Police Station. They
have a great deal of experience in this work including the design of the Tewksbury and

Wellesley Police Stations during the past two years.

Similarly, the firm of Daedalus Projects, Incorporated has been selected to be the

Construction Manager. The Construction Manager acts as the Town's representative in

the general overseeing of the project.

The design of the new station will incorporate a good functional design of the building,

and excellent civic architecture so as to fit into the neighborhood and Downtown area.

In addition, paramount importance will be given to achieving the maximum number of

parking spaces that can be achieved on the property consistent with an effective and

satisfactory Police Station.

We note also that Articles 5 and 6 of this Town Meeting will fund out of current funds

the starting of the Police Station design in the amount of $50,000, and rescind the

previous authorization given last Spring to bond for those costs. This is necessary

because the Town does not at this moment own the full site and cannot, therefore,

currently bond the cost of this portion of the project.

And now in closing this report, I want to show you the design schedule which, as I noted

earlier, will bring us to a Special Town Meeting in mid to late February, 1998 to secure

endorsement and funding from Town Meeting.

Slide #1 - Donham & Sweeney Architectural Schedule

Also, a second schedule has been prepared by the Construction Manager, Daedalus

Projects, Inc. which portrays the anticipated overall design and construction schedule which

should lead to an occupancy by November of 1999.

Slide #2 - Daedalus Project Schedule

In conclusion, if all goes well, starting with the needed Special Town Meeting this

coming February, we should be able to greet the new millennium with a new municipal building.

One which will reflect the character of our Town and the revitalization of the Downtown area.

Thank you.

ARTICLE I - Dr. Harry Harutunian, Superintendent of Schools presented the following State of

the Reading Public Schools Report:

Good Evening Mr. Moderator and Town Meeting Members:

It is with a great deal of pleasure that I stand before you this evening and talk to you

about the outstanding work that our parents, teachers, administrators and students have

accomplished this past year in the Reading public schools.
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This Spring, we hired two new principals, Lisa Pittella at the Joshua Eaton School and

Karen Callan, a Reading resident, as the new Principal of the Alice Barrows Elementary School.

Both Principals have had an incredibly smooth opening and doing an outstanding job in their

respective schools.

As many of you know, we are experiencing a severe enrollment problem in our

elementary schools. Presently, the enrollment in the Reading public schools is over 4,100

students. We have seen an increase of over 160 students in the last two years, and anticipate by

the year 2007 to have over 4,800 students attending our schools. A projected increase of over

700 students in the next ten years.

In 1995, we saw more births in the Town of Reading than we have seen in the last sixteen

years. In 1997, we expect to have again over 300 new children born in Reading households and

we see no decline in the near future.

We are very proud of the building that we stand in today. The Parker Middle School is a

wonderful example of the hard work of an entire community in moving a school building project

forward. Not only were we able to build this school on time, but tonight the School Department

will be returning over $700,000 on this project.

I would like to thank some of the people who made this project happen:

Dr. Jack Delaney, the Principal of the Parker Middle School,

Russell T. Graham and the entire School Building Committee,

Rich Radville, the School Building Liaison and

The Reading School Committee for all that they have done in bringing this project

to completion.

But most of all, I would like to thank you, the Town Meeting Members and the entire

Reading community. This is a school project that we can be proud of for many, many years.

This Fall, the Reading School Department has begun a process of strategic planning.

Strategic planning will provide the Reading community an opportunity to work with the School

Department to jointly plan, share and discuss long term goals and expectations for the education

of Reading children. We encourage Town Meeting Members, who are interested in becoming a

member of the Advisory Committee overseeing the process, to contact my office as soon as

possible.

This year, the Reading School Committee directed that a committee be formed of

members of the community to investigate elementary school size and enrollment. Presently, a

committee of 26 members will meet every Tuesday night for the next three months to develop

two or three recommendations which will be presented to the School Committee who, in turn,

will make the final decision on how we will solve long term enrollment problems in our schools.

Last Spring, I came before Town Meeting asking for almost $3 million to complete the

Birch Meadow and Joshua Eaton projects, and to begin to improve the learning environment at

Reading Memorial High School. I am pleased to announce tonight that last month, the Reading

School Committee authorized expenditure of $1 million of that money to develop continuity in

the heating program at the Reading Memorial High School. I have been told by the contractors

that we can expect as early as January or February improved heating throughout the High

School. The School Department may have to come back to Town Meeting for additional money
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to complete the High School work because of asbestos abatement that needs to be done.

Hopefully, in the near future, we can address Coolidge Middle School and our two remaining

elementary schools through building projects.

By using some of the money from the last Town Meeting, we are moving forward in the

area of technology and installing three Local Area Networks: One at Birch Meadow, one at

Joshua Eaton and one at the Reading Memorial High School. Members of the School

Department attended a meeting recently in Chelmsford where Media One announced that all

schools in Reading will receive high speed internet access in each of the buildings at no cost.

The technology that Town Meeting has supported this past year is allowing us to move forward,

and has helped to improve education in the Reading public schools.

This year, the schools and the Town are piloting a merger of our Building and Grounds

Departments with the School Department now cleaning all fourteen Town buildings. We also

have new programs that we have implemented in the last year. A three year plan to implement

new science and math programs in the Reading public schools has begun. At our elementary

schools, we are experimenting with looping in first and second grades. We are analyzing and

moving forward with the new curriculum frameworks, in language arts, social studies and

foreign language. We now have instructional specialists at the middle schools, 6-8, who are

some of our best teachers, mentoring new teachers and helping to improve instruction in all our

schools.

In the next two years, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts will implement new

statewide testing in all the curriculum framework areas. We are encouraged with the scores that

we have seen on a preliminary basis for Reading children.

We in the school system are very proud of the statewide and international leadership that

has been provided by some of our school administrators. This past year, Paul Guerrette,

Principal of the Killam Elementary School was the Massachusetts Elementary School Principal's

Association President. This past year, Dr. Valerie Ardi, our Director of Special Education, was

the President of the Statewide Special Education Director's Association. Presently, Dr. Jack

Delaney, Principal of the Parker Middle School, is the President of the International

Confederation of Principals.

We are also proud of some of the accomplishments of individual schools:

Coolidge Middle School for their outstanding accomplishments in the last five years in

finishing first in the Massachusetts Science Olympiad, and this past year for finishing third in the

United States.

Accomplishment of the Parker Middle School this past year in part because of the

wonderful facility and the technology which has been purchased, Parker Middle School received

first place honors in the Annual Student Video Contest for Middle School News Competition.

At the Reading Memorial High School, the Drama Club and History Day performance with

awards on the State level. Reading students consistently score well above their counterparts on

national testing and this year, Reading students recorded scores 65 points higher than the

national average on the SATs. Over 90% of Reading graduates this past year went on to post

secondary education.
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We are also pleased that in this last year, we have closed the High School Campus so

students can no longer leave during the day, and we now have almost all students at Reading

Memorial High School taking six classes every day out of the seven period schedule and, as

always, our athletic program had another outstanding year.

This past year has been a very exciting year for the Reading public schools. We
appreciate the support, the hard work and the dedication of our parents, teachers and

administrators but most of all, we appreciate the hard work of our students. We all recognize

that the greatest resource we have here in Reading are our young people.

On behalf of the entire School Committee, I would like to thank Town Meeting and the

Reading community for their continued support of the Reading public schools.

Thank you and Good Evening.

The Drama Club performed a number from Godspell.

ARTICLE 1 - On motion by W. Bruce MacDonald, Precinct 4, it was moved that the subject

matter of Article 1 be tabled.

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by Camille W. Anthony, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

moved that the subject matter of Article 2 be tabled.

ARTICLE 3 - On motion by George C. Hines, Precinct 5, it was voted to amend the FY 1998 -

FY 2007 Capital Improvements Program as presented in the amended document dated November

10, 1997 and as provided for in Section 7-7 of the Reading Home Rule Charter.

On motion by George V. Hines, Precinct 5, to amend SD-B-14 by removing "new or".

Amendment did not carry .

On motion by Michael F. Slezak, Precinct 6, it was voted to move the question.

2/3 vote required

1 14 voted in the affirmative

3 1 voted in the negative

Motion to move the question carried.

Original motion under Article 3 carried.

ARTICLE 4 - On motion by George C. Hines, Precinct 5, it was voted to indefinitely postpone

the subject matter of Article 4.
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ARTICLE 5 - On motion by George C. Hines, Precinct 5, and amendment by Frederick Van
Magness, Precinct 8, it was voted to amend the votes taken for the following lines under Article

22 of the Warrant of the Annual Town Meeting of April 14, 1997, relating to the Fiscal Year

1998 Municipal Budget, and to transfer from available funds, and appropriate funds as follows

for the operation of the Town and its government.

Line Item Amount
Source

of

Funding

FINCOM
Recom-
mendation

B6 - Community Development -

Inspections Personal Services

$180 Free Cash 7-0-0

E2 - Health Non-Personal Expenses -

Hepatitis B Clinics

$15,800 Free Cash 7-0-0

FI - Library Personal Services -

Completion of Reclassification

$9,371 Free Cash 7-0-0

G2 - Police Non-Personal Expenses -

Honor Guard Uniforms

$5,100 Free Cash 7-0-0

G5 - Fire Personal Services - Firefighters

Retroactive Salaries

$167,575 Free Cash 7-0-0

H14 - DPW Rubbish Collection/Disposal -

Additional Leaf Pick-Up

$14,650 Free Cash 9-0-0

H17 - Cemetery Non-Personal Expenses -

Repurchase of Cemetery Lots

$10,000 Cemetery

Sale of Lots

Fund

7-0-0

K1 - Debt Services - For Early Sale of

Bonds - Parker Middle School

$150,000 Sale of Real

Estate

7-0-0

K20 - Capital - HVAC Improvements - to

Town Hall and Fire Station

$93,205 Free Cash 7-0-0

K34 - Capital - Renovate of RMHS $40,000 Free Cash 7-0-0

K40 - Capital - Police Station Architect -

Replace Previous Bonding Authority

$50,000 Free Cash 7-0-0

M4 - Water - Capital - Additional

Expenses Related to Water Treatment

Plant Modifications

$24,500 Water
Reserves

9-0-0

N2 - Sewer Non-Personal Expenses -

Reduce Budget by Reduction in MWRA
Assessment - Already Used in Setting

Rates

$100,352 N/A 7-0-0

On motion by Frederick Van Magness, Precinct 8, to amend Line Item H14 amount from

"13,110" to "$14,650".

Motion carried.
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On motion by George V. Hines, Precinct 5, to amend Line Item N2 to increase the amount by

$150,000 and change the source of Funding to Sewer Reserves to offset appropriation.

Counted vote requested for amendment to Line Item N2,

54 voted in the affirmative

89 voted in the negative

Motion did not carry.

On motion by Mark W. Jackson, Precinct 4, to move the question.

2/3 vote required

120 voted in the affirmative

25 voted in the negative

Original motion amending Line Item H14:

2/3 vote required

137 voted in the affirmative

3 voted in the negative

Motion, as amended, carried.

ARTICLE 6 - On motion by George V. Hines, Board of Selectmen, it was voted to rescind the

remaining bond authorization in the amount of $700,000 made pursuant to Article 12 of the 1994

Subsequent Town Meeting for the purpose of construction of the new Parker Middle School and

related matters; and that the Town vote to rescind the remaining bond authorization in the

amount of $60,000 made pursuant to the vote taken under Article 1 1 of the 1996 Annual Town
Meeting for the purpose of acquiring land off Pasture Road owned by Michael and Phyllis

Larkin; and that the Town vote to rescind the remaining bond authorization in the amount of

$50,000 made pursuant to the vote taken under Article 15 of the 1997 Annual Town Meeting for

the purpose of funding the design of the new Police Station.

ARTICLE 7 - On motion by Camille W. Anthony, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

voted to propose an amendment to Article 5 of the Reading Home Rule Charter relating to the

Town Manager by adding the phrase "(and except as expressly authorized by the Board of

Selectmen)" after the phrase "to the office," in the third sentence of the second paragraph of

Section 5-1 so that sentence shall read: "During his term, he shall devote full time to the office,

(and except as expressly authorized by the Board of Selectmen) shall not engage in any other

business or occupation, and (except as expressly provided in the Charter) shall not hold any other

public office, elective or appointive, in the Town.".

2/3 vote required

106 voted in the affirmative

1 1 voted in the negative
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On motion by Frederick Van Magness, Precinct 8, it was voted that this Subsequent Town
Meeting stand adjourned to meet at 7:30 p.m. at the Reading Memorial High School, Thursday,

November 13, 1997.

SUBSEQUENT TOWN MEETING
November 13, 1997

Announcement by Moderator, Alan E. Foulds:

At the last session, there was a lot of background noise -- talking and mumbling and so

forth. It interfered with the business ofTown Meeting.

The Chair asks, in the interest of fairness, that members speak only when recognized. I

would also remind you to please wait for the microphones. It is the only way that your

comments can be heard at home. We also use the tapes as back-up to the official record. A little

patience might also be needed. I understand that we have only one person on microphones

tonight.

On motion by Jacqueline S. Chipman, Precinct 6, it was moved to remove Article 1 from the

table.

ARTICLE 1 - Jacqueline S. Chipman, Precinct 6, presented the following Solid Waste Advisory

Committee (SWAC) Report of Progress:

Good Evening! I am a member of the SWAC. The other members of the committee

include: Bob Brown, Kay Clark, Jennifer Culbert, Jean Krogh, Anne Mark and Linda Zarrow.

Our staff liaison is Ted Mclntire and our Select Board liaison is Sally Hoyt.

Tonight, I wish to present to the member sof Town Meeting a brief report of progress

from the Solid Waste Advisory Committee.

During the past months members of the Solid Waste Advisory Committee have been

busy compiling data for a comprehensive recycling reference guide for the Town of Reading. I

am happy to report to you tonight that their task is complete and the Town is now in possession

of a fabulous one-stop recycling booklet.

Homeowners across town should shortly be in receipt of this newly published guide to

recycling entitled Reading's Hidden Treasure. This guide details specific information about

Reading's solid waste issues and provides valuable tips on how to reduce, reuse, recycle, donate

and buy recycled. Although the guide was only hand delivered to residents of one to three

family dwellings, the information held within it stands to benefit all residents. For anyone who

did not receive this booklet, they are available at Town Hall.
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Reading's Hidden Treasure was produced by Reading's Solid Waste Advisory Committee

and was delivered throughout Town by a volunteer corps of Block Leaders One Hundred

plus citizens of Reading stepped forward to volunteer for Block Leader duty. They included

campfire girls, High School Students, Retirees, Town Meeting members. Town Employees, our

entire Select Board and our Town Manager among others. These stalwart folks braved inclement

weather to bring you your guide and they deserve our thanks.

Distribution was timed to correspond with the first observance of America Recycles

Day, this Saturday, November 15th. An America Recycles Day Pledge Card was included

with the booklet. The organizers of ART invite all citizens to pledge to further their recycling

efforts and submit this card for enrollment in State and National prize drawings. Since the grand

prize is an "America Green Dream House" with an estimated value of $200,000, all should

submit their pledge cards soon. They must be post-marked on or before the 15th.

The publication and distribution of this booklet, Reading's Hidden Treasure, is one more

example of the Solid Waste Advisory Committees continued campaign to educate and inspire the

citizens of Reading with regards to recycling issues. It brings the community one step closer to

the Townwide, Selectboard endorsed, waste reduction goals for the year 2000. By the year 2000

it is hoped that there will be:

100% participation in curbside recycling (currently 76%)

50% waste stream diversion (currently 24%) and

25% waste stream diversion by weight (currently 13%)

Finally, the publication of Reading's Hidden Treasure and the re-establishment of the

Block Leader Program for its distribution, satisfy criteria for participation within the State's

Municipal Recycling Incentive Program (MRJP). Participation in MRIP earns money for the

Town in the form of dollars paid to the Town per ton of measurable recycled materials collected.

In conclusion, the SWAC wishes to thank all of those who assisted in the publication and

the distribution of this guide:

Ted Mclntire and his staff for their patience and technical assistance;

Waste Management for their partial funding of the project;

Londonderry, New Hampshire's Recycling Committee, for the use of their

recycling brochure as a template for our own;

Jay Lenox of Print Management Systems for a very competitive price for printing;

and... the wonderful Block Leaders for distribution of the guide

For anyone present this evening whom perhaps did not yet receive Reading's Hidden

Treasure, please see me tonight. I will eagerly give you one!

ARTICLE 1 - On motion by Camille Anthony, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

moved to place Article 1 on the table.

ARTICLE 8 - On motion by Jonathan E. Barnes, Precinct 5, it was voted pursuant to Section

5.8.1 of the General Bylaws of the Town to designate as a Scenic Road that portion of Walnut

Street between Hopkins Street and Pine Ridge Road.
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ARTICLE 9 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Precinct 4, it was voted to indefinitely postpone the

subject matter of Article 9.

ARTICLE 10 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Precinct 4, it was voted that the sum of Two
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) is appropriated for the purpose of financing the following

water pollution abatement facility projects: repair, replacement and/or upgrade of septic

systems, pursuant to agreements with the Board of Health and residential property owners,

including without limitation, all costs thereof as defined in Section 1 of Chapter 29C of the

General Laws; that to meet this appropriation the Treasurer with the approval of the Board of

Selectmen is authorized to borrow the sum of Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) and

issue bonds or notes therefore under Section 127B1/2 of Chapter 1 1 1 and or Chapter 29C of the

General Laws; that project and financing costs shall be repaid by the property owners, in

accordance with those agreements, but such bonds or notes shall be general obligations of the

Town; that the Treasurer with the approval of the Board of Selectmen is authorized to borrow all

or a portion of such amount from the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust

established pursuant to said Chapter 29C and in connection therewith to enter into a loan

agreement and/or security agreement with the Trust and otherwise contract with the Trust and the

Department of Environment Protection with respect to such a loan and for any federal or state aid

available for the projects or for the financing thereof; and that the Board of Selectmen or other

appropriate local body or official is authorized to enter into a project regulatory agreement with

the Department of Environmental Protection, to expend all funds available for the projects and to

take any other action necessary to carry out the projects.

2/3 vote required

1 13 voted in the affirmative

5 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 11 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Precinct 4, it was voted to establish a revolving

fund under Chapter 44, Section 53E1/2 of the General Laws for the purpose of using the receipts

generated through the sale of compost bins to purchase additional compost bins, and to pay for

related expenditures, and to determine that the total amount of $2,000 during fiscal year 1998

may be expended from such fund.

ARTICLE 12 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Precinct 4, it was voted that the Town appropriate

from available funds for highways projects the sum of $437,834 in accordance with Chapter 90

of the General Laws.

ARTICLE 13 - On motion by Sally M. Hoyt, Precinct 4, it was voted to authorize the Board of

Selectmen of the Town of Reading to convey and/or abandon certain rights in fee and/or

easements in Reading, Middlesex County, MA in the portion of the cul-de-sac in the public way

known as Lucy Drive which portion to be abandoned is shown on a highlighted portion of the

plan entitled "Cedarwood at Reading, Final Plan of Lucy Drive, Reading, Mass." originally dated

June 6, 1966; and to determine the minimum amount of $2 (Two Dollars) be paid for such

conveyance and/or abandonment; and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to convey or abandon

all or any part of said rights in fee and/or easements for such amount or a larger amount, and
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upon such other terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen shall consider proper and to

deliver a deed or deeds therefor if necessary.

2/3 vote required

1 14 voted in the affirmative

8 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 14 - On motion by Jonathan E. Barnes, Precinct 5, to amend the Reading Zoning By-

Laws by adding thereto the following Section 4.3. 1.2.1.:

"4.3. 1.2.1.

a. In any district, no earth which is contaminated by any hazardous or toxic material as

defined in Federal or State laws and regulations or which has any reportable

concentration of any such material as defined pursuant to said laws and regulations, or

which contains trash, refuse, rubbish, debris, stumps, branches, lumber, bricks, plaster,

wire, lath, paper, cardboard, pipe, tires, ashes, appliances, equipment, motor vehicles, or

any detrimental solid organic material, or any other similar material, or parts of any of the

foregoing shall be deposited onto or used as fill on any lot or parcel of land.

b. Earth filling shall not take place in any district if such activity:

1. Endangers the public health or safety, or constitutes a nuisance;

2. Produces noise, dust, or other effects observable at the lot lines in amounts

materially detrimental to the normal use of adjacent property;

3. Results in the transportation of materials in such a manner as to cause excessive

traffic congestion or hazards, or results in the deposit or spillage of earth onto a

street or way, or causes damage to streets or ways;

4. Results in a change in topography and cover which will increase the flow of water

onto any street, way, or parcel of land, unless otherwise duly authorized by a

Board, Commission, or officer of the Town or Commonwealth having jurisdiction

thereover;

5. Results in the violation of any Zoning ByLaw; General Bylaw; Conservation

Commission regulation, order of condition, or enforcement order; or any other

rule or regulation adopted by the Town of Reading; or

6. Occurs outside of the following hours:

Mondays through Fridays inclusive: 7:00 a m. to 6:00 p.m.

Saturdays: 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

Sundays and Legal Holidays: None."

ARTICLE 14 - On motion by Daniel A. Ensminger, Precinct 7, it was moved to table the

subject matter of Article 14.

ARTICLE 15 - On motion by Jonathan E. Barnes, Precinct 5, to amend the Reading Zoning By-

Laws by adding thereto the following Section 4. 3. 2. 9. Swimming Pools:
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"4.3 2.9. Swimming Pools

Any in-ground or above-ground outdoor swimming pool, which requires a building permit under

State Building Code, on any lot used for residential purposes shall comply with the following

requirements:

a. The pool and any appurtenant deck, patio, or other structure, shall be located entirely on

that portion of the lot lying behind the rearmost plane of the dwelling as extended to

either side property line of the lot;

b. Neither the pool nor any appurtenant deck, patio, or other structure shall be located closer

than five (5) feet to any side or rear property line of the lot; further, if the pool or any

appurtenant deck, patio, or other structure is attached to the dwelling, then neither the

pool nor any appurtenant deck, patio, or other structure shall be closer than fifteen (15)

feet to any side property line or closer than twenty (20) feet to any rear property line of

the lot;

c. The water in the pool shall not be closer than five (5) feet to any fence or structure on the

lot;

d. For safety purposes, a sturdy, non-climbable, permanent fence of between five (5) feet

and (6) feet in height shall be erected along the entire perimeter of at least the area

containing a pool, except in those areas of the perimeter where the dwelling or a structure

acts instead as a suitable barrier to access to this area; any gate in such fence shall have a

lock at a height of at least 54 inches above grade.

Any enclosed structure containing a pool and attached to the dwelling on the lot shall conform

with the requirements of Section 5.1.2. of these By-Laws; any enclosed structure containing a

pool and not attached to the dwelling on the lot shall conform with the requirements of Section

5. 2. 3. 6. of these By-Laws."

On motion by George A. Theophanis, Precinct 4, it was moved to change the word "rearmost" to

"frontmost" in Section a.

On motion by John H. Russell, Precinct 8, remove the words "fence or" in Section c.

ARTICLE 15 - On motion by Harvey J. Dahl, Precinct 8, it was moved to table Article 15.

Counted vote required

63 voted in the affirmative

55 voted in the negative

Motion to table carried.
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ARTICLE 16 - On motion by Jonathan E. Barnes, Precinct 5, it was voted to amend the Reading

Zoning By-Laws by deleting Section 5.2.1. relating to lot shape in its entirety, and substituting

therefor the following:

"5.2.1. Lot Shape

In all residence districts no lot may be construed to be a building lot unless it fully contains a

geometric shape which conforms with the following characteristics:

a. The geometric shape entirely complies with the area and frontage requirements of these

By-Laws;

b. One side of the geometric shape coincides with the street line of the lot for the entire

length and depth of the required frontage; and

c. The product of the area (in square feet) of the geometric shape multiplied by 22 is greater

than the square of the total length (in feet) of the perimeter of the geometric shape,

expressed as:

(Area of Geometric Shape) x 22 > (Perimeter of Geometric Shape) .2"

2/3 vote required

103 voted in the affirmative

6 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 17 - On motion by Jonathan E. Barnes, Precinct 5, it was voted to amend Section

5.3.2. of the Reading Zoning By-Laws relating to Overlay Districts by renumbering Section

5.3.2. 1. as Section 5.2.9. Upland Requirement, and by deleting Section 5.3.2.

2/3 vote required

104 voted in the affirmative

1 voted in the negative

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by Robert S. Salter, Precinct 4, it was moved to remove Article 2 from

the table.

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by Robert S. Salter, Precinct 4, to instruct the Town Selectmen and the

Town Water Department to allow the installation, at a home owners' option and expense, of

secondary water meters for water usage related to lawn watering and pools.

Motion did not carry,

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by George A. Theophanis, Precinct 4, it was moved to lay Article 2 on

the table.

4
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ARTICLE 1 - On motion by George A. Theophanis, Precinct 4, it was moved to remove Article

1 from the table.

ARTICLE 1 - Report of Progress - Bylaw Committee Report on Instructional Motion

accepted as a report of progress

ARTICLE I - Philip B. Pacino, Chairman of the Bylaw Committee, presented the following

Report:

The Bylaw Committee was instructed at the May 7, 1997 Special Town Meeting to

amend the Bylaws or the Home Rule Charter to make the Moderator the Chairman of the Rules

Committee and to call an Annual Meeting of the Rules Committee.

The Charter establishes the Rules Committee made up of the Precinct Chairman to

review and make recommendations for changes in the operation of Town Meeting. The Charter

requires the Rules Committee to submit an Annual Report on its findings and recommendations.

There is presently no bylaw implementing this provision of the Charter.

The Bylaw Committee has conducted a review and interviews to determine the causes of

the recent shortcomings of the Rules Committee which motivated the instructional motion and to

make recommendations to Town Meeting. This is a report of progress on that investigation.

The Rules Committee was organized in 1989 -- three years after the adoption of the

Charter. It held a total of eleven meetings and filed one Annual Report. During these meetings,

a Chairman and Clerk were elected, a set of governing principles were drawn up and a prioritized

agenda was established. This agenda contained Town Meeting operation issues the members felt

should be addressed One of these issues, three were submitted as bylaw amendments, two of

which were adopted, and four were implemented by the Moderator and Town Manager. There

have been no further meetings since March of 1990.

The Bylaw Committee feels that the Rules Committee can be an effective body to

accomplish its mission, and its composition should not be changed. Over the short period of its

activity, the Rules Committee had a significant positive impact on Town Meeting operation,

particularly in the areas of annual budget presentation and warrant report content. The Bylaw

Committee does not recommend making the Moderator the Chairman of the Rules Committee

because of a strong possibility of conflict of interest. It is felt, however, that the Moderator

should take on the role of a facilitator to get the Rules Committee to meet and organize and

ensure that the Committee does not again atrophy. To aid the Moderator in this role, the Bylaw

Committee recommends an amendment to the General Bylaws requiring an annual meeting to

reorganize and to conduct any other business it desires. The Bylaw Committee intends to submit

an instructional motion to this effect under Article 2 of this Town Meeting.

There is precedent with positive results for such a provision in the Bylaws. Section 2.2.6,

which requires annual precinct meetings, was enacted at a time when precincts went years

without meeting. All precincts now meet annually, reorganize and discuss current issues.
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The Bylaw Committee feels that once regular meetings are held through action of the Moderator,

backed by the bylaws, the Rules Committee will become an effective body and a good vehicle

for ideas from Town Meeting Members.

This is the report on the instructional motion with regard to meetings held outside

of the Town of Reading.

The District Attorney of Middlesex County in an action under the Open Meeting Law set

forth that all official bodies can have meetings outside of the Town of Reading but cannot

transact business. To transact business at a meeting held outside of the Town of Reading is a

violation of the Open Meeting Law. It is the feeling of the Bylaw Committee this covers the

situation to which the instruction motion was made. The Bylaw Committee feels that the ruling

should be followed and that a separate bylaw to address the situation is not needed.

ARTICLE 1 - On motion by George A. Theophanis, Precinct 4, it was moved to lay Article 1 on

the table.

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by George A. Theophanis, Precinct 4, it was moved to remove Article

2 from the table.

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by George A. Theophanis, Precinct 4, to instruct the Bylaw

Committee to place an Article in the Warrant for the next Annual Town Meeting amending the

General Bylaws by adding a section requiring the Rules Committee to hold at least one annual

meeting to reorganize and to conduct whatever other business it may desire.

Motion carried.

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by Mary Ellen O'Neill, Precinct 6, it was moved that Town Meeting

request the Board of Selectmen to draft a "pooper scooper" bylaw for the Town to consider at the

Annual Town Meeting in April, 1998.

Motion carried.

ARTICLE 2 - On motion by Camille W. Anthony, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was

moved to lay Article 2 on the table.

On motion by Camille W. Anthony, Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, it was voted that this

Subsequent Town Meeting stand adjourned sine die at 10:45 p.m.



ANNUAL TOWN ELECTION
March 25, 1997

Pursuant to the Warrant and the Constable's Return thereon, a General Election was held for all eight

precincts at the Hawkes Field House. The Warrant was partially read by the Town Clerk, Cheryl A.
Johnson, when on motion of Barbara I. Takach, Warden, Precinct 1, it was voted to dispense with further

reading of the Warrant except the Constable's Return, which was then read by the Town Clerk. The ballot

boxes were examined by the respective Wardens and each found to be empty and registered at - 0

The Town Clerk declared the polls open at 7:00 a.m. and closed at 8:00 p.m., with the following results:

1,354 ballots (9.28% of registered voters) cast as follows:—
Mot erator for one year - Vote for One

Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Alan E. Foulds* 153 94 79 171 120 161 146 149 1073

Other 0 1 0 2 2 0 1 2 8

Blanks 23 22 28 54 28 36 34 48 273

Total 176 117 107 227 150 197 181 199 1354
* Elected

Board of Selectmen for three years - Vote for Two
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Camille W. Anthony* 145 89 75 174 114 149 140 145 1031

jOther 1 2 2 1 1 5 2 5 19

Blanks 30 26 30 52 35 43 39 49 304

Total 176 117 107 227 150 197 181 199 1354

i*Elected

—
Board of Assessors for three Years - Vote for One

Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

jDavid R. Nugent* 142 83 75 157 110 148 135 131 981

Other 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Blanks 34 34 32 69 40 49 46 68 372

Total 176 117 107 227 150 197 181 199 1354!

“Elected
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Board of Library Trustees for three years - Vote for Two
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Cherrie M. Dubois* 146 82 71 162 110 160 141 143 1015

Maria E Silvaggi* 142 88 77 173 115 154 146 162 1057

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

[Blanks 64 64 64 119 75 80 75 93 634

Total 352 234 214 454 300 394 362 398 2708

*Elected

Boarc of Library Trustees for one year - Vote for One
Candidate Pr 1

I

Pr

2

Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Stephen M. Conner* 144 85 71 169 121 147 139 130 1006

Other 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Blanks 32 32 36 57 29 50 42 69 347

Total 176 117 107 227 150 197 181 199 1354

*Elected

Municipal Light Board for three years - Vote for One
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Allan E. Ames* 99 62 49 130 89 133 111 102 775

David M. Swyter* 90 53 60 112 75 105 115 108 718

Edward F Foley 70 65 47 64 63 64 65 65 503

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Blanks 93 54 58 148 73 92 71 122 711

Total 352 234 214 454 300 394 362 398 2708
* Elected

li

School Committee for three years - Vote for Two
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Timothy R Twomey* 122 66 70 170 100 146 127 123 924

1

George C (Chip) Hines 78 61 45 81 65 71 86 83 570

Mary E Williams* 96 70 59 123 90 130 109 117 794

! Other 2 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 6

j

Blanks 54 37 39 79 45 47 39 74 414

Total 352 234 214 454 300 394 362 398 2708
' *Elected



Town Meeting Members for three years - Vote for not more than Eight
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

James E. Barry* 136 136
AJan D. Beaulieu* 141 141

Susan Bryant Conley* 131 131

Nancy L. Eaton* 137 137

[Karol A. McLaughlin* 125 125

Maurice C. Proctor, Jr.* 127 127

Frances C. Sansalone* 129 129

Harold G. Andrews 9 9

Nancy W. Ortiz* 13 13

David Schurman 6 6

Other 8 8

[Blanks 446 446

Total 1408 1408

*Elected

Town Meeting Members or three years - Vote for not more than Eight

Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Rita C. Robertson* 89 89

Michael A. Bourque* 83 83

Paul F. Feely, Jr *
1 1

Edward F. Foley* 1 1

Richard J. Moore* 2 2

[Mary Jane Quinn* 1 1

Other 0 0

Blanks 759 759

Total 936 936

*Elected

Town Meeting Members for three years Vote for not more t ian Eight

Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

[Lois K. Bond* 76 76

Alice C. Grau* 74 74

Paul A. Johnson* 78 78

Elizabeth G Dew* 3 3

Susanne Martin* 3 3

William A Pacunas* 2

"Eugenia Zangas* 2 2

iDouglas A Bruce* 1 1

Other
—

4 4

hBlanks 613 613

Total 856 8561

*Elected
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Town Meeting Member for two years - Vote for not more t ian One
Candidate PrI Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

John L Casey, Jr
*

1
1

Other 3 3

Blank 103 103

,Total 107 107

*Elected

Town Meeting Members for three years Vote for not more t ian Eight
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Jonathan Edwards* 149 149

Glen M Hartzler* 136 136

Leora E. (Lee) Roberts* 154 - • 154

[Everett J Roscoe, Jr * 119 119

fedward G. Smethurst* 136 136

Michele A. Carrick* 132 132

Mark W. Jackson* 119 119

[Richard E. McDonald* 136 136

[Karen T. Roscoe 104 104

Other 4 4

[Blanks 627 627

Total 1816 1816

*Elected

Town Meeting Members for three years - Vote for not more t ban Eight

Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Camille W. Anthony* 104 104

[Brevard S. Garrison* 90 90

Lawrence E. Mabius* 100 100

Ann Caufield Ward* 103 103

Matthew L. Wilson* 92 92

Patrick M. Fennelly* 106 106

George C. (Chip) Hines* 92 92

William O. Stroman* 104 104

Other 2 2

Blanks 407 407

Total 1200 1200
1 *Elected

Town Meeting Member for two years - Vote for not more than One
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr_6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Loretta E. Cavagnaro* 2 2

Other 9 9

Blank 139 139

Total 150 150

*Elected .
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Town Meeting Members for three years - Vote for not more t ban Eight
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Stephen J. Blewitt* 116 116
[Robert A. Brown* 106 106

Christopher Campbell* 116 116

Stephen A. Chapman* 97 97
Ralph A. Colorusso* 88 88

Thomas J. Green, Jr * 105 105

Robert R. Lynch* 113 113

Jacquelyn A. Mandell* 101 101

Michael P. Flammia 82 82

Charles I. Peacock 87 87

Other 2 2

Blanks 563 563

Total 1576 1576

*Elected

Town Meeting Member or one year - Vote for not more than One
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Kevin M. Douglas* 141 141

Other 0 0

Blank 56 56

Total 197 197

*Elected

Town Meeting Members for three years - Vote for not more t ian Eight

Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

Cathy Ellen Commito* 150 150

Mark H. Johnson* 141 141

Richard W. Schubert* 134 134

C. Dutile-Redfeam* 128 128

[Norman F. Kozlowski* 9 9

Matthew J. Nestor* 5 5

Rose E. Hines* 4 4

Douglas R Cowell* 1 1

Other 12 12

Blanks 864 864

'Total 1448 1448
1 *Elected

Town Meeting Member for one year - Vote for not more than One
Candidate Pr 1 Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

William F Crowley* 141 141

Other 0 0

Blank 40 40

Total • 181 181

*Elected
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Town Meeting Members for three years - Vote for not more t ian Eight
Candidate PrI Pr 2 Pr 3 Pr 4 Pr 5 Pr 6 Pr 7 Pr 8 Total

pPeter Grossman* 119 119

[Frederick F. Martin* 127 127

Frederick Van Magness,Jr* 136 136

John K. Downing* 124 124

[Nancy Gadzuk Drexler* 126 126

[Francis P. Gorgone* 117 117

Gloria R. Hulse* 23 23

[Joanna Hulse* 20 20

Kendra JG Cooper 15 15

Other 10 10

planks 775 775

[Total 1592 1592

||*Elected

A true copy. Attest:

Cheryl A Johnson, Town Clerk.
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READING PUBLIC LIBRARY

STILL A PLACE FOR BOOKS AND READERS

In an average month, the Reading Public Library gets over 20,500 visits. Last summer,

many of those were from members of the Library’s medieval-themed reading clubs: the Kingdom

ofRead-a-lot for infants through six-graders, the Middle Pages for middle- and high-schoolers,

and The Once and Future Book for adults—all supported by the generous and hardworking

Friends of the Library. Jesters, troubadours, minstrels, and a papier-mache dragon enlivened the

general atmosphere of fun. A big thanks goes to the young volunteers who helped us during the

hectic activity of the summer months (including Saturday hours for the first time!).

The summer reading clubs are always a highlight of the year for us but our everyday

business is very rewarding too. In 1997, we lent over 200,000 items for adults and almost

120,000 for kids—more than any previous year. Librarians answered over 40,000 questions on

all kinds of topics. We helped a woman calling from Mississippi find information about her birth

mother, and a stroke victim get guidance on how to manage with the use of only one hand.

Innumerable parents were directed to our list of licensed daycare providers. We got a passport

application from the Internet for a time-constrained traveler. A frantic grandmother, about to

drive to Maryland with her grandson, was given a batch of audiobooks guaranteed to keep them

both entertained.

Continuing our work with the Reading schools, one hundred and twenty collections of

books were selected and shipped to classrooms to supplement school resources. We obtained

books in Chinese for a man from Shanghai who was visiting his son in town. And we welcomed

a man who had suffered severe anxiety for years and was visiting the Library as the first step to

getting his life back together. Nearly 10,000 people attended the three hundred free programs

organized by the Children’s Room staff: story times, sing-alongs, class tours, booktalks, and

more. Our monthly book discussion groups grew to three: two for adults and one for kids.

Story times for two-year-olds were doubled due to demand. Paul Zindel, a perennial

favorite author of young adolescents, visited the Library and the middle schools for three days in

April in a jointly run event. The Library’s Bibliobites Cafe opened last year, managed by the

Friends of the Library and supplied by “The Hot Spot,” and quickly became a favorite spot for a

cup of coffee and a read. There’s still a lot at the Library for book lovers!

USING NEW TECHNOLOGY TO LEARN

In a collaboration with Media One, the Library installed two computers with high-speed

Internet access, in addition to the fourteen computers already connected through the Library’s

existing NOBLE network. Internet classes for adults and seniors filled up quickly, and

evaluations were very positive: the instructors are “knowledgeable and non-threatening.” One
suggestion for improvement: “serve wine and cheese!”

Children’s librarians taught Internet classes for elementary students, and Read-a-lot '

s

weekly trivia questions motivated Internet use for kids in Grade 4 and up. Through the Netguide

program, high school students taught other students how to use the Internet.
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Library users began to use our e-mail service and our Website to ask questions, request

books, and renew library materials from home. Card holders reaching us through the Internet

searched for and printed out magazine articles from home. Project Place
,
a part of our Website

done in cooperation with Reading teachers, made major assignments available to kids using the

Internet at home or in the Library.

PRESERVING OUR HISTORY, ENSURING OUR FUTURE

Working with members of the Historical Commission and the Antiquarian Society,

Librarians inventoried the local history and genealogy collection. With a $1200 grant from the

Town’s Celebration Trust, they arranged for the rebinding and care of sixty-five of our most

important and fragile local history volumes.

In 1997, the Reading Public Library Foundation, Inc. inaugurated an endowment fund to

supplement municipal funding for the Library. Donations will enhance the collection, maintain

the quality of library services, and expand programs to encourage lifelong learning.

The Library has over 20,000 card holders. We hope you’re among them—come and see

what we have for you!
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Fire activity in Reading increased slightly in 1997. There were two large loss residential

fires. One was on Glidden Way and the second was on Mill Street. In one instance, the

activation of smoke detectors gave early warning to the occupants who then notified the Fire

Department to respond sooner and thus avoid a total loss.

The role of the Fire Department has continued to evolve over the years. The traditional

wait for a fire and then extinguish it has gone the way of the typewriter. There is still a need for

this service; however, the more modem Fire Department is capable of delivering a multitude of

emergency and non-emergency services. In 1997, this Department responded to 19 fires in

residences, 29 automobile fires, 36 brush fires, 33 calls for natural gas problems, 66 calls for

electrical problems, 7 dumpster fires, 63 oil burner malfunctions and 60 calls for lockouts. In

addition, there were 84 calls for mutual aid ambulance response from other communities. We
also received 95 mutual aid ambulance responses from other communities.

This Department provided mutual aid fire assistance during 1997 as required by

agreement. There were 75 requests for mutual aid from eight different communities. Several of

these requests for assistance were for major multiple alarm fires. This Department performed

extremely well under very trying circumstances during these fires.

The Fire Prevention function of this Department received a much-needed revival with the

hiring of the new Assistant Chief. Since the beginning of August, the inspections that this

Department was required to perform have been conducted in a more thorough and timely manner

due to the new position.

The Reading Fire Department conducted over 750 inspections which included 54 fire

alarm systems, 469 residential smoke detector operation, 142 oil burner installations, 29 liquid

propane installations, and over 120 inspections of schools, nursing homes and construction sites.

Along with these, there v/ere 34 underground oil storage tanks removed for a total of 29,675

gallons. This ongoing program needs constant oversight to help in protecting the water supply in

our community.

Much is unknown about the future of construction projects in the community. Discussion

continues at numerous large-scale school projects, a new Police Station and the development of

the Reading Business Park. The reconstruction of the Downtown area includes both roadways

and commercial buildings. These projects must have constant monitoring to ensure the safety of

all Reading citizens.

The School Fire Prevention and Education Program continues to be an important part of

the mission of this Department. Again, this Department made a successful grant application to

the Commonwealth of Massachusetts S.A.F.E. Program. The grant in the amount of $5,185 is

less than last year. It will, however, allow us to continue this very worthwhile program. Last

year, the Fire Department S.A.F.E. educators made over 30 classroom visits which allowed them

to reach over 650 elementary students. The Fire Safety House Trailer was used for most all of

these visits. Along with the in-school programs, the S.A.F.E. educators were able to reach

another 900 adults and children through community presentations, health fairs, the Fire

Department Open House and Fire Station tours. The feedback from the public shows that this

program has been successful in promoting the anti-smoking/fire safety message.

A number of major construction projects have been completed or are nearing completion

in the community. These projects have been monitored by the Fire Prevention Office for fire

code compliance.
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Through the diligent efforts of the Assistant Chief, a large apartment complex that is

undergoing renovation has agreed to tie all of their buildings into the municipal fire alarm

system. This will allow a more rapid emergency response notification.

The Emergency Medical Services provided by the Fire Department are second to none in

all of Massachusetts. In 1997, our Emergency Medical Coordinator, Lt. Paul Guarino, continued

his bi-monthly BLS case review program which has assisted in enhancing the quality of care

given by members of this Department. Lieutenant Guarino also coordinated a 28-hour

Department of Transportation Refresher Course for all emergency medical technicians. This

course dealt with subjects such as legal aspects of providing emergency services, mass casualty

training, anatomy and physiology, trauma and neurological assessment and toxicological

emergencies.

We continue to provide recertification classes in semi-automatic defibrillation and

cardiopulmonary resuscitation. All department personnel participate in a number of very intense

training courses which enables them to meet the requirements of the Commonwealth of

Massachusetts. Members of this Department, under the direction of Firefighter/EMT David Roy,

have conducted 12 Community CPR courses allowing 112 Reading citizens to become CPR
certified. Fie also coordinated six CPR courses to School Department personnel. This allowed

68 teachers, teacher aides, nurses and custodians to become CPR certified. The Department

provided seven Chokesaver classes to 22 restaurant workers and business owners. Members of

this Department conducted two classes for the Food Service workers in the School Department.

During these classes, 33 participants were taught valuable lessons of first aid and fire safety.

Training classes for firefighters were conducted by the Boston Gas Company personnel.

The classes instruction consisted of emergency response to natural gas emergencies. Amkus
extrication classes were conducted upon receipt of this new rescue tool. Epi-pen training classes

for all personnel were conducted in December.

Three members of this Department, the Fire Chief, Lt. Guarino and Firefighter Boisvert

attended five days of hazardous materials training provided by the Department of Transportation.

This training on CAMEO (Computer Aided Management of Emergency Operations) is

particularly critical due to the significant amount of hazardous materials transportation via

Interstates 95 and 93.

There were two very significant periods of time that impacted heavily on this

Department. The first was the April 1 blizzard during which there were more than 25 storm-

related emergencies at the height of the storm. The most difficult call was for a tree that fell

through the roof of a house causing considerable damage. The second time period was the first

three days of August. During this time, there were six major woods fires. These fires consumed

many acres of woodlands and required the assistance of mutual aid from North Reading,

Wakefield, Lynnfield, Wilmington, Stoneham, Middleton, Woburn, Somerville and Tewksbury.

The communities of Cambridge and Billerica covered our stations during this emergency. On
several occasions, these woods fires came very close to impacting houses on the edge of the

woods. All told, these fires took the equivalent of 685 man-hours to extinguish.
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.L

On the personnel front. Firefighter Paul Murphy retired on June 30 after 29 years of

service. Captain John Mooney was appointed Assistant Chief on July 28
th

. Rick Nelson was

appointed Firefighter on July 14
th

. Lieutenant Greg Bums was promoted on July 28
th

to the rank

of Provisional Captain pending the results of a Civil Service Examination which was taken in

November. Firefighter Paul Guarino was promoted to the rank of Lieutenant on September 15
th

.

The Fire Alarm System in Reading continues to be in excellent condition. The care and

maintenance given to this system by our two dedicated Fire Alarm repairmen is responsible for

this condition. New and remodeled commercial buildings have been tied into the existing Fire

Alarm System by way of Master Boxes. This will allow more rapid response in the event of a

fire emergency.

The Emergency Management functions of this Department continue to require a

significant amount of time of the Chiefs office. It is hoped that with a little more time getting

into his new position, the Assistant Chief will begin to have time available to help in this area.

The Emergency Management Plan for the Town of Reading must be renewed. This process has

begun but will not be completed until at least February of 1998. We continue to meet all the

requirements of MEMA and FEMA in order that we may remain qualified to receive

reimbursements as a result of natural disaster. During 1997, this Department coordinated the

reimbursement process with Public Works and the School Department to obtain funds from both

FEMA and MEMA as a result of flooding which occurred in October of 1996.

During 1997, the Reading Fire Department Capital Plan allowed for the addition of the

following equipment: A new Jaws-of-Life type rescue tool, all new self-contained breathing

apparatus, a Chiefs vehicle and a significant amount of the Opti-Com Traffic Control System.

FIRE DEPARTMENT ROSTER

CHIEF:
Donald L. Wood

ASSISTANT CHIEF:
John T. Mooney

CAPTAINS:
Kenneth N. Campbell, Jr.

Gordon E. Sargent

Stephen A. Ballou

Acting Captain: Gregory J. Bums

LIEUTENANTS :

William F. Campbell

Paul F. Guarino

Paul D Jackson

Peter L. Marchetti

178 .



Fire Department

FIREFIGHTERS:

Anthony J. Gentile

James A. Stevenson

Roger C. Quimby

Arthur H. Vars

Philip G. Dole

David C. Bishop

Francis P. Driscoll

Robert L. Beck

James M. Hennessy

Stephen K. Murphy

Philip B. Boisert

Matthew McSheehy
Daniel W. Cahoon

Stephen W. Lewko
Richard A. Puopolo

Michael K. Holmes

Perry M. RafTi

Robert J. Jutras

David A. Robidoux

Anthony DelSignore

David M. Roy

Robert McCarthy

Mark F. Dwyer
Patrick Wallace

Brian D. Ryan

David T. Ballou

Stephen Pelrine

David Gentile

Willilam Van Horn

Richard L.S. Nelson

Wayne J. Bell, Mechanic Cynthia Keenan, Secretary

Statistics for 1997:

Permit Fees Collected $ 14,593.00

Ambulance Fees Collected $183,048.79

Bell Alarms 500

Still Alarms 1630

Emergency Ambulance Calls 1381

Inspections 827
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The Reading Police Department consists of thirty-eight members at the end of December,

1997. The Chief, three Lieutenants, one Lieutenant Detective, one Sergeant Detective, five

Sergeants, three Detectives, one Safety Officer, one Armorer, one D A R E. Officer and twenty-

one Patrol Officers.

The new Police Station location has been approved at Union Street.

The Police-Fire Central Dispatch Unit has been in full operation for the past six years and

eight months. We currently have seven full-time dispatchers and five part-time, dispatchers.

The E-911 System has been on-line for 2 full years now and is definitely an asset to the

community.

Along with the Community Policing Academy, directed by Lt. Michael Cloonan, the

Student Citizen Police Academy has been in operation for 1 year in February. The Reading

Police Department received a grant for this program and it has been well accepted within the

community. There are classes given in Domestic Violence, Dispatch Procedures, Community

Policing, Accident Investigation, Patrol Procedures, D.W.I. arrests. Firearms, Fingerprinting and

other related law enforcement topics.

Officer Hobart Nelson retired in October of this year. Officer David Richard resigned in

October. Sgt. Dick Robbins was promoted to Lieutenant and Joan Puopolo retired. Several

candidates were interviewed to replace 2 retired officers.

Intensive training for all officers of the Department continues, and includes one week

training sessions at the Regional Police Institute in Tewksbury, certification in First Aid and First

Responder, training in the use of rifles and shotguns and day and night shootings at the Police

Range. Since subscribing to L.E.T.N. (Law Enforcement Training Network) on Cable TV, many
programs have been taped and viewed for our "in house" training programs.

The Special Operations Unit of the Northeastern Massachusetts Law Enforcement

Council Tactical Police Force, commanded by Lieutenant Robert J. Silva, was used on several

occasions this year. The N.E.M.L.E.C. Special Operations Unit (SOU) was the host of the "1997

New England SWAT Challenge". Over one hundred and sixty experienced Police Officers from

twenty SWAT Teams and eight Northeastern States, including SWAT Teams from Federal,

County and State agencies, attended a variety of training seminars. The "1997 New England

Swat Challenge" provided a forum in which to compete, train and share experiences that

benefited all that attended. All those that attended are looking forward to next year’s

competition.

The Detective Division procedures for the State's new Sex Offender has been in effect for

1 year. This law went into effect in October and requires sex offenders living within the

community to register with the local Police Department. The law requires filing forms, taking

photographs and fingerprints and submitting offender's information to the Criminal History

Systems Board.

During 1997, the Reading Police Honor Guard received funding from the public and

private sector. We were able to increase the number of officers assigned to the unit and properly

uniform them. The unit trains monthly and feels it is well prepared to represent the Police

Department and the Town.
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Complementing our regular Police Department is our force of School Traffic Guards,

under the direction of Safety Officer Joseph Veno. These Crossing Guards, who supervise the

crossing of children on their way to and from school at various locations about Town, have

proved to be devoted to their duties and are great assets to the Town.

We have continued our involvement with the Governors Alliance Against Drugs Program

which was initiated in 1986 to bring awareness of the problems of drugs with our school age

children. The D A R E. Program which was initiated in Reading through a grant had a very

successful second year. D.A.R.E. Officer, David Stamatis, presented the D A R E, curriculum to

all fourteen fifth grade classes, with focuses on helping enhance self-esteem, and providing the

skills for recognizing and resisting social pressures to experiment with tobacco, alcohol and

drugs. In addition to the fifth grade classes, kindergarten classes have started October 20, 1997.

In May, the D.A.R.E. Program hosted a Golf Tournament at the Hillview Country Club. Money
was raised in support of the program. Officer Leone Sullivan has been selected to replace Sgt.

David Stamatis as D.A.R.E. Officer.

The Police Department held its first RAD (Rape Aggression Defense System) Course in

February. The course is given free of charge to Reading residents due to moneys received

through the Community Policing Grant. It is taught by certified RAD Police Officers.

The Department is indebted to Crest Buick of Woburn for donating a Buick sedan for the

use of our Safety Officer.

The following are the arrests and services performed:

1997:

Arrests 263

Persons held in Protective Custody 47

Motor Vehicle Violations 7,058

Parking Violations 2,700

Juveniles Apprehended 18

Detective Criminal Cases 145

Auto Accidents Investigated 540

Fees Collected — Fiscal 97 :

Revolver Permits $1,970.00

Firearms Identification Cards $192.00

Police Reports Copied $1,416.00

Parking Fines $30,220.00

Court Fines $39,250.00

Administrative Fees for Details $20,703.00

Parking Permits $15,524.00

Civil Infractions $51,200.00
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Motorized Equipment:

2 1996 Ford Sedan

5 1995 Ford Sedans

2 1994 Ford Sedans

2 1993 Ford Sedan

1 1991 Ford Sedans

1 1988 Ford Van (ACO Van)

1 1978 Chevy Van

1 1977 Dodge Pick-up

1 1996 Harley Davidson Motorcycle (Leased)

1 1996 Crime Van

I would like to thank the Town Meeting Members, and especially the citizens of

the Town, for the support they have shown their Police Department during the past year.

Respectfully submitted,

Edward W. Marchand

Chief of Police

POLICE DEPARTMENT ROSTER

CHIEF:
Edward W. Marchand

LIEUTENANTS:
Robert J. Silva, Executive Officer

N. Kevin Patterson, Lieutenant Detective

Michael P. Cloonan, Lieutenant

Richard W. Robbins, Lieutenant

SERGEANT-DETECTIVE:
William F. Keefe

SERGEANTS:
Bruce F. Russell

David M. Stamatis

Patrick M. O’Brien

Peter C. Garchinsky

Mark J. O’Brien
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PATROLMAN-DETECTIVES:
David E. Saunders

William A. Pacunas

Robert F. Flynn

SAFETY OFFICER:
Joseph R. Veno

ARMORER:
Paul G. Peoples

D.A.R.E. OFFICER:
Leone M. Sullivan

PATROL OFFICERS:
Walter R. Franklin

Robert J. Moreschi

Pasquale M. Iapicca

Michael D. Saunders

John T. Kyle

Norman E. Perry

Mark D. Segalla

Larry E. Frederick

Charles J. Lentini

Christopher J. Voegelin

James P. Collins

Francis G. Duclos

David V. Savio

Derek Holmes

Peter R O'Brien

James W. Cormier

John McKenna
Anthony F. Caturello

Matthew C. Edson

David J. Clark

Chistopher R. Picco
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ANIMAL CONTROL

Calls Received: 4,392

Complaints 2,000

Uncontrolled Dogs 1,000

Barking Dogs 200

Vicious Dogs 2

Dog Bites 40

Wildlife 1000

Other 150

Information:

Lost Dogs 200

Found Dogs 79

Injured Dogs 17

Lost Cats 78

Found Cats 40

Abuse Calls 3

Total Number of Dogs Picked Up
Impounded Dogs Returned 32

Impounded Dogs Placed 4

Impounded Cats 40

Action Taken:

Verbal Warnings Numerous

Written Warnings 20

Citations Issued 270

Unlic. Dogs

Unrestrained Dogs
Court Hearings 1

Rabies:

Wildlife Tested 18

Tested Positive 7

Animal Inspector: Quarantines 65

Informational Talks 3
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Director's Comments
The gasoline spill on Route 93, which occurred on September 30, 1992, continues to

affect the operations of the Public Works Department, and the Town in general. We continue to

work with the Department of Environmental Protection(DEP), Cumberland Farms/Gulf, and our

consulting firm Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc. in cleaning up the spill site and working

toward activating all our water production wells. We look forward to the day when we will have

relief from the mandatory water restrictions now in effect.

Department personnel were actively involved as members, or liaisons, of the following:

Professional Development Committee; Community Planning and Development Commission;

Conservation Commission; Development Review Team; Parking, Traffic and Transportation

Task Force; Police Station Building Committee; DPW Operations Task Force; Town Forest

Committee; Swimming Pool Task Force; Cemetery Board of Trustees; Safety Committee;

Personnel Evaluation Committee; MWRA Advisory Board; Ipswich River Watershed Advisory

Board; Reading Business Park Committee; Water and Sewer Advisory Committee and the Solid

Waste Advisory Committee.

We have assisted other Departments throughout the year on many projects and programs

and have been fortunate to have the cooperation and support of other Departments within the

Town.

I would like to thank Mike DeBrigard for taking on the supervision of Municipal

building maintenance in recent years. The "temporary" situation continued much longer than

anticipated and he took on the challenge as he has others - with confidence, dedication and

conviction. In addition to his regular job as Supervisor of Highway and Equipment Maintenance,

he brought the Building Maintenance Division into the transition to where it is now consolidated

into a Building Maintenance Division under the School Department.

The Public Works Department, as of July 1, 1997, is responsible for grounds maintenance

(under the Parks/Forestry Division) and pavement maintenance (under the Highway Division) on

school property. We look forward to continue working with School Department personnel in

developing an improved maintenance program.

I would again like to thank Conservation Administrator Donald Nadeau for the many

hours he has dedicated to working with this Department and DEP on the residuals handling and

wetlands restoration projects at the Water Treatment Plant.

The Department also appreciates the cooperation and efforts of the Police Department in

the monitoring and enforcement of the water use restrictions and snow plowing/removal

operations.

In the area of personnel, the Department was pleased to welcome Alan Allen, Daniel Tine

and Thomas Gardiner - Operators in the Water Supply and Treatment Division, Fred Jackson -

Field Technician and Jack Sullivan - Assistant Civil Engineer in the Engineering Division,

William O'Brien - Laborer in the Cemetery Division and Deborah Malonson - Principal Clerk in

the Water and Sewer Division. The Department would also like to thank this years retirees for

their years of service: Alvin Opland (38 years) and Margaret Howe (14 years).
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There continues to be a good cooperative effort on planned and emergency projects by

the Divisions within the Department, in particular the development of Wood End Cemetery and

Park facilities improvements. Because of this effort we are able to provide good quality service

to other Town government departments and to the general public. It is a pleasure working with

the dedicated and devoted staff and I thank them for their effort.

Respectfully submitted,

Edward D. Mclntire, Jr.

Director of Public Works

Administration Comment
The Administration Division supported the Department with procurement administration,

water and sewer billing, budget preparation and coordination, departmental personnel and

payroll services, accounts payable processing, cemetery administration services and responses to

public inquiries and concerns over Public Works area of responsibility. The water restriction

publicity and enforcement effort of this summer, plus growing concerns over our water supply,

continued as highly visible issues. These concerns now included the future health of the Ipswich

River Basin as a supply source as well as the lingering effects of the 1992 gas spill. Inquires

were handled promptly and capably under often dynamic circumstances. This year has seen

major progress in several program areas: the Water Treatment Plant residuals holding tank

construction was completed and operation initiated; the first phase of the Parks refurbishment

project was completed and the renovation of the Parker Middle School Soccer Field initiated; the

consolidation of the Central Town Facilities Maintenance operation was begun; the renovations

to Library, Town Hall and Fire Station air handling systems were designed, bid and partially

completed; the selection of the Police Station architect was accomplished; and Police Station

Building Committee work on the initial design and cost estimates was supported.

Cemetery Division

To the Board of Cemetery Trustees

The following is from office records for calendar year 1997:

Interments: 123 Interments for all years: 12,522

Markers Set: 76 Foundations: 13 Monuments Reset: 31

Sale of Lots

Forest Glen : 3 Lots, 0 Single Grave, Total for all years - 1993 Lots - 795 Single Graves.

Charles Lawn: 37 Lots, 3 Single and Veteran's Graves, Total for all years - 43 1 Lots -

191 Single and Veteran's Graves.

Wood End ; 18 Lots, Total for all years - 18 Lots.
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Development

Wood End Cemetery - Wood End Cemetery was dedicated on October 5, 1997. The Cemetery
is now open for lot sales and interments. The Cemetery’s second phase is still under

development and will be completed in 1998.

Cooperation from other divisions of Public Works was outstanding and much
appreciated. The Board of Cemetery Trustees has been very supportive of all the numerous
programs and goals of this division. I thank them for all their assistance.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert L. Keating, Supervisor

Custodian Of Veteran’s Graves - Calendar Year 1997

Interments: WWI - 0 WWII - 12 Korea - 2 Vietnam - 0 Peace - 0

Total of all Veterans interred - 1418. As has been the custom for many years, all Veteran's

graves were decorated with a flag and a potted flower for Memorial Day.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Driscoll, Custodian of Soldiers and Sailors Graves.

Engineering Division

The Engineering Division provides engineering services to all Departments within the

Town of Reading. The Division is responsible for: preparation of plans, specifications and

estimates for Town construction projects; survey layout, inspection and supervision of Town
construction projects; review of subdivision plans for accuracy and conformance with the

subdivision rules and regulations; inspection of subdivision construction; administration of the

Chapter 90 program; maintenance of all records concerning the subdivision of land, roadway

construction, and water, sewer and drainage construction; and issuance of various permits.

Major construction projects completed in 1997 included reconstruction of Summer
Avenue from Main Street to Brook Street and the reconstruction of the Depot parking lot. New
sidewalks were constructed on North Main Street from Fairchild Drive to the North Reading

Town line. The sidewalk construction program continued with sidewalks and curb being

constructed in various locations around Town. The Route 129 project went out to bid during

1997 and construction will begin in the spring of 1998. The Mineral Street Bridge construction

has begun with an anticipated completion date in mid-summer 1998. A significant amount of

support was lent to the Cemetery Division for the layout and construction of the Wood End

Cemetery. Construction inspection was conducted on 79 new connections to the Town sewer

system.

187 .



Department of Public Works

Significant progress has been made in the design of upcoming projects. Preliminary

design was completed on Walnut Street with final plans to be completed during the winter of

1998. The West Street Corridor redesign has been initiated with the majority of design work to

be done during 1998. Plans have been prepared for the library parking lot project with expected

construction in the spring of 1998. Plans have been prepared for the Longwood Road sewer

project with construction beginning in April 1998. Conceptual plans for athletic fields at the

Nike Base on Symonds way have been prepared.

Subdivision activity slowed during 1997. Six subdivisions are under constructions with

three more either under review or recently approved.

Forestry And Parks Division

Fifty-three public shade trees were removed, most being dead or in a dangerous

condition, three were removed due to storm damage.

Tree trimming has been continued as aggressively as possible, but the lack of personnel

has continued to hinder this program.

Twenty-seven trees were planted on private and public property as replacements.

Thirteen were planted on new subdivisions by the developers. The Tree Nursery established at

Strout Avenue has been very successful and some of these trees will be plantable for the 1998

season.

The Town of Reading again qualified for Tree City, U S A. for the twelfth straight year.

The Holiday lights on the Common again proved to be an inspirational success.

The Division continues to maintain approximately 64 acres of grassed areas throughout

the Town and also the facilities within the Parks and School athletic fields. This includes

complete renovation of ball diamonds and recreational fields under Capital Improvement. A
complete crew of Forestry and Parks personnel are required to complete these programs in a

timely fashion. A complete new irrigation system has been installed at Birch Meadow tennis

court field, Parker Jr. High soccer field, and Washington Park . To further enhance the quality of

turf grass, a contractor has been hired to maintain weed control, turf fertilization, lime and

overseeding applications. The general maintenance of the parks and Forestry Division includes

the upkeep of five playgrounds in Public Parks and six in School locations and the upkeep of

Imagination Station. School ground maintenance was taken over by the Forestry and Parks

Department. Killiam School ball field was rebuilt and Little League Park was rebuilt to some

degree. Fifty percent of Parker Jr. High soccer field was resodded with the other fifty percent to

be completed in the spring of 1998.

The Division maintains sixteen Tennis and Basketball courts. The Birch Meadow Tennis

and Basketball courts have been contracted for complete repair of fence and macadam. Included

in maintenance are 1 1 ball diamonds, 64 acres of grass cutting, leaf raking and Park cleaning

programs, the maintenance of five skating areas as weather permits, the maintenance of the

Strout Avenue Compost and Tree Nursery area, to assist all Town Departments, Committees and

Commissions with tree maintenance and winter snow and ice removal.
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Report of the Tree Warden and Superintendent of Insect Pest Control.

I submit my report at Tree Warden and Superintendent of Insect Pest control for 1997.

Fifty-three public shade trees were removed, most being dead or in a dangerous

condition. Other large historic trees are fast becoming victims of road and sidewalk

reconstruction.

Deadwood and low branches have been removed from the public trees as requested or as

scouted. There were 15,500 colored bulbs installed on the Common for the Christmas holidays.

Twenty-seven trees were planted on private and public property as replacements and as

requested. A greater interest from homeowners to accept Town shade trees on their property is

needed, as our roadside tree lawns do not allow sufficient ground space for tree survival.

The Town of Reading was awarded "Tree City US. A." for the twelfth consecutive year

by the National Arbor Day Foundation. 400 Douglas trees were purchased and distributed to all

5th graders.

Thanks to the Reading Rotary Club that has sponsored and assisted in this program to

make "Arbor Day 1997" a success in Reading. Special thanks to those Committees and

Commissions working toward the preservation of Reading's Public shade trees.

Respectfully submitted,

Irving E. Dickey, Jr.

Tree Warden, I.P C.

Highway Division

The normal projects such as street sweeping, tree lawn replacement, sidewalk and street

maintenance, mixing and sifting of loam and compost, cleaning catch basins and maintaining

traffic signs and school flashers were done on a normal basis. Because of the surprise

snowstorm of April 1
st

,
and the subsequent brush pickup, our spring start up was pushed back a

month. Street sweeping was started May 1
st

and finished June 6
th

.

Special Projects:

Processed 6,000 yards of gravel and filled the back of Wood End Cemetery, then graded

the area.

Filled the lot at Barrows School for the portable classroom, and removed the hot top from

the portable classroom at Killam School.

Raised the structures and hot-topped Briarwood Road, John Carver Road, Hartshorn

Street, and Jacob Way.

Hauled in material and graded the Compost Site.

Cut fields for the Conservation Commission.

Picked up and hauled brush after the April snowstorm.

Vehicle Maintenance

Servicing and repairs continue throughout the year, handling all divisions plus School

Department and Council on Aging. With a working Capital Plan in place the department is able

to retire the older pieces of equipment. The problem still continues with the parts increasing in

price faster than the budget.
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Snow And Ice

The Division sanded 21 times and plowed 4 times through the winter of 96/97. The

Division added another V2 mile to the sidewalk plowing routes, and will continue to work with

the Schools to monitor additional sidewalks for plowing.

Water And Sewer Distribution Division

Water Distribution

The Water Division installed a total of 44 new water services, replaced 38 old services,

repaired 7 service leaks, replaced 12 new hydrants, repaired 5 broken hydrants, rebuilt 64

hydrants, installed 6” sprinkler line into Light Department building, repaired Emerald Drive

booster station, piped 6” sprinkler line at Osco Drug, piped 2” service at Osco Drug, hauled

snow from square during snow storms, assisted Tree Department for 3 weeks picking up trees,

hydrant flushing program completed, shoveled snow from hydrants, moved 1 hydrant for

construction, turned on all drinking fountains and sprinklers, installed 2” service on Franklin

Street, installed backflow preventers at all parks, water inventory, lowered and raised water gates

for construction jobs, cleaned lagoon at pumping station, 2 summer help painted hydrants over 'A

of Town, installed 6” water main on Pasture Road, water service at Barrows School portable

classroom, hot topping all water trenches, loam and seeded all water jobs, blew out all sprinklers

in parks, installed 2” water service at Parker and Pearl Street Schools, made 60 new snow signs,

completed 1,000 feet of capital water main jobs.

Meter Room
The regular quarterly water meter reading cycle was supported, plus 463 work orders

received, and completed. 11 meters were removed, 27 meters were repaired, 15 were reset.

Meters recording correctly 14, meters recording incorrectly 6, and 1 meter junked.

Sewer Distribution

Division personnel checked 11 lift stations daily, cleaned approximately 1/4 of the

sanitary sewer main system, the wet wells were pumped and cleaned, cleaned and maintained the

grounds, cutting grass, trimmed bushes etc., around the sewer stations and completed work

orders re: leaks, broken gates etc.

Louanis Water Treatment Plant

A total of 723,048,000 gallons of water was delivered to the distribution system in 1997.

The highest single days consumption was 3,400,000 gallons on June 11, 1997 and the

highest weeks consumption was for the period July 27, to August 2, 1997 an amount of

21,203,000 gallons.

Average daily pumpage was 1,980,953 gallons.

Monitoring, testing, and remediation efforts continued at the gasoline spill site on Route

93. Test pumping and sampling of additional production wells continued.

Again, for the 8^ consecutive year, the plant received a certificate of recognition from

the Department of Public Health, for Outstanding Efforts in Providing Community Water

Fluoridation.
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The new residuals handling tank was placed into service in November; treatment plant

residuals are now being discharged into the MWRA sewer system and the Town is recycling

approximately 25 million gallons of water per year from the handling tank.

Reading's drinking water again passed the Environmental Protection Agency, National

Primary Drinking Water Regulations for Lead and Copper.

The finished water flow meter was replaced.

Contracts Awarded:

Water Treatment Plant Roof Replacement
Auburn Street Standpipe Repair and Painting Plans and Specifications

Bedrock Well Fracture Trace Study

Water Quality Investigation

Revay Well Pump Replacement

Lime System Tank Linings

Fluoride Monitoring Analyzer

1997 PUMPING RECORDS

MONTH PUMPAGE DAYS AVERAGE DAY
JANUARY 53,213,000 31 1,716,548

FEBRUARY 47,968,000 28 1,713,143

MARCH 54,424,000 31 1,755,613

APRIL 55,108,000 30 1,836,933

MAY 56,545,000 31 1,824,032

JUNE 79,310,000 30 2,643,667

JULY 79,112,000 31 2,552,000

AUGUST 67,318,000 31 2,171,548

SEPTEMBER 58,321,000 30 1,944,033

OCTOBER 55,793,000 31 1,799,774

NOVEMBER 55,111,000 30 1,837,033

DECEMBER 60,825,000 31 1,962,097

TOTAL 723,048,000 365 1,980,953
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1997 RAINFALL RECORDS

MONTH RAINFALL
INCHES

ACCUMULATED
TOTAL INCHES

NORMAL
INCHES

JANUARY 2.79 2.79 3.69

FEBRUARY 1.78 4.57 3.54

MARCH 5.47 10.04 4.01

APRIL 5.03 15.07 3.49

MAY 2.93 18 3.47

JUNE 1.22 19.22 3.19

JULY 2.02 21.24 2.74

AUGUST 3.38 24.62 3.46

SEPTEMBER 2.53 27.15 3.16

OCTOBER 1.69 28.84 3.02

NOVEMBER 6.77 35.61 4.51

DECEMBER 3.82 39.43 4.24

TOTALS 39.43 39.43 42.52

Total rainfall in 1997 was 39.43" which is 3.09" below normal.

Solid Waste Advisory Committee
The Solid Waste Advisory Committee meets in Town Hall at 7:30 p.m. on the second

Wednesday of each month. 1997 was a busy year for the Solid Waste Advisory Committee

(SWAC). Committee members participated in Massachusetts Recycles Day (November 15) by

writing and publishing an informational booklet, Reading’s Hidden Treasure, and with the help

of dozens of Block Leaders distributing these booklets to every house in Reading (Reading won
an award from the State for these Mass. Recycles Day activities) had an informational table at

Reading’s Community Day; staffed an informational table at the Atlantic; appeared on a cable

TV show; presented a talk to the Chamber of Commerce; provided informational videos to cable

TV; organized a Coalition for the Homeless household goods collection; participated in two

textile drives; met with the Town Manager about the Municipal Recycling Incentive Program

(MRIP); submitted numerous articles to the Chronicle and Reading Notes :
phased out button

battery collection; maintained an informational file in the Library on solid waste issues.

Among many issues and topics addressed at meetings were: feasibility of a drop-off site

for recyclables; collection of recyclables from condominiums; Earth Day events; compost bins;

educating the community about reducing, reusing, recycling, buying recycled products, and

about other solid waste issues; user fees; recycling in schools; household hazardous waste.

Committee members continued to educate ourselves and to be part of area-wide solid

waste/recycling activities. Among these activities were attendance at North Shore Regional

Recycling Committee and Ogden-Martin Recycling Coordinators meetings, touring recycling

and other facilities, viewing informational videos, speaking with representatives from Waste

Management and the Dept, of Environmental Protection, and much more.
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School Department

This report represents the activities, accomplishments and events of note that occurred in the

Reading Public Schools during the 1997 calendar year.

1997 was a year of leadership change in the Reading Public Schools.

Robert Quinn accepted a position as Principal of Georgetown High School and resigned as

Assistant Principal of Reading Memorial High.

Cheryl O’Brien was appointed Interim Assistant Principal of Reading Memorial High.

Lisa Pittella was appointed Principal of the Joshua Eaton Elementary School replacing

William McSheehy who resigned his position.

Karen Callan was appointed Principal of the Barrows Elementary School.

Charles Papandreou retired from his position as Principal of the Barrows Elementary School.

Jeffery Griffin replaced John Bandini who resigned his position as the Director of Buildings

to accept a similar position in another community.

Cynthia Conti resigned her position as Director of Technology to accept a position in

business as a Technical Consultant.

Susan Mellen was appointed as the Administrative Assistant for Personnel.

Mr. Matthew Cummings left the School Committee and Mrs. Mary Williams joined the

committee in Spring 1997.

Other items of note occurred during 1997:

The School Department hired Dr. Patsy Baugh to lead the district in developing a strategic

plan.

The School Department and the Town of Reading merged the Maintenance Departments

under the leadership of the Director of Buildings.

The Parker Middle School construction project was completed and the building dedicated.

The School Department has continued to implement the School Committee policy against

discrimination and harassment.

An architectural study of Coolidge Middle School was completed.

An enrollment and class size committee was established to develop recommendations to deal

with increased elementary enrollments. A report with recommendations is expected early in

1998.

The Middle Schools expanded world languages in the seventh grade so that students have

world languages every other day for the entire year, and most eighth graders have world

languages every day.

The School District implemented Everyday Mathematics into the fourth and fifth grades.

New elementary physical science kits are being implemented in elementary classrooms:

Solids and Liquids, Grade 1; Weighing and Balancing, Grade 2; Electric Circuits, Grade 3;

Motion and Design (pilot in Grade 4); Floating and Sinking, Grade 5.

Students in Grades 4, 8 and 10 participated in state testing in mathematics, science and

language arts. The results are being used to create a new state testing system called MCAS
or the Massachusetts Comprehensive Assessment System.
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The Middle Schools purchased sixth and eighth grade mathematics textbooks and

instructional materials.

The Middle Schools are also piloting a new sixth grade science text and instructional

materials.

The High School purchased mathematics textbooks and instructional materials for

Pre-Algebra, Algebra I, Individualized Math, Algebra and a new senior course.

The High School also purchased textbooks and instructional materials for Biology,

Chemistry, and Physics as well as some scientific equipment such as electronic balances,

microscopes and biotechnology equipment.

The school district and Addison-Wesley formed a partnership that has resulted in fund

raising for the senior class, help with the Coolidge Parent Math-Science Night and some

classroom support materials.

Reading Memorial High School

Principal Frank J. Orlando

School Improvement
The High School has undertaken several new initiatives to restructure its program.

Standards and expectations have been raised to help prepare students for post graduate study or

to enter the work force. As a result of increased requirements, significant numbers of additional

students are taking core courses. Social Studies has experienced a total growth of 117 students.

Math has added 90 students. Science and Foreign Language (particularly Latin) have 165 more

students. All of these increases are due to the new course load requirement. The typical RMHS
student carries five core courses (English, Math, Social Studies, Science and Foreign Language)

and one elective. This change is in keeping with the state regulations on time and learning, the

curriculum frameworks, and the need to prepare students for the increased demands of the

college and work environment.

A team of teachers designed and implemented a new tardiness policy to address the

inordinate number of students who were late on a daily basis. Under this new policy, the

tardiness rate has been cut in half to 2.5%. At the same time, the attendance rate is 96%.

Class of 1997

The class of 1997 enjoyed great success in the college search process. A breakdown of

their plans is:

79% 4 year Colleges and Universities

8 % 2 year Colleges

1% Prep Schools

1% Technical Schools

1% Business Schools
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Student Achievement

Many students at the High School take part in the College Board testing program.

Students who took the advanced placement tests were awarded college credit. Our SAT I scores

place the school's averages 25 points above the national averages for verbal and math. Once
again, there were thirteen students who scored in the top 5% nationally on the PSAT testing

program. The High School was ranked at the 92nd percentile based on the scores of the class of

99 on the IOWA tests. Indeed, the Town of Reading should be very proud of the students at the

High School.

The GPA (Grade Point Average) for the Honor Roll was also increased for the 1997-1998

school year. Under the new guidelines, students must pass all courses and have a GPA of 3.25

for the Honor Roll and 3.70 for the high Honor Roll. Coupled with the increase in the course

load requirement, it is more difficult to reach honors status at the High School. Yet, more than

48% of our students were able to reach this goal. It is another indicator of our student's

willingness and ability to respond to our new standards.

Extra and Co-curricular Opportunities

There are many activities which students at the High School support. Our Math and

Science teams are active participants in area leagues that involve several meets on an annual

basis. This year, we hosted a Science league meet at RMHS that drew from several high schools

with more than 200 students. Our athletic program is ably directed by Mr. Vaccaro, and is a

model of sportsmanship and athletic ability for the entire Middlesex League. The Drama Club

has more than 100 students involved in its productions. Last year, their production for the Boston

Globe Drama Festival was recognized as one of the winners of this highly competitive festival.

Recently, "Godspell" played to large audiences and received rave reviews. Our Band has been

awarded several Gold and Silver Medals by the New England Band Association at their

marching competitions.

Faculty Training

Many of our teachers have participated in professional development programs.

Technology is now a viable teaching tool employed by many teachers at the High School. New
course offerings have been developed in math (Math Modeling), science (EnviroNet & Science

Engineering), and humanities (average level) through summer curriculum development

workshops. Our staff members belong to professional organizations which provide a constant

source for new ideas that will have a positive impact on the school. The High School Alliance,

NASSP, PALMS and foreign language associations highlight these professional affiliations.

A.W. Coolidge Middle School

Principal John Doherty

Coolidge Middle School has enjoyed a very exciting and successful 1997 year.

Throughout 1997, we have had several major accomplishments amidst changes which have kept

the school moving in the right direction. Listed below are some of the major highlights and

successes of 1997.
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Or2anizational...Staff Development...Faculty

The students are organized for learning into heterogeneous instructional groups with the

exception of 7th and 8th grade math. Each student is assigned to a team of teachers and is

engaged in appropriate grade level and challenging materials and activities.

The current emphasis on staff development include technology, inclusion, meeting

diverse learning needs, middle school restructuring and investigating building and facilities.

With the incorporation of new computers with CD-ROMs and telecommunications, the staff is

learning how to integrate technology into their personal and educational lives. The staff is also

developing techniques necessary to include students of all abilities into the educational process.

This is being accomplished through instructional programs such as "Limitless Learning" which

challenges all students to go beyond the normal scope of learning. Every classroom is equipped

with an upgraded networked PC. The computer room has twelve new workstations due to

$40,000 in district technology funds. The school had become completely networked to include

an NT server. Coolidge has an Intranet, a Home Page and internal e-mail. Most CD software can

be accessed in every classroom. The Media Center has an automated card catalog system using

Winnebago Spectrum. This allows us to circulate books electronically. Eventually, we will also

be able to access websites via the Internet throughout the school.

This past summer, our staff experienced over 500 hours of professional development and

curriculum development. We currently have major curriculum initiatives going on in math,

science, world language and interdisciplinary curriculum.

Student Performance Indicators

Coolidge exceeded the statewide average in all areas on the recent MEAP tests by at least

100 points. In addition, the Grade 7 ERB writing tests and Stanford Achievement Tests were

above average in all areas, a credit to the emphasis placed upon writing and challenging content

in all disciplines.

Parental Involvement

The Principal keeps parent(s) informed via "Neighborhood Coffees," School Council, the

Coolidge Ledger (a monthly newsletter) and the PTO (Parent-Teacher Organization). Several

parent volunteers help out around the school in the Media Center, various PTO activities, the full

day Science Olympiad, field trips and other school activities.

Clear Goals and Expectations

"The Coolidge Ledger," a monthly newsletter, published and written by teachers and

students highlights the accomplishments and informs the community of upcoming events. Core

Values, which include the basic values, goals and expectations the community believes in and

practices, have been designed for the school by a committee of faculty, parents and students. A
major focus this year is respect and courtesy.

A Community Which Enjoys Diversity

The staff has received extensive training in topics such as learning styles, disability

awareness, technology, interdisciplinary activities, conflict resolution, inclusion, self-esteem,

computer-aided design and content areas.
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Students are sensitized to those with learning disabilities. We have a language based

program in Grade 7 at Coolidge which is designed to meet the learning needs of students with

language and learning differences. Also, students are given the right to take risks and explore

avenues of learning. For example, all students are involved in the Geography Bee, Spelling Bee,

Continental Math League and Science Olympiad activities. Tryouts are held for the Science

Olympiad Team, Spring Musical and National History Day Activities.

Involvement Beyond School Boundaries

Our teachers are involved in several professional organizations. We are also affiliated

with the University of Michigan, UMass, Lowell, Northeastern University, Salem State College,

Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Harvard University and the New England Conservatory

of Music for specific projects and staff initiatives. We are working partners with the Reading

Public Library and the Board of Health, as well as active participants in interactive education and

professional development via Internet, MEOL, MCET and other public access telecommunica-

tion organizations. Several students have performed community service with the elderly, the less

fortunate and elementary school students.

Students participate in several out of school learning experiences such as the Boston

International Festival, Prindle Pond Environmental Camp, Washington, D C., United Nations,

Montreal, Canada, Museum of Science, Museum of Fine Arts, Sturbridge Village, Boston

Repertory Theater, the Holocaust Center and other educational trips.

Citations and Commendations
This was a year in which a Coolidge student was one of 100 finalists to qualify and

participate at the National Geography State Finals. Ten Coolidge students advanced from the

regional competition to the State finals of the National History Day competition. For the second

year in a row, Coolidge Middle School captured first place in the State Drama Festival for its

production of "Anne of Green Gables." The Coolidge Concert Band received a Bronze Medal at

the Regional Concert Band Festival. Several students received Gold and Silver Medals at the

small ensemble festival. Coolidge retained its State Science Olympiad Championship for the

fifth year in a row, and then proceeded to finish 3rd in the entire country and Canada at the

National Competition held at North Carolina State University.

Future Direction

In collaboration with Parker Middle School, a joint middle school restructuring

committee was formed to assess the academic standards, organizational structure, curriculum,

instruction and expectations of middle school. A plan has been developed with support from

staff, parents, administration and the community. Implementation has begun this year with

future goals planned in subsequent years.

Coolidge will continue to develop and implement a restructuring plan which will address

school organization, scheduling and maintaining a relevant, challenging curriculum and

appropriate supervision. An architect has been hired to examine the building and facilities needs

of Coolidge in light of future enrollment projections and program offerings. There is the

possibility of a building renovation and/or renovation in the near future.
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Walter S. Parker Middle School

Principal Dr. Jack Delaney

Construction Is Finally Completed

In August, the new Parker Middle School was finally completed and we were able to

occupy the total facility. As visitors have noted, it is a facility that is both beautiful and state-of-

the-art in terms of technology. The last areas to be completed included the gym, art, music.

Auditorium and multi-purpose areas. Additional staff was hired and we have become fully

operational with a great sense of relief. The project will return $700,000 to the Town and with

interest earned, the total return will be over One Million Dollars. In addition, many things were

able to be done that were not in the original project budget such as redoing the soccer field at a

cost of $92,000 and greatly enhancing the technology equipment. In all respects, we can deem

this an unusually successful project resulting in a facility of which the Town can be proud.

Spaces, such as the refurbished Auditorium and the gym, have already become popular venues

for many Town groups and activities.

School Communications

One of the goals established by the School Council was to improve communications with

parents and the community. The monthly PTO Newsletter, produced primarily by parent

volunteer, Eileen Patch, has grown significantly with loads of news about school activities.

Special events, general information and reports from the various teams and subject areas are

regular features. In addition, a high quality student newspaper is being produced and widely

distributed. Named the Quill, as was done years ago, the paper provides a nice opportunity for

students to write for an audience and is another source of information about the school. Other

mediums, including the Chronicle, have also been used as we achieve our goal of better

communication.

Technology

A second goal of the council was to implement technology applications at the school.

Staff members participated in a wide variety of training sessions, and we have worked with

various providers to see that things are operating and that we are taking advantage of our

capabilities. Many interesting and exciting activities occur daily throughout the school, yet we
know that much more potential exists. To those of us with different memories of school, current

students operate in a stimulating and diverse environment that we would have loved. From

working collaboratively on a project with students in Taiwan and Adelaide, to exchanges with

students in France, to regularly using the Internet in classes, our students are having a very

different experience. Technology is present in every classroom with students writing music,

designing art projects, creating presentations or editing their writing as some examples. Students

produce a school news program in our TV studio, and it is of such quality that it won first place

in a statewide competition. Recently, two staff members, Joan Clifford and Marcia Grant,

submitted a grant which resulted in Parker being designated a “Lighthouse School” by the State

for our initiatives in technology. One of the outcomes of this grant will be funding for the

creation of a mini-language lab at the school.
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Restructuring

Coolidge and Parker staff and parents worked for over a year to develop a set of

recommendations designed to improve both schools and establish direction for the future. We are

in the first year of implementing those recommendations and there is a lot of enthusiasm about

the changes. In simplest terms, we wanted to improve the functioning of our teacher teams and

enable them to have more flexibility with student schedules. This meant that classes could be

longer or shorter as determined by the team. We also wanted to foster more collaboration

between teachers and have students learn in ways that demonstrate the connections between the

various subjects. Changed offerings to students, the addition of foreign languages to the 7th

grade and increased challenges to students are also part of the effort. Many meetings, in-service

training and a lot of experimentation have occurred as we go through our first year. The changes

are going well to date with some excellent learning experiences being provided for students. We
will be continuing in this direction over the next couple of years as we fully implement the

recommendations of the Restructuring Committee.

Parent Involvement

Great participation by parents in the daily life of the school continues and we are both

proud and grateful. Many volunteers are in every day helping in the office, the Library and in

classrooms. From decorating the entrance, to providing hospitality, to funding all kinds of

activities for students, our parents are making an invaluable contribution to the school. There is a

warm feeling about the school, and it is helped greatly by the collaboration of parents and staff

on behalf of students.

Achievement

Test returns from the latest statewide assessment and from using national tests indicate

that our students are performing well above the norm at both State and National levels. The

success of our math team and student performance in other competitions provide further

evidence of success.

Community Service

Parker students are engaged in frequent community service activities ranging from leaf

raking for senior citizens to a variety of charitable efforts. Clothes drives, food drives and fund-

raising are common as are supportive initiatives within the school. Peer tutoring of other

students and volunteer work within the school demonstrate the willingness of Parker students to

give to others.

In closing, our staff is continuing to work very hard to provide a rich experience in a

school that is orderly, safe and student friendly.

199 .



Alice M. Barrows Elementary School

Principal Karen J. Callan
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New Principal

The Alice M. Barrows School had a transition of leadership during the 1996-1997 school

year. Mr. Charles Papandreou, Principal for twenty-four years, retired and Karen J. Callan was

appointed in August 1997.

Technology Implementation

The computer hardware and software continued to grow during the past year. Staff

training took place on various software applications. The staff continues to address the

integration of technology in curriculum areas through workshops, trainings and coursework.

Student Expectation Pamphlet

The student expectation pamphlet was distributed and discussed with the fourth and fifth

grade students. Topics addressing respect, peer relationships, cooperation, behavior and learning

are part of the pamphlet. Expansion of the pamphlet to include other grades is one of the 1997-

1998 goals.

Homework Study Hall

The Values and Expectation Committee, working in concert with the Barrows staff,

established the Homework Study Hall. This initiative is to help students realize the importance of

homework and the responsibility that it entails. Students discuss the reason for homework,

through expectation discussions, with their classroom teachers early in the year. Developing

good study habits, at an early age, will lead to ongoing school success.

Spelling

The staff adopted the Rebecca Sitton Spelling Program for a school wide use beginning

in Grade 1. Based on using 500 high utility words, children learn to become better spellers in

their everyday work. By visualizing and then recalling words through weekly skill development,

children develop a firm spelling foundation.

Developmental Learning Center

Expansion of The Developmental Learning Center (DLC), formerly the Next Step

Program, took place in September 1997. This K-l inclusionary program enables the special

needs staff to provide support and appropriate instruction, in the least restrictive environment, for

the population of children the program serves.

Enrollment

Two different enrollment issues were addressed this year at Barrows. An extremely large

third grade population necessitated adding an additional fourth grade classroom. The School

Committee also approved the moving of two portable classrooms from Killam in order to house

fifty Birch Meadow Kindergarten children. In late August, due to enrollment, a sixth

Kindergarten classroom was created giving Barrows a school wide population of 406.
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After School Program

The Barrows After School Program entered into it first full year of operation. In the Fall

of 1997, an expanded six week program was established. The activities were both educational

and social, creating a relaxing and enjoyable after school environment of learning.

Birch Meadow Elementary School

Principal Richard E. Davidson

We, at Birch Meadow, welcome the chance to share with you some of the many exciting

and positive learning opportunities and experiences available to children here at Birchie.

Curriculum

Throughout the district, we are now completing our first year of a three year initiative in

math and science. In math, the manipulative based Everyday Math Program has been

implemented at the fifth grade at all four elementary schools and in Science, we have

implemented new physical science kits from Science and Technology for Children (STC). We
are also currently piloting new kits from their Life Science strand this year, and will review

teacher adoption recommendations at the end of the year. Next year, we expect to move ahead

with full implementation, pending teacher recommendations, and will ask teachers to pilot a third

Earth Science strand next year. All staff have received and continue to receive training for both

the math and science initiatives.

Another area of our curriculum we continue to be very proud of is our school-wide focus

on writing. Our Birch Meadow Publishing House is currently celebrating its eighth year of

publishing books that are authored and illustrated by our young students. The BMPH currently

has over six thousand published student books to its credit.

Technology

Birch Meadow continues to grow and thrive on its use of technology. With the Town’s

approval of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars, Birch Meadow received Seventy Five Thousand

Dollars to purchase Pentium CD ROM computers for all twenty-four classrooms. This past

February, we established a free account with an on-line provider, and have been able to provide

every classroom with direct and supervised access to the Internet. This has resulted in multiple

classroom projects that involve regular contact with other classrooms, teachers and scientists

from as far away as Japan and Hong Kong. This year, we received the Arnold Berger Exemplary

Teacher Award of Five Hundred Dollars, and will use the funding to purchase hardware and

software to develop individual Home Pages on the Web, and to also do live video conferencing

with schools in Asia.

Looping Classroom

Last year, we proposed and this year have begun an experience for children where they

stay with their classroom teacher for two consecutive years. For example, the first grade

students in Mrs. Mucica’s classroom continued with her as an entire class on into the second

grade.
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And next year, the students that have been placed in Mrs. Roberts first grade class will continue

on to second grade with her while Mrs. Mucica “loops” back to first grade for a new group of

students who will then stay with her for two years. This approach provides consistency and

support for young children and minimizes possible issues of transition for students.

Invention Convention

Last year, all students across all grade levels were encouraged to explore their own ideas

and develop possible inventions whose aim would be to make the world or the environment

better. The children worked with partners, teams or as individuals and the ideas and inventions

were an incredible tribute to the teachers’ and students’ imagination and dedication. The effort

culminated in a school wide Invention Convention Open House last Spring. Over one thousand

children, parents, and staff enjoyed the opportunity to observe and explore the hundreds of

different creative ideas presented by all the Birch Meadow Students.

After School Activities Program (ASAP)
At Birch Meadow, we are pleased to make note that we are in our third year of being able

to offer after school enrichment programs for children. Courses are offered in six week periods

and range from computers to drama, to karate, to chess, to crafts. This is a joint parent and

teacher effort that has been extremely successful in providing multiage enriching experiences for

children at all grade levels.

Parent Involvement

Birchie continues to be extremely fortunate, and enjoys a huge level of parent

involvement and support. Last year, our PTO raised Fifty Six Thousand Dollars for such things

as computers, enrichment programs, Library media enhancement. Parents are also an invaluable

part of our classroom programming for children as they volunteer their time to help in their

child’s classroom on a regular basis. Given the important emphasis on hands-on learning, we
could not do without the positive and sincere daily parent involvement we are fortunate to have

here at Birch Meadow.

The Birch Meadow School Council

The Birch Meadow School Council has developed a two year School Improvement Plan

and meets monthly to monitor and implement the various steps in the action plan. In addition,

the School Council continues to be an excellent sounding board and source of advice for the

Principal.

Open Invitation

Members of the community are cordially invited to visit your school or, if you are so

inclined, we invite you to volunteer at the school. Our Library Media Center is a great place to

work with children and learn about the school at the same time. We can certainly use your

talents if you have the time. Please feel free to call the Principal, Richard Davidson at 944-2335,

with any questions or comments you might have.

202 .



Joshua Eaton School

Principal Lisa M. Pittella
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Introduction

The Joshua Eaton School community has warmly welcomed new Principal, Lisa Pittella.

Technology

Thanks to the many efforts of our extremely active Technology Committee, the Joshua

Eaton School has had many technological advances within the last year. Our school was the

recipient of a grant to support participation in Net Day. A team of teachers, parents and

volunteers from Sun Micro Systems installed Ethernet cards in every computer in the school to

allow for networking to take place once the wiring is installed.

We are continuing to upgrade our technology equipment and software with new
purchases and many donations from families.

Professional Development
Training with technology has been a focus for professional development activities for our

staff members. The fifth grade teachers were also trained over the Summer in using the

Everyday Mathematics curriculum.

Parent Involvement

We continue to enjoy the support of many individuals who help in a variety of ways

within the school. Groups of parents have been trained in technology in order to provide

additional support to our students in the Computer Lab. Volunteers have also generously

donated their time to working in the Library and assisting in the Cafeteria.

The Joshua Eaton School Advisory Council has been actively soliciting input from

parents to identify areas in which they would like to have more information.

The PTO has worked extremely hard over the past year in planning very successful fund-

raisers. The proceeds from which have helped to sponsor cultural arts events for the students,

purchases of technology, and supplement classroom requests from teachers. The PTO has also

sponsored the training of a number of parents in the Junior Great Books Program. With more

parents being trained, we have been able to extend the implementation of this program within the

school.

New Language Based Class

A new class has been instituted at the Eaton School. This special needs, language based

class, offers specialized support for students within the district.
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Killam Science Center:

As part of our goal to integrate the resources of the Killam Science Center into the

curriculum:

Activities related to the curriculum have begun to be developed by a committee of

parents and teachers. These hands-on learning activities are being developed for use in the

Outdoor Science Center to complement the curriculum.

W.O.W Center Mural - A grant was received from the Massachusetts Cultural Council to

develop a student designed mural based on the theme Cycles in Nature to be permanently

displayed in the W.O.W. Center. Richard McKown was involved in a two month Artist in

Residency program working with students.

Community Awareness of Instructional Practices

As part of the school’s goal to increase community awareness of instructional practices,

expectations and standards:

A successful Math workshop was conducted for 120 parents. Handouts and packets of

games were provided to all parents to explain and reinforce concepts presented in the Everyday

Mathematics Program.

The Inclusion Committee completed and published a Resource Guide for teachers who
will serve as a reference manual for ideas and teaching practices useful toward attaining our goal

of including special needs students in the regular classroom.

In our efforts to promote enrichment activities for a greater number of students, Killam

School took a leadership role in expanding The Odyssey of the Mind Program to a greater

number of students by working with Recreation Director, Joe Connolly, to place the program

administration in the hands of the Recreation Department.

Technology

The Killam School Technology Team designed a training program and trained a cadre of

parents to become familiar with educational software used in the instructional program. These

parents have been a tremendous resource in assisting teachers in the implementation of

technology within the classroom.

Language Arts

In our efforts to align our instructional practices with the new Curriculum Frameworks,

Killam faculty spent the year coordinating instructional practices and expectations in the areas of

spelling and writing. Throughout the year, we based on the design of the ERB standards.

204 .



School Department

Individual Faculty and Staff Highlights:

Karen Rickershauser and Lauren Fusco served as the Chairpersons for the Townwide
Elementary Science Committee.

Rosemary Palmer served as the Chairperson for the Townwide Social Studies Committee.

Pam Chomsky-Higgins served as President of the Whole Language Teacher’s

Association for the 1996-97 school year.

Paul Guerrette served as President of the Massachusetts Elementary Principal’s

Association.

Special Education

Dr. Valerie Ardi, Director

The Special Education Department of the Reading Public Schools has experienced a year

of exciting growth and changes. The accomplishments within the department have expanded the

abilities of teachers to effectively meet the changes of instructing a wide range of youngsters

with diverse learning styles.

Establishment and Expansion of Districtwide Special Education Programs
The development of a Language Based Learning Disability Program in the Reading

Public Schools has lead to the initial establishment of two specialized classes and the expansion

of a third this past year. This program is designed to meet the needs of youngsters whose

significant language and learning disabilities require language based programming. This type of

programming seeks to remediate, modify and compensate for language delays so that students

can learn grade appropriate curriculum and progress in school.

There are currently three classes in our district:

• 4
th

/ 5
th
grade class (Eaton Elementary School)

• 6
th
grade class ( Parker Middle School)

• 7
th
grade class (Coolidge Middle School)

The identification of pre-school youngsters with Pervasive Developmental Disorder lead

to the development of a specialized preschool class. These children have significant challenges

in their ability to communicate, interact socially and manifest repetitive and stereotypical

behaviors, interests and activities. The P.D.D. Program is currently part of the RISE Preschool

located at Reading Memorial High School.

Redesign of Existing Districtwide Special Education programs

The Special Education Department continues to identify youngsters currently attending

our schools who may be in need of more specialized programs. A review of the needs of

youngsters led to the redesign of the Next Step Program at the Barrows School. This program

was redesigned and expanded into a primary developmental learning program. The new

Developmental Learning Center services kindergarten and first grade youngsters with cognitive

and developmental challenges.
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The Inclusion Program at Killam School has been redesigned to meet the current needs of

the students in the program.. The Integrated Learning Program
,
as it is now identified, is for 3

rd

and 4
th

grade youngsters with diverse and challenging cognitive needs. This program offers

students the opportunity to be integrated for most of their day in regular classes with their typical

peers. Intensive skill development instruction occurs in small, specialized, grade level groupings.

Students with Special Needs

The Special Education Department continues in its efforts to assist schools in providing a

spectrum of services to effectively meet the needs of students. According to Massachusetts

Chapter 766 Law, the Reading Public Schools provides programs and services to eligible

students either within the Reading School District or in placements approved by the Department

of Education. Eligibility for Special Education services is determined through a referral and

evaluation process conducted by the Special Education Team at the student’s home school.

Collaboratives

Our continued membership in both the SEEM Collaborative and the North Shore

Consortium provide access to programs for low-incidence, multiple need populations and/or

student populations in need of career and school-to-work programs.

The collaboratives also provide resource personnel and consultants who conduct trainings

and consultations to parents, teachers and staff.

Staff Development

Regularly scheduled staff development workshops for both general and special education

have addressed a variety of current topics. These have included, but are not necessarily limited

to, the following:

Inclusion

IEP Development

Regulatory Requirement of Chapter 766

Attention Deficit Disorder

Behavioral Programming

Pervasive Developmental Disorder

Aspberger’s Syndrome

Diversified Assessments

Specialized Intensive Teacher Training Programs to target intense need population have

also been offered. They have included the following:

Wilson Reading Program

Wilson Success Program

PDD and Autism Intensive Training Seminars
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School Committee
In 1997, the Reading Public Schools experienced change and progress, controversy and

opportunity. The year has passed all too quickly, and the phenomenal public support we received

throughout 1997 has enabled our administrators, teachers and students to succeed.

School Construction Projects

The Parker Middle School project was finally completed under the watchful eyes of

Principal Jack Delaney, Richard Radville and the School Building Committee. Through their

tireless efforts on behalf of the Town of Reading, the project was finished under budget and

$40,119 was returned to the Town. During the dedication ceremony on October 26, Parker

educator Bill Came, with the assistance of students Betsy Shor and Jake McAleer, pried open the

1926 Time Capsule found in the old school's original cornerstone. A new Time Capsule

containing items from 1990’s has been installed in the school's front foyer.

Additional capital money was approved to complete the renovation projects for the

Joshua Eaton and Birch Meadow Elementary Schools. Simultaneously, discussions began

regarding the need to begin work at the Coolidge Middle School and Reading Memorial High

School. In addition, an exploding student population continues to create a need to find additional

classroom space in all of the elementary schools and the Coolidge Middle School.

Parent Volunteers

Throughout 1997, the school district relied heavily on the support of committed citizen

volunteers. In addition to the hundreds of parent volunteers who work directly with the student

population and school staff to enhance educational opportunities, additional committees were

formed.

Principal Searches

In early Spring, two separate Principal Search Committees began reviewing and rating

applications. Through each group's efforts, Lisa M. Pittella was appointed Principal of the Joshua

Eaton Elementary School and Karen J. Callan was appointed Principal of the Alice M. Barrows

Elementary School to replace Charles Papandreou who retired after 37 years in the Reading

Public Schools.

Enrollment and School Size Committee
On October 28, twenty-six members of the Enrollment and School Size Committee met

for the first time to identify the parameters of their daunting task-finding a long-term solution to

our swelling student population and limited classroom space. Hours of discussion and research

will culminate in recommendations for a potential plan of action which will be submitted to the

School Committee for consideration in early 1998.
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Strategic Planning Committee

Reading's Strategic Planning Committee also began to meet as 1997 came to a close.

Strategic planning, a School Committee goal for many years, is finally a reality. Under the

direction of consultant Dr. Patsy Baugh, 102 members, representing a cross section of our

citizenry, will provide the School Committee with a viable plan for the future course of the

Reading Public Schools.

Financial Support

Financial support, another key element to the success of Reading's students, has

positively impacted our ability to deliver a quality education product. A major infusion of money
has provided the school administration with $150,000 for textbooks and instructional materials.

Part-time technology educational assistants have been hired to keep our $500,000 technology

commitment viable. With a Department of Education graduation requirement looming some time

in the future that will require Massachusetts students to be proficient in a foreign language,

foreign language programs in the middle school have been expanded. High school students are

now required to spend the full school day in educational pursuits due to funding which allowed

for the hiring of the additional teaching staff.

In addition to Town support, the staff and administrators of the Reading Public Schools

have worked long and hard to supplement the budget by writing grant requests. Our success in

obtaining funding for a wide variety of programs throughout the school system speaks directly to

the strong level of commitment of our staff and the involvement of parents.

Awards
Our students and teachers have garnered their share of distinctions and awards. The name

of Reading, Massachusetts, is recognized both statewide and nationally due to their talents and

efforts.

Mr. Cummines Retires from Committee
Reading's success story can be attributed to many people, each one performing a very

unique role. This past year, the School Committee lost its unique "voice of fiscal responsibility"

when Matthew Cummings decided to retire from the School Committee after six years of

service.

Talent Sought

It is vitally important that more talented folks like Matt join us in our efforts to educate

the children of this Town. As we head into 1998, the Reading Public School System is faced

with multiple dilemmas, all of which directly affect our children, our staff and our pocketbook.

Reading's portable classrooms need to get off the merry-go-round that moves them from school

to school so they can be permanently retired. Unfortunately, high birth rates have our elementary

and middle schools bursting at the seams. There are not enough classrooms to house these

children, and with the increase in population comes the need to finance the additional space, staff

and materials to educate them.
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Thank You
There are no quick, cheap or easy answers. The Reading School Committee is grateful to

all the individual volunteers, the administration and staff who are sitting on active committees

trying to work towards viable solutions. We recognize, support and applaud their efforts, and we
hope the citizens of this Town will also.

Retirements:

Mary Boyle, Birch Meadow School, Kindergarten

Mary Finnon, Walter S. Parker Middle School, Library/Media

Charles N. Papandreou, Alice M. Barrows School, Principal

Resignations. Reductions:

Samuel Baker, Reading Memorial High School, Mathematics

John Bandini, Director of Buildings

Vanessa Beauchaine, Joshua Eaton School, Special Education

Tracy Bellemare, Reading Memorial High School, Guidance

Cynthia Conti, District Director of Technology

Nancy Cornell Birch Meadow School and Arthur W. Coolidge Middle School Nurse

Deborah Dutton, J. Warren Killam School, Guidance

Nancy Geljookian, Reading Memorial High School, Nurse

Kimberly Glendon, Joshua Eaton School, Special Education

Kathleen Gregory, Birch Meadow, Special Education

Leslie Gremillion, Joshua Eaton School, Language L.D.

Peter Imhoff, Walter S. Parker Middle School, Social Studies

Susan Killian, Walter S. Parker and Arthur W. Coolidge Middle Schools, Foreign Language

Kelly McCarthy, Birch Meadow School, Grade 1

William McSheehy, Joshua Eaton School, Principal

Eric Nelson, J. Warren Killam School, Music

Nancy Picardi, J. Warren Killam School, Grade 5

Robert M. Quinn, Reading Memorial High School, Assistant Principal

David Steeves, Reading Memorial High School, Biology

Brigid Waeldner, J. Warren Killam School, Grade 5

Appointments:

Carol M. Abbey, Arthur W. Coolidge Middle School, Physical Education

Kristin Amico, Birch Meadow School, Special Education

Mary T. Atkinson, Reading Memorial High School, Foreign Language

Leshia B. Brennan, Birch Meadow School, Grade 1

Christine L. Brown, Birch Meadow School, Guidance

Karen J. Callan, Alice M. Barrows School, Principal

Nancy C. Cook, Walter S. Parker Middle School, Foreign Language

Jennifer B. Cooper, Walter S. Parker Middle School, Mathematics/Science

Diane M. Davis, Walter S. Parker Middle School, Art

James J. DeBenedictis, Reading Memorial High School, Social Studies
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Appointments: (Continued)

Keri K. DiNapoli, Joshua Eaton School, Grade 1

Patricia Doherty, Joshua Eaton School, Special Education

Patrice A. Donahue, Walter S. Parker Middle School and Joshua Eaton School, Speech

Ann Marie Downing, Reading Memorial High School, Special Education

Jeffery Griffin, District Director of Buildings

Kathleen M. Hazlett, J. Warren Killam, Grade 1

Paula Holland, Joshua Eaton and Alice M. Barrows Schools, Nurse

Karen R. Holzman, J. Warren Killam School, Grade 4

Jennifer L. Jewell, Walter S. Parker Middle School, Library/Media

Trina L. Juliani, Joshua Eaton School, Special Education

Debra F. Kinton, Joshua Eaton School, Grade 3

Christine A. Leckonby, Walter S. Parker Middle School, Special Education

Thuy, LeDang, Reading Memorial High School, Latin

Vanessa C. Lloyd, Joshua Eaton School, Special Education

Julie A. Markowicz, Joshua Eaton School, Music

Donna M. Martinson, Walter S. Parker Middle School, English

Craig P. Martin, Arthur W. Coolidge Middle School, English

Michael P. McSweeney, Reading Memorial High School, English

Peter Mitchell, J. Warren Killam School, Physical Education

Kimberly Mourougas, RISE Program, Special Education Preschool

Anne M. Natale, Walter S. Parker Middle School, Mathematics

Jonathan B. Newman, Walter S. Parker Middle School, English/Social Studies

Amy J. O'Brien, Alice M. Barrows School, Grade 3

Cheryl O'Brien, Reading Memorial High School, Interim Assistant Principal

Michelle R. Osgood, Reading Memorial High School, Science

Mary Piacentini, Reading Memorial High School, Nurse

Lisa M. Pittella, Joshua Eaton School, Principal

Jeffrey R. Ryan, Reading Memorial High School, Social Studies

Priscilla Squires, Alice M. Barrows School, Grade 3

Charles H. Strout, Reading Memorial High School, Mathematics

Nathan O. Steams, Reading Memorial High School, English

Vivian M. Su, J. Warren Killam School, Guidance

William F. Vickers, Reading Memorial High School, Mathematics

Cheryl H. Wing, Arthur W. Coolidge Middle School, Music

Susan H. Yablon, Reading Memorial High School, Guidance

Jeffrey A. Yuhas, Reading Memorial High School, Science

Leaves of Absence:

Virginia M. Cramer, J. Warren Killam School, Grade 4

Christine E. Fenniman, Walter S. Parker Middle School, Mathematics

Cara A. Gannon, Birch Meadow School, Grade 2

Katherine M. Gauvain, J. Warren Killam School, Grade 2

Gaelen P. Harrington, Reading Memorial High School, English
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Leaves of Absence
:
(Continued)

Renee E. Kannapell, Arthur W. Coolidge Middle School, Social Studies

Leo P. Kenney, Reading Memorial High School, Biology

Wendy B. Kritzer, Reading Memorial High School, English

Ann H. Loos, Arthur W. Coolidge Middle School, English

Lauren D. McCarron, Joshua Eaton School, Kindergarten

Karen J. McCormack, Arthur W. Coolidge Middle School, Physical Education

Ariane C. McCoy, Reading Memorial High School, .4 Foreign Language

Virginia L. Quinn, Alice M. Barrows School, Physical Education

Susan J. Robison, Reading Memorial High School, Special Education

Sandra A. Wheeler, Birch Meadow School, Guidance

School Entrance Requirements

To be eligible for admission to the Reading Public Schools, a child must have reached the

age of five on or before August 31 of the entering year. Under no circumstances will children

younger than five be admitted.

No child shall be admitted to school except upon presentation of a physical exam and

evidence of immunization as required by the State Immunization Law and in accordance with the

schedule established by the Department of Public Health. Effective March 1, 1990, children are

required to present documented evidence of lead screening prior to entrance into preschool and

kindergarten.

Under Laws of the Commonwealth, each child shall attend school beginning in

September of the calendar year in which he attains the age of six.

Children entering a public school for the first time will be assigned either to kindergarten

or first grade by the building principal after a thorough consideration of preschool registration

information. Registration is normally held in the early spring of each year.

Upon entering school each child is required to present a Birth Certificate.

"No School" Signals

"No School" will be announced over radio stations WBZ, WRKO, WEZE, WHDH,
WBUR, on television stations 4, 5, 7 and Channel 3 on Cable TV between 6:30 a m. and 7:30

a.m.

It is the policy in Reading to have school on all scheduled days and for parents to decide

when conditions are such that it would be unwise for their child to attend. However, when roads

cannot be opened, or other extraordinary conditions exist, school may be canceled for all schools

or for the elementary grades only. This decision will be made by the Superintendent of Schools.

Enrollment

The enrollment of the Reading Public Schools as of October 1, 1997 was 4,119. In

addition, there were thirty-three students from Reading enrolled in Grades 6 through 12 at Austin

Preparatory School and twenty-five students enrolled in Grades 9 through 12 at the Northeast

Metropolitan Regional Vocational School making the total school population in Reading as of

October 1, 1997, 4,177.
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ENROLLMENT STATISTICS

Eight-Year Summary of Public School Enrollment*

GRADE 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997

K 303 291 309 314 292 323 312 318

1 294 336 333 350 336 321 374 359

2 278 299 328 334 352 347 322 376

3 278 285 299 334 339 352 346 319

4 290 280 293 304 335 340 360 348

5 287 285 285 291 312 335 342 368

6 274 281 273 282 286 307 341 334

7 267 276 285 266 285 281 303 344

8 285 263 256 288 268 290 276 295

9 231 277 252 244 277 262 278 258

10 268 230 261 253 244 274 259 276

11 248 259 210 256 237 236 254 259

12 227 236 261 198 247 241 232 241

SPED 47 42 49 43 33 48 53 24

TOTAL 3,577 3,640 3,694 3,757 3,843 3,957 4,052 4,119

Enrollment Numbers are figures submitted to the Department of Education as of October 1

of each calendar year.

12/10/97
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Reading Public Schools

1997-1998

Full Time Equivalent Personnel by Position

FY ‘98

12/1/1997

Revised

DISTRICT TOTAL 472.22

Superintendent 1

Associate Superintendent 1

Principals 7

Assistant Principals 4

SPED Director 1

Asst. SPED Director 0.5

Director of Technology 1

Athletic Director 0.7

Health Program Coordinator 0.5

METCO Coordinator 1

Director of Buildings 1

Asst. Director of Buildings 1

Food Service Director 1

Administration Total 20.70

RMHS 65.9

Coolidge 23

Parker 27.75

Barrows 18

Birch Meadow 24

Joshua Eaton 21

Killam 24

Classroom Teachers Total 203.65

Pre-vocational (SEEM) 2

RISE Pre-School 2

PDD Teacher 1

LLD 3

Dev. Learning Ctr. 1

Resource Room 18

Speech / Language 7.5

Occupational Therapy 1.63

SPED Liaison 0.8

Psychologist 1

Special Education Total 37.96

RMHS 3

Middle Schools 2.5

Elementary 2.50

Art Total 8.00
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RMHS 1

Middle Schools 3.71

Elementary 2.50

Music Total 7.21

Middle Schools 2.00

Instructional Specialists Total 2.00

RMHS 4.3

Diversion 1

Middle Schools 4

Elementary 4.53

Physical Education/Health Total 13.83

RMHS 5.5

Middle Schools 3

Elementary 4

Guidance/Psychologist Total 12.50

RMHS 1

Middle Schools 2

Elementary 4

Librarian / Media Specialist Total 7.00

Technology Specialist 1.00

RMHS 0.4

Middle School 2

Elementary 4

Reading Total 6.40

Secretary to Superintendent 1

Administrative Assistants 3

Administrative 1

Pupil Personnel 2

High School 5

Middle Schools 2

Elementary 4

Health 0.5

Athletics 0.5

Buildings/Maintenance 1

Secretaries & Clerks Total 20.00

RMHS 1.00

Middle Schools 1.30

Elementary 2.70

Nurses Total 5.00

RMHS 1.20

Middle Schools 2.86

Elementary 1.63

METCO 2.54

SP. ED. & ESL Tutors & METCO Total 8.23
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RMHS 4.64

Middle Schools 2.80

Elementary 20.11

Regular Ed. Assistants Total 27.55

RMHS 9.76

Middle Schools 9.61

Elementary 21.93

Special Education Assistants Total 41.30

District 3.75

RMHS 8.00

Middle Schools 5

Elementary 9.0

Custodians / Maintenance Total 25.75

RMHS 9.43

Middle Schools 5.29

Elementary 9.43

Cafeteria Total 24.14

DISTRICT TOTAL 472.22

Grant Funded Positions
;

1997-1 998 :

The following positions are currently funded through grants. It is important

to note that the positions are included in the 1997-1998 personnel figures but

they are not part of the line item budget.

Grants

Special Education 94-142

Special Education Early Childhood

; METCO
Health Protection

Positions Schools
;

1.00 i Diversion

1.00 Special Education Teacher

MHS
MHS

1.00
i

Guidance/Psychologist Coolidge Middle School

1.00 Speech & Language Teacher arrows Elementary

3.00 Regular Education Teachers -12

0.80 Special Education Liaison Distirct

0.50 Health Program Coordinator District

1.00 Psychologist District

0.32 Pre-School Teacher ISE Pre-School

1.00 Director of METCO METCO
2.54 METCO Support Staff METCO

13.16 Full-Time Equivalent Grant Paid Staff = 444,588 :
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NORTHEAST METROPOLITAN REGIONAL VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

DISTRICT SCHOOL COMMITTEE

SCHOOL COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN
William C. Mahoney - Melrose

VICE CHAIRMAN
James G. Wallace - Winthrop

SECRETARY
Michael T. Wall - Chelsea

TREASURER
Paul L. Sweeney - North Reading

ASSISTANT TREASURER
Anthony E. DeTeso - Stoneham

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Vincent J. Carisella - Wakefield

Deborah P. Davis - Woburn

Earl W. Fitzpatrick - Malden

Ronald J. Jannino - Revere

Maura A. Looney - Winchester

Marjorie T. Pacino - Reading

Peter A. Rossettti, Jr. - Saugus

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION

SUPERINTENDENT-DIRECTOR
Thomas F. Markham, Jr.

DEPUTY DIRECTOR/PRINCIPAL
James A. Pelley, Jr.

VICE PRINCIPAL - VOCATIONAL
D. Michael Tamagna

VICE PRINCIPAL - ACADEMIC
Patricia K. Cronin

DIRECTOR PUPIL PERSONNEL SERVICES
Jo-Ann Testaverde

BUSINESS MANAGER
Ernest Zucco

SCHOOL TO WORK COORDINATOR
Louis F. Perriello
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Outstanding Student Award
Jose F. Contreras, Jr. from Chelsea, a bilingual student and senior in the Drafting &

Design Program, was chosen Northeast’s nominee at the State Awards Dinner for Outstanding

Vocational Technical Students. The event is co-sponsored by the Massachusetts Association of

Vocational Administrators and the Massachusetts Vocational Association.

Vocational Honor Society

The Northeast Chapter of the National Vocational Technical Honor Society held its

Annual Induction Ceremony in April. At the ceremony, thirty-four students were inducted.

These students joined the previously inducted members to bring the Vocational Technical Honor

Society Chapter to seventy-three members for the 1996-97 school year.

National Honor Society

The second Annual Induction Ceremony to the Northeast Chapter of the National Honor

Society was held in May. Eighteen students were inducted for the 1996-97 school year.

VICA Awards
Michael Labriola of Stoneham, a senior in the Carpentry Program, was the recipient of a

Silver Medal in Carpentry at the National VICA (Vocational Industrial Clubs of America) Skills

USA Competition held in Kansas City, MO in June.

At the State VICA Competition, Michael was the Gold Medal winner in Carpentry. Also

receiving awards at the State level were: Desiree Hughes of Revere, who was awarded the Gold

Medal in Dental Assisting and Sara Murphy of Saugus, who received the Silver Medal in Desk

Top Publishing. The VICA students represented Northeast well bringing home 2 Gold and 1

Silver Medals.

Student Advisory Representative to the School Committee

Chrissy Wright, a junior from Malden, was elected as the Student Representative to the

School Committee for the 1996-97 school year.

Scholarship Committee
The Northeast Scholarship Committee awarded individual scholarships to sixty-seven

deserving students at the 1996 graduation exercises. The total of $215,000 was given in

scholarships. The average award was $4,654 with 77% of the scholarship aid going to students

furthering their education at a four-year school.

Northeast students beginning work in their vocational field or entering trade

apprenticeship programs garnered 23% of the scholarship assistance to enable them to purchase

costly tools and equipment as well as entry level expenses toward trade education programs.
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Support Services

The Guidance Department has established several support groups for the Northeast

students. The Gender Equity Support Group is in its second year and has served as a “comfort

zone”, and bolstered the confidence of students enrolled in non-traditional programs such as girls

in carpentry and auto tech and boys in cosmetology or health.

Pregnant & Parenting Teen Support Program has been established to help encourage

school participation and achievement of high school diplomas. The program brings together

girls that are pregnant and girls and boys who are teen parents to provide support to each other

and to learn of the parenting responsibilities.

Teen Dating Violence Peer Training Program, funded by the Department of Education,

has trained thirty-five students to be able to speak to younger students about the issue of teen

dating violence. Theater presentations, guest speakers, a parent workshop, teen dating violence

prevention week and leadership training workshops have been part of the program.

Peer Tutoring Program provides educational assistance to students having difficulty with

one or more academic subjects. Students who have been successful in specific subject areas

volunteer to assist other students having difficulty. The program goes beyond tutoring as the

positive relationships formed by the members of the tutoring groups help to break down barriers

between grade levels. This program is designed to supplement after school assistance provided

by the classroom teachers.

SCORE Peer Mediation Leaders

In September, Northeast began its second year affiliated with the SCORE, a Peer

Mediation Program. The SCORE Program was developed by the Office of the Attorney General

of Massachusetts to help reduce the violence in schools. The Mediation process is successful in

resolving conflicts of all types. Northeast has a full-time coordinator, twenty-six trained students

and nine trained staff members. A trained mediator is a neutral person not involved in the

dispute, and helps people through the mediation process come to their own agreement about how
they want to resolve their conflict.

Summer Programs

The Summer of 1997 was a busy time at Northeast with a full scale academic and

vocational Summer School in operation. More than 300 students in Grades 9 through 12

participated.

The popular Computer Camp, with over 220 students, took on a whole new look in 1997.

It was the seventh year for this ever expanding program. It is the objective of the counselors to

teach campers skills that they can use during their regular school year.

The new programs will help strengthen reading and math skills, and there is a segment of

the curriculum that provides for the improvement of social skills. The computer equipment has

also been updated and will now include programs geared specifically to the primary grade levels

of 1, 2 and 3 as well as continue servicing our Grades 4 through 8 population. An introduction to

the Internet also became part of the camp program.

The computer camp schedule consisted of a three-hour rotating schedule of computer lab,

swimming and sports and games.
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Adult Education

Adult Education continued at an all-time high with more than 2000 students enrolled this

year. Our goal is to provide as many educational services as possible to the 350,000 residents of

the Northeast Metropolitan Regional Vocational School District. In pursuing this goal, the Adult

Education staff maximizes utilization of the Northeast facilities, offering an extensive selection

of stimulating and practical programs Monday through Saturday during the school year, and

Monday through Friday during the Summer months.

Northeast offers a State approved Auto Damage Appraisal Program, as well as a Masters

Program in Electrical, Plumbing and Gas Fitting. As the number one apprentice training center

in New England, we annual guide hundreds of young men and women as they prepare for their

journeyman or master license in their trade. For the many senior citizens enrolled, we offer a

wide variety of programs designed to satisfy their interest in crafts, hobbies, physical fitness, etc.

During 1996-97, the Adult Education Agenda is the focus on the health care and related

fields which project high employment possibilities. Courses such as Anatomy and Physiology,

Algebra (pre-Nursing), Chemistry (pre-Nursing) and Certified Nurse Aide, as well as Medical

Terminology and Medical Transcription and Human Biology (Anatomy) all mirror this trend.

1997 Graduates

The 1996-97 school year represents the twenty-seventh class to matriculate at the

Northeast Metropolitan Regional Vocational School. Northeast graduated 215 students in the

class of 1997. Breakdowns of graduates status after graduation is as follows:

Entering Military Service 13

Employed in related field 77

Employed - not in related field 38

Pursuing additional education 56*

Unemployed - seeking employment ... 31

*It should be noted that 26% of the graduating class

went on to further their education.

One hundred and eighty-four members of the graduating class either entered military

service, are employed or seeking further education — that figure represents 85% of the class of

1997.

Special Needs Enrollment

Special Needs enrollment for the 1996-97 school year continued to represent a fair share

of the total school enrollment with students. The 213.5 Special Needs students represent 19% of

the school population.
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School Department

Athletic Records

The Girls’ Basketball Team had a very successful year as they qualified for the first time

ever to play in the State Tournament. Also qualifying for State Tournament competitions were

the Northeast Hockey and Boys’ Basketball teams.

Shining Knights

This year, we have initiated a positive motivational program called the “Shining

Knights.”

Students are given coupons for achievement, attendance, leadership, being detention free

and performing an act that is above and beyond the usual. Drawings for prizes were held at the

end of each quarter. At the end of the last quarter in June, the grand prize of a 1984 Buick

Skylark was awarded to Andrea Nicole of Revere, a junior in the Dental Laboratory component

of the Health Care Program. The car was donated to the school and reconditioned by the Auto

Tech and Auto Body Programs. There have been many favorable reactions and comments

concerning this program.

District School Committee Elections

At the Annual Reorganizational Meeting of the District School Committee on January

1997, the following members were re-elected Officers of the District School Committee:

Chairman William C. Mahoney of Melrose

Vice Chairman James G. Wallace of Winthrop

Secretary Michael T. Wall of Chelsea

Treasurer John B. Pacino of Reading

Assistant Treasurer Maura A. Looney of Winchester

District School Committee

We regret to report the death of School Committee Member Thomas A. Shaughnessy in

February, 1997. Mr. Shaughnessy represented Woburn on the Committee since 1986. In

addition to being a member, Mr. Shaughnessy also served as Chairman and Vice Chairman

during the time he served Woburn at Northeast.

The City of Woburn in March 1997 appointed Deborah P. Davis to serve as Woburn’s

Representative at Northeast until the next Statewide election in 1998.

Northeast was saddened by the death of School Committee Treasurer and Reading

Representative John Pacino in September, 1997. Mr. Pacino faithfully served Northeast since

1972 and his representation will be greatly missed.

The Town of Reading has appointed Marjorie Pacino to fill her husband’s seat until the

next Statewide election in 1998.

Maura Looney, Assistant Treasurer and Representative from Winchester, resigned her

post of Assistant Treasurer in October, 1997 because of her new job responsibilities but will

continue to represent Winchester on the School Committee.

At the October 9, 1997 School Committee Meeting, Paul Sweeny, North Reading

Representative, was elected Treasurer and Anthony DeTeso was elected Assistant Treasurer.
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School Department

Conclusion

Northeast has been proud to serve the twelve member communities during the last

twenty-seven years, and the faculty, administration and students look forward to another

rewarding year of Vocational/Technical Excellence by continuing to offer the very latest in

vocational/technical and academic education by maintaining a high level of performance. The

school curriculum continues to offer students the finest education with which to build a

successful career, no matter which career path they have chosen.

Evidence of our past success is reflected in the students that have graduated from

Northeast Metro Tech. They continue to return to the school for further education through the

adult education and night courses with a great percentage going on to higher education.

Testimonials as to the success of our graduates continue to be received which makes us proud to

have contributed in some small way to these individual success stories.

Once again, I am proud to have represented Reading as a member of the Northeast

Metropolitan Regional Vocational District School Committee not only to serve as the guardian

of funds allocated from the community to this educational institution, but to assist in and provide

counsel to the school in maintaining the highest standards of educational excellence possible.

Respectfully submitted,

Marjorie T. Pacino

Northeast School Committee

Reading’s Representative
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NORTHEAST METROPOLITAN REGIONAL VOCATIONAL SCHOOL
COMPARISON OF ASSESSMENTS

3/11/97

BUDGET BUDGET VARIANCE VARIANCE
FY1997 FY1998 $ %

GROSS BUDGET $11,070,255 $11,623,768 $553,513 5.0%

LESS REVENUES
Sch Aid Ch.70 $4,928,614 $5,061,820 $133,206 2.7%
School Choice ($1,000,000) ($800,000) $200,000 -20.0%

Transportation $332,112 $345,000 $12,888 3.9%
Tuition In $63,000 $0 ($63,000) -100.0%

TOTAL REVENUES $4,323,726 $4,606,820 $283,094 6.5%

NET ASSESSMENTS $6,746,529 $7,016,948 $270,419 4.0%

CHELSEA $1,638,481 $1,219,694 ($418,787) -25.6%

MALDEN $1,196,864 $1,363,790 166,926 13.9%

MELROSE $158,326 $260,601 102,275 64.6%
NO READING $30,506 $10,141 (20,365) -66.8%

READING $92,358 $94,352 1,994 2.2%
REVERE $1,197,542 $1,316,075 118,533 9.9%
SAUGUS $956,076 $1,159,074 202,998 21.2%
STONEHAM $177,478 $215,149 37,671 21 2%
WAKEFIELD $215,820 $220,555 4,735 2.2%
WINCHESTER $35,984 $22,472 (13,512) -37 6%
WINTHROP $150,127 $57,138 (92,989) -61.9%

WOBURN $896,967 $1,077,907 180,940 20.2%
TOTAL $6,746,529 $7,016,948 $270,419 4 0%

STUDENTS STUDENTS PERCENT OF
FY1997 FY1998 VARIANCE CONTRIBUTION

CHELSEA 296 250 -46 23.52941%
MALDEN 226.5 232 5.5 21 83529%
MELROSE 29 36 7 3.38824%
NO. READING 15 10 -5 0 94118%
READING 14 14 0 1.31765%

REVERE 211 218 7 20.51765%
SAUGUS 154 161 7 15.15294%

STONEHAM 37 37 0 348235%
WAKEFIELD 33.5 28.5 -5 2.68235%
WINCHESTER 2 2 0 0.18824%
WINTHROP 32 21 -11 1 97647%
WOBURN 46 53 7 4 98824%
TOTAL 1096 1062.5 -33.5 100.00000%
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Northeast Metropolitan Regional Vocational School District

Balance Sheet

June 30, 1997

Assets:

Cash $585,024

Dues from Municipolity $52,534

Prepaid Expenses $112,346

Dues from Capital Projects $292,117

TOTAL ASSETS $1,042,021

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $30,026

Accrued Payroll $57,044

Accrued Vacation & Sick $97,458

TOTAL LIABLITIES $184,528

Fund Balances:

Reserved for Encumbrance $60,678

Water Line $335,611

Insurance Trust $37,786

Immunization $5,500

Undesignated $417,918

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $857,493

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES $1,042,021
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APPOINTED AND ELECTED TOWN BOARDS, COMMITTEES & COMMISSIONS
(Effective December 31, 1997)

Title

Art* Council

#Positions Term Oris.

Date

12 3 yrs. (6 max.)

Term
Exfi,

Appt’g

Auth.

BOS
Karin A. Samatis, Chairman 74 Prescott Street (93) 1999 (2000)

Roberta Ann McRae, V. Chr. 35 Mark Avenue (95) 1998

Debra Darcy 94 Oak Street (95) 1998

Jeanne Freeman 1 6 Grant Street (93) 1999

Elizabeth Geraghty 78 Summer Avenue (95) 1998

Ronald Morse 91 John Street (93) 1999

Karen O’Connell 544 Pearl Street (96) 1999

Laura DiBacco 422 Grove Street (97) 1998

Ann Marie Rotondo 43 Tennyson Road (96) 2000

Anne Marie Whilton 8 Glen Road (96) 1999

Judith Junker 2 1 Mark Avenue (97) 2000

Beatrice Flammia 506 Pearl Street (97) 2000

Audit Committee 5 3 yrs.

: •.

'

Camille Anthony 26 Orchard Park Drive (94) 2000 BOS
Carol Grimm 1 2 Estate Lane (95) 1999 FChr.

Jim Keigley 3 Pilgrim Road (97) 1998 B.V. of O.

Fred Van Magness 243 Franklin Street (96) 1998 Mod.
Thomas Stohlman 14 Mineral Street (97) 1999 Sch. Com.

Board of Appeals 3 + 3 Associates 3 yrs.
U: BOS

Stephen G. Tucker, Chairman 41 Mt. Vernon Street (81) 1999

John A. Coote, V. Chairman 332 Summer Avenue (89) 2000

Vacancy 1998

Laura M. Gregory (Associate) 75 Grove Street (96) 2000

John A. Jarema (Associate) 797 Main Street (78) 1998

Christopher R. Vaccaro (Assoc) 57 Woburn Street (94) 1999

Board of Assessors 3 3 yrs. Elected

David Nugent, Chairman 1 6 Nugent Lane (88) Mar. ’00

Mary S. Ziegler, Secretary 37 Redgate Lane (92) Mar. ’98

Robert I. Nordstrand 384 Franklin Street (69) Mar. ’99

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B. V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. *A11

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.
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Title #Positions Term

Board of Cemetery Trustees 6 3yrs.

Orig.

Pate

Term
Exp.

Appt’g.

Autb.

BOS
Daniel F. Driscoll Jr., Chairman 14 Vista Avenue (86) 1998

William C. Brown 28 Martin Road (96) 2000

Randolph R. Harrison 25 Indiana Avenue (95) 1998

Ronald O’Connell 63 Colburn Road (96) 1999

John M. Silvaggi 74 Whittier Road (81) 1999

Mary R. Vincent 17 Indiana Avenue (94) 2000

Board of Health 3 3 yrs. liililiill BOS
James J. Nugent, Jr., Chairman 1 1 Nugent Lane (83) 1998

Jean Garofoli 12 Jessica Circle (96) 2000

Cynthia Richards 52 Sanborn Street (96) 1999

Board of Library Trustees 6 3 yrs. Elected

Maria E. Silvaggi, Chairman 74 Whittier Road (94) Mar. ’00

Stephen M. Conner, V. Chr. 73 Hillcrest Road (96) Mar. ’99

William H. Diamond, Secretary 236 Summer Avenue (58) Mar. ’98

Cherrie M. Dubois 9 Meadow Brook Lane (85) Mar. ’00

Robert J. Fields 76 Prospect Street (66) Mar. ’99

Christine B. Redford 18 Maple Ridge Road (86) Mar.’98

Board of Registrars 4-2 from each major party 3 yrs. BOS
William Hancock 30 Curtis Street (96) 1999

Gloria R. Hulse 107 Sanborn Lane (92) 2000

Martha E. Walters 20 Oakridge Road (95) 1998

Cheryl A. Johnson 4 Summit Drive (96) Indef. B.V. of O.

Board of Selectmen 5 3 yrs. Elected

Camille W. Anthony, Chairman 26 Orchard Park Drive (94) Mar. ’00

W. Bruce MacDonald, V. Chr. 67 Prospect Street (95) Mar. ’98

Sally M. Hoyt, Secretary 221 West Street (90) Mar. ’99

Daniel A. Ensminger 6 Oakland Road (89) Mar. ’98

George V Hines 35 Grand Street (90) Mar. ’99

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B. V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. *A11

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.
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Title #Positions Term

Bylaw Committee 5 3 yrs.

Orig.

Pate

Term
Exp.

Appt’g.

Autb.

Mod.

Philip B. Pacino, Chairman 3 Copeland Avenue (86) 1998

Dolores S. Carroll, Secretary 37 Johanna Drive (87) 1999

Edward F. Murphy, Jr. 335 Summer Avenue (84) 2000

John H. Russell 91 Spruce Road (91) 2000

George A. Theophanis 86 West Street (78 ) 1999

Cable TV Committee 7 3 yrs. BOS
James. A. Guarente, Chairman 29 Terrace Park (83) 1999

Richard B. Cohen 48 Arcadia Avenue (92) 2000

Kevin A. Kirwin 26 Glenmere Circle (95) 1998

Brenda Smith 129 Bancroft Ave. (97) 1999

Michael M. Longo 50 Pratt Street (93) 1998

Bernice Svedlow 50 Tamarack Road (97) 1999

James Biller 523 Franklin Street (97) 2000

Capital Improvements

Advisory Subcommittee 3 1 yr. FinCom
Carol S. Grimm 1 2 Estate Lane 1998

Catherine Martin 521 Summer Ave. 1998

Nathan C. White 24 Meadow Brook Ln. 1998

Celebration Committee 5 3 yrs.

lllllllll

Mark Burak 28 Lewis Street (97) 2000 BOS
George C. Hines 72 Linden St., Apt. 101 (97) 1999 Mod.
Gladys M. Jones, Act. Chr. 483 Franklin Street (95) 1999 Historical

William J. McLaughlin 37 Knollwood Road (95) 1998 Library

Mary E. Williams 82 Mineral Street (95) Sch. Com.

Commissioners of Trust Funds 5 3 yrs. BOS
Robert S. Cummings, Chairman 105 Gleason Road (90) 1999

Camille Anthony 26 Orchard Park Drive 1999 B V of O.

John J. Daly 163 Woburn Street (95) 1998

Dana E. Hennigar 48 Colonial Drive (89) 2000

Elizabeth W. Klepeis 68 Tennyson Road Indef. B.V. ofO

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B . V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. *A11

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.
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Title #Positions Term
Community Planning &
Development Commission 5 3 yrs.

Orig.

Date

Term
Exd.

Appt’g.

Auth.

BOS
Michael P. Flammia, Chairman 45 Barrows Road (96) 1999

Richard Schubert, Secretary 1 19 Winthrop Avenue (97) 2000

Jonathan E. Barnes 4 1 Pratt Street (90) 1998

Susan DeMatteo 8 1 Colburn Road (96) 1999

Richard D. Howard 21 Kieman Road (86) 1998

Conservation Commission 7 3 yrs. BOS

Nancy Eaton, Chairman 13 Short Street (94) 2000

Stephen A. Chapman, V. Chr. 66 Causeway Road (93) 1999

David J. Danis 41 Shackford Road (95) 1998

Mark Gillis 237 Forest Street (96) 2000

Harold V. Hulse 107 Sanborn Lane (79) 2000

John W. Kilborn 37 Washington Street (96) 1998

M. Clifton Proctor 379 Haverhill Street (78) 1999

Constables 5 3 yrs. BOS

Thomas H. Freeman P.O. Box 825 (93) 2000

Sally M. Hoyt 221 West Street (72) 1999

William J. Hughes, Jr. 102 Hanscom Avenue (81) 1998

Vacancy 1999

Contributory Retirement Board 5 3 yrs.

Henry J. Boissoneau, Chairman 122 John Street, Apt. 3 1999 E. by E.

Richard P. Foley, Town Acct. 68 Tennyson Road Indef. B.V. of O.

Elizabeth W. Klepeis 68 Tennyson Road 12/97 T. Mgr.

Stephen W. Mitchell 18 Fremont Street 2000 Board

Joe Veno 67 Pleasant Street 1998 E. by E.

Council on Aging 10 3 yrs. BOS

Mary J. Andreola, Chairman 331 Summer Avenue (89) 1998

Dorothy L. Foxon, V. Chr. 23 Ash Hill Road (89) 2000

G. Gay Williams, Secretary 482 Franklin Street (96) 1998

Gladys B. Cail 36 Frank D. Tanner Dr. (86) 2000

Elizabeth Cronin 403 Pearl Street (96) 1998

Elizabeth Moore 44 Catherine Avenue (97) 2000

Mary F. Mundjer 8 Frank D. Tanner Dr. (93) 1999

Ellen O’Hara 38 Victoria Avenue (96) 1999

Joanne Wooldridge 287 Haverhill Street (96) 1999

David Brigham 36 Hanscom Avenue (97) 2000

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B. V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. * Ail

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.
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Title #Positions Terra Orig. Term Appt’g.

Custodian of Soldier’s

And Sailor’s Graves 1 3 yrs.

Pate Exp. Autb.

Francis P. Driscoll 7 Ordway Terrace (92) 2000 BOS

Employee Awards Committee 5 1 yr.

Peter I. Hechenbleikner 102 Eastway Indef. B.V. of O.

Vacancy BOS
Vacancy T. Mgr.

Vacancy

Vacancy

Finance Committee 9 3 yrs. (9 yrs. Max.)
I

Fincom
AppCom

James A. Keigley, Chairman 3 Pilgrim Road (92) 1998

Carol S. Grimm, V. Chr. 1 2 Estate Lane (93) 2000

Paul K. Kurker 34 Washington Street (97) 2000

Gerald MacDonald 9 Bear Hill Road (89) 1998 (1999)

Catherine Martin 521 Summer Avenue (95) 1998

Richard McDonald 80 Redgate Lane (96) 2000

James Francis 156 Prospect Street (97) 1999

Larry A. Penta 15 Vista Avenue (97) 1998

Nathan C. White 24 Meadow Brook Ln. (89) 1998 (1999)

FinCom Appointment Committee 3 l yr.

Alan E. Foulds, Chairman 9 Ide Street Indef. B.V. of

O

Moderator

Jim Keigley 3 Pilgrim Road Indef. B.V. of O.

F.Chr.

Camille Anthony 26 Orchard Park Drive Indef. B.V. of O.

Chr. BOS

Hazardous Waste Advisory Cora. 7 3yrs. BOS

Kevin P. Hayes 1 1 Echo Avenue (92) 1998

Foy L. Johnson 16 Enos Circle (92) 1998

Martin Offenhaurer 1 1 Gould Street (93) 1999

Regina M. Snyder 1 1 Jadem Terrace (89) 1999

Vacancy 1999

Vacancy 2000

Vacancy 2000

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B.V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. *A11

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.
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Title #Positions Term

Historical Commission 5 + Associates 3 yrs.

Orig.

Pate

Term
Ex&

Appt’g.

Autb.

BOS
David H. O’Sullivan, Co-Chr. 1 8 Thorndike Street (93) 1998

Virginia M. Adams, Co-Chr. 59 Azalea Circle (78) 1999

Roberta M. Sullivan, Treasurer 76 Minot Street (96) 1999

Louise E. Sandberg 935 Main Street (96) 1998

Vacancy 1998

Vacancy (Associate) 2000

Wilbar M. Hoxie (Associate) 3 1 Green Street (93) 2000

Alan W. Ulrich (Associate) 507 Pearl Street (96) 1998

Housing Authority 5 5 yrs.
!!§!!

BOS
Robert K. Sweet, Jr., Chairman 32 Baker Road (89) 1998

Donald C. Allen, V. Chr. 23 1 Forest Street 2001 State Appts.

Mary E. Connors 52 Sanborn St. Apt. 103 (96) 2002

Jean H. Galvin 225 Forest Street (88) 2000

Timothy Kelley 84 Woburn Street (96) 1999

Landbank Committee 3 3 yrs. BOS
Benjamin E. Nichols, Chairman 25 Avon Street (66) 1999

George B. Perry, II, V. Chr. 230 Franklin Street (82) 1998

Edward G. Smethurst 86 Gleason Road (88) 2000

MBTA Advisory Board l Indef. T. Mgr.

Richard P. Foley 16 Lowell Street

(MEPA) Rep to Citizens

Advisory Committee l + Alternate Indef. BOS
Steven G. Oston 66 Sturges Road

Robert F. Cashins (Alternate) 12 Ash Hill Road

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B. V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. * All

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.
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Title

Metropolitan Area

Planning Council

^Positions Term

1 + Alternate

Orig.

Pate

3 yrs.

Term
Exp.

Appt’g.

Auth.

BOS
William F. Crowley 42 Locust Street

Jonathan Edwards (Alternate) 16 Lowell Street

(94) 12/99

12/99

Municipal Light Board 5 3 yrs. Elected

Philip B. Pacino, Chairman 3 Copeland Avenue (87) Mar’98

William J. Hughes Jr., Secretary 102 Hanscom Avenue (89) Mar’98

Allan E. Ames 14 Arnold Avenue (79) Mar’00

Willard J. Burditt 35 Holly Road (96) Mar’99

David M. Swyter 98 Hartshorn Street (91) Mar’00

Mystic Valley Elder Services, Inc. 2 3 yrs.

Doris M. Fantasia 32 Beaver Road 9/30/98 COA
Rheta C. McKinley 4 Elderberry Lane 4-2 1 1 9/30/00 BOS

RMLP Citizen Advisory Board l 3 yrs. BOS
John Corbett 376 Pearl Street (96) 1999

Recreation Committee 8 + 1 Sch. Com. + Alt 3 yrs. BOS
Christopher Campbell, Chr. 12 Overlook Road (93) 1999

Pamela Andren 236 Forest Street (97) 1998

David H. Bryant 1 13 Oak Street (94) 1998

Claire Bolger 23 Lindsay Lane (96) 1998

Susan C. Cavicchi 4 Orchard Park Drive (93) 1999 Sch. Com.
Catherine R. Kaminer 37 Warren Avenue (88) 2000

Jack Downing 91 Whittier Road (97) 1999

Lorraine Z. Salter 247 Summer Avenue (91) 2000

Dennis Lucyniak 84 Batchelder Road (96) 2000

John Winne (Associate) 29 Clover Circle (97) 1998

Mark Eric Nelson (Associate) 71 Winthrop Avenue (97) 1998

Regional School £district Committee 1 4 yrs. Elected

Marjorie Pacino 3 Copeland Avenue (97) Mar’98 (Mar’01)

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B. V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. *A11

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.
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Title #Positions Term Oris;.

Pate

Rules Committee $ lyr. - No more than 6 consecutive

Term
Exp,

yrs.

Appt’g.

Auth.

Prec. Mem.
Nancy Eaton (Precinct 1) 13 Short Street (96)

Virginia Adams (Precinct 2) 59 Azalea Circle (97)

Alice Grau (Precinct 3) 12 Walnut Street (97)

Mary S. Ziegler (Precinct 4) 37 Redgate Lane (93)

Robert Fuller (Precinct 5) 450 Summer Avenue (94)

Jacqueline S. Chipman (Prec. 6) 94 Summer Avenue (97)

Mark Johnson (Precinct 7) 50 Grand Street (97)

Fred Van Magness (Precinct 8) 243 Franklin Street
(
96)

School Committee 6 3 yrs. Elected

Timothy Twomey, Chairman 23 California Road (91) Mar’00

Susan Cavicchi, V. Chr. 4 Orchard Park Drive (93) Mar’99

Roberta C. D’Antona 68 Old Farm Road (92) Mar’ 98

Robert L. Spadafora, Jr. 8 Deborah Drive (95) Mar’98

Thomas J. Stohlman 14 Mineral Street (93) Mar’ 99

Mary E. Williams 82 Mineral Street (97) Mar’00

School BuOding Committee 11 Indef. Mod,

Russell T. Graham, Chairman 68 Maple Ridge Road Town Meeting

Tim Twomey 23 California Road School Com.

Vacancy Teacher Rep.

Margaret Cowell 958 Main Street Citizen at Large

Robert J. Grasso 1 14 Gleason Road Citizen at Large

Dr. Harry Harutunian 62 Oakland Road School Adm.

Joseph A. Lupi 167 Summer Avenue Citizen at Large

Barbara A. Poock 134 South Street Citizen at Large

Richard Radville 115 Bancroft Avenue Citizen at Large

Roger 0. Sanstad 120 Grove Street Citizen at Large

Jeff Strueble 4 Tower Road Citizen at Large

Sick Bank Committee 9 3 yrs.

Elizabeth W. Klepeis, Chairman 16 Lowell Street 2000 T. Mgr.

Margaret A. Campbell 16 Lowell Street 1998 T. Mgr.

Corinne Fisher Reading Public Library 1999 T. Mgr.

Richard Monroe (Dispatcher) 67 Pleasant Street 1999 Union

Kevin Patterson (Police Sup.) 67 Pleasant Street 1999 Union

Robert Ripley (DPW) 16 Lowell Street 2000 Union

Carol Roberts 16 Lowell Street 1999 T. Mgr.

Joseph Veno (Police Patrol) 67 Pleasant Street 1999 Union

Peter Reinhart (Eng./WTP) 16 Lowell Street 1999 Union

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B. V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. *A11

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.
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Title

Sign Review Board

#Positions Term

5 3 yrs.

Orig.

Date

Term
Exp.

Appt’g.

Autb.

BOS
Wayne A. MacLeod, Chairman 38 Minot Street (94) 1999

Robert J. Mclsaac 267 Grove Street (94) 1999

James F. Treacy 8 Gardner Road (95) 1998

Geraldine Varney 64 Village Street (94) 1998

Vacancy 2000

Solid Waste Committee 7 3 yrs. BOS
Robert A. Brown, Chairman 37 Susan Drive (92) 1998

Kay E. Clark, V. Chr. 536 Haverhill Street (95) 1999

Jacqueline S. Chipman 94 Summer Avenue (96) 1999

Jennifer Culbert 21 Strawberry Hill Ln. (97) 2000

Jean B. Krogh 224 Forest Street (95) 1998

Anne P. Mark 284 Summer Avenue (91) 1999

Lynda M. Zarrow 202 Charles Street (94) 2000

Substance Abuse
Advisory Council 16 3 yrs. BOS
Sandra J. Michaud 37 Estate Lane (94) 1998

Marc. J. Alterio 62 Oakland Road (94) 1999

David H. Bryant 1 1 3 Oak Street (94) 1999

John E. Costigan, Chairman 75 Mill Street (94) 1999

Gaynell Knowlton Birch Meadow School (94) 1998

Cathy A. Kosta 32 Parkman Road (96) 1999

David Libassi 1 1 Laurell Lane (97) 1998

Dale Marie Merrill 175 Franklin Street (97) 1998

Leone Sullivan 67 Pleasant Street (97) 1998

Jean Russo-Parks 750 Main Street (94) 2000

William Carrick 239 West Street (97) 1999

Lisa A. Sinclair 1 1A Carnation Circle (94) 2000

Steven H. Sliwoski 1 8 Larch Lane (95) 1998

David M. Stamatis, D A R E. 67 Pleasant Street (95) 1999

Ann Marie Powers 12 Johanna Drive (97) 2000

Melissa Pucci 411 Gazebo Circle (97) 2000

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B. V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. * All

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.

234 .



Title #Positions Term

Town Forest Committee 3 3 yrs.

Orig.

Date

Term
Exp,

Appt’g.

Autb.

BOS
George B. Perry, II, Chairman 230 Franklin Street (76) 2000

Irving E. Dickey, Jr., V. Chr. 9 Arbor Way (75) 1999

Benjamin E. Nichols, Secretary 25 Avon Street (77) 1998

Water& Sewer

Advisory Committee 3 3 yrs. BOS
Gail F. Wood, Chairman 2 1 3 Pleasant Street (88) 2000

Stewart D. Chipman, Secretary 94 Summer Avenue (93) 1998

Richard J. Moore 5 Elm Street (94) 1999

BOS - Board of Selectmen; T. Mgr. - Town Manager; Mod. - Town Moderator, B. V. of O. - By virtue of office;

Sch. Com. - School Committee; FChr. - Finance Committee Chairman; E. by E. - Elected by Employees. * All

terms expire June 30 of year noted, unless indicated otherwise.
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